& HARINGEY COUNCIL

NOTICE OF MEETING

Executive

TUESDAY, 23RD JANUARY, 2007 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOQOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Meehan (Chair), Reith (Vice-Chair), Canver, Diakides, Amin,
Basu, Haley, B. Harris, Mallett and Santry

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(if any)
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at item
below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgement of the public interest.

4. MINUTES (PAGES 1 -8)



10.

11.

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on
DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS/PRESENTATIONS

To consider a presentation from the Local Government Ombudsman any requests
received in accordance with Standing Orders.

MATTERS, IF ANY, REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE FOR CONSIDERATION BY
THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT - NOVEMBER 2006 (PAGES 9 - 92)

(Report of the Chief Executive — To be introduced by the Executive Member for
Organisational Development and Performance) To provide highlight reports for all the
Council’s corporately significant projects, covering the period up to the end of
November 2006.

THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - NOVEMBER 2006 (PAGES 93 - 126)

(Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Acting Director of Finance — To be
introduced by the Executive Member for Finance): To set out an exception report on
the finance and performance monitoring for November 2006 using the balanced
scorecard format.

FINANCIAL PLANNING 2007/8 TO 2009/10

(a) (Report of the Acting Director of Finance — To be introduced by the Executive
Member for Finance): To consider the proposed budget package for 2007/08 and
later years. To follow

(b) (Report of the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee) To follow
REVIEW OF PARKING FEES AND CHARGES

(Report of the Interim Director of Environmental Services — To be introduced by the
Executive Member for Environment and Conservation): To recommend changes to a
number of fees and charges applied by the service and to recommend the
introduction of an emission based charging structure for parking permits and a
different charging structure for second and subsequent permits. To follow

COUNCIL'S COMMUNITY BUILDINGS PORTFOLIO (PAGES 127 - 142)



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

(Report of the Director of Corporate Resources — To be introduced by the Executive
Member for Finance): To assess the performance and suitability of the portfolio in
relation to the Council’s objectives of developing and providing excellent community
services by working with the voluntary sector.

HARINGEY HOUSING DIVERSITY AND EQUALITIES STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK
(PAGES 143 - 226)

(Report of the Interim Director of Social Services and Housing — To be introduced by
the Executive Member for Housing): To recommend the approval of the Housing
Diversity and Equalities Framework and Action Plan.

HARINGEY LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT 2007/2010 (PAGES 227 - 230)

(Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance, Partnerships and
Communications) — To be introduced by the Executive Member for Community
Involvement): To approve Haringey’s Local Area Agreement.

DISCRETIONARY LICENSING IN THE PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR (PAGES 231 -
244)

(Report of the Interim Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the
Executive Member for Crime and Community Safety): To introduce a
discretionary licensing scheme in Haringey and to establish a pilot scheme
within the Myddleton Road Area of Bounds Green.

RECYCLING STRATEGY (PAGES 245 - 294)

(Report of the Interim Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the
Executive Member for Environment and Conservation): To propose the
adoption of a recycling strategy for Haringey and present options for developing
and expanding recycling collection services in the next 3 years.

GROUNDWORK TRUST PARTNERSHIP (PAGES 295 - 366)



(Report of the Interim Director Of Urban Environment) — To be introduced by the
Executive Member for Enterprise and Regeneration in consultation with the Executive
Member for Environment & Conservation): To recommend approval of Groundwork’s
proposed business plan and ratification of a proposal to become a formal Council
partner. To seek approval for core funding to support a new Groundwork Trust in
Haringey.

17. URGENT ACTIONS IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LEADER OR EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS (PAGES 367 - 370)

(Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Executive of urgent actions taken by
Directors in consultation with the Leader or Executive Members.

18. DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS (PAGES 371 - 376)
(Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Executive of delegated decisions and
significant actions taken by Directors.

19. MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES (PAGES 377 - 380)

Procurement Committee — 7 December 2006

20. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.

21. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following item is likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public as it contains exempt information relating to the business or financial affairs of
any particular person (including the Authority holding that information).

22. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.

Yuniea Semambo Richard Burbidge

Head of Member Services Principal Support Manager

5™ Floor Tel: 020-8489 2923

River Park House Fax: 020-8881 5218

225 High Road Email: Richard.burbige@haringey.gov.uk

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ






This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2006

Councillors *Meehan (Chair), *Reith (Vice Chair), *Amin, Basu, *Canver, *Diakides,
Haley, *B.Harris, *Mallett and *Santry.

*Present

Also Present: Councillors Bull, Oakes and Thompson.

MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

TEX122. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors Basu and Haley

TEX123. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda item 2)

Councillor Santry declared an interest in respect of agenda items 15 — | HMS
Admissions to Schools — Approval to Consult and 17 — Homes for
Haringey Quarterly Performance Report.

Councillor Canver declared an interest in respect of item 15 — | HMS
Admissions to Schools — Approval to Consult .

TEX124. | MINUTES (Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Executive held on 21 November 2006 be | HMS
approved and signed.

TEX125. | DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS (Agenda Item 5)
Haringey Unison

We received a deputation from Haringey Unison the spokesperson of
whom, Mr Chris Taylor addressed our meeting in respect of item 9 on
the agenda - Libraries, Archives and Museum Service, Restructure. The
deputation expressed their concerns about the proposals and asked that
we either reject the proposals or defer our consideration in order to allow
further discussions to take place. Having answered questions put to
them by Members of the Executive they then withdrew

The Chair thanked the deputation for their attendance and advised them
that the representations they had made would be considered as part of
our deliberations on the report. (See Minute TEX 129 below).

TEX126. | PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT - OCTOBER 2006 (Report of the
Chief Executive - Agenda ltem 6)




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2006

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

TEX127.

THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - OCTOBER 2006 (Joint Report of
the Chief Executive and the Acting Director of Finance - Agenda Item 7)

RESOLVED:
1. That the report be noted.

2. That approval be granted to the virements as set out in section 14
of the interleaved report.

DF

TEX128.

FINANCIAL PLANNING 2007/8 TO 2009/10 (Report of the Acting
Director of Finance - Agenda ltem 8)

RESOLVED:
1. That the draft local government settlement be noted.

2. That approval be granted to the proposed budget changes and
variations as detailed in the interleaved report.

3. That the overall resource shortfall, prior to the Executive’s final
budget package, be noted.

4. That the issues in respect of council tax, the children’s services
budget, the HRA budget and the capital programme be noted.

DF

TEX129.

LIBRARIES , ARCHIVES AND MUSEUM SERVICE - RESTRUCTURE
(Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Access) - Agenda ltem 9)

We noted that when drawing up the new structure a working party
including representatives of all level of staff had been established which
had made contributions which were reflected in the report. We also
noted that informal consultation with UNISON had commenced in
November since which time there had been regular meetings with the
Assistant Branch Secretary as well as meetings with staff at each of the
3 main libraries and meetings with Saturday staff. These meetings had
been productive and had provided feedback which had influenced the
report now submitted.

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the structure proposed in the
interleaved report as a basis for formal consultation with affected
staff

2. That approval be granted to the delegation of authority to finalise
the structure following consultation with staff to the Assistant
Chief Executive (Access) or the Director of Adults, Culture and

ACE-A

ACE-A




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2006

Community Services, in consultation with the Executive Member
for Community Involvement.

TEX130.

FURTHER ALTERATIONS TO THE LONDON PLAN (Report of the
Interim Director of Environmental Services - Agenda Item 10)

RESOLVED:
That the responses to the draft Further Alterations to the London

Plan as set out in Appendix 1 to the interleaved report be
approved and submitted to the Mayor of London.

DEnv

TEX131.

NORTH LONDON JOINT WASTE DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT
(Report of the Chief Executive - Agenda Item 11)

RESOLVED:

1. That the arrangements for the preparation of a Joint Waste
Development Plan Document be noted.

2. That the Council be recommended to approve the preparation of
the Joint Waste Development Plan Document.

DEnv

HMS —
Report
to Cncl

TEX132.

CENTRAL LEESIDE AREA ACTION PLAN (Report of the Chief
Executive - Agenda ltem 12)

RESOLVED:

1. That the arrangements for the preparation of a Central Leeside
Area Action Plan jointly with Enfield Council be noted.

2. That the Council be recommended to approve the preparation of
the Central Leeside Joint Area Action Plan Document.

DEnv

HMS —
Report
to Cncl

TEX133.

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT
(Report of the Interim Director of Environmental Services - Agenda ltem
13)

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the Annual Monitoring Report for
submission to the Government Office for London.

DEnv

TEX134.

DELIVERING EARLY CHILDHOOD SERVICES IN HARINGEY:
MEETING THE CHALLENGE OF THE CHILDCARE ACT, 2006
(Report of the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service -
Agenda ltem 14)

We noted that it had been intended to submit a more comprehensive
report including proposals in relation not only to the children’s centres




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2006

for development in Phase Il but also in respect of a unified childcare fee
structure in children’s centres and arrangements for voluntary early
years sector funding. However, the report now submitted addressed only
the first of these issues and the remaining two would be dealt with in a
further report.

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the identified 8 children’s centres for
development in Phase Il as detailed in the interleaved report to
meet a total of 18 centres in place for March 2008

DCS

TEX135.

ADMISSIONS TO SCHOOLS - APPROVAL TO CONSULT (Report of
the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service - Agenda ltem
15)

Councillor Santry declared a personal interest in respect of this item by
virtue of being a school Governor of Welbourne Primary School.

Clir Canver declared a prejudicial interest in respect of this item by virtue
of having a child in attendance at Fortismere School and left the room
while the item was discussed.

Concern having been expressed about the proposals from the
Fortismere Governing Body for sixth form admission arrangements for
the 2008/09 school year, we were advised that while the Council would
consult on the proposals it did not support them and would make this
clear in a press release which invited people to comment and that
following the consultation the Council’s position would be brought to the
attention of the Schools Admissions Forum (SAF).

With regard to the proposed arrangements for admission to the Haringey
Sixth Form Centre, clarification was sought of Point 3 — “To students on
roll in Year 11 at other schools’ and more particularly of whether this
related to solely Haringey schools or to out of borough schools also.
Further, would some additional priority be accorded to pupils of
Fortismere School if the proposals of that school’s Governing Body in
relation to sixth form entry there were adopted. We were advised that
these matters would need to be taken away for further consideration.

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the proposed admission
arrangements as set out in the interleaved report for consultation
for all community primary and secondary schools and St Aidan’s
Voluntary Controlled Primary School.

2. That approval be granted to the proposed admission
arrangements for consultation for sixth form provision in
Alexandra Park School, the Highgate/Hornsey Consortium.

3. That authority to approve the proposed arrangements for

HMS

HMS

HCC

DCS

DCS

DCS




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2006

consultation for the new Sixth Form Centre be delegated to the
Director of the Children and Young People’s Service in
consultation with the Executive Member for Children and Young
People following clarification of the points outlined above.

4. That approval be granted to the proposed admission
arrangements for consultation put forward by Fortismere School
Governors that would change their entry arrangements to the
Sixth Form from 5+ A*- C to 5+ A*-B grades.

5. That approval be granted to the proposed consultation for
Qualifying Schemes for the co-ordination of arrangements for
admission to reception classes in all maintained primary and
secondary schools in Haringey and it be noted that at secondary
level, this would entail the Council’s continued participation in the
Pan-London Scheme.

DCS

DCS

TEX136.

ADULT SOCIAL CARE ANNUAL REVIEW LETTER AND STAR
RATING FOR 2005/06 (Report of the Interim Director of Social Services
and Housing - Agenda Item 16)

In response to a question we noted that the question of providing
advocacy services to support adults with learning disabilities and mental
health problems would be considered in the light of the budget setting for
2007/08.

RESOLVED:
1. That the annual review monitoring letter 2005/06 be noted.

2. That it be noted that the Council had moved from two stars in
2004/05 to one star in 2005/06.

3. That it be noted that there were areas for improvement on which
the Council’s Social Services needed to focus in order to improve
on their star rating for 2006/07.

TEX137.

HOMES FOR HARINGEY QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT
(Report of the Interim Director of Social Services and Housing - Agenda
ltem 17)

Councillor Santry declared a personal interest in respect of this item by
virtue of being a member of the Homes for Haringey Board.

We noted that since the production of the report there had been further
improvements in Homes for Haringey’s performance including that in
respect of the average re-let time for local authority dwellings.

In response to a question it was confirmed that the Council retained both
the freeholder ownership of the housing stock and responsibility for the
formulation of housing policy while the role of Homes for Haringey was
day to day management.




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2006

In response to a further question about Section 20 Notices we were
advised that the Council had statutory obligations to in this respect but
the offered a range of options to leaseholders to help them pay.

RESOLVED:

That the content of the report be noted.

TEX138.

RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT STRATEGY AND RESIDENT
INVOLVEMENT AGREEMENT (Report of the Interim Director of Social
Services and Housing - Agenda ltem 18)

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the principles set out in the Resident
Involvement Agreement and Resident Involvement Strategy as
set out in Appendix A to the interleaved report.

2. That approval be granted to the production of a summary
Resident Involvement Agreement (Compact).

3. That the Council be recommended to approve the launch of the
Resident Involvement Agreement (Compact) in March 2007.

DSSH

DSSH

DSSH
HMS —
Report
to Cncl

TEX139.

URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LEADER
OR EXECUTIVE MEMBERS (Report of the Chief Executive - Agenda
ltem 19)

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

TEX140.

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS (Report of the
Chief Executive - Agenda ltem 20)

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

TEX141.

MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES (Agenda ltem 21)
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the following bodies be noted and any
necessary action approved —

a) Procurement Committee — 14 November 2006;

b) Executive Member Crime and Community Safety — 23




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2006

November 2006.

TEX142. | 341/379 SEVEN SISTERS ROAD N15 (Report of the Interim Director of
Social Services and Housing - Agenda Item 24)

The report was the subject of a motion to exclude the press and public
from the meeting as it contained exempt information relation to the
business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED:

1. That it be agreed in principle that an agreement being entered DHSS
into with Family Mosaic for the disposal of the Council’s land and
that the Head of Housing Supply Group be authorised to approve
the completion of the Agreement as outlined in the interleaved
report in consultation with the Executive Member for Housing.

2. That an Indemnity Agreement be entered into with Family Mosaic | DHSS
in respect of all the Council’s liability arising out of any
compulsory acquisitions of interest in respect of the scheme.

3. That, subject to Family Mosaic providing an indemnity, the DHSS
decision to acquire in advance of demolition be publicised with the
consequence that notices may be served on the Council under
Section 150 Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

4. That a further report for Key Decision be programmed at a later DHSS
date to include -

i) the outcome of consultation regarding redevelopment;

ii) the views of the NDC Board;

iii) recommendations regarding compulsory acquisition of
interests if required; and

iv) a programme for vacant possession and redevelopment;

5. That, pursuant to powers in the Local Government (Miscellaneous | DHSS
Provisions) Act 1976, a Surveyor be commissioned on agreed
terms of reference to carry out a survey of the properties in the
whole Site in conjunction with Council Officers at a cost to be
underwritten by Family Mosaic.

GEORGE MEEHAN
Chair




Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda ltem 7

Agenda

On 2" January

For The Executive On 23" January

Report Title: Programme Highlight Report November 2006

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: The Chief Executive

Report for: Non-Key Decision
Wards(s) affected: All

1. Purpose

1.1 To provide highlight reports for all the Council’s corporately significant projects,
covering the period up to the end of November 2006.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 Following the Audit Commission review of project management, members expressed
concern about the need to strengthen programme and project management
processes.

2.2 The Council’s response to the Audit Commission recommendations was presented to
the Executive on 21 February. One of the key actions agreed by members was that
the programme highlight report, which contains progress reports and management
summaries of key Council projects, should be reported to the Executive each month.

2.3 Accordingly, this report sets out the highlight report for projects that report to the
programme up to the end of November 2006. The detailed programme report is
shown in appendix 1, with the main highlights shown in the covering report on an
exception basis.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To note the report.

Report Authorised by: Dr Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Lauren Watson, Improvement and Performance
Tel: 020 8489 2514

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 1
060.doc1.0



Page 10

Katy Johnson, Improvement and Performance
Tel: 020 8489 4282

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and comments are as

follows:

Primary Schools — the concerns surrounding the current programme and finances
have been considered in detail and the updated position presented within the overall
capital programme for the Council. The programme is part of the financial planning
report also being considered on this agenda.

Children’s Centres — the 2005-06 overspend will be contained within the 2006-07
funding allocation. Phase 2 is being further considered in the light of experience from
Phase 1 and a revised programme for Phase 2 will be produced before the start of the
2007-08 financial year.

Procurement — this project has a target of £2m of savings, equally split over 2005/06
and 2006/07. Only £1.2m has been identified with projects implemented, so there will
be a shortfall of £0.8m against the target in 2006/07. A review of further potential
projects is underway jointly with all departments and the savings target is being re-
phased as outlined in the budget report.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 There are no specific legal implications to comment on in this report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1Report to Executive on 21 February: Programme and Project Management —

Response to the Audit Commission Review of Project Management.

6.2Detailed project highlight reports.

7. Strategic Implications

7.1 The programme is the vehicle for the Council to deliver corporately
significant projects and projects that are key political priorities. It
underpins the Council’s corporate planning process, ensuring that the
projects we undertake reflect and help to deliver Community Strategy
and corporate priorities.

7.2  This report provides an opportunity to monitor, challenge and support
the Council’s key projects to ensure that they finish on time, to budget
and deliver the outcomes for the community.

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 2
060.doc1.0




8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

Page 11

Financial Implications

A key driver in developing the programme structure has been to
improve financial oversight of the Council’s key corporate projects.
Accordingly, projects are required to report detailed financial
information in their project highlight reports each month and a budget
summary for each project is shown in Appendix 1 ‘Programme Highlight
Report’.

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications
Equalities Implications

This report deals with the way that we manage projects many of which
have an impact on different sections of our community. Improved
management of these projects will therefore improve the services we
provide to all sections of our community.

Specifically, the Business Intelligence project aims, amongst other
areas, to capture information on equalities through robust contract
monitoring.

The Equal Pay Review is a crucial element towards the Council
achieving levels 3 and 4 of the Equalities Standard for Local
Government by March 2007.

Background

The programme highlight shown in Appendix 1 provides details of all
the Council’s corporately significant internal and external projects that
report through the Council’s programme structure. The information in
the report is taken from detailed project highlight reports for each
project that have been agreed by the respective Project Boards. Due
to the reporting cycle, there is a time lag in the information presented
and this report shows projects’ status at 31 November 2006.

For each project, there is a management summary that sets out
progress over the reporting period. A traffic lights system, like the one
used in the Finance and Performance report, shows the project status
against key indicators, including:

Overall Status
Status last month
Timescales
Budget
Resources
Issues

Risks

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 3
060.doc1.0



Page 12

11.3  The traffic light annotation is used as follows:

e Green Status: Project progressing to plan and scheduled to deliver
on, or ahead of, time. All risks and issues under control and none
outstanding requiring Executive/Senior Management attention.
Committed costs on track and within sanctioned budget

e Amber status: Project is progressing but subject to small delays.
Issues outstanding which could pose significant threat to the
Project. There may be a budget variance but it is less than
£25,000, or 5% of the total budget, whichever is the more
appropriate.

e Red status: Project progress is well off track and implementation
date will be delayed. There are major issues/risks which pose
immediate threat to the project. The project has stalled because
of lack of project resources and / or there is a budget variance in
excess of £25,000, or 5% of the total budget, whichever is the
more appropriate.

12. Exception Report
12.1  In addition to the management summaries provided for each project in

appendix 1, key highlights from the programme are shown below on
an exception basis.

12.2 Regeneration Stream Board

12.2.1 Growth Area Funds / Community Infrastructure Funds — Relocation of
the Mortuary

12.2.2 As previously reported, planning restrictions on site as well as
conservation concerns regarding the existing Lodge building have
posed great difficulties in finding a satisfactory solution.

12.2.3 The solution agreed is to place operational parts of the mortuary in an
extension underground.

12.2.4 A planning application for the underground extension will be submitted
in early January. All six Ward Members have been briefed on the
plans.

12.2.5 Itis expected that, because of the underground works and the
additional works to the existing building and landscape, the project
costs will exceed the £1.5m GAF funding. It is expected that the
increased costs of the prudential borrowing necessary to raise the
additional capital will be met through increased income.

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 4
060.doc1.0



12.3

12.3.1

12.3.1.1

Page 13

Children and Younqg People Stream Board

Building Schools for the Future

The Children and Young People (CYP) Stream Board has decided
that the Building Schools for the Future programme will no longer
be discussed at the CYP Board to minimise duplication. It is the
largest capital programme within the Programme with strong
governance and challenge structures around it. Instead it will be
challenged and discussed at its fortnightly programme board
meetings. It will continue to send through highlight reports through
Corporate PMO however.

12.3.2 Primary Schools Capital Projects

12.3.2.1

12.3.2.2

The Department for Education and Skills has advised that the
funding arrangements for 2008/09 and beyond will not be known
until after the Comprehensive Spending Review in 2007. However,
the government has announced that capital investment in schools
will increase. Formulaic funding is based on pupil number
projections, which remain high. Similar projections in recent years
have resulted in over £7m per year for basic need formulaic
funding, plus funding for modernisation and access. A prudent
estimate of future funding allocations of £5m has been included
within the programme which will be updated when actual allocations
are known.

There are three major projects already approved that form the
primary expansion programme and are included in the capital
programme. In two of those schemes there are significant cost
variations from the approved budget as follows:

Project

Budget
(April 2005
Executive)

£m

Budget
Revisions
(January
2006)
£m

Revised
Budget

£m

Forecast
Total
Spend

£m

Variance

£m

Coldfall

3.75

0.80

4.55

5.50

0.95

Coleridge

5.50

0

5.50

6.50

1.00

Tetherdown

5.50

0.40

5.90

5.80

-0.10

12.3.2.3

Coldfall

The project is now completed, but the final account is still under

discussion between council officers, our cost consultants and the
main contractor. There are also unresolved concerns about fees
charged by the design team.

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 5
060.doc1.0




Page 14

Additional costs and fees have been incurred due to additional
works, compliance with planning conditions and an outstanding
classroom fit-out. The forecast total spend is a worse-case
estimate. The additional overspend will be met through re-phasing
of the formulaic funding in future years and has the effect of
reducing the amount available for other projects.

12.3.2.4 Tetherdown

Phase 1 (new build) is progressing to the revised timetable. Phase
2 (refurbishment and adaptation of current accommodation) is pre-
tender and current forecasts suggest this project will come in within
budget.

12.3.2.5 Coleridge

Invitations to tender were scheduled for the first stage of a two
stage procurement process on 12 January 2007 from five
contractors from the Council’s framework agreement. Return of the
tenders is due on 2 February 2007. These will provide overheads
and profits percentages based upon a cost model prepared by the
consultant quantity surveyor.

Following evaluation of tenders and subject to planning approval, a
single construction partner will be recommended to procurement
committee. With this partner the second stage of the tendering
process will be progressed. This will include the contractor inviting
sub contract tenders for all pre agreed packages of works. The sub
contract tender returns will be evaluated and measured against the
cost model leading to commercial certainty, and the agreement of a
lump sum contract with the main contractor in June 2007.

The estimate shown is a prudent assumption given the need to
comply with planning conditions and the likely need for additional
works on the TUC site.

12.3.2.6 Programme contingency

The programme from 2008/09 onwards now includes a programme
contingency, in recognition of the inherent unpredictability of
construction costs, given the impact of the Olympics and the
Mayor's housing targets. Arrangements for ‘gatekeeping’ this
contingency will be developed with the Acting Director of Finance.

Detailed consideration is being given to how the variances shown in
the table above will be managed. The current assumption is that the
general schools modernisation and maintenance programmes will
have to be significantly reduced, which may cause some difficulties.
This can be reviewed in later in 2007 if the announcement of future
year’s funding is above current assumptions.

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 6
060.doc1.0



Page 15

12.4 Children’s Centres

12.4.1 The Children’s Centres project has completed Phase 1. Phase 1
reported a £928k gross overspend which will be funded from various
sources including revenue contributions. The service still needs to find
a further £152k in the current financial year and accepts that it will have
to be managed and contained within their present budget.

12.4.2 It is likely most of the new centres will be refurbishment of surplus
space so will be less expensive than new build however this
assumption needs to be tested.

12.4.3 The main risk continues to be our ability to deliver all 8 new centres
within the Phase Il funding envelope. The Children’s Centres have to
develop a wide range of services across broad areas, which require
flexible accommodation.

12.4.4 The Terms and Conditions of the Capital funding state that the
Children’s Centres must be developed in the 20% of most deprived
wards and 30% of the Super Output Areas. In some areas there is
difficulty in identifying potential accommodation that would satisfy these
criteria. A range of stakeholders are being contacted to identify other
possible premises. Alternatively accommodation could be identified on
the perimeter of a ward but this is not our preferred option.

12.5 Better Haringey Stream Board

12.5.1 There are no exception reports for the Better Haringey Stream Board.

12.6 Well Being Stream Board

12.6.1 E-Care Phase 2

12.6.2 As reported previously there may need to be some system
configuration changes to SAP in order to reflect changes arising from
the corporate restructure project. This will potentially impact on
Phase 2 of the e-care project. Work is being undertaken to assess
this impact and a decision on any likely proposal is expected in
January 2007.

12.6.3 Community Care Strateqy: Osborne Grove

12.6.4 The contractor for Osborne Grove has reported a six-week delay on
this project which is now expected to be completed on the 7" May
2007.

12.6.5 The main issue for this project is that a boundary wall is collapsing
onto the site. The owner of the wall has been written to asking that
rectification works are undertaken and Building Control have
condemned the wall and issued a 7 day notice to the owner.

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 7
060.doc1.0



Page 16

12.7 Housing Stream Board

12.7.1 Repairs Procurement

12.7.2 OJEU PQQs returned from 14 contractors, including all of the biggest
contractors in this type of work.

12.7.3 November was a crucial month for collation of data required for tender
much of which is still outstanding including:
o TUPE lists for repairs operations and all other affected
departments
Vehicle leasing details
Customer Services
TUPE lists for vehicle maintenance and Customer Services staff
IT detail and flow chart
Property lists/geographical split
Code of Conduct
Void Standard
Complaints Policy
Depot details including plant and equipment
Standard Bond wording
TUPE details from existing external contractors
Clarification of pension issues relating to TUPE transfer

O O OO0 O OO0 0O OO0 0 o0

12.7.4 Empty Property

12.7.5 Steady progress is being made on reducing void turnaround time: now
down to 27.33 days in November, bringing us closer to meeting the 27
day target. This has brought down our Year to Date figure from 63.61
calendar days last month to 37.02 days this month.

12.7.6 Lettings and Allocations

12.7.7 The electronic re-registration exercise was not completed within
timescales: Home Connections went live 11" December.

12.8 People Stream Board

12.7.8 There are no exception reports for the People Stream Board.

12.9 Value for Money Stream Board

12.9.1 Procurement Programme

12.9.2 As previously reported, there are concerns about achievin% the £2m
savings target. A paper was presented to CEMB on the 5" December
setting out options to deal with the issues.

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 8
060.doc1.0



Page 17

12.9.3 CEMB agreed to a shared ownership of the corporate savings target
and Corporate Procurement are working closely with departments to
identify new projects to deliver the additional £0.8m savings.

12.9.4 Early indications predict that the savings target for Print and Design
will be revised upwards from £57k to £100k.

12.10 Customer Focus Stream Board

12.11 There are no exception reports for the Customer Focus Stream Board.
13. Use of Appendices

13.1  Appendix 1: Programme Highlight Report

Executive20070123Agendaitem07ProgrammeHighlightReportNovember20 9
060.doc1.0



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD NOVEMBER 2006

Prepared by

Corporate PMO

Version 0.3

Page 1 of 73



Page 20

B HARINGEY COUNCILE

CONTENTS

SECTION 1 — REGENERATION STREAM BOARD ..ottt e 3
(1) HARINGEY HEARTLANDS ... 0ciiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 3
(2) TOTTENHAM HALE URBAN CENTRE .....ociviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 5
(3) WOOD GREEN TOWN CENTRE ......ccciiiiiiiiiii e, 6
4) TOTTENHAM HIGH ROAD STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION ..o 8
(5) GROWTH AREA & COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDS (GAF/CIF) ..o 11
(6) COUNCIL OWNED LAND .....ooiiiiiii s 15
(6) WARDS CORNER ... .ot 17
SECTION 2 — CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE STREAM BOARD ......cccooiiiiiiiiieieeeceeeee, 19
(1) BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE.......ccouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 19
(2) PRIMARY SCHOOLS CAPITAL PROJECTS ....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 22
(3) CHILDREN'S CENTRES. ... 0.ttt ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt ittt ittt einneeeeees 25
(4) CHILDREN'S NETWORKS .....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt se s 27
(5) YOUTH SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROJEGCT ..ottt 29
SECTION 3 — WELL BEING STREAM BOARD .....coiiiiiiiite ettt 31
(I E-CARE ..o 31
(2) COMMUNITY CARE STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION......cocciiiiiiie 33
(3) TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION REDUCTION. ....uueiiieeeeiee e 35
SECTION 4 — BETTER HARINGEY STREAM BOARD ...t 36
(1) BETTER HARINGEY ESTATES IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME ..o 36
(2) DELIVERING ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS ON HOUSING ESTATES IN

HARINGEY . .ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt ettt ettt ittt ittt e 37
(3) COMMUNICATIONS & EVENTS ...iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt ne e 39
(4) ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANLINESS & ENFORCEMENT .....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeneen 41
(5) IMPROVING GREEN & OPEN SPACES .......ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei ittt 43
(6) SUSTAINABILITY. .ottt sttt s sttt ettt st e s s s e 46
SECTION 5 — HOUSING STREAM BOARD ......ooii e 48
(1) REPAIRS PROCUREMENT ......ccoiiiiiiii s 48
(2) ADAPTATIONS PROJECT ... 51
(3) EMPTY PROPERTY PROJECT ..o 52
(4) LETTINGS AND ALLOCATIONS PROJECT .....ccceeiiiiiices e 54
SECTION 6 — PEOPLE STREAM BOARD ..o 55
(1) EQUAL PAY BEVIEW ..ottt ittt ittt 55
(2) INVESTORS IN PEOPLE ...ttt ittt 56
(3) CORPORATE HEALTH & SAFETY ACTION PLAN ...occviicriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i i 57
SECTION 7 — VALUE FOR MONEY STREAM BOARD .....cociiiiieiieieee et 59
(1) ASSETS STRATEGY ..iiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiit ittt i ettt ittt se s s 59
(2) PROCUREMENT PROGRAMME ......ccicviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it it ie e 61
(3) USE OF RESOURGES. ......cociiiiiisi s 63
(4) BENEFITS & LOCAL TAXATIONVEM REVIEW ..o 64
(5) TRANSACTIONAL EFFICIENCY.. oot 66
SECTION 8 — CUSTOMER FOCUS STREAM BOARD ..o 69
(1) INSOURCING IT .. 69
(2) CUSTOMER FOCUS PROJECTS ...ttt nee s 71
(3) CUSTOMER SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN. ...c0uiiuiieiiieiiiiie it 73

Page 2 of 73 2



SECTION 1 — REGENERATION STREAM BOARD
Regeneration Stream Board

(1) HARINGEY PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
HEARTLANDS e To commission a masterplan for the regeneration and development of the Eastern Utility Lands.
e To secure the land known as the “former sand sidings” for the provision of a new sixth form secondary
LEVEL 1 PROJECT school

To obtain funding for a new spine road through the overall site from North to South.
To secure a guarantee of the decommissioning of the National Grid TRANSCO site.
To work with major landowners and private developers to deliver these plans.
To meet the output targets of up to: -

o 1,200 new jobs

o 1,200 new school places

o 2,000 new homes

Original End Date: N/A as phased Current End Date: N/A as phased Project Budget: £250k Forecast spend: £150k
programme of work programme of work Spend to date: £27.629k
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

e A joint planning application with National Grid for the spine road was received on 20" October, which is
scheduled to be considered by PASC on 22nd January, 07. The application was considered at the
development Control Forum on the 9" November. It was well attended and a number of concerns were
raised, including the need to carry out mitigation measures in the area, especially along Hornsey Park
Road and Park Avenue.

e A number of different options have been prepared and considered in respect of the footprint of the new
school, but this needs further research to ascertain impact on trees, ecology and noise. Also, Japanese
Knotweed has been found on the site.

e English Heritage have confirmed that the Secretary of State has decided not to list the Hornsey
Gasholder.

e Exchange of contracts and purchase of the BRB(R) site for the new secondary school is likely to take
place in December.

e A positive meeting was held with the General Manager of the AP & PT over the possibility of using
Alexandra Park as playing fields for the new school, but discussions are on-going.

Project Sponsor:
Justin Holliday

Project Manager:
Shifa Mustafa / lan Woolford

I¢ o0ed

Page 3 of 73 3



. PRegenerationStreamBoard

(1)

HARINGEY
HEARTLANDS CONT.

Resources:

e Thereis an issue around procurement of resources and support to manage the programme
effectively. A review is currently being conducted to assess what the resource requirement is.

Page 4 of 73

2c abed



Regeneration Stream Board
(20 TOTTENHAM HALE PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
URBAN CENTRE

e To commission, prepare, consult, amend and adopt a Masterplan for Tottenham Hale Urban Centre.

LEVEL 1 PROJECT e To procure a new 21st century Interchgnge at Tottenham Hale Station. .

e To assemble capital and revenue funding from the public and private sector to deliver the necessary
physical and social infrastructure.

e To bring forward the six key sites for development which are Hale Wharf, the Greater London Supplies
Depot (GLS), Ashley Road Depot, Station Interchange, Retail Park and High Cross Housing Estate.

e In general, to implement the objectives of the masterplan in accordance with urban design principles
set out in the Tottenham Hale Urban Centre Design Framework.

Original End Date: N/A as phased Current End Date: N/A as phased Project Budget: N/A as budget is held, spent & monitored by the LDA
programme of work programme of work

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Adoption of Masterplan (SPD)
e 31% October 2006 - Masterplan was presented to the Council’s Executive and formally adopted as a
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).
e The adopted Masterplan (SPD) will be a material planning consideration and afforded significant
weight when used to determine planning applications for the Tottenham Hale area.

e Adoption Statement allows a three-month period during which any party aggrieved at the SPD’s
adoption can apply for Judicial Review.

Progress
Project Sponsor: o Competition held to find design for footbridge across the River Lee. Two designs to be shortlisted
David Hennings early December.
 Revised outline planning application submitted on 15™ November for GLS Site, further revisions due
Project Manager: in December.
Shifa Mustafa / lan Woolford e Application for GLS Site ‘Podium’ submitted on 29" November
Budget

e There is no budgetary provision available, but LDA are meeting most revenue costs.

Page 5 of 73 5

S obed




Regeneration Stream Board
PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

Project Sponsor:
David Hennings

Project Manager:
Karen Galey

(3) WOOD GREEN TOWN
CENTRE To undertake a number of projects to improve the socio-environmental aspects and economic performance
of Wood Green Town Centre (WGTC) in order to secure sustainability and maintain Metropolitan Town
Centre status. Projects/activities and objectives include:
e To develop a Masterplan and planning brief for WGTC using existing evidence bases (e.g. draft spatial
plan for Wood Green) with the inclusion of strategic sites such as Civic Centre, Library and Lymington
Ave. All planning documents to be submitted as part of planning brief for UDP in September 2007.
e To continue to provide a local business support service for SME’s situated in Wood Green through the
Town Centre Manager and associated resources. Provision of services include advice/support and
signposting, networking, resource management and compliance issues
e To benchmark the services within the town centre by obtaining SLA’s (Service Level Agreements)
e To use the results gained from the BIDs feasibility study to feed in to the WGTC strategy so as to find a
sustainable funding mechanism for the Wood Green Town Centre Management function.
Original End Date: tbd Current End Date: tbd Project Budget: tbd Forecast spend: tbd O
Spend to date: tbd
/@]
<§ . EZ(? <§ 5% > % g : g g £ MANAGEMENT SUMMARY o
s"e 576 [ 8 2 sf@]° A draft PID is being drawn up to cover all aspects of the Wood Green Town Centre development. With the ﬁ

recent addition of the Civic Centre, Library, Lymington Avenue and Turnpike Lane sites to the project brief,
it is envisaged that a final PID document will not be available until all aspects are fully scoped and defined.

This will require extensive consultation with Council departments and stakeholders.

The recently prepared project brief has been amended to reflect and include:

e A joint departmental commission between planning and economic regeneration.

Revised timescales allowing for an extended initial consultation, stakeholder workshops and overall

public engagement.

e Linkages with the Heartlands masterplan.
A two day consultation to facilitate the collation of ideas a developing a vision for Wood Green. One

day would be allocated to Senior Officers and the other to Members.

Page 6 of 73



Regeneration Stream Board

3)

WOOD GREEN TOWN
CENTRE CONT.

Officers from Economic Regeneration have held meetings with property services regarding the Civic
Centre. Officers from Property services will assess the feasibility of previously proposed options for the
Civic Centre, investigate whether there would be scope for the appointed consultants to propose any new
ideas and explore opportunities for GAF funding.

Lymington Avenue — Officers from economic regeneration along with colleagues from planning met with
PCT and LIFT representatives to discuss the possibility in developing a health centre on this currently semi-
occupied site. Officers will continue to, through the dedicated steering group, assess the most effective way
forward for developing this mixed use site.

A recent meeting with The Mall Corporation indicates a commitment to be involved with any future Wood
Green development. Officers from Economic Regeneration have held discussions with John Wood
(Director) and Gareth Holland (Retail Development Manager). It is hoped that possible S106 monies could
be gained from the Shopping City extension to drive forward improvements in the Town Centre.

A draft waiver has been prepared to appoint Urban Practitioners. Sign off will be sought once agreement
has been reached on the revised brief.

The Wood Green Town Centre manager has completed the collection SLAs for the area and has assessed
the gaps in delivery. These are now being addressed.

G obed

Page 7 of 73 7



Regeneration Stream Board

4) TOTTENHAM HIGH PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
ROAD STRATEGY e Improve physical regeneration and sustainable development in Tottenham;
IMPLEMENTATION e Development of high quality managed workspace and incubator space for local SME’s in Tottenham;
e Adapt premises to provide improved and increased managed workspace;
¢ Improve the Tottenham High Road town centre, Seven Sisters Road, Park Lane and Fore Street
Edmonton by enhancing the image of the area and attracting and retaining business;
¢ Reinstate the historic features and environment of core centres that had experienced decline and
degradation
e To support delivery of Haringey’s City Growth Strategy through providing opportunities for maximising
the untapped potential of BME entrepreneurs through providing managed workspace and the associated
business support.
Original End Date: Current End Date: Project Budget: £4851.6k Forecast spend: £4851.6k
December 2006 — ERDF; 30" June 2007 — ERDF; 2010 - HERS Spend to date: £868.9k
2010 — HERS
= _ dz_o| 2|l 2|2 2| 2 MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
Ez838E |58 (88|52
o) sl & S| 2| " |Timescale

Work continues on the ’live’ construction projects. The Townscape Heritage Initiative and Heritage
Economic Regeneration Scheme projects will start on site in January 2007. The NM team is awaiting formal
confirmation of an extension to the Urban Centres for City Growth (UCCG) programme grant deadline to 30™
June 2007 from Government Office for London (GolL) and London Development Agency (LDA). Both have
indicated that this will be forthcoming. The 3.2 UCCG programme is now made up of 9 confirmed projects
with both internal and external partners. All projects are on target for completion by the requested new

Project Manager: deadline of June 2007.
Sean Burke

Project Sponsor:
Zena Brabazon

The overall rating is Green as all projects are moving towards construction starting on site.

Page 8 of 73 8

9z abed



Regeneration Stream Board

(4) TOTTENHAM HIGH
ROAD STRATEGY
IMPLEMENTATION
CONT.

Budget and Resources

The overall rating is Green. Projects are now secured to the full programme value of £5.16m. This will
ensure that the full European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) grant of £1.7m is utilised. The total
spend reported in the July to September 2006 claim was 448,331 of which £149,160 will be claimed through
ERDF.

Issues

The overall High Road Strategy programme rating is Green. All open issues are being addressed by the
project teams.

Risks

The full programme value is now allocated. There is a possible shortfall in delivering the full target of space
improved. GOL has indicated that alternative outputs may be eligible to compensate for any shortfall. The
team is in ongoing discussions with the Head of Property Services to identify opportunities for joint project
working.

Detailed Progress:

e Seven-Sisters Road Shop Fronts: July to September 2006 claim submitted to value of £305,335.
One further claim will complete the financial reporting for this project.

e TGEC refurbished managed work space: Internal refurbishment works continued. July to
September 2006 claim submitted to value of £15,369. The NM team met with TGEC’s new Interim
Director and reviewed progress and spend. The project may be extended to March 2007 to ensure
spend and outputs are maximised. NM will vary the Service Level Agreement (SLA) if confirmed.

e Stoneleigh Road new build Managed Workspace: Piling completed this month and utilities
diverted as required. July to September 2006 claim submitted to value of £64,064. First project
meeting held on site and minor design issues raised and dealt with. Traffic management measures
agreed on Stoneleigh Road with Highways, the police and the contractor.

Page 9 of 73 9

/2 abed



Regeneration Stream Board

(4) TOTTENHAM HIGH e Bruce Grove THI phase | shop fronts: Shopfront contractor appointed and the legal agreements
ROAD STRATEGY finalised Stadium Housing and Nominee Holdings finalised this month. July to September 2006 claim
IMPLEMENTATION submitted to value of £16,453.

CONT.

e HERS shop fronts and facades: Monitor progress of planning application and deal with any
queries. July to September 2006 claim submitted to value of £22,027. Continue Working to secure
agreements for all properties in this phase. Applications submitted for grants to fund historic furniture
and lighting.

e Enfield Council Fore Street: The contractor is making good progress. July to September 2006 claim
submitted to value of £25,582. Additional works may be necessary on some properties. Enfield will
quantify this and request a variation to the Service Level Agreement through the Programme
manager.

e LARC (NDC): NM met with the NDC project manager. NDC sought clarification on eligibility for
purchase of capital equipment through GoL.

e Workspace project on Tottenham High Road: Work has started on-site. Workspace Legal
Services reviewed draft SLA and recommended for completion.

gz abed

Page 10 of 73 10



Regeneration Stream Board

(5) GROWTH AREA & PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
COMMUNITY e To develop the social and physical infrastructure within Haringey to support housing growth as part of the
INFRASTRUCTURE Offic_e of the Deputy Prime Minister’'s (ODPM) London-Stansted- Cambridge- Peterborough Growth
FUNDS (GAF/CIF) Corridor’s delivery plan.
e To acquire SRA/ Rail Property Land for a new secondary school, (GAF2) in the Haringey Heartlands
Project Sponsor: (Eastern Utility Lands).
Andrew Travers ) e To enable Sustainable Housing Development within the South Tottenham Area, (Markfield), (Green
Spaces) (GAF2).
Project Manager: e To relocate the Mortuary (From Western _Utility Lands_), (GAF_Z) to release !and for development of
Shifa Mustafa. lan Woolford affordabla_e_and private homes, together with local retail facilities and associated employment
Steve Carter ’ ’ opportunities.
e To access and enable Residential Development in Tottenham Hale International, (GLS), (GAF2).
e To provide a new Haringey Heartlands Spine Road, (CIF1).
School Acquisition _ : : :
Original End Date: ongoing Current End Date: ongoing Project Budget: £6262k Forecast spend: £6262k
programme of work programme of work Spend to date: £496.3k o
=z _ olz~9 2| @ | 7 | 5 | MANAGEMENT SUMMARY e
SzERE 53 (8 [8E] 5| ¢ \S
R S s S]1 ° | ° | PURCHASE OF HEARTLANDS SCHOOL SITE. P

The school site has now been successfully acquired.

A further number of preliminary designs have been prepared for the school footprint before the main design
Markfield team commences work in the New Year. All site constraints identified in The Demarcation Agreement have
been taken into account in these preliminary designs and can be accommodated. Thames Water have given

positive initial views on the layout of the All weather play area above the New River but will not commit until
detailed proposals are provided.

JUOW
SIyl

snjels
UIuo
1se7
snjels
ae
osowil |
1ebpng
S92
Inosay
sonss|
Sy Siy

>
>
>

Page 11 of 73 11



Regeneration Stream Board

(55 GROWTH AREA &
COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE
FUNDS (GAF/CIF)
CONT.

Mortuary

§3E|5c%03| £ |58 8| 2

Playing Fields

¢ Options are being considered for alternative playing field provision by Property Services for the new school
within the Borough but the preferred option is to utilise the nearby Alexandra playing fields. A positive
meeting took place with the General Manager of the AP & PT over the use of the Alexandra Park playing
fields. Further more detailed discussions are planned and further contact is being made with the local Club
who currently lease the playing fields. Funding options are to be pursued for any capital investment
required to improve facilities with the Club. It is not proposed to hold up the purchase of the school site

whilst these negotiations or options are considered.

Further site Surveys
e The Council has appointed consultants to undertake a scoping report for an Environmental Impact

Assessment, surveys on trees, ecology and noise as part of the requirements necessary for future
planning permission, consideration of the impact of the development on the surrounding environment and
the adjacent Conservation Area and Ecology corridor. The consultants have identified that Japanese
Knotweed is on the site and cost estimates are being prepared for early removal.

MARKFIELD RECREATION GROUND

e Halcrow’s draft of the feasibility study report on the drainage problems in the park has now been passed
onto our CABE Enabler on recommendation of Gwilym Jones. We are awaiting a response from CABE
before Halcrow finalise the report prior to recommencement of the drainage remedial work in the park.

e Enforcement, who are responsible for addressing the problems with misconnections in the catchment
areas around the park, will present this issue to the Chief Executive’s management board for an
assessment of whether this project should be taken forward by the Council.

e The project is very complex as there are 30,000 homes in the 2 catchment areas and many of the

GLS
Z2J0Z2 2|, < 7| =
SZE|SkE|85|af|58 (08| 2
=T 5z25|°93 |7 |83 G| &
A A | A A
Spine Road
D
(2]
73
(%2}
A

misconnections are located in the Green Lanes area.

v
O]
«
@

Q

P

Page 12 of 73 12



Regeneration Stream Board

(5) GROWTH AREA &
COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE
FUNDS (GAF/CIF)
CONT.

RELOCATION OF THE MORTUARY.

Funding agreement from the DCLG has been signed and returned. Design team preparing drawings and
costings for meeting on 6™ December, with planning application submitted before the end of December.
Remedial work can commence on the envelope and structure of the Lodge.

Budget

No budget variations at this stage. Quantity surveyors have apportioned the £1,500,000 as follows:- fees
£290,000, construction costs of £890,000 for the new building , £205,000 for the Lodge and £115,000 for
the vehicular access, landscaping & other external works.

Timescale
If the remedial work to the Lodge can commence ahead of the main contract the project can be delivered
within the set timescale.

GLS Site.
The consultants are progressing the design and working drawings, specifically for the Podium and vehicular /7
pedestrian access under Ferry Lane. The planning application for the podium has been submitted on the 29"8
November and will probably go to PASC at the end of January 2007. The planning application for the whole ¢
site will go to PASC at a special meeting on the 15™ January 2007. Progress of this project is dependent on ¢
the successful outcome of the overall site application. A project group meeting was held on Tuesday 7" 7
November. A Board meeting took place on Wednesday 25" October. No physical work was programmed in
the first three quarters. No milestones were programmed in the first three quarters.

B
FoorFTd

HEARTLANDS SPINE ROAD.

e A number of Key Milestones have been met in this quarter, including:

e Horizontal alignment on Phase 1 (Western Road) identified land transfers/acquisitions from the school,
Parks and Network Rail

e Agreement with representatives of Parks and the “Guardians of the Wood Green Common” has been
given. Application to Minister for land transfer sent on 25/10/06. A Public Notice as required by the
Statutory process has now placed on Site.

e A positive response for the land acquisition at the Chocolate Factory has been received.

e Agreement has been reached with Twilleys as a leaseholder for the land at the junction of Western Road
and Coburg Road.

Page 13 of 73 13



Regeneration Stream Board

(5) GROWTH AREA &
COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE
FUNDS (GAF/CIF)
CONT.

Planning

Contamination

and detailed design on Phase 2 substantially completed. i)
¢ Initial meeting held with National Grid on methodology for carrying out the Decontamination with a further@i

meeting arranged for 7th Dec to discuss the implications of the live gas mains running along the road )

through the Gas Works Site. %3
Contract/PQQ

Discussions ongoing with Education on the report produced by Dearle and Henderson (consultants to
Education) on accommodation works needed at the school.

The interim design alignment has been finalised.

The joint planning application with National Grid for the road was submitted on 16/10/06 to meet the
Committee approval for 27th January 07 and the Development Control public forum held on Thursday 9th
November 06 at 7pm in the Civic Centre. It was well attended and a number of concerns expressed

about the need to carry out mitigation measures in the area, especially along Hornsey Park Road and
Park Avenue.

Topographical surveys have been completed, and topographical data received from the consultant on
30/08/06. Detailed design has been completed on Phases 1 & 3 of the project (existing carriageway),

Contract Documents now with the QS to get comments before sending out to the 5 contractors included
following the PQAQ.

Due to the delays in inviting these tenders, we will need to use the in-house contractor to ensure we
meet the deadlines.

Page 14 of 73 14



(6)

COUNCIL OWNED

Regeneration Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
To resolve the future of key surplus, derelict or under used sites in Council ownership.

Project Sponsor:

Andrew Travers

Project Manager:

Dinesh Kotecha

LAND .
e To secure economic, community and environmental benefits and where appropriate the long term future
of protected historic buildings.
e To support inward funding and investment.
Original End Date: N/A as phased Current End Date: N/A as phased Project Budget: £280k Spend to date: £66k
programme of work programme of work Forecast spend: £280k
= oz o 2|22l 7|2 MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
Sz28B[ 53 [&[8g|5 |2
5°G5~6 g |2 cs| & | @ Tottenham Town Hall
A A A  Following approval of Executive on 31 October to a development partner, a Project Steering Group
(which will also progress the Hornsey Town Hall project) will now progress scheme details within the

overall brief.

The first meeting of the Project Steering Group is scheduled for 6™ December. A meeting with the
selected developer, Newlon has been arranged for 14™ December.

faYalalats M)

e The Project Steering Group will also be addressing the re-location of (non-Council) users from
Tottenham Town Hall and the future working relationships with the Bernie Grant Centre and CONEL.

Hornsey Town Hall

The scheme will be advertised in European and professional journals in mid-December with a closing
date of mid-late January.

The Project Steering Group is being established (see Tottenham Town Hall) and the Community
Partnership Board continues to work on the formation of a trust/company and establishment of a
business plan and budgets for future running of the community elements.

Page 15 of 73 15



Regeneration Stream Board

(6)

COUNCIL OWNED
LAND CONT.

Hornsey Depot

e Following a steer from Members, the Executive on 21st November agreed that the property should go
out to the open market in a joint marketing exercise with Sainsbury.

e Officers have met with both Sainsbury and St James to explain the current position and Sainsbury,
whilst concerned about the delays, are prepared to be part of the marketing exercise.

e An action plan with timescales, including the re-location of existing users is being drawn up.

725 — 731 Lordship Lane
e Disposal remains on target for December 06.

Timescales:

e All projects are actively making progress, the amber status largely reflecting slippage at earlier stages
prior to the key decisions that enabled projects to proceed.

¢ Inthe case of Hornsey Depot, timescales have been extended to take account of the additional time
that open market disposal will require.

Page 16 of 73 16

¢ ebed



. Regeneration StreamBoard

>

>
>
>
>

Project Sponsor:
Justin Holliday

Project Manager:
Jane Chambers

(7) WARDS CORNER PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

e To develop Wards Corner.

e To improve the public open space that adjoins Wards Corner.

e To support other regeneration initiates in the area.

e To work with the lead partner to achieve optimum community benefits.

Original End Date: March 2009 Current End Date: April 2010 Project Budget: £TBC Forecast spend: £TBC
Spend to date: £TBC
= MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

s28Esg=5| 5 |58 2|2
2o cl2ac|e ® ol @ 3 ) ] ] o _ .
R R A =1 ° Wards Corner is recognised as a gateway location within the borough, situated at the apex of Seven Sisters

and Tottenham High Roads. For decades it has been in a dilapidated condition. The proposal is to provide a
new landmark mixed use development scheme which will include residential and retail units alongside
improvements to the safety and design of the Seven Sisters underground and railway stations.

The proposed development at Wards Corner will compliment the Council's High Road Improvement Strategy
and is important for the successful transformation of Tottenham High Road and its environs. The Bridge New
Deal for Communities (NDC) initiative also places a high priority on the site’s redevelopment. Haringey
Council and the Bridge NDC are working together to support the regeneration of this area by seeking to
provide a quality development which will improve the living, working and leisure environment.

At present there are issues which require resolution before moving to the next stage in the development
process. Work is being undertaken to address those issues and agree a basis on which the parties can
proceed. The current timetable for completion of this development is 2010. However, this timetable is subject
to a number of matters, including the timely resolution of planning and CPO issues.

Member decision on this scheme, in particular how to deliver the public subsidy, is scheduled for EAB in
January and Executive in February. Issues will not move from red and the overall project will not move from

Amber until these are resolved.

Gg abed

Page 17 of 73 17



Regeneration Stream Board

(7) WARDS CORNER Budget and Resources

CONT. The overall rating is Amber. The current budget for land acquisition, set aside by the developer, including
associated CPO costs is 13.5 million pounds. The NDC budget for the current year is £159 460.00. The total
project budget is yet to be determined.

Issues
The overall rating is Amber. The issues for this project are:
¢ Achieving the land acquisition within the projected costs
Scheme costs and the basis for delivering the required public subsidy
Planning permission and CPO consent
The potential for unfavourable public/community/business response to proposals
An improved transport interchange

The work required to enable Grainger Trust to achieve 65% land acquisition on the Wards Corner site is now
well advanced. Completion of this acquisition will move Grainger Trust from a position of minority to majority
land ownership in one step.

Risks
The overall rating is Amber. The risks to the Wards Corner development are:

9¢ abed

e Planning — A protracted planning process resulting in significant delay

e CPO - This is time consuming and carries inherent risks. However, the parties are taking steps to
minimise these and have factored in the possibility that there may be a CPO inquiry

e Rights of Light — Consultants have identified an envelope within which a development can take place
without any significant breach of rights of lights

e Development costs — The mixed land ownership on the site has resulted in high land assembly costs.
The cost of development will need to be carefully considered and thereafter tightly controlled, to avoid
any resulting adverse impact on viability

o Mayoral support for the scheme — The Mayors tool kit will be used to ensure that the scheme addresses
any issues which should be considered prior to referring the development to the GLA.

e Engineering — The site is subject to complex engineering constraints due to the configuration of the
tunnels, booking hall and escalators. These constraints limit the size and height of the building and
have implications on construction techniques and development costs.

Page 18 of 73 18



SECTION 2 — CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE STREAM BOARD
Children & Young People Stream Board

(1) BUILDING SCHOOLS PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

FOR THE FUTURE The key objectives of Bright Futures and the BSF programme are to:

e Finally break the link between disadvantage and Itow achievement in order to create prosperous,
inclusive and sustainable communities for the 21° century

LEVEL 1 PROJECT e Support secondary schools to achieve the highest standards, to be fully inclusive, to put the
aspirations and achievement of the learner first and to contribute to community cohesion and race
equality

e Transform outcomes for vulnerable individuals and groups

e Enable secondary schools to have a key role in neighbourhood regeneration and in the wider agenda
that supports the well-being of young people

e Assist all our partners with a stake in the future of young people to work together to provide the best
possible opportunities for young people

o Invest in services that support young people

Original End Date: 2011 Current End Date: 2011 Original Budget: £182,283 Spend to date: £11,584

End date last month: 2011 Revised budget: £177,169
(Total project budget to 2010/11: £177m)

et i 7 | » | MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
C T sl = o I I e Overall: Funding approval received for wave 4. PFI legal documentation progressing but not yet
finalised.
AlcH A| A el A| A e Timescales: The timescales are tight but believed to be achievable.
e Resources: The resources and budget were approved by the board on 14/11/06, subject in the latter
case to the Board receiving a report on cash limiting, managing contingency and inflation once advice
Project Sponsor: on QS’s is available.
Andrew Travers e Budget: There is a need to work through the budget plan, and formalise the management process —
this is in hand, and the amber traffic light is intended to denote uncertainty, rather than concern. As
Project Manager: noted above Waves 4-6 approval is still awaited — approval has been recommended by PfS.
Gordon Smith e Issues and Risks: The risks are Amber pending finalising the revised register.

/€ obed

Page 19 of 73 19



(1) BUILDING
SCHOOLS FOR THE
FUTURE CONT.

Key:

Children & Young People Stream Board

PRG = Programme: core programme governance function, responsible for managing the other streams

CON
work

ICT =

= Construction: deliver the building projects in the programme, including the design and management of the construction

Information & Communications Technology: deliver the Managed ICT service to the schools

PRO = Procurement: responsible for procuring the consultants and services required by the programme, including the design
team partners, construction partners, and other consultants.

TRA = Transformation: responsible for managing the interface between the schools and the programme, ensuring that the new
school buildings and technology delivered as part of the programme deliver the maximum benefit to the users

Progress
e The key activities have included procurement (Design Team, Project Manager, Quantity
Surveyors and ICT provider particularly), converting the PFI Implementation Protocol into a
Variation Agreement and continuing to brief and involve schools.
e Work is continuing to formalise the programme governance process and standards, and to get
the basic management systems in place to allow the streams to operate
o Key focuses are the creation of essential project documentation for each stream, the clarification
of the existing budget and how it has been spent, and the creation of systems to manage the
programme in the future, and to conform to council standards such as HR and health and safety.
Timescales:
e PRG: Much is still to be achieved in establishing the programme governance structure prior to
Christmas.
¢ PRO: Market stimulation was required to encourage a response to the OJEU notice from
suitable Contractor Partners; our partners AYH failed to carry this out in a timely fashion, and a
2 week extension of the return has been required.
e TRA: Timescales are tight for the design development, but are believed to be achievable
currently.
Budget:
¢ Final budgets have yet to be confirmed for all streams. The choice of amber or green status
indicates the attitude of each stream leader towards uncertainty: none have reported genuine
concern.
Resources:
e CON: The appointments for Project management, Planning supervisors and Quantity surveyors
are yet to be finalised

Page 20 of 73 20

g¢ abed



(1)BUILDING
SCHOOLS FOR THE
FUTURE CONT.

Children & Young People Stream Board

o TRA: Levels of personnel are currently low, but recruitment is in hand
Issues and risks:

e PRG: Risks and Issues are Amber, pending final risk and issue management processes and

plans being in place

e CON: Agreement of the PFI contract is a current high risk

e PRO: Risk are amber, we are concerned that there may not be sufficient interest in the
programme from suitable companies in the market

o TRA: A timely response from schools will be required as the design process is undertaken —
recent workshops suggest that there may be issues with getting decisions from schools in a

timely fashion

Page 21 of 73

21

65 abed



(2) PRIMARY

SCHOOLS CAPITAL

PROJECTS

LEVEL 1 PROJECT

Coldfall

Children & Young People Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

To deliver primary school expansion and new pupil places at:

o Coldfall - expansion of primary school from 2 to 3 forms of entry

o Tetherdown (Phase | —to increase pupil places from 210 to 420 by 2012-13)
o Coleridge

Tetherdown Phase Il: To modernise the school in accordance with asset management plan priorities

Broadwater Farm TCF: Inclusion

Original End Date: Various dates Current end date: Various dates Project Budget 06/07: £10.5m Spend to date: £3.694m

against the programme of projects against the programme of projects Revised budget 06/07: £10.794m Forecast spend: £9.941m

senss|

SYsid

>

>

Project Sponsor:
lan Bailey

Project Manager:
tbc

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Overall Programme
The capital budget to be submitted in January 2007 will reflect increased costs and re-phasing on these

projects.

All projects, being large and multi-year, have been designed as a series of self-contained stages to give

flexibility whilst external (DfES) forward funding commitments are uncertain, and to consequently
minimise risk to the projects and the council’s finances.
Due to the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR07) presently being undertaken by HM Treasury,

DfES is unable to give formal capital funding commitments until next financial year. Correspondence has

been received from DfES to inform us of this, whilst also giving their opinion that spending will not fall in

the period 2007-10.
This funding uncertainty is the primary risk to this programme.

Coldfall

Project is proceeding to planned programme

The construction works are approximately 100% complete on phases 1 & 2.

Phases 1 & 2 of the construction works are now in defects liability period which expires November 2
A full report on the projected final account from the cost consultant is still under discussion.

007

Page 22 of 73

22

0t abed



(2) PRIMARY

SCHOOLS CAPITAL
PROJECTS CONT.
Tetherdown
SEE Y n_>§ g 8§ é_’ z

Coleridge

= = w ) -

5 5 o35 |32 8|2
P & © D1 @ » O @ X
i ol & S| » @
A Al A Al A

Children & Young People Stream Board

Tetherdown

This report focuses on the construction project.

The main contractor (Durkan) took possession of the site on 30 May 2006. The contract is due for
completion on 2 October 2007 (70 weeks).

The contractor is on programme, with no delays reported. The impact of a recent query received from

Governors regarding IC is now being assessed.
Site management has been good and relations with the school, neighbours and the public are favourable.

Coleridge

We submitted a Planning Application on 14 November 2006. Development Control Forum scheduled for
6 December 2006. Planning Committee scheduled for January 2006.

The Stage D design and cost report has been signed off by PM. Cost report is approx £175k over budget
but value engineering process commenced.

The current cost estimate is £6.3m.

Highways and CYP service are engaged in intensive work to look at the impact of transport and road
safety, procurement and planning.

Consultation events planned.

| abed

Page 23 of 73 23



(2) PRIMARY
SCHOOLS CAPITAL
PROJECTS CONT.

Broadwater

Crowlands: Insurance
reinstatement after fire

1se7
e
osowl |
196png
S92
Inosay
sonss|
sysiy

Children & Young People Stream Board

Broadwater Farm

This project is temporarily suspended: it is being reviewed to take account of further capital funds
which will be made available in the 2008-10 budget round. A PID will be re-submitted in due course.

Crowlands: Insurance reinstatement after fire

Refer to earlier Highlight Reports for background information.
The Council’'s selected construction partner — Jerram Falkus Construction Limited (JFCL) — is

progressing works at site with the following key points to note:

The project is on programme and scheduled for completion in mid March 2007. This will allow a fitting
out process to be completed by the council ahead of a decant from the temporary school during
Easter Holidays 2007. The school should re-open in mid April 2007 at the start of the summer term.
The PM is progressing a twin track approach to the future of the temporary school and all weather
pitch (AWP). The Council’s BSF team are considering future adoption of the temporary school for the
re development of Gladesmore School commencing January 2008. Notice to quit in April 2007 has
been served on Portakabin by the PM so as to avoid incurring rent charges should the BSF team not

proceed.
Recreational Services has advised that they wish Markfield Park to be returned to former condition

with removal of AWP. They are managing a larger regeneration of the Park.

2y ebed

Page 24 of 73 24



Children & Young People Stream Board
PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
. 8 Children’s Centres in place by March 2008 and delivering the full ‘core offer’
. 14,759 children ‘reached’ by children’s centres by March 2008
(3) CHILDREN’S . Sufficiency of high quality childcare for young children in children’s centre service areas by March 2009
[ ]

CENTRES PHASE 2

Effective early intervention in place as evidenced through effective use of the CAF, reach of services,
evaluation of specific areas of work, foundation stage profile.

Original End Date: 31/03/06 Current end date: 31/03/06 Project Budget 06/07: £10.5m Spend to date: £3.694m
Revised budget 06/07: £10.794m Forecast spend: £9.941m

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Progress:

e The Sure Start Unit timescale for the approval of Phase Il capital programmes requires all projects to
be at RIBA Stage D by Dec 2006, with a full implementation plans placed on the Sure Start website.

o Feasibility studies continue and we have visited all organisations (schools, primary care trust, private

nurseries and voluntary organisations) that have expressed an interest in being part of the Phase I
development.
e Development Officers are devoting half a day a week to each children’s centre area to develop a
Local Planning Group (LPG) to ensure that all key stakeholders, including parents, are involved in the
Project Sponsor: earliest stages of the development of the children’s centre.
lan Bailey

e A summary of the Phase 2 Children’s Centre Scoping exercise has now been drafted with a number
of recommendations. Final recommendations will be made to the executive for approval in December
2006. This will enable us to comply with the Sure Start Unit deadline of December 2006.

Budget:
e Last month CYP Stream Board agreed to close the Phase 1 Children’s Centres budget monitoring,
subject to a closing balance sheet being presented.

Project Manager:
David Moore

Issues:
e We continue to address the issue of finding potential accommodation for the Children’s Centres
through the feasibility stage and by contacting a range of stakeholders to identify other possible
premises.

¢y ebed

Page 25 of 73 25



3)

CHILDREN’S
CENTRES PHASE 2
CONT.

Children & Young People Stream Board

Risks

The main risk continues to be our ability to deliver all 8 new centres within the Phase Il funding envelope.

The children’s centres have to develop a wide range of services across the broad areas, which require

flexible accommodation.

Page 26 of 73

26

i ebed



)

CTOOTN

m

n%
nie

CHILDREN’S
NETWORKS

LEVEL 1 PROJECT

Project Sponsor:
Dr Ita O’Donovan

Project Manager:
Robert Singh

Children & Young People Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

In July 2005 the Council Executive agreed a delivery model for the Children’s Service based on three

Children’s Networks, each consisting of two Network Learning Communities (NLCs) of schools but also

including all services for children and young people from statutory and voluntary agencies. Key aims are:

e Fully implement the Children’s Trust approach to the delivery of services.

e Implement the Common Assessment Framework by September 2007, including establishing a decision-
making structure to oversee the assessment process

e Implement a protocol for exchanging information (with training, by September 2007) within and between
agencies;

e Implement a strategic and operational commissioning strategy

o Establish 18 fully operational Children’s Centres by April 2008, which will provide 700 new childcare
places;

e 14,759 children ‘reached’ by children’s centres by March 2008;

e Implement the Family Support Strategy by March 2007;

e Support schools [at least 30 primary and 4 secondary] to provide a range of extended services by
September 2008.

Original End Date: Dec-2006 Current end date: Mar-2008 Original Budget: £0m Spend to date: N/A

End date last month: Mar-2008 Revised Budget: £0m Forecast spend: N/A

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Timescale & Progress

e Development and implementation of the Family Support Strategy is well advanced: a number of
stakeholder meetings are planned over the coming period to finalise the strategy. Creation of a team
of Family Support.

e A Childcare Commissioning Group [CCG] has been established with membership from across a
range of agencies. The LA will receive funding for 2 years to support an increase in childcare places
across the borough; (2006-07 funding = £400K). Funding will be distributed through a tendering
process, and tender packs will be publicly available by January 10™ 2007A strategic review of play
provision and the Play Service is underway and a number of key meetings have been held with staff;
we expect to receive the review report before the end of December.

e A strategic review of play provision and the play service is underway and a number of key meetings
have been held with staff; we expect to receive the review report in early January.

Page 27 of 73 27

Gt abed



~_ Children & Young People StreamBoard

, e A consultant has been contracted to develop the evaluation framework for the project, under the

(3) CHILDREN’S guidance of the CYPS and Middlesex University. Also, we have been invited to participate with a
NETWORKS, CONT number of LAs in a research project (being managed by Research in Practice [RiP]) to look at the
initial impact of locally delivered integrated services. Participating LAs met in mid-December.

Budget

The Children’s Networks project draws on existing budgets of multi-disciplinary teams to reconfigure the
children’s service.

Page 28 of 73 28

9 ebed



Children & Young People Stream Board

Project Sponsor:
Janette Karklins

Project Manager:
Belinda Evans

(4) YOUTH SERVICE PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
IMPROVEMENT _ _
PROJECT e Develop an ‘excellent’ and accessible Youth Service
Original End Date: July 2007 Actual End Date: July 2007 Original Budget: £1.8m Spend to date: No information
End date last month: July 2007 reported
Forecast Spend: £1.8m
- 4| w o| = MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
EHITLEH IR E:
S 81 2 sl & (@ Improve the quality of youth work practice and consequently achievement*
e The Learning Outcome strategy (LOS) clearly identifies which accreditation systems are to be used
A ‘Er' g and all full time staff have received training on this

e All sessions are now planned using standardised paperwork and recorded outcomes are entered
monthly

o All staff have engaged in visiting projects identified as being pieces of good youth work and have
produced action plans so that their learning is incorporated into every day practice

Improve the extent of the involvement of young people in managing, planning & evaluating youth
work*
e Project plans have been developed that identify young people’s involvement throughout the life of the
project
e The first round of the Youth Opportunities Fund was over subscribed and £253,131 eventually
allocated. The next deadline for submission is Jan 07

Extend the range of youth work activity*
e Individual targets have been set for all staff relating to contact, participation, recorded outcomes and
accreditation
e Partnership projects have been initiated and developed with the neighbourhood Management Team
(Campsbourne, Milton Road).

Page 29 of 73 29

L ebed



Children & Young People Stream Board
Take urgent steps to improve management information in order that the effectiveness of the service
can begin to be measured*
e The first draft of the admin review identifies that there is insufficient admin capacity to input data and
we are considering how this can be rectified e.g. use of volunteers
o All staff have key objectives which have been reviewed through the mid year appraisal process

Monitor and quality assure youth work rigorously*
e There has been a training session for all staff on setting of quality standards and performance
management so that staff can identify key components of quality practice and management

Risks

e All part time staff who have applied to engage with the Service (as part of the reorganisation process)
have been interviewed. Those staff who were not able to evidence that they had the relevant skills
have been offered trainee positions with mandatory training. If there are vacancies at the end of the
part time reorganisation, posts will be reviewed and advertised externally in order to bring
experienced youth workers into the Borough.

e Significant pressures around staff management are taking up a considerable amount of time and may
hinder service improvement. The risk will be mitigated through the performance management
framework over the next 6 months.

gy ebed

*These headings are our youth work priorities as identified in the recent Joint Area Review Inspection.

Page 30 of 73 30



SECTION 3 — WELL BEING STREAM BOARD

Well Being Stream Board

Project Sponsor:
Catherine Galvin

Project Manager:
Andrew Rostom

(1) E-CARE PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
e Implementation of Framework-1 (FW-1), a web-based social care workflow case management system in
July 2005 to replace Cl system
e Ensure that reliable operational and managerial information is produced for Council and Statutory
reporting requirements.
e Have a consistent use of best practice across Social & Children’s Services and enable the quality of
social work practices to improve.
e Facilitate ‘joint working’ by providing staff from external health agencies to access case information
within Framework securely.
Phase 2 End Date: Dec-07 Current End Date: Dec-07 Phase 2 Budget: £1788k Spend to date: £365k
End date last month: Dec-07 Revised Budget: £1698k Forecast spend: £1788k
- ok 4| @ o| 7z | 5 | MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
FETEEHI - EE R i
P sf 2 S| ] ° « ‘AS-IS’ validations workshops have been completed. Work has now commenced on establishing #

proposing a draft ‘TO-BE’ systems design for FWI Finance (Purchasing). Workshops have beef
arranged with all services in December for the project team to present a draft ‘TO-BE’ systems desig
for initial review and comment with FUG reps. Feedback from these sessions will be incorporatedy
within the final ‘TO-BE’ systems design which will be presented for formal review / approval during9
workshops scheduled for Jan / Feb 07.

The data migration strategy was approved at the November project board. A detailed data migration
plan is now being developed to outline the work now required to be undertaken by the project team
and Corelogic to realise this strategy. This will also identify areas of data cleansing work to be
undertaken by performance teams / service staff.

The Change Management strategy was approved at the November project board. Initial change
activities commenced this month and these will continue to be undertaken in line with the high level
plan set out within the strategy.

Page 31



Well Being Stream Board

(1)

E-CARE CONT.

Issues

Analysis work has revealed that some staff have not been recording information correctly on FWI. The
project team will work with FUG reps / services to address “SYSTEM” and “PROCESS” based issues
through the TO BE Design work. However issues which are “PEOPLE” based will need to be owned and
resolved by service / operational managers, and this was approved at the project board.

Risks

The risk relating to system configuration changes made on SAP (as a result of the corporate restructure),
and the potential impact of this to eCARE was raised at project board. Work is currently being undertaken in
IT services to assess the impact of this on all council systems, and decision on any likely proposals should

be known by Jan 07.

Page 32

0G abed



Well Being Stream Board
(PR V1V VN p'Ae7-\: {3 PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

ﬁ\;lr;{f‘ETl\%gl\TTATION e To close and demolish Osborne Grove long-term residential care home for older people and to design
and build a 32 bed respite care home for older people.

e To refurbish 3 long-term residential care homes to a high standard.

e To explore options for 2 out of borough long term residential care homes.

Project Sponsor:
Mary Hennigan

: ; Original End Date: May-07 Current End Date: May-07 Project Budget: £5.65m Spend to date: £1.644m
Prol.e(:t Manager: End date last month: May-07 Forecast spend: £5.65m
David Bray

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Osborne Grove

Osborne Grove (New Build 32 Bed Respite Care Home)

e The seventh contractor’s site meeting was held on the 29" November, 2006. The contractor has !
reported a nine week delay. The contractor no longer maintains overall programme is on target (25”‘8
March 07): the expected completion is now reported as the 21 May. The contractor has stated an @
intention to submit an extension of time claim, which may be a significant amount, though could O
probably be managed within the present contingency fund. The Quantity Surveyor is due to report a
full update in early January and the Project Manager has scheduled a meeting with the Sponsor to
discuss possible mitigating actions.

e A boundary wall is collapsing onto the site. The owner of the wall has been written to asking that
rectification works are undertaken. This wall is the subject of a 3m notice under the Party Wall Act.

The Red House Building control have condemned the wall and issued a 7 day notice to the owner. The council’s

Insurance section has been notified of a potential claim against the council..

=
FE A AR
oG 1°8| €92 8 | & .
The Red House (refurbishment)
. Practical completion certificates have been issued for Sections 3, 4 and 5 dated the 2" October,
2006.
. LBH are in the process of settling the final account.

Page 33



(2)COMMUNITY CARE
STRATEGY

Broadwater Lodge

Broadwater Lodge

Cranwood

Trentfield

Cooperscroft (TUPE)

Well Being Stream Board

The Contract Administrator has written to the contractor, Makers UK Ltd, requesting completion of the
final two snagging items by the 11" December, 2006. R.D.Bull and Son Ltd are quoting for the extra
work and items omitted from the main contract including: soft landscaping, fences, railings, cooks
changing area, external door repairs and a security gate.

A letter informing Makers that LADs will be claimed by Social Services for Section 3, 4 and 5 is to be
issued.

The Fire Officer has visited site and is due to re-visit on the 11" December 2006 to discuss the risk
assessments prepared by the home’s manager

e Refurbishment complete

Refurbishment complete.

2C abed

The conveyance completed on the 3rd November 2006.
£3,300,333.00 received from the purchaser; Mr Ourris.

The exchange and completion for the disposal of Cooperscroft was successful at 23:59 on the 30™
September 2006.
£3,138,900.39 received from Rockley Dene.

Page 34



)

TEMPORARY
ACCOMMODATION
REDUCTION

Project Sponsor:
Julian Higson

Project Manager:
Rupert Brandon

Well Being Stream Board

The project aims to meet the Government target which will require a reduction in TA from 5709 units
@ April 2006, to 2604 units by 2010.

Original End Date: Apr-07 Current End Date: Apr-07 Project Budget: N/A Spend to date: N/A
End date last month: Apr-07 Forecast spend: N/A
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

PROGRESS

Risks show as amber for two reasons:

Issues:

Within existing budgets approval to recruit a number of temporary staff has been made as well as
allowing expenditure on TA reduction measures. A number of appointments have been made.
Money has started to be spent on the homelessness prevention fund. This fund was a key suggestion
by DCLG in preventing homelessness. Cases where homelessness have been prevented include
payment for deposits for people finding their own private sector accommodation and payment of rent
arrears to enable continued occupation.

The TA Reduction Project Board has met three times. The frequency of meetings is yet to be
determined for future meetings but is likely to be either weekly or fortnightly.

Restructuring of the Housing Supply Teams is progressing with the recruitment to most of the posts
completed. Adverts are due to be placed for those posts not filled through ring fencing procedures.

oc abed

Firstly the supply from the private sector is not matching forecasts at present;

Secondly, though the current year’s programme of improvements can be financed through the service
budget; to sustain the programme into FY 2007/08 an ongoing financial commitment is necessary. A

bid has been made for council funds: we will be told in early January whether it has been successful.

There is an issue with the Rent Service not assessing its rental valuations in line with those expected
by landlords thereby resulting in a loss of properties to our schemes. This situation is being monitored
with a view to further liaison with the Rent Service about evidence on market lets.

Approval has recently been given to allow the ALS to provide landlords with one month’s rent paid up
front as a way to offset concerns about market values not being achieved. This policy will be reviewed

in due course.

Page 35



SECTION 4 — BETTER HARINGEY STREAM BOARD

Better Haringey Stream Board

Project Sponsor:
Bob Watts

Project Manager:
John Morris

(1) BETTER HARINGEY | PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
ESTATES e To create a 4-8 year Estates Environment Improvement Strategy and Action Plan.
IMPROVEMENT  To engage other Housing providers in the development and delivery of the Strategy.
PROGRAMME e To establish and deliver the £880k 2006/7 BHEIP programme.
e To deliver £300k Campsbourne Estate project.
Original End Date: May 07 Current End Date: May 2007 — for Project Budget: £1.346 million (2006- Spend to date: £427k
End date last month: see current publication of 4-8 year strategy and 07) Forecast spend: £1.346m
associated action plan(s)
= v - =1 B= ] (N MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
%5 ; @ 5 %§ & |88 & = e 2006/7 works programme consultation and preparation under way.
e Work on development of longer term strategic plan has started and Groundwork has been

commissioned to undertake an ‘area assessment’ pilot in North London.
e £50k (NRF underspend) has been approved to spend on reserve projects.

Resources
Homes for Haringey are reviewing the overall capital programme, which may lead to a level of slippage into
2007/8.

G abed

Page 36



(2) DELIVERING
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENTS
ON HOUSING
ESTATES IN
HARINGEY

Better Haringey Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

The overarching objective is to deliver immediate improvements to environmental services on estates in
preparation for the ALMO inspection. In the longer term, the objective is to ensure that environmental
services delivered by the Council on Haringey housing estates are high quality, effective and provide
value for money. The project aims to support strong joined up working between Homes for Haringey,
Environmental Services and Neighbourhood Management. The project comprises of 5 separate
workstreams, against which progress is shown below.

Original End Date: April 07 (HfH Current End Date: April 07 (HfH Project Budget: N/A contained within Spend to date: N/A
inspection) inspection) existing departmental budgets Forecast spend: N/A
End date last month: N/A

Project Sponsor:
Jackie Thomas

Project Manager:
Joanna David

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
Waste management and street cleaning on housing estates

e Monthly client monitoring meetings with Waste Management, HfH and ACCORD in place.

e Performance data strengthened and HfH monthly estate inspection reports now shared with Waste
Management and ACCORD.

e HfH value for money review of the client side and contract in progress.

¢ Roll-out of extended recycling facilities to 6,000 homes on estates completed — further work is now
underway to investigate any additional sources of external funding that could be accessed to further
extend recycling to flatted properties. The Haringey Local Area Agreement now includes a stretch
target around recycling rates, under-pinned by local targets in the super output areas where the
recycling facilities have been extended.

Grounds maintenance, street lightning and play provision

o Priority list of environmental improvements on estates drawn up between HfH and Grounds
Maintenance — funding £35k.

e Tree and bulb planting programme agreed — BCTV to deliver the bulb planting.

e Community Payback scheme not also working on HfH estates.

e Better Haringey Clean Sweep programme to include an estates clean sweep in March — planning
underway.

e Publicity in tenant newsletter to investigate interest in putting in cycle racks — Transport investigating
potential funding stream.

e ViM review of lighting on estates at stage 1 — working progress in Environmental Services to review
performance data and costings are robust.

bed

D
(9)

Page 37



(2)

DELIVERING
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENTS ON
HOUSING ESTATES IN
HARINGEY CONT.

Better Haringey Stream Board

Enforcement on housing estates
e Planning for enforcement training completed (17" December — finishing late January) — estate
services managers to be trained by Environmental Services Enforcement to enable them to issue
FPNs on estates (littering, dumping).
e Priority list of dumping hotspots a standing item at area based working meetings.

Performance management

. A series of meetings with the key service areas in Environmental Services are taking place to ensure
the performance data collected is relevant and useful. Discussions regarding Waste and Recycling
complete.

Area based working

o First briefing for HfH estates staff completed with approximately 40 people attending a 2 hr lunchtime
workshop to explore ways in which a range of environmental services on estates could be improved, wit
a focus on local, responsive and joined up working. Two more briefings are scheduled for December an
January, after which a work plan will be produced.

Page 38

@y
Q
M
(@)
o))



Better Haringey Stream Board

Project Sponsor:
Joanna David

Project Managers:
Jon Clubb
Deborah Hogan

(3) COMMUNICATIONS |PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
& EVENTS e To support the Better Haringey work programme for 2006-07 with a high profile media campaign,
promoting improvements to the natural and built environment to staff, local residents, businesses and
visitors including hard to reach groups;
e encourage uptake of environmental services through targeted information and education
e consolidate the excellent brand recognition continually develop the Better Haringey web pages and to
develop a resource on Harinet for Council staff;
e collect resident satisfaction data on a regular basis to gain an understanding of the impact of the Better
Haringey campaign
o further develop and promote the walking trail across the borough; and
e to produce a map and guide for the trail that is universally available.
Original End Date: March ‘07 Current End Date: Ongoing Theme Budget: £217.95k (06/07) Spend to date: £85k
End date last month: March ‘07 programme of work AY
Forecast spend: £217.95k é
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 21
] =] o ol _ Co-managed by the Better Haringey & Neighbourhood Management teams, Clean Sweep will take place in N
b3 bdoal 5 g8 @ | # | Tottenham & Seven Sisters on 14 — 16 December. This is the largest area that Clean Sweep had tackled so
S SRl ?_, ® S| & | & | far, and this is reflected in the breadth of activities that are programmed to take place:

Pro-active press / publicity and bespoke letters for residents receiving specific Clean Sweep activities.
Briefing session for all staff involved in delivering Clean Sweep.

Deep cleaning of a number of targeted streets including Westerfield, Suffield, Portland, Brunswick,
Grove Park & Beaconsfiled Roads.

Clearing and Planting on a number of green or open spaces including Stamford Open Space, Hartington
Park, and Carbuncle Passage.

Co-ordinated reporting of fly-tipping and dumps on Hanover, Talbot, Antill, Cunningham, Tynemouth and
Springfield Roads.

Co-ordinated enforcement activities across the three wards in the neighbourhood.

Schools activities, including workshops at the new Environmental Education Centre in Hornsey.
Decoration of a local community centre by the Youth Reparation project.

Page 39



3)

COMMUNICATIONS
& EVENTS CONT.

Better Haringey Stream Board

Recycling will be the key focus of outdoor advertising over the Dec — February period with communications
planned through a number of channels including outdoor poster sites, radio advertising and Haringey
People. Work will commence on the next campaign for March — April, which will be designed to support our
efforts to improve our BVPI| 199 scores.

Issues & Risks

The project initiation document for the Summer Green Fair has been approved by the Stream Board and
Members, subject to further investigation of a suitable venue for the event. Both Alexandra Palace and Park
& Finsbury Park have been suggested as possible alternatives to Albert Recreation Ground (which remains
as the fall back position). These options will need to be investigated and a way forward agreed promptly to
avoid impacting on the project plan.

Page 40

gG abed



Better Haringey Stream Board

extension of time has been agreed.
e The programmed survey of ‘other land’ owned by Network Rail has been completed. However, odd
pockets of land continue to be discovered.

(4) ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
CLEANLINESS & e To undertake a frequent and high profile programme of clean up activities targeting borough ‘grot spots’;
ENFORCEMENT e Encourage resident involvement in community clear up and improvement activities;
¢ Identify all major ‘eyesores’ that have a negative impact on the local amenity and the environment
e Provide at least one free collection of bulky waste per year to all eligible households; and
e Move from unsatisfactory standards to satisfactory standards for the performance indicator for litter and
detritus (BVPI199a),
Original End Date: 31 March 08 Current End Date: 30 Sept 08 Theme Budget: £454,574 Theme actual spend: £187,672
End date last month: 30 Sept 08 Theme forecast spend: £454,574
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
Eyesores Programme
B 4] » 5| & e Network Rail has confirmed that it will comply with the notices previously served to prevent pigeons
g gg N EE & 3 g £ from roosting under bridges at Bruce Grove and the junction of Seven Sisters Road with St. Ann’s ;,U
5" ap 3l 2 sleo | ° Road. This involves replacing the existing unsatisfactory netting with more rigid materials. An C(%
(@)
(o]

. ¢ Notices will be served in January for Network Rail to deal with a renewed bird problem from a bridge
Project Spqnsor: monitored in West Green Road. Additionally they will be asked to improve upon fencing that currently
Joanna David attracts passers-by to push through their empty drinks cans and other rubbish.

. e The appeal lodged by Bridisco against a 215 Town & County Planning Act notice scheduled for
Project Managers: hearing on 13" December has been postponed for 28 days. The company is considering submitting a
Deborah Hogan planning application in order to enhance the fencing of the derelict land and screen out the eyesore.
Rob Curtis Several meetings have been held with a view to an out of court settlement. The Head of Legal Services
Zoe Robertson has been represented at recent negotiations.

Emma Smyth e A survey of Industrial estates has taken place. Additional sites are still being added
e A survey of the waterways has commenced but is so far restricted to parts of the River Lee and the
Lea Non-navigational channel.

Page 41



Better Haringey Stream Board

(4) ENVIRONMENTAL
CLEANLINESS & Community Clear Ups

ENFORCEMENT CONT. e Project on schedule, with 8 Community Clear Ups completed in September, covering 8,586
households within Tottenham Hale, West Green and White Hart Lane wards.

Mobile Clean Up Teams & Street Cleaning

e A rolling programme of work is in place and being monitored by Waste Management Services.
e Since September, the team have been additionally tasked to improve areas on a neighbourhood basis,
as part of the Clean Sweep projects.

¢ Neighbourhood Managers for SSCF areas have been asked to nominate areas to receive an additional
regular cleanse. This is scheduled to be in place for the New Year.

09 abed

Page 42



Better Haringey Stream Board

(5) IMPROVING GREEN |PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
& OPEN SPACES e To raise the standard and profile of parks and open spaces in line with the 8 green flag objectives;
e improve quality, safety and general environment of Haringey’s opens spaces and allotments;
e deliver programme of tree planting, Haringey in Bloom and small grant funding;
e install a new playground in Chestnuts Park;
e meet cleanliness index targets and low ENCAMSs scores,
e deliver a series of site specific improvement works with ‘Groundwork’;
e complete a review of resources and functions associated with Haringey’s Park Management; and

e address condition surveys of sports and leisure facilities.
Original End Date: N/A as Current End Date: N/A as phased Theme Budget: £1.463m Spend to date: £366k
phased programme of work. programme of work. Forecast spend: £1.463m

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
Open Spaces Improvement Programme  Status this month: [€ T
e Fencing package has been released in two programmes for quotation by LHC Contractors — expecte@
return date 5™ Jan 07. 1)
e Soft Landscaping has begun and materials delivered to two sites so far. o
e Noel Park Playground has completed main construction and awaiting final snagging. —
e Wood Green Landscape Project has been approved by Councillors and awaiting final plans to send off
to AGRA (for comment) and for pricing by Crowleys.
e Architect for Archway Road Pocket Park has been appointed and preliminary designs expected before
Christmas.

TTOOT
SiyL
snie

1se7
snielg
e
osawl |
196png
S92
Inosay
sanss|
Sy Siy

>
>
>
>
>

Project Sponsor:

hn Mortri , , ) .
Jo orms Sport & Leisure Services — Strategic Renewals Status this month: A

e Consultation commenced at Park Road In August 06, this presented a difficult exercise and a further
forum was scheduled for Thursday 3" November to confirm final detail of proposed plans and answer

Project Managers:

Don Lawson : ) . .
Andy Briggs questions raised in October. This proved successful.
Paul Ely e Planned Budget remains £594k across the three centres inclusive of carry over £174k, all subject to

good/strong performance in terms of income from the year 1 developments; this ultimately determines
levels of borrowing

Page 43



Better Haringey Stream Board

(5) IMPROVING GREEN &
OPEN SPACES CONT. e Risks - The first project board was held during September and further discussion was had on settling

the final account for year 1, this still poses a risk to the year two projects, AYH believed the final account
will be within the agreed value and are working to settle with this in mind. AYH understand the risk
posed should final account exceed agreed limit.

e Budget - Settlement of the final account of year 1 has been escalated to directors in LBH & AYH & C&B
to ensure resolution within agreed limits.

e Specifications have been worked up for the replacement of the filtration systems at both TGLC & PRLC.
Currently on hold subject to settlement of the Year 1 account.

e Tender documentation has been collated during November and will be advertised early to mid
December. Commencement will be subject to final account of year 1 being settled in the region of the

agreed limit.
e Timescales - All projects may experience slight slippage due to confirmation of final account works sLHJ
planned for Jan/Feb07. Q

e lIssues - Floodlight refurbishment has been placed on hold pending further detailed inspections of &
structure and view as to whether it's cost effective to proceed in light of WHLCSC future plans/vision.4,
\©)

Chestnuts Park Play Improvement Project Status this month: A

e The plans for the new playground, some landscaping around the café, the multi use games area and
the grassing over of the old tarmac area near the basketball courts will go forward as phase 1.

e Public consultation has taken place at Chestnuts Primary (November 9™) so local people can select the
type of play equipment they would like to see in the park. The Friends have made the final decision on
exactly what pieces of play equipment will be included in the tender package.

e Timescale /Budget - Tender documentation has gone out, contractors will need to feedback in a timely
manner as timescales are tight. There is a small risk that quotations provided by contractors may vary
from estimates provided by the quantity surveyors.

Page 44



Better Haringey Stream Board

(5) IMPROVING GREEN | Parks & Open Spaces Hygiene ~Status this month: [€]

& OPEN SPACES o Staff levels reduced to permanents only.
e Cleanliness Index monitoring and ENCAMs monitoring (litter, graffiti, detritus) running in parallel. To be

retained until 1 April 2007.
e Area Officers monitoring in accordance with ENCAMs methodology. Reporting against this method has
commenced.

Groundwork Stage 2 Pilot Programme  Status this month: A

e This Programme Project has 2 strands of work focusing upon specific sites renewal and preparation of
longer term Groundwork Business Case, developed through the existing Groundwork Steering Group.
Timescale / Issues — Site specific briefs have been prepared, but will cause some delay to programme.
Further work to be done to establish Groundwork as approved supplier status.

‘Parkforce’ Resource Review  Status this month: A
o Timescales / Resources - Friends Forum were not willing to agree or disagree with the ‘significant —g

Q

(o)

(o))

parks definition’ or which were ‘significant parks’. Further meeting to be held. S
e Gap analysis and benchmarking exercise to be completed to determine possible future resources.

Ca

(v}

Page 45



Better Haringey Stream Board

Project Sponsor:
Steve McDonnell

Project Managers:
Sule Nisancioglu
Zoe Robertson

(6) SUSTAINABILITY PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e To develop a climate change action plan for Haringey;

e monitor energy use and carbon reductions;

e develop and implement practical projects to mitigate against and adapt to climate change;

e meet targets for recycling rates (22%), waste collection per head (340kg), households served by kerbside
collection of two recyclables (100%), kerbside recycling participation (70%), schools recycling (100%), re-
use and recycling centres diverting 50% of waste from landfill, and improved Council office recycling
infrastructure; and

e to inform residents about waste minimisation and recycling schemes available, in order to increase take-
up of services.

Original End Date: N/A as phased Current End Date: N/A as phased Theme Budget: £435k Spend to date: £160.3k

programme of work programme of work Forecast spend: £435k

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 3

Climate Change Action Plan & Projects 8

= k-9 el z2la] o e Successful Climate Change held on 1 December. @
B TECHEREEIRA Nottingham Declaration signed. g
OGSO E8 |Ve| 8 |8 J ? +

[ ]

e Small project underspend has been discussed with the relevant officers.

e Energy consultants for the schools energy audit have been selected. Key aim will be to attract grants
for low carbon buildings.

e Change control — the project structure may change due to the ‘greenest borough strategy’ proposals.
This process will be managed by the Interim Director of Environment.

New Recycling Projects

e Project on schedule.
e 3 Recycling Officers in full time employment supporting all activities within the Recycling Team

Communication, Participation & Engagement (Recycling)
e Project on schedule, with spend allocated throughout year.
e Promotional materials and new service leaflets are being developed — new leaflets for estates
recycling collections have been produced in this period.

Page 46



Better Haringey Stream Board

(6)

SUSTAINABILITY
CONT.

Estates Recycling

. This project will serve the Northumberland Park and Seven Sisters areas with an estates recycling
service covering approx. 3,000 households with a doorstep commingled service, and a further 3000
households with near entry recycling bring banks.

. Roll-out of new services began in November with spend due to show in the next period.

Page 47

G9 abed



SECTION 5 — HOUSING STREAM BOARD

Housing Improvement Partnership Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
e To achieve the procurement of a value for money responsive repairs and maintenance service for
Haringey’s tenants and leaseholders.
e Test the R+M market in order to identify providers of the service best able to deliver a fit for purpose
solution for both the council and its housing clients.
e High level objectives for this project are to:
o  establish and confirm resources to oversee development of service specification, appointment of
external resources and the procurement process
o develop and implement a housing repairs procurement strategy that adopts modern procurement
practices that aim to secure value for money and efficiencies.

(1) REPAIRS
PROCUREMENT

Original End Date: Apr-07 Current End Date: Apr-07 Project Budget: £100,000 Spend to date: £10,000
End date last month: Apr-07 Forecast spend: £100,000

CTOON
SIyL

Project Sponsor:
Bob Watts

Project Manager:
Martin Hoctor
Ridge and Partners

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Progress

e OJEU PQQs returned from 14 contractors including all of the biggest contractors in this type of work.
e Regular pattern of staff briefings and information to Trade Unions in place.
e Second draft of contract documents produced.

Timescales

e RAG moved to amber from green. Programme still shows market test and award will occur in time for
the Audit Commission inspection but is dependent on all outstanding information being provided for
the tender documents. Production of information relating to TUPE, vehicles, call centre etc is already
later than programmed.

Issues and Risks

e November was a crucial month for collation of data required for tender much of which is still
outstanding including:

@)
©)
@)

TUPE lists for repairs operations and all other affected departments (NM/MH)

Vehicle leasing details (DB)

Customer Services (MH/JW) TUPE lists for vehicle maintenance and Customer Services
staff (MH)

IT detail and flow chart (PD)

Property lists/geographical split (MH)

Page 48 of 73 48

99 abed



~ Housing Improvement PartnershipBoard

(1) REPAIRS
PROCUREMENT
(CONT’D)

Issues and Risks (cont’d)

@)

O O O O O O

Budget

Code of Conduct (MH)

Void Standard (MH)

Complaints Policy (MH)

Depot details including plant and equipment (DB)
Standard Bond wording (MH)

TUPE details from existing external contractors (KS)
Clarification of pension issues relating to TUPE transfer

The budget is currently within target and is projected to stay so.

Page 49 of 73

49

/9 abed



Housing Improvement Partnership Board

(2) ADAPTATIONS PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
PROJECT o Toimplement a new service structure and processes in Occupational Therapy and Adaptations based on

the recommendations of the scrutiny review and business process re-design project.

e The aim of these changes will be to improve the end-to-end process time for users, from the first point of
contact with the council to completion and sign off of adaptations, so that it does not exceed 164 days.

e The project will also implement a new performance management system, develop shared IT system
usage and contribute to a 2* score in the ALMO inspection.

Original End Date: Dec-06 Current End Date: Dec-06 Project Budget: £3,653k Spend to date: £1,458k
End date last month: Dec-06 Forecast spend: £4,700k
N g% d 2l o 2| - | 5 MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
EZERAs3| & |08 2| ¢
P T gl e | 5|le|° Timescale
e Phase 2 PID did not go to the Housing Improvement Programme Board in November as per last
Al A A month’s Highlight Report. It will go on the 11th December.
e The Performance Management system should be in place by the next reporting period (December —
January). The reports needed to capture necessary information have been agreed between

Adaptations and E-care. The reports to be written by the Performance Team by the end of December.

Issues
e On-line catalogue - A Senior OT Practitioner is working on the list of equipment which should be

offered based on the Fair Access to Services criteria. When this is complete, a consultation will take

Project Sponsor: place with prescribers and the PCT. The on-line catalogue will be implemented once this process is

Jim Crook complete.

Project Manager: Risks

Garl Jeffersor? ) e A Contingency plan needs to be drafted if funding is not secure for council property adaptations
y 2007/08 onwards and £1,450,000 has been put into the Pre-Business Plan Review (PBPR) 2007/08.

Initial bidding papers will go to the Council Executive on the 19" December and a final decision
should be made by the end of January 2007.

Budget / Resources
e £1.3m additional capital obtained in October 2006. This is broken down into £319,000 for private

sector adaptations and £981,000 for council property.
Page 50 of 73 50

g9 abed



Housing Improvement Partnership Board

(2)

ADAPTATIONS
PROJECT

Private sector adaptations - Commitment within the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) and Repairs is
£800,000 (original budget) with a further £319,000 of additional money outlined above. This additional
money is committed to 2 surveyor posts (£40,000) with the excess (£279,000) being used for
additional adaptations from November 2006. Based on an average cost of £7,000-£10,000 per
adaptation, this will enable an additional 25 -40 adaptations to be put on site; however this could
leave an excess of 250 cases which have been assessed as outstanding with a potential cost of
approx. of £1.8m. The financial allocation in 2007/08 of £800,000 will deal with approx. 80 - 115
cases. It is likely that 250 new cases will be assessed in 2007/08; therefore, waiting lists in the
private sector will continue to grow unless funding is made available or cases can be resolved
alternatively. We have started to look at alternative solutions and in this reporting period we have
reassessed the provision of 20 level access showers leading to potential cost savings of approx.
£140,000.

Page 51 of 73 51

69 abed



(3) EMPTY PROPERTY

PROJECT

iseT

OIOON
snlelg
9|
BOSaWI |

Housing Improvement Partnership Board
PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

o To implement all the recommendations of the Empty Property Management Review by October 06.
e To improve performance on the process of managing empty properties including customer satisfaction

and VFM by the next inspection in April 07.

e To improve the standard of repair and cleanliness within empty properties by October 06.
e To reduce the overall turnaround time to 27 days by October 06.
e To identify areas of further review and improvement by March 07.

Original End Date: Apr-07 Current End Date: Apr-07 Project Budget: £40,000 Spend to date: £0

End date last month: Apr-07 Forecast spend: £40,000

>
>
>

Project Sponsor:
Jackie Thomas

Project Manager:
George Georgiou

Management Summary

e Significant progress has been made on reducing the turnaround time for November to 27.33 days: the
best performance to date this year.

e Significant progress has also been made on reducing the year to date turnaround time to 37.02 days

e All ‘ready for let’ dates for lettings made from April to November inclusive have been checked for
accuracy and where appropriate have been corrected on OHMS - this has contributed to the
significant reduction in turnaround.

e Excellent progress has also been made on reducing the total number of current voids held to the
lowest figure this year i.e. 167 voids (144 General Needs voids and 23 Supported Housing voids) —
this equates to a significant reduction of 119 voids since June.

e Excellent progress has also been made on reducing the total number of voids at the repair stage to 97
from a high of 173 in June.

e Good progress has been made on reducing the average number of days that voids requiring average
works (VAVs) are turned around (18.58 days year to date)

e The number of lettings for November equalled the number of new lets made (58).

e The number of voids passed as ready for let for November (71), exceeded the number of new lets
made (58).

e The implementation of Home Connections was delayed but went live on 11"

December.

Page 52 of 73 52

0/ abed



(4)

EMPTY PROPERTY
PROJECT (CONT’D)

Housing Improvement Partnership Board

The Lettable Standard has been signed off by Executive Management Team and will now be
designed and printed.

Voids Summit held and further improvements to voids process/Homes Connections identified.

Page 53 of 73 53

1, 8bed



(5) LETTINGS AND
ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT

[easswi |

Project Sponsor:
Julian Higson

Project Manager:
Emily Northeast

Housing Improvement Partnership Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e Develop and implement a new allocations policy and pointing scheme for the London Borough of
Haringey that meets housing need and supports council strategy.

Develop and implement allocations procedures and validations processes;

Undertake a review of the current Housing Register and implement improvement activities;
Undertake a re-registration exercise for all clients currently on the Housing Register;

Implement Home Connections, a new choice based lettings service, which will become LB Haringey’s
method for allocating housing;

e Improve the lettings service and in particular the letting of sheltered accommodation.

Original End Date: Dec-06 Current End Date: Dec-06 Project Budget: Not ring-fenced: comes out of mainstream
End date last month: Dec-06 service budget
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Work on a target Allocations Quota, the pointing scheme and impact modeling completed.

The electronic Re-Registration exercise was not completed within time scales. Daily contact with key
suppliers is being maintained to address risks and issues. Authority has been delegated to the Director of
Social Services & Housing to make key decisions.

2 consultants with strategic and operational experience in the implementation of choice based lettings
schemes are supporting the work.

Key project staff continue to meet daily to drive implementation.

Page 54 of 73 54

2/, abed



SECTION 6 — PEOPLE STREAM BOARD
People Stream Board

(1) EQUAL PAY Project Description/Objectives
REVIEW To implement a new pay and conditions package that takes account of equal value considerations and
meets the 2004 National Local Government Services pay deal for single status harmonisation of manual and

officer conditions. To this end the pay and conditions package will deliver the following:
e A new pay and grading structure with simplified grades and progression criteria

e One job evaluation scheme to be used for all staff within a specified pay range

e Pay protection arrangements

e A set of premium rates to be applied to employees required to work

Original End Date: 31-03-07 | Current End Date: May 2008 | Project Budget: £100,000 Spend to date: None
Revised End date: 31-03-07 Forecast Spend: £100,000

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

OIOOTN
SIyl
ae
osowl |
19bpng
S92
Inosay
sonss|
sysiy

e The national pay agreement 2004 for Local Government Service workers ensures that Local Pay
Reviews must be completed and implemented by 31 March 2007. The national agreement also
specifies that management and trade unions should enter into negotiations, with a view to reaching an
agreement on new local pay structures and systems.

e A Pay and Conditions Proposal has been drafted to address the above. This outlines proposed
changes to the pay structure, the job evaluation process, allowance proposals and suggested

¢/ abed

Project Sponsor:
Andrew Travers changes to other employee benefits.
e The above proposal has been shared with the Project Board and Trade Union Representatives.

Project Manager:

Steve Davies Timescales
e Following the initial meeting to discuss the proposal with Trade Union Representatives negotiations

are required to be extended beyond the original target date. This is due to the contentious nature of
some of the issues in the proposal and the increased length of time needed for negotiations required
to reach agreement on these issues.

e As the negotiations may take longer than anticipated there may be an impact on the subsequent
timescales but at this stage there is no anticipated affect on the project budget. As the project is only
in its early stages this will be monitored and reviewed at a later date.

Page 55 of 73 55



People Stream Board

(2) INVESTORSIN Project Description/Objectives
PEOPLE . This project covers the activities to achieve success in the post recognition review for Investors in
People Standard by April 2007 and retain liP status.
Original End Date: Apr-07 Current End Date: Apr-07 Project Budget: £11,000 Spend to date: £600
End date last month: Apr-07 Forecast Spend: £11,000
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

YIUU\
syl
Ise

8|
BoSsowl |
186png
So
JIN0SaYy
sonss|
SySIY

The Corporate liP action plan is being amended in the light of discussion at the PSB and subsequent Project
Board. The plan will be used to track progress against the standard and inform how various interventions will
support re-recognition. Work has begun in the Impact groups. The planned session with Housing Services
on 13" Dec has been cancelled and will be rescheduled in the new year. In BLT a whole day session for the
management team is planned for the end of January. A Values workshop is planned for Parking Services

. managers. Y
Project Sponsor: Q
Philippa Morris Risks: %

. The reshape and subsequent movement of Business Units has meant that in some areas the MIH groups ~
Project Manager: are either in the process of reforming or have stopped until there is final agreement on structure. In H
Karen Rowing mitigation the OD&L consultants will continue to work with the Business Units where there is no MIH group,

until such time as they are reformed. The main activity from Jan — March 07 will be the development of the
People Plans, which will include liP actions.

Key Activities in this reporting period:

Evaluation report to CEMB in 19 Dec 06, on HR courses, Health & Safety and Customer Focus
People Plan report to CEMB 19 Dec. Recommends revision to template and process

Impact groups, Away Day sessions agreed with each Management Team in Jan 07

Develop assessment process for managers based on new CF for use in Impact areas
Development of the Corporate action plan

Page 56 of 73 56



People Stream Board

(3) CORPORATE Project Description/Objectives
HEALTH & SAFETY |* Toreduce work related accidents by 30% by 2010. Interim Targets will seek a reduction of
ACTION PLAN approximately 10% per year. (To be tested by Corporate Audit in 2007-2008)

e« To improve the Council’s Health and Safety Management Systems so that all Directorates integrate
service health safety and welfare issues into Business Planning and Performance Management by
March 2007

e Toincrease knowledge and awareness amongst managers and other staff about their health and safety
roles and responsibilities by March 2007. (To be tested by Corporate Audit in 2007-2008)

e To form an effective partnership with the Health and Safety Executive in demonstrating best practice in
health and safety performance by March 2007.

Original End Date: 31-03-07 Current End Date: 31-03-07 | Project Budget: £18,000 Spend to date: £0

End date last month: 31-03-07 Forecast Spend: £18,000

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Progress
« A tentative date of 28" November for the agreed health and training session has been agreed with the
Chief Executive. The Project Manager will be discussing course content with training providers on 20"
November.

Project Sponsor:
Stuart Young

e The new Draft Stress Policy has been agreed with all working group members and trade union
representatives. The new draft was discussed at the HR Well-Being Strategy Group on 27" October It
will now be presented to Chief Executive’s Management Board on 21st November and then to
General Purposes Committee on 18" December 2006. The Stress Policy Working Group will now
operate under the HR Well-Being Strategy Group reporting to the Well Being Officers Working Group.
The working group have also now agreed a number of initiatives that will achieve an effective roll-out
of the policy once it leaves draft status.

Project Manager:
Dave Cope

e The funding for procurement of e-learning software was signed off at the last People Stream Board on
18" October. Stream Board requested that specified services should be targeted as part of the roll out
strategy in order to achieve demonstrable benefits. The Corporate Health and Safety Team have
submitted a roll out strategy to Organisational Development that will require Directorate Safety
Liaison Officers to specify priority service areas so that on-line training will be delivered over 3
segments starting from November 2007 with progress reported back to Stream Board at each
appropriate period.

Page 57 of 73 57

G/ abed



People Stream Board

3)

CORPORATE
HEALTH & SAFETY

ACTION PLAN CONT.

Budget:

The cost of procuring e-learning software package (£18,000) b%/ Organisational Development and Learning
October. There are no further foreseeable

was reported to and signed off by People Stream Board on 18"
funding implications at the present time

Risks:
1) Necessary Diversion of key stakeholder service resources
2) Non-effective progress on Change Management due to Service Change

3) Major Incident requiring diversion of Project Team Resources

These risks will remain throughout the life of the Project. Actions to contain the risks are detailed in the
Project Initiation Document. No additional risks have been identified during the last Project period.

Page 58 of 73

9/ abed

58



SECTION 7 — VALUE FOR MONEY STREAM BOARD

Value for Money Stream Board

(1) ASSETS STRATEGY PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
To ensure development and implementation of the corporate Asset Management Plan and the effective
provision and utilisation of assets to support the Council’s overall objectives.
Specific project objectives are to:-
e Introduce a single framework for the corporate management of property which will increase the
efficiency and effectiveness of building management.
e Rationalise the accommodation portfolio and provide office space which is suited to modern
ways of working.
¢ Review of Commercial and Community Building portfolios to align them with Council priorities
and value for money objectives
Original End Date: Dec-2008 Current End Date: Dec-2008 Original Budget: £2319k Spend to date: £654k T
End date last month: Dec-2008 Revised Budget: £3063k Forecast spend: £2435k (£518k Q)
carried over to 2007/08 for ((®
Accommodation; £110k for Assets)
SZ2|5§8 a§ g8l s | % CORPORATE MANAGEMENT OF PROPERTY ~
The Project Team are currently carrying out analysis and review of the Property Helpdesk, including
A A detailed reports on contractor and helpdesk performance as well as the nature, location and frequency of
faults reported.

Project Sponsor:

Andrew Travers

Project Manager:

Dinesh Kotecha

All property assets have been programmed into the planned maintenance module of Manhattan which is
now undergoing extensive testing. A planned maintenance programme has been drafted for finalising with

Homes for Haringey.

The specification for integrating Condition Survey reports has been submitted to Raindrop and is currently
being developed, as is software for uploading condition survey information directly into Manhattan.

Page 59



Value for Money Stream Board

(1)

ASSETS STRATEGY
CONT.

In conjunction with Corporate Procurement, progress has been made toward securing a maintenance
contract for reactive work (urgent repairs, often of a health and safety nature such as fixing loose carpet
tiles) and the contract has now been advertised. In the meantime it has been necessary to continue to use
contractors from previous procurement arrangements to ensure these works are carried out.

The initial stage of the change management programme is nearing completion with only one stakeholder
meeting outstanding.

Two Assistant Facilities Manager posts are being advertised (closing date is 1.12.06).

Accommodation Strategy Stage 1
Refurbishment of Alexandra House is continuing to timescale. Level 6 is now re-occupied with
refurbishment of Levels 3 and 4 in progress.

A continuing concern is the current lack of solutions for re-locations to enable the vacation of the Town Halls 4
and Civic Centre according to the original plan and development timescales. The new Project Steering «Q
Group for Hornsey and Tottenham Town Halls will address some of the re-locations, particularly non-CouncifP
users. Options for re-location of staff from the Civic Centre (North wing) and Hornsey Town Hall complex a
(equivalent to some 300 staff) are being drawn up and may include some use of Technopark.

Accommodation Strategy 2007-10

A presentation was made to VFM Stream Board on the forward Accommodation Strategy

2007 -10 which aims to refresh and accelerate the strategy, taking account not only of any remaining items
from Stage 1 but also changes in needs, issues and general accommodation practice since the strategy was
first agreed. This includes demand and capacity, strategic direction, increasing the pace of rationalisation
and significant improvement to working environments which will support modern working practices. Further
presentations are scheduled for CEMB and EAB in order to obtain a steer on a number of matters ranging
from specific buildings to corporate standards and priorities.

Portfolio Reviews - Community Buildings
Review completed subject to consideration by Members. Report scheduled for EAB and Executive on 9™
and 23" January respectively.

Page 60



(2) PROCUREMENT

Value for Money Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
e  To deliver Gershon recommended efficiencies in terms of cashable and non-cashable savings.

Project Sponsor:
Thc

Project Manager:
Michael Wood

PROGRAMME \ _
o To achieve a target of £2m (£3m stretch target) savings over 2005/7 (£2m cashable, £1m non
cashable).
o To deliver against National Procurement Strategy milestones and deliver procurement objectives.
o To ensure the Council’'s Procurement Strategy is updated, published and embedded.
o To develop a best practice model for the provision of temporary staff and permanent recruitment.
Analysis of annual procurement spend (2004/5) on goods and services has identified key areas for efficiency
review. These are Bought in Legal Services, Temporary Accommodation, Training Consultants, Marketing
and Communications and Transport Services.
Original End Date: Apr-2007 Current End Date: Apr-2007 Project Budget: N/A. £200k savings achieved in 2005/6; £800k expected in
End date last month: Apr-2007 2006/7 from the new agency contract; Projected shortfall of £1m anticipated to
be achieved through new efficiency review projects.
- = MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
558|558 25| £ 38| 2|2 o
o & = The November Procurement Project Board (PPB) signed off the PID for the Passenger Transport project. @
\
(e

The scope of the project now includes market testing of the In-house service provision.

We currently have complete Aug — October management reports from Hays, partial July data and nothing for
the period 22 May — 6 July. The missing data has been requested at least at an overall council level and we

hope to have it before the end of December.

The data provides details of individual temps; hours worked; rates of pay. From this we have produced
estimated total 2006/07 savings based on continuing at current spend and usage levels plus a number of
variants. The initial projections suggest that we are on track to achieve budgeted savings, however we

.

G

urgently need the historic data.

Page 61



Value for Money Stream Board

(2)

PROCUREMENT
PROGRAMME CONT.

DETAIL:

Savings Target
A paper will be presented to CEMB in December that addresses the Red status of this report and the way
forward.

Transport Services
PID signed off by PPB on November 9". Invitations to tender have now been sent out and are due for return
on 18" December 2006. The Project team are currently working on the evaluation model.

Training Consultants
CPU have met with OD&L. The PID is now in draft format and will be bought to the December PPB. A spend
analysis has been undertaken showing a spend of £6M of which £1.5 is with HALS.

Marketing and Communications — Reporting to Customer Focus Board
Spend analysis is currently being undertaken on all external printing works. Progress to be reported back to
December PPB

nQ abed

Energy.
A contract with OGC Buying Solutions has been entered into this month. Although this contract will generate
savings, they are not able to be counted towards the council’s cashable savings target..

Page 62



Value for Money Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

(3) USE OF RESOURCES
The project will implement the action plan developed in response to the Audit Commission assessment of
the Use of Resources block of the CPA completed in October 2005. The aims include:
. To achieve an overall level 4 criteria of the Key Lines of Enquiry in September 2006
. To improve from level 2 to levels 3 and 4 on value for money and internal control respectively.
. To improve from level 3 to level 4 on financial standing, financial reporting and financial management.
o To show progress on District Audit recommendations from September 2005 by April 2006.
Original End Date: Dec-06 Current End Date: Dec-06 Project Budget: N/A — all activities delivered by current staff establishment with
no additional revenue costs.

535:"3 ?E% %% g 8§ g 3 MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

=oc |=2c 3 » @ 3

R R I il . In light of the 2006 published results a new action plan will be drafted in November 2006 to take the

Project Sponsor:
Gerald Almeroth

Project Manager:
Kevin Bartle

project through to October 2007.
. The highlight reports for the 2006/07 efficiency reviews will report directly to the value for moneyy

stream board. o
. An update on the debt recovery review issue will be taken to the Use of Resourced meeting ﬁg

December.
Budget Scheme of Delegation; work is in hand to complete the revised scheme by end of Decembet
2006 as planned. Heads of Finance are currently completing appendices to show Budget Holders and
local financial delegated powers so that these can be added to the scheme. The current version of the
scheme is being reported next week to discuss any further improvements that need to be made.

Page 63



Value for Money Stream Board

Project Sponsor:
Paul Ellicott

Project Manager:
Jaine Le Cornu

(4) BENEFITS & LOCAL PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
TAXATION VFM e To identify the reasons for Haringey’s BLT service appearing to be a high cost service in relation to
REVIEW similar Local Authorities.
e To establish/verify current cost, performance and productivity levels and to make comparison to similar
Local Authorities and the wider market place. Make recommendations for cost reduction, and/or
improved performance/productivity, if applicable.
e To examine the correlation between cost and performance and to establish whether high cost is a factor
in achieving a high performing service.
e To establish current and predicted volumes of work and the optimum resource levels required to handle
them and to review the current staffing structure to reflect the current and predicted future need. (This
will be referenced to the Council’s desired CPA Use of Resources and VFM scores)
e To examine the performance of Customer Services and the CITS provision to the BLT service in terms of
cost and quality. Where appropriate make recommendations to improve the quality of service received. =
e To identify other models for service provision (added by VFM stream board) Q)
Original End Date: February 2007 Current End Date: February 2007 Project Budget: N/A — Project being undertaken within existing resources I
z_ olz_0| 2| o | 7 | 5 [ MANAGEMENT SUMMARY N
soe|ghE|23| 5 |88l 2|z
i S A S| © | ® | The purpose of the project is to carry out a Value for Money (VFM) review of Benefits and Local Taxation

(BLT). The Audit Commission VFM profiles identify Haringey Council’s BLT service as high cost in relation

to our neighbours. The project will assist in verifying the source data, addressing the Council's efficiency and

value for money agenda and will contribute to the Use of Resources block of the CPA.

The review started in September. This is the third Project Highlight Report and covers the period 1 — 30"
November 2006.

The key activities undertaken during the period are outlined below:
e Benchmarking survey distributed to selected group
e Present cost, performance and productivity data for Haringey BLT service being documented and
analysed. Initial draft report to be discussed at Project Board 12" December.
e Analysis of available benchmarking data started and to be included in draft to Project Board on

12th December.

Page 64



Value for Money Stream Board

(4)

BENEFITS AND LOCAL
TAXATION VFM
REVIEW CONT.

Risks:

Some Customer Services performance and productivity data received, financial data requested.
External sources have been contacted, objectives agreed and timescales set in respect of
understanding the wider service delivery market and the subsequent costs.

e The project requires obtaining information from external sources, to enable benchmarking of
Haringey’s performance, and to assess other models of service provision and providers.

Page 65

cg abed



Value for Money Stream Board

Project Sponsor:
Andrew Travers

Project Managers:
lan Andrews / Jane West /
Kamla Chetty / Julia McClure

(5) TRANSACTIONAL PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
EFFICIENCY. Implement the Contract Management System (CMS)

e To act as a document depository for all contracts over £5K

e To provide a tool to send out tenders and deal with incoming bids, providing an on-line capability for the
evaluation of tenders and effective communication with suppliers and users.

Business Intelligence (Bl)

e To provide management information (MI) on the type, value, term, product category and financial value of
all contracts. To also capture information on health and safety, equalities, BME/SME, risk, performance
and contract monitoring.

SAP Upgrade ERP 2005

e Deliver an as-is upgrade from SAP R3 4.6¢ to My SAP ERP 2005

Transactional Efficiency

e Reengineer back office processes across the council to increase efficiency and value for money for our -
customers. e

Original End Date: Current En_d Date: Project Budget: £590k Spend to date: £85.141k D

CMS (Phase 2) CB)|M1S A5ugDé)206 CB;IMgot5 ?Sgigzd, new date TBC g;ﬁgi?r?ci/ )& transactional Forecast spend: £185k ’

Upgrade: 31-Oct-06 Upgrade: 31-Oct-06 B

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

S RIS~ = D o 2| @ ny)
c221552(33| & 88| 2 | 2 |cMs-Phaset
- 2= 7] °] - il I UAT has not been signed off as Vendor testing has not commenced, due to issues with the URL, which

Logica are working on at present. It is anticipated that vendors will be scheduled into test once the URL is

working anticipated date of resolution1st Dec 2006, anticipated date for vendors to test the system W/C 11™

December.

The move across to QAS has happened re- testing has commenced by the project team to ensure all
functionality is working as expected, however there have been some issues which are being looked at by

Logica at the moment.

Two changes from the change log have been approved, these will be completed using 10 enhancement
days agreed by CST. All outstanding quotes for changes have been passed to the Project Sponsor for
approval from the VFM board.

Page 66



(5) TRANSACTIONAL

EFFICIENCY CONT.

Business Intelligence

UIUoN
Syl
snieis

Upgrade

LYIuo
1se
snyeis
ae
osawil |
186png
S80

inosay

sonss

SYSid

Yluop
SIyL
snjels
Yluop
1se
snjels
e
osawl |
186png

S99
inosay

senss|

SYSid

Value for Money Stream Board
Timescales for implementation and testing of 9 out of 13 of the changes to be made in the system have now
been included in the Project Plan which has moved the Go-Live date to the 22" December.

The options paper on the SS/ C & YP issues has been drafted and any recommendations will need to be
agreed by SS & C & YP.

CMS Phase 2

Planning for phase 2 roll out has commenced. The training plan for CMS is currently being reviewed. The
BULCO role definition has been approved by the project Sponsor and has yet to be formalised across the
council. BULCO one to one interviews have been scheduled throughout November and December.

An implementation plan has been drafted.

SRM Training material has been updated and has been approved by the Project Sponsor.

cQ abed

Business Intelligence

|
Sign off document has been provided by Logica, the contents will be reviewed by Haringey.

Upgrade
The R3 upgrade has successfully been delivered on time. By meeting our target to deploy the upgrade by

December 06 we have saved the council money by avoiding an additional 2% on our annual maintenance
fee.

This upgrade also eliminates the development limitation encountered with the previous version. We are now
in a better position to exploit new functionality that will enable us to continue to meet business benefits for

the council and remain at the forefront of technology.

Page 67



Value for Money Stream Board

(4) TRANSACTIONAL
EFFICIENCY CONT.

Transactional Efficiency

Yluop
SIyL
snjels
Yluopw
1se
snjels
e
osawl |
186png
S80
Inosay
sonss|
Sy siy

4
4
4
P4
4
4
P4

Transactional Efficiency

This project has been placed on hold until further notice

Page 68

9g abed



SECTION 8 - CUSTOMER FOCUS STREAM BOARD

(1) INSOURCING ICT

LEVEL 1 PROJECT

Customer Focus Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e To transition support of the infrastructure delivered by the Tech Refresh programme from the project
team to permanent staff

e To outsource the Networks and Security element to a new managed service provider and to purchase 3rd
party software tools as required by the service management design

e To design processes and develop role definitions to deliver a user support and infrastructure
maintenance service based where applicable on ITIL recommendations.

e To design an organisational structure that encapsulates the defined roles and processes, utilising existing
resources as much as possible to fill the new structure and recruiting additional skilled resources where
necessary.

Original End Date: Dec 2006 Current End Date: Dec 2006 Project Budget: £6.435m Committed spend to date: £3.945m
End date last month: Dec 2006 (expected)

CTOOTN
SIyL

Project Sponsor:
Davina Fiore

Project Manager:
Lidia Lewis

Forecast Spend: £6.064m — £6.594m
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

The Programme continues to progress within time, cost (inclusive of contingency) and quality tolerances
allowing the overall programme RAG status to continue at Green. The contributing factors to the overall
status are highlighted below:

Timescale:

The timescale for external recruitment was originally acknowledged as being tight, however operational and
budgetary reasons mean that recruitment to certain posts has been deferred to the next financial year to
become part of the normal recruitment process, and good progress continues to be made in recruiting to the
remaining posts, thus reducing timescale pressure from this source. Certain legacy applications and servers
are proving difficult to migrate/decommission due to lack of sufficient vendor support for migration or
business support for decommissioning. It is anticipated that these issues will take some time to resolve but
that they will be within the capabilities of the newly recruited engineers joining in December / January,
therefore these migrations / decommissionings are being moved into BAU. It is anticipated that the other
outstanding migrations / decommissionings will be completed within the programme timescales. Thus the
overall end date for the programme is still viable within tolerances and therefore the programme timescale
RAG status remains at Green.

Page 69

/g obed



(1)

INSOURCING ICT
CONT.

Customer Focus Stream Board

Budget:

The project team is continuing to apply the cost management plan agreed with the Board at the meeting of
19" October and as a result the worst case budget outcome and, more relevantly, the mid-point outcome
continue to improve. However there is still an overall threat to the budget, which means that the programme
budget RAG status continues at Amber.

Resources:

With the support of ITS Business Partners and ITS Project Managers, it has been possible to contain
business project demand for operational resources, thus freeing up sufficient resources to support the
Legacy Environment Decommissioning team in completing their modified deliverables (see comments
relating to timescales above) by end of December. Thus the programme resources RAG status continues at
Green.

Issues:
All issues are being satisfactorily managed, thus the programme issues RAG status remains at Green..

Risks:

Three streams are managing budget-threatening risks as previously noted, leading to the programme risk
RAG status continuing at Amber.

Page 70

g8 abed



Customer Focus Stream Board

(2) CUSTOMER PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
FOCUS PROJECTS | To help set and instigate a Customer Focus agenda for Haringey, ensuring that customers are at the heart of

service design and delivery through:

Getting Haringey to be better outward focussed

Enabling bottom-up involvement in developing and actioning change
Getting back to basics and getting them right

Working towards a strategic, coherent and cohesive approach

Current pilot projects are the WOW! Awards, ICS Staff awards Programme and the Customer Focus

Network
Original End Date: 31 March 2007 Current End Date: 31 March 2007 Project Budget: Not applicable. There is no dedicated capital budget for
End date last month: 31 March 2007 Customer Focus. All costs for pilot projects are being met from revenue
budgets.
- 4| @ o| 7 | 5 | MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
b3 b3l 5 |88 2| 3
Egpedog|a || 5 | B
i o ~ | S| ° WOW! Awards
e 225 nominations were made within the first three months of the pilot — a response much better than even
A highest expectations. Only the very exceptional are being forwarded to the WOW! organisation for

consideration. Both of the first two submitted were given WOW! Awards — presented to the winning staff
by the Leader on 6" October. A further 3 have since been awarded and arrangements are in hand for the
Project Sponsor: Deputy Leader to present these.

Justin Holliday ¢ |n consultation with colleagues, draft proposals to roll the scheme out corporately are being developed.
Initial consultation will be undertaken at the Corporate Complaints Officer meeting on 8" December.

Project Manager:
Chris McLean ICS Awards programme

e The pilot was launched on 25th September and the application / selection/matching process has been
completed. This all proved far more time consuming than had been anticipated, despite the extensive
forward planning in place. Initial briefing sessions for both coaches and practitioners were held at the
beginning of November. We are currently tracking that coaching meetings are taking place and dealing
with issues arising.

e The need to explore a contingent bid for post pilot funding has been flagged with the Head of OD+L.

Page 71

68 abed



(2)

CUSTOMER FOCUS
PROJECTS CONT.

Customer Focus Stream Board

Customer Focus Network

e This too was formally launched on 25" September. Membership will be expanded to include those
involved in the ICS Awards pilot.

o 4" edition of the newsletter published.

e This is the most ambitious of the three pilot projects and the one most dependant upon the active interest
and support of services, which to date has been extremely disappointing. The first task group — to review
the existing Customer Charter — will take place on 8" December.

Risks:

No change. Engaging the organisation and lack of corporate clout to help achieve this. The active interest
and support of the Customer Focus Streamboard has been sought. This especially applies to the Customer
Focus Network project as well as the more general brief of Customer Focus. A Customer Foc'us
presentation was considered by CEMB on 17th October and further by the Senior Managers’ Seminar on
23" October. This is being followed up by SMT on 7"" Dec and then jointly with CEMB on 12" Dec.

Page 72

06 9bed



Customer Focus Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

(2) CUSTOMER
SERVICES , ,
IMPROVEMENT To implement the Customer Services Improvement Plan.
PLAN Original End Date: tbc Current End Date: tbc Project Budget: Not applicable
End date last month: tbc
- d 2| o 7| & MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
EETEEEIB IR
E o ch2d® 3 »2| o Y ] ] ) o ) ]
i 1 of * = In order to focus attention and efforts on improving the performance within Customer Services, it has been
agreed to suspend further implementation of the Customer Services strategy until October 2007.
NEN|[N|N|N|N|N

An Improvement Plan has been written that focuses on three key areas:

e Real Time Management
e Our staff; our strength
e Sharing problems and solutions

A Board, led by Justin Holliday, will meet monthly to review progress against this improvement plan and this
will be formally monitored from next month.

16 8bed

Page 73



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93 Agenda Item 8

Agenda ltem

Executive On 23 January 2006

Report title: The Council’s Performance — November 2006

Report of: The Chief Executive and Acting Director of Finance

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out an exception report on the finance and performance monitoring for
November 2006 using the balanced scorecard format.

2. Introduction by Executive Member for Finance (Clir Toni Mallett)

2.1 | welcome the third month running where | report a balanced position. This reflects
good work in managing budgets and needs to be continued for the rest of the
financial year.

Introduction by Executive Member for Organisational Development and Performance
Management (Clir Dhiren Basu)

2.2 | am pleased to report to my Executive colleagues that 70% of indicators are achieving
or close to achieving target. 70% of targets are the same or improved since the end of
last year.

2.3 Focus is required on NEETs, although performance in this area has improved
considerably we still need to work on the area. Also, Children’s Act complaints (stage
1) are below target to be responded to within 10 days, 69%, in the year to November,
to an 80% target.

2.4 Street Cleanliness figures are disappointing but | am pleased to see the Encam
initiative (joint monitoring of street cleanliness with Accord) is working towards beating
unacceptable levels of litter. The figure of 32% of roads having unacceptable levels of
litter for November is a good improvement on the previously reported figure of 41%.

2.5 | am pleased that there has been a significant improvement in Customer Services
Performance with 34% of calls answered within 15 seconds, compared to under 18%
in October. Nevertheless, | still have concerns as the target is 70% for the year. | can
see the Customer Services improvement plan is making an impact and hope this
continues in the same way for the remainder of the year.

10f 18



Page 94

2.6 Levels of sickness are still concern, although November has seen a slight improvement
but is still not meeting the 8.8 day target.

3. Recommendations
3.1 To note the report.

3.2 To agree virements set out in section 14.

Report authorised by: Dr Ilta O'Donovan — Chief Executive

Contact officers: John Hardy — Head of Finance — Budgeting, Projects and Treasury
Telephone 020 8489 3726

Margaret Gallagher — Performance Manager
Telephone 020 8489 2553

Head of Legal Services Comments
There are no legal implications

4. Executive Summary

4.1 This report sets out the routine financial and performance monitoring for November
2006 in the balanced scorecard format.

4.2In summary the balanced scorecard shows that for the excellent service perspective
66% of indicators are on target or close to the end of year target at the end of
November. For 24 of the 36 (67%) customer focus measures, performance targets are
being met or close to being met. For financial health 23 of the 31 measures traffic
lighted achieved amber or green status meaning for 74% of indicators performance
levels are achieving target or being maintained at an acceptable level. Our
organisational development /capacity indicators including staff survey results show that
for 16 of the 18 (89%) measures, performance is at or close to expected levels.

4.30verall 70% of indicators are achieving or close to achieving target. In addition 70% of
indicators have maintained or improved performance since the end of last year.

4.4 The scorecard appendix also includes some estimated top quartile data (All England)
so that progress can be assessed not only against the targets we set but in terms of
how we compare with others and how close we are to attaining what we ultimately are
aiming to achieve.

4.5In summary, based on the November position, the revenue budget shows a balanced
position.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 None

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

20f18




Page 95

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
Budget management papers
Service Pl returns including unit cost data

Strategic Implications
This report monitors Haringey’s position in relation to a number of indicators that will be
used to assess the Council in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA).
Performance against these measures will determine Haringey’s rating in 2007. The
report also gives an indication of the level and quality of services delivered on the
ground.

Financial Implications

In summary, based on the November position, the revenue budget shows a balanced
position.

The aggregate capital projected position in 2006/07 is currently projected to under
spend by £0.9m.

Legal Implications
There are no specific legal implications arising from this report, however the response
rate for freedom of information requests although improving is still below target and
needs to improve further to ensure we meet the statutory time limit.

Equalities Implications
Whist equalities is a central thread throughout out the council’s performance, this report
does highlight some areas with positive results around equalities issues but also some
areas where performance needs improvement. For example the pressure on services in
Learning Disabilities and Mental Health combined with reductions in services in the
health sector. However as this report details the strategy of providing services to help
people to stay living in the community will be of benefit to people from black and minority
ethnic groups who are high users of community based services. On a positive note,
black and minority ethnic people are high service users of both parks and libraries
where we are exceeding targets.

Consultation
The scorecard includes a number of resident and staff perception measures and shows
how well the Council is performing in this area. The results show the level of satisfaction
with the Council currently and should provide a baseline as well as informing action to
improve satisfaction levels.

7. Background

7.1 This is the regular finance and performance monitoring report for November
2006. It is based on the financial monitoring reports prepared for the budget
management meetings held on 14 December for period 8 and the service
submission of the basket of performance indicators that have been agreed for
2006/07.

3o0f18




7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Page 96

The reporting is in the form of a balanced scorecard. The scorecard looks at
performance across four dimensions: service excellence, financial health,
customer focus and organisational development. The scorecard consists of
corporate and service performance measures.

The report includes routine monitoring of unit costs so that performance and
costs reflect activity enabling us to make judgements around whether we deliver
value for money services.

For 2006/07 the indicators contained within the balanced scorecard include key
threshold indicators used in the Council’s Comprehensive Performance
Assessment (CPA) and those which reflect the Council’s priorities including
some key local indicators for the Council.

Performance data is shown in Appendix 1. Progress continues to be tracked on
a monthly and year to date position against the target using a traffic light
annotation where:

e green: = target achieved / performance better than planned
e amber: = just below target
e red: = target not achieved / below expectation

In addition, trend arrows depict progress since the last financial year, so whilst
an indicator may receive a red traffic light for not achieving target, it will show an
upward trend arrow if performance had improved on the previous year’s outturn.
Between them, the lights and arrows indicate current progress and predict the
likely annual position.

The scorecard appendix also includes some estimated top quartile data (All
England) so that progress can be assessed not only against the targets we set
but in terms of how we compare with others and how close we are to attaining
what we ultimately are aiming to achieve.

8 Service Positions on Delivering Service Excellence

8.1

For the excellent services arm of the scorecard 51% of indicators are shown as
Green, 15% Amber and 34% Red, with 40 out of 61 showing an improvement
or maintained performance compared with 2005/06 outturns.

8.2 Children and Young People

8.2.1

8.2.2

Based on the November position the children and young people’s budget is
anticipated to be within budget at the year end.

As previously reported, there are cost pressures in relation to Looked After
Children (LAC). These are being contained by under spending on both
commissioning and non-commissioning areas and managers have been made
aware of the need to restrict spending on all areas wherever possible. As at
the end of November, LAC numbers are 392 (excluding unaccompanied

4 0f 18



8.2.3

8.2.4

Page 97

asylum seeking minors), which is a decrease of 6 compared with the end of
October. The budget assumption was 365 by the end of March 2007.

The asylum position shows a gross shortfall of £3.3m and relates to both
children and adults. This is covered by a planned contingency of £1.1m and
assumed special case grant claims of £0.8m and £0.6m for 2005/06 and
2006/07 respectively. The net expenditure of £0.9m has been covered by a
virement, approved in September, leaving a balanced position. The previous
forecast was based on an assumed successful claim for ‘special
circumstances’ grant for 2005/06 costs of £463k. However, following a
meeting of London Councils where funding proposals from the DfES and the
Home Office were considered and supported, an additional Home Office grant
for 2005/06 has been agreed at an additional £371k above that anticipated.
Proposed changes to the funding arrangements from the DfES could also
mean an increase in grant of about £106k in 2006/07 although this is not yet
factored in.

As previously reported the capital budget is currently projected to be £0.7m
above budget due to the overspend on Children’s Centres phase 1 of £0.9m
less an underspend on formulaic schemes of £0.2m. This will be funded by a
re-profiling of formulaic allocations.

Performance highlights for the Children and Young People's Service are as follows.

8.2.5

8.2.6

All 78 statements of special educational need, excluding exceptions, issued in
the year to November were prepared in the 18 week timescale. When
exceptions are included 78 out of 91 (85.7%) statements were issued within 18
weeks, exceeding the 85% target. The good performance continues with both
parts of the indicator exceeding target.

As at October there were 618 or 13.9% of 16-18 year olds who were not in
Education, Employment or Training (NEETSs) in Haringey. Actions are in place
to understand the factors influencing NEET’s performance including those
whose location is ‘not known’ as this impacts on the accuracy of the reported
figures. The table below illustrates performance on NEETs over the last 3
years.

Sept 2003 Sept 2004 Sept 2005 Sept 2006
16-18 cohort 7217 6452 6452 6002
Not Known 4484 4095 2101 2026
Not Known 62.1% 63.5% 32.6% 33.6%
NEET 376 501 669 642
NEET 17% 18.6% 15.3% 15.9%

A report updating the Haringey NEET Strategy has been produced by
Connextions exploring how we will achieve our target by 2010. It focuses on

prevention, intervention and sustainability and looks at four critical factors:

50f 18




8.2.7

8.2.8

8.2.9

Page 98

o Effective practice in the use of management information, referral &
tracking

e Best practice in advocacy, brokerage and information, advice guidance
& support

e Alignment with pre & post 16 supply side: curriculum & progression
e Improved incentives for participation

11.5% of our looked after children had three or more placements as at
November ‘06. This is an improvement on our 2005/06 outturn and exceeds
our 13% target as well as placing us inside the best performance banding.

All 18 reviews of children on the register due in November were completed in
timescale. (BV162). Excellent performance (100%) has been sustained in this
area in the year to date with robust systems in place to ensure this continues.

There were four adoptions in November (BV163) and ten in the year to date.
The service expect to achieve 23 adoptions this year and are on track to
achieve a further nine adoptions with all but four of these children already
placed with their proposed adopters. In addition there are at least five special
guardianship orders linked to present proceedings which should be granted in
the next three months making a possible total of 24 adoptions by year end.

8.2.10 New statutory timescales for Children’s and NHS complaints have been

introduced from 1% September 06 which have reduced the stage 1 timescale

to 10 days with a possible extension to 20 days. Likewise the timescale for
stage 2 changes to 25 working days from 28 with a possible extension to 65
days, Performance on responding to Children’s Act complaints (stage 1) is
below target with 24 of the 35 cases closed in the year to November (69%)
responded to within timescale against a target of 80%.

8.2.11 The cost of service per child for play (£3,582) and early years (£15,296) are

8.3

8.3.1

both above the targets of £2,763 and £14,606 respectively. Both of these are
due to lower ‘take-up’ than assumed in the original target (targets assumed too
high figures and the capacity has been reduced as a result of building
refurbishment work). The target for play schemes also included the cost of the
summer scheme, which distorts the overall figure. Following a review of
staffing levels and costs for Early Years, the estimated unit cost has been
reduced from £16,460 as reported in Period 6. Reviews of both of these
services are being carried out, with a view to developing benchmarks and
comparators with other London authorities.

Environment Services

The projection based on the November position is a balanced budget position.
The shortfall of £900k in parking income results from the delays in the
implementation of CPZ plans, other pressures within the parking budget and
not being able to recover non-valid pcns (the Barnet case). It is proposed to
deal with the shortfall through reduced revenue contributions to capital and the
review and adjustment of the parking debt provision. Therefore the latest
position is that these issues can be contained as one-off items in the current

6 of 18



8.3.2

8.3.3

8.3.4

Page 99

year and the budget is projected to be balanced. The impact on future years
has been considered as part of the budget planning process.

Capital is currently projected to spend £0.5m below budget. There is a degree
of risk associated with some other projects achieving full spend this financial
year, e.g. the parking plan schemes and London cycle network schemes
funded from TfL grant. Some under spends may need to be carried forward.
However, it is intended to monitor these very carefully to ensure that spend is
maximised particularly on grant funded schemes by year end.

The projected parking income recovery target for the year is 61% and this
remains on target based on performance to end of November.

The annual projected cost of household waste collection per tonne is £70
compared to the target of £72 for 2006/07. The reduction is due to higher
weight of household waste being collected within existing budgets.

Performance highlights and issues in Environment are:

8.3.5

8.3.6

8.3.7

8.3.8

8.3.9

22.1% of household waste was recycled or composted in the eight months to
November '06 exceeding our 22% target for 2006/07. The November rate of
20.9% is likely to improve further as tonnage information is still being received.

The waste tonnage collected for November when seasonally adjusted
increased compared to recent months with 367 Kg of household waste
collected per head. Performance remains within the upper quartile in London
although slightly short of the target set for 2006/07.

In November 38 out of 41 minor planning applications (93%) were determined
in 8 weeks & 88% in the year to date, both exceeding our 83% target and
beating the government target (65%).

The first phase survey results on street and environmental cleanliness were
disappointing showing that 40% of our roads had unacceptable levels of litter
and detritus against a target of 25% for 2006/07. As part of the BV199
improvement plan, Encams were commissioned to do an additional survey in
October. In addition, we have begun our own in- house monitoring from
October ’06 and this is showing similar results to the Encams monitoring with a
reduction to 32% of roads having unacceptable levels of litter and detritus as
at November ‘06 The in-house monitoring results are encouraging showing
better levels of performance for litter and detritus although performance on
graffiti and fly posting appears to be worse than that recorded in the official
surveys. It is hoped that the cleanliness results are an indication of the
improvements made and will be reflected in the phase 2 results from Encams
expected shortly.

Performance on planning application appeals that have been allowed against
the authority’s decision to refuse permission improved considerably in
November with only 2 out of 16 cases allowed. Our performance in the year so
far at 39% remains outside our 30% target for 2006/07. This relates to 39 out
of 99 cases from April to November.

70f 18



Page 100

8.3.10 The number of seasonally adjusted visits to our sports and leisure centres at
1.2 million continues to be above the target of 1.08 million. Attendance at all
three leisure centres remains high at 10.5% above attendance target. Growth
in attendance is primarily due to strong performance at White Hart Lane
Community Sports Centre’s new pitch and health and fithess at Tottenham
Green Leisure Centre & Park Road Pools. Our sports & leisure service are
currently running a marketing campaign ‘what’s your worth’ to further increase
membership base and utilization of the new Health & fitness areas.

8.3.11 The parks cleanliness index of 85 in the year to November continues to
exceed the target of 80.

8.3.12 The average number of days to repair streetlights was 1.5 days in November
well inside target of 3.5 days.

8.3.13 Faults relating to power supply handled by our District Network Operator
(DNO) - currently EDF —in November was an average of 18.5 days to repair
the fault. The year to date position has increased to 16 days although still
inside the target 20 days.

8.3.14 There were 87 people killed or seriously injured (KSI) in the period January to
August ‘06, 6 of these in August a reduction from the marked increase in the
numbers from May. The monthly accident statistics are higher than in 2005 but
recent analysis failed to find any common factors including location ‘hot spots’.
KSI numbers in the 8 months to August scaled up for the year at 128 is above
the 124 target for the calendar year 2006 and an increase on the 94 KSiIs in
2005.

8.4 Adults' & Older People's Social Care, Housing

8.4.1 Social Services continues to maintain an expenditure freeze to ensure that
only essential expenditure is agreed and this has been successful in ensuring
that increases in expenditure have been contained in recent months to a
minimum. The projected overspend in Social Services remains the same as
reported in period 7 at £0.1m taking account of the £2.4m virement approved
in September to cover the overspend reported at that time.

8.4.2 The context under which Social Services continues to operate is one of
significant demand pressures. The national context for Social Services is a
trend of growth in both the demand and complexity of services. In particular,
the numbers of people with learning disabilities are predicted to increase in the
next decade and in Haringey, we have a larger than usual population with
mental health needs. This has been evidenced by the London Observatory.
The Older People’s Service has seen an increase in the numbers with
dementia and there have been increasing pressures from Health around
reducing waiting lists. The current projections for commissioning reflect these
pressures.

8.4.3 The Social Services budgets continue to be under severe pressure because of
both demand pressures and reductions in services in the Health sector. These
are being managed with some success through the management action put in
place to contain these pressures. The growth in commissioned services in this

8 of 18



8.4.4

8.4.5

8.4.6

Page 101

financial year has been significantly below the underlying trend experienced by
the council in recent years.

Management action is being taken to try to ensure that these pressures do not
result in any additional overspend and include, reviews of jointly funded
expenditure, a freeze on vacant posts and reducing agency staff where there
would be minimal impact on front line services. No projections have been
made for growth in commissioning services between now and the end of the
financial year. Given the pressures in the sector, there remains a risk to the
council that these projections will not be sustained despite the management
action in place.

Social Services capital is projected to spend £0.8m below budget in this
financial year. This is largely due to revised rephasing of the projects for E-
Care (£0.6m) and Osborne Grove Older People’s Services (£0.3m).

The performance appendix reports the latest performance figures on some key
indicators in Adults' and Older People's services. This shows that:

91.6% of items of equipment were delivered in 7 working days in November,
exceeding the 88% target. The position in the year so far at 87.7% is just short
of target but places us in the top performance banding. However this is a key
threshold measure and a number of our comparator boroughs are performing
in the high nineties. (BV56/PAF D54). It is hoped that the recent good
progress made in this area can be sustained so that the target for the year will
be achieved.

126 adults and older people per 100,000 population were receiving a direct
payment as of November, short of the 141 target for the month.. Performance
on this indicator is cumulative with the target of 150 to be achieved by 31
March ’07. Although improvement has been made in this area and we are
currently in the ‘good’ performance banding between 90<150, we are still
performing below the target levels set for 2006/07. The target set was
ambitious and if we achieve our target, we will be in the best performance
banding for this measure but it will not be easy to achieve. However the
service are working towards the target and have recently re-set individual
targets for each of the client groups to keep them focused on achieving the
target.(BV201/ PAF C51)

In the year to November there were 84 admissions, when scaled up per 10,000
population of older people, to residential / nursing care (PAF C72). Current
performance places Haringey just inside the top banding for this indicator,
despite being outside our target of 70. This is a relatively new indicator and the
service is in the process of auditing the data on the system to ensure it
accurately reflects performance and to understand the reasons for the
increasing trend in admissions since April.

Performance on handling NHS and Community Care Act complaints at stage 1

fell to 67% responded to within timescale in November although performance
in the year to date at 77% is closer to the 80% target.

90of 18



8.4.7

8.4.8

8.4.9

Page 102

Some areas where we need to sustain focus and improve our performance in
Adults' and Older People’s services remain:

Acceptable waiting times for assessment- new older clients aged 65+ (BV195)

e This indicator is the average of the percentage of clients where time from
initial contact to first contact with the client is less than or equal to 48 hours
and the percentage where time from first contact to completion of
assessment is less than or equal to 4 weeks. In the period April to
November for 62.37% of clients, the time from initial contact to first contact
with the client was less than 48 hours just above the 60% threshold for
2006/07. For 51.4% of clients the time from first contact to completion of
their assessment was less than 4 weeks, which although an improvement
on previously reported performance is below the key threshold level for this
year of 70% and our target of 71%. Performance in this area is under
constant scrutiny and figures reported here relate to the rolling year
December ’05 to November '06. However current projections based on
performance in the year to December indicate that performance at year end
should be close to the 71% target.

Carers receiving a carer’s break or specific carer’s service (PAF C62)

e Carers for Adults and Older People receiving a carer's break or specific
carer's service was recorded on Framework | at 4.6% as at November ‘06
against a target of 12%. However this is only one source of data where
individual files exist for a carer and where we can clearly pick up the
services they receive. Other carers whose details are held jointly with the
cared for person are not picked up through the database and are collected
at intervals throughout the year. We are due to collect and report on this
second source of data in December but early indications suggest that this
will increase the figure to 14% exceeding our target.

Adults and older clients receiving a review as a percentage of those receiving
a service (BV55)

e 58% of adults and older clients were recorded as having received a review
in the rolling year to November ’06. Performance in this area is being
monitored and reported on weekly and end of year projections indicate that
the 65% target should be achieved.

Social Services are in the process of moving from a position of reporting
performance in rolling year format, to financial year. This will increase the
accuracy of the data that is being presented and also incorporate the
improvements that have been achieved so far this year. It will take some time
to produce new reports for all the measures in the scorecard but where data
has been calculated on the position in the year so far, this has been included
in this report along with year end projections where available. It is believed that
this new method of reporting on performance will present a more robust and
reliable representation of the performance position achieved.

The level and cost of repairs in the HRA are being carefully monitored

following pressures in this area last year. Increased costs on gas

maintenance contracts of £0.9m are being contained within the HRA

contingency. There is also a risk that there will be a shortfall in rent income as

a result of the lower performance on collection set out below, however this is
10 of 18



Page 103

partly offset from a lower number of right to buy sales than previously
estimated. This will be carefully monitored as the actions to improve
collection performance are implemented. The net current projection is an
overspend of £400k which is mainly as a result of a shortfall of leasehold
service charge income compared to the budget.

8.4.10 On HRA capital there is a cost pressure of £1.2m, however this will be
managed through the over-programming allowance so that the capital budget
will spend to target.

Performance issues in Housing are as follows:

8.4.11 BV183a and BV183b measure the average length of stay in weeks that a
household at the point of leaving temporary accommodation have spent in bed
and breakfast or hostel accommodation, respectively. The indicators only
measure households with children or pregnant women, who have spent time in
accommodation where facilities are shared with other people.

8.4.12 The average length of stay in bed & breakfast accommodation, is reported as
zero weeks as we no longer use this form of accommodation for families.

8.4.13 The definition for the average length of stay in hostels includes Hostel
provision prior to April '04. When this definition is applied performance as at
November '06 remains high at 61 weeks against a target of 35 weeks.
However the 35 week target was set based on only counting cases since April
2004. The service is reviewing the use of hostels as temporary
accommodation and at present no new families are being placed in shared
facility hostels.

8.4.14 The cost per nightly rated accommodation at £41.35 is slightly above the
target of £40.20. The cost per private sector lease has been steadily
increasing throughout the year and now stands at £881 against a target of
£842.

8.4.15 The average re-let time of local authority dwellings reduced further to 27.33
days in November almost hitting the target for the first time this year and
bringing the year to date position to 37 days. It is unlikely that the 2006/07
target (27 days) will be achieved but performance is now moving in the right
direction.

Rent Collection

8.4.16 Rent collected as at November (BV66a) is projected at 96.24% of rent due for
the year against a target of 97.5%. A new performance management regime
has been introduced following the creation of specialist income collection
teams with focus on ensuring that all appropriate action has been taken where
arrears are increasing.

8.4.17 The percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears increased
slightly to 15.46% in November remaining short of our target of 10% for
2006/07.

11 0f 18



Page 104

8.4.18 The proportion of local authority homes which were non ‘decent’ as at

September 06 was 44% against a target of 42%.

Repairs

8.4.19 In November 82.4% of responsive repair appointments were made and kept, a

reduction on the 98% achieved in September. An audit is being carried out in
December as contractors' own monitoring shows better performance.

8.4.20 The average time to complete non-urgent responsive repairs increased to

13.83 days in November but remains inside our 14 day target.

8.4.21 The percentage of urgent repairs completed within Government time limits

8.5

8.5.1

8.5.2

8.5.3

8.5.4

8.5.5

reduced to 87.11% in November with a year to date position of 92.42% against
a 97% target.

Finance

As previously reported the revenue budget has some pressures and variations
that the directorate are going to contain within the approved budget. The main
budget pressure is in Property Services regarding a potential £180k under-
achievement of commercial rent income. The shortfall is largely around
vacancies at Technopark. Work is being done to market the vacancies as well
as reviewing the demand for different types of workspace to attract further
business. Management action to reduce spend is also being taken and
therefore the Finance Department as a whole is projected to be on budget.

The capital budget is projected to spend at budget.
Council Tax and Business Rates

94.64% of Council tax was collected in November exceeding the 93.75%
target for the third month this year. Collection in the second quarter and recent
months has been consistent with a year to date position now very close to the
target at 93.66%. Based on the latest estimates of London performance
Haringey is now very close to 3" quartile boundary improving from previously
bottom quartile performance. (BV9)

The collection of business rates in November at 96.95% was short of the
target although fluctuations are to be expected when new accounts are raised.
The position in the year to date continues to exceed the 99% target placing us
amongst the best authorities in London. (BV10)

Invoice payments (BV8)

Performance improved further in November with 90.5% of invoices paid in 30
days. Whilst still short of the 92% target performance the year to date is now
86.2%. This is being monitored carefully with services to further improve
performance.

Benefits

12 0f 18



8.5.6

8.5.7

8.6
8.6.1

8.6.2

8.6.3

8.6.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

Page 105

The average number of days to process a benefit claim remained at the
improved level of 34 days in November bettering the 36 day target. The
revised processes and ongoing initiatives have now realised a significant
improvement in performance. Never the less the performance in the year so
far includes the poorer performance earlier in the year and at 43.6 days is still
short of the target. The key is to sustain this level of performance for the
remaining months of the year.

Performance on the recovery of housing benefits overpayments and housing
benefits written off both remain on track to achieve year end targets.

Chief Executive’s

As reported last month the revenue budget is projected to underspend by
£0.1m largely due to a review of vacant posts in OD.

The capital budget is projected to underspend by £0.3m due to slippage on the
Hornsey Library rewiring scheme. This is due to the complexity of the project
and will be requested as a carry forward.

Visits to our libraries in November equated to just over 10 visits per head of
population in the year exceeding our target for 2006/07 of 9 visits per head.
The cost per visit/ interaction to our libraries in the year to date is projected at
£2.32 inside the target of £2.40.

There were 261 domestic burglaries in November which seasonally adjusted
and scaled to an annual equivalent is above the target. However burglaries in
the year to date (1,708) when seasonally adjusted and scaled to an annual
equivalent equate to 2,570 and remain inside the target of 2,711 for 06/07.

Customer Focus

The November balanced scorecard shows 67% of customer focus indicators on
or near target. Measures included under this theme include performance on
handling complaints and Member's enquiries, call centre performance,
responding to freedom of information requests as well as some key perception
measures from the Better Haringey survey although these are not reported
monthly.

Performance on complaints handling timescales improved again in November
with 170 of the 221 (77%) complaints at stage 1 (local resolution) responded to
within the 10 working day timescale against a target of 80%. For the more
complex service investigation (stage 2), performance declined to 71% in
November, with 25 out of 35 complaints resolved within the 25 working day
timescale. The year to date position of 75% still falls short of the 80% target.
Figures exclude Homes for Haringey performance which is at similar if not lower
levels with 65% and 70% of stage 1 & 2 complaints responded to within target
timescales in the year to November.

In November 4 out of the 6 stage 3 complaints (independent review) were
closed within the 20 working day timescale. Performance in the year to date
continues to hit the 90% target with 28 out of 31 complaints received completed
on time.

13 of 18



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

10

10.1

10.2

Page 106

Of Members' enquiries cases closed in November 279 (87%) were handled
within 10 working days, closer to the 90% target. Performance in the year to
date has improved slightly at 84% with 2026 out of the 2423 cases closed in the
year dealt with inside the 10 day timescale.

Freedom of Information (Fol) performance in November increased to 69% just
below the 70% target. 66% of Freedom of Information (Fol) requests were
actioned within the 20 day timescale in the year to November.

77% of Council wide telephone calls were answered within 15 seconds in
November, just short of the target, although the year to date position of 78% still
exceeds the target.

Customer Services performance is now starting to show some improvement
after a number of months where performance was extremely poor. In November
performance increased to 34% of call centre calls answered within 15 seconds
up from 18% in October but against a 70% target for the year. In addition, the
average queuing time in November reduced to less than one and a half
minutes. The Customer Services improvement plan is starting to make an
impact and it is hoped that this level of improvement can be sustained for the
remaining months of the year.

Organisational Development/ Capacity

Some staff survey results were reported in the June report. These have been
reviewed and a more representative sample of indicators has now been
included in the scorecard. An update on progress in this area will be provided in
the December/ 3" quarter report.

Sickness

The average number of working days lost to sickness per full time equivalent
employee decreased slightly to 9.4 days in November. Performance in the year
to November (excluding Homes for Haringey) at 9.2 days is now above our 8.8
day target. The graph below shows the breakdown of sickness levels across the
Directorates.

14 of 18



Page 107

18
16
14
12

»

onNn M~

Annual equivalent FTE sick leave Apr-Nov 06

i 15.33
- 13.40

=
| o 2 E4 3 86 9.24 9.45 9.69 B

741 =91 ©.69 —
3.34 :
OQ %%Q \Q,Q\\ ‘b‘b éC)\\/ (\OQ 003» @Q’(’\\ 0{»
o
© & ¥ > Q\(\(b VoS @
C) Q\
(O(\

11

12

12.1

A review of sickness absence in Environment was carried out during 2006 with a
number of actions taken to address and reduce sickness absence. Actions
include compulsory sickness management training for all third and fourth tier
managers, new simplified guidelines setting out responsibilities around sickness
management and the implementation of a single template to record sickness
and provide triggers for managers where intervention is required. Sickness
absence is being regularly monitored and reported to the DMTs and the
efficiency review group with action plans and individual targets for any areas
where sickness exceeds the corporate target.

Performance Summary

In summary the balanced scorecard shows that for service delivery 66% of
indicators are on target or close to the end of year target as at the end of
November. For 24 of the 36 (67%) customer focus measures, performance
targets are being met or close to being met. For financial health 23 of the 31
traffic lighted measures achieved green or amber status, meaning for 74% of
indicators performance levels are achieving target or being maintained at an
acceptable level. Our organisational development /capacity indicators including
the staff survey results show that for 16 of the 18 (89%) measures,
performance is meeting or close to expectation. Overall 70% of indicators are
achieving or close to achieving target. In addition 70% of indicators have
maintained or improved performance since the end of last year.

Summary - Budget Monitoring

Overall revenue budget monitoring, based on the November position, now
shows a balanced position.

12.2 The aggregate revenue projected position in 2006/07 is as shown in the

following table.

150f 18



12.3

12.4

13.
13.1

Page 108

General Fund revenue | Approved | Projected
Budget | variation
£m £m
Children and  Young 215.6 0
People
Asylum Seekers 0.3 0
Social Services 57.5 0.1
Housing (3.2) 0
Environment 51.7 0
Finance 9.9 0
Chief Executive's 26.0 (0.1)
Non-service revenue 8.7 0
Total 366.5 0

Last month Executive agreed to fund the one-off pension fund deficit costs in
2006/07 in order to facilitate the proposed development of Alexandra Palace on
a long lease to Firoka. This was to be funded from the Council’s budget for the
operational deficit, which would no longer be fully required. The lease
agreement has not yet been finalised and therefore the ability to fund this one-
off cost in full this year will need to be reviewed.

In relation to the HRA, the net current revenue projection is an overspend of
£400k.

Capital

The aggregate capital projected position in 2006/07 is as shown in the
following table.

Capital Approved | Spend to | Projected
Budget date variation
£m £m £m
Children and Young 52.6 25.5 0.7
People
Social Services 8.0 1.8 (0.8)
Housing — General Fund 3.2 1.3 0
Housing — HRA 18.2 7.7 0
Environment 17.3 6.2 (0.5)
Finance 4.8 2.3 0
Chief Executive’s 13.3 4.9 (0.3)
Total 117.4 49.7 (0.9)

16 of 18



14.

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

Page 109

Financial administration

Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be approved by
Executive. These are shown in the table below. These changes fall into one of
two categories:

) budget virements, where it is proposed that budget provision is to be
transferred between one service budget and another. Explanations are
provided where this is the case;

) Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification has
been received in-year of a change in the level of external funding such
as grants or supplementary credit approval.

Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions. Key decisions are:

. for revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash
limit of more than £250,000; and

. for capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme
area of more than £250,000.

Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table.

The following table sets out the proposed changes. Each entry in the table
refers to a detailed entry in the appendices, which show the budgets that it is
proposed to change. There are two figures shown in each line of the table
and the detailed sheets. The first amount column relates to changes in the
current year’'s budgets and the second to changes in future years’ budgets
(full year). Differences between the two occur when, for example, the budget
variation required relates to an immediate but not ongoing need or where the
variation takes effect for a part of the current year but will be in effect for the
whole of future years.

Proposed virements are set out in the following table:

Period

Amount
current year
(£°000)

Service Key Full year
Amount

(£°000)

Description

Children &

Young People

Rev 52

LPSA pump priming grant allocation.

Chief
Executive’s

Rev

70

Business Awards programme (£45k)
funded from sponsorship income and
Haringey People additional advertising
income (£25k).

Finance

Cap

-813

Review of Accommodation Strategy
spend.

Finance

Cap

60

Youth Justice Board capital infrastructure
grant.

All

Rev

105

105

Transfer of additional budgets to IT to pay
for IT hardware.

Chief
Executive’s

Rev

125

300

New Members allowances scheme.

o]

Environment

Rev*

-269

-269

PEPP’s restructure.

Environment

Cap

-198

Removal of carry forward already

17 of 18




Page 110

included within Route 29 allocation.

8 Environment | Rev 239 239 Transfer of CCTV function budget from
Highways to Parking.

8 Environment | Cap 15 Haringey cycle link 78 improvements in
Finsbury Park funded by TFL grant.

8 Environment | Rev 24 CABE enabling agreement for Hale

Village project (£12k) and Markfield
Recreation Ground (£12k) funded from
DCLG Growth Area Fund.

8 Children & |Cap* 7,280 Acqusition of land for the new secondary
Young People school in Haringey Heartlands funded
from DCLG Growth Area Fund (£4.2m),
Section 106 funds (£1m) and BSF
through a future capital receipt (£2.08m).

8 Children & |Cap* -2,080 Contribution from BSF for above land
Young People purchase.

15. Recommendations

15.1 To note the report.
15.2 To agree the virements set out in section 14.

16. Use of Appendices
Appendix i. November balanced scorecard and Performance summary

18 of 18



Page 111

Appendix 1
November 2006

Haringey
Corporate Scorecard

Amber 11

)
=
0
o
8
e
o
£

Services

Amber Red
12 28

Amber 2
Red 2




Monthly Performance Review - 2006/07

November 2006

Key: Same as last year Better than last year w Worse than last year
mPerformance missing target Performance close to target Performance on target
::tri?lz Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar F',Vrl :g::'sys Pr:;-r[(:ss 'I;)asrl%(;t
Children & Young People's Service Monthly indicators
= BV 433 % of statements of special educational need issued by the authority in a financial year and prepared within 18 weeks excluding 2005/06
S d those affected by “exceptions to the rule” under the SEN Code of Practice. Est.Top
= g Quartile
(&)
hR 12 cases in Nov and 78 in Apr - Nov 100% 100%

100% | 100% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100% | 100% | | | | | 99%
~ BV 43b % of statements of special educational need issued by the authority in a financial year and prepared within 18 weeks including 2005/06
S d those affected by “exceptions to the rule” under the SEN Code of Practice. Est. Top
@ LE) Quartile
I3 12 out of 15 cases in Nov and 78 out of 91 in Apr - Nov. 85.7% 95.4

85% | 94.1% | 77.8% | 92.9% | 100.0% | 87.5% | 69.2% | 88% | 80% | | | | I 'Red | 85%

Stability of placements of children looked after by the authority by reference to the % of children looked after on 31st March in Top Band
= g BV 49 . : 9
39 any year with three or more placements during the year. 0<16%
@ S A1 CPA Key Threshold 2005/06
R This figure remains well inside the top banding and in line with our target. 11.5%

13% | 105% | 11.1% | 11.6% | 11.6% | 12.1% | 10.8% | 11.70% | 11.50% | | | | | 13%
= 4 SD44 Proportion of 16-19 year olds not in education, employment or training (Adjusted NEETs %) National
% .g (Sustainable Development National Indicator 44 - http://www.sustainable-development.gov.uk/progress/national/44.htm ) T?; %’/et
(&) (o]
xX O
e 14.8% | 10.3% | 10.6% | 16.9% | 15.7% | 16.7% | 15.9% | 13.9% | | | | | Red Red 12.9%

Employment, education and training for care leavers: The % of those young people who were looked after on 1 April in their 17th Top Band |
BV 161 . . .

2 p year (aged 16), who were engaged in education, training or employment at the age of 19 ¢ 60%+
% 3 A4 LPSA Indicator Target 65% based on 60-70 clients. This is a cumulative indicator which relates only to those care leavers who turned 19
S GE) This is a cumulative indicator which relates only to those care leavers who turned 19 in each month. Based on the cohort of young people 549
w e who are to turn 19 in the remainder of the year, we are on track to achieving the target of 70%. °

68% | 25.0% | 62.5% | 83.3% | 63.6% | 625% | 75.0% | 75% | 54% | | | | Red Red 70%

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 2 of 16 12/01/2007

21| abed




Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
BV 162 Reviews of child protection cases: The % of child protection cases which should have been reviewed during the year that were Top Band
= 4 reviewed 100%
o8 C20  |CPA Key Threshold
g GE) Excellent performance has been sustained in this area in the year to date with robust systems in place to ensure this continues. All 18 100%
w o reviews due in November took place in timescale °
99% ] 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100% | 100% | | | | | 100%
BV 163 Adoptions of children looked after: The number of looked after children adopted during the year as a % of the number of children| Top Band
* looked after at 31 March who had been looked after for 6 months or more at that date. 8<23%
8 C23  |CPA Key Threshold
gzg We expect to achieve at least 23 adoptions this year. In addition to the 10 adoptions to date, we are on track to achieve a further nine, all 10
= but four of these children are already placed with the proposed adopters. In addition there are at least five special guardianship orders adoptions
% linked to present proceedings which should be granted in the next three months making a possible total of 24. 3.00%
5 3 2 1 4
6% 0.0% | adoptions | 0.0% | adoptions | 0.0% | adoption 0% adoptions 7%
0.9% 0.6% 0.3% 1.2%
L60 SSI 50: % of all children on the register (excluding those missing and registered in the last week of the month) who were visited
S ? within the calendar month
@ g Improved recording procedures allowing social workers to directly input their visits onto the system should ensure maintained progress
xX O
w »
92% | 87.0% | 89.0% | 92.0% | 95% | 89.4% | 94.0% | 99.3% | 88.40% | | | o RrRed HE
_ Local Children's act complaints - Stage 1 responded to in 10 day timescale
% @ *Target up to September 06 was 80% in 14 days 80% for
B é None out of two on time in November, 24 out of 35 in year to date. 69% 10 days
& 90% for
69% | *67% | *67% | *67% | *0% | *86% | 71% | 83% | 0% | | | | Red GECI 20 days |
_ Local Children's act complaints - Stage 2 responded to in 25 day timescale
o/
% @ Target up to September 06 was 40% in 28 days 40% for
7 9 0% 25 days
3 90% for
8% | None | None | None | 0% | None None None None | | | | M‘
= Unit Cost of service per child (Play)
Q= Cost
®©
gf
L £ | 3341 | 3806 | 4197 | 5012 | 3463 | 3483 | 3564 | 3582 | | | 2,763

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06

Page 3 of 16

€| | obed

12/01/2007



11 obed

Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
= Unit Cost of service per child (early years)
= Cost
@©
2f
L £ | 16,687 | 16,687 | 16,628 | 16,517 | 16,628 | 16,460 | 15164 | 15,296 | | 14,606 _|
T Unit Cost of service per looked after child
= c
Q= Cost
@©
2f
L £931 | £883 | £899 | £905 | £920 | £894 | £873 | | | | | | £908
Environment Monthly indicators
BV 109a |% of major planning applications determined within 13 weeks (Gov't target 60%) ¢ 2005/06
E ] CPA Key Threshold. The low number of major cases means a high percentage change when any miss the target Est.Top
= Q i
g GE) 3 out of 4 cases on time in Nov and 7 of 11 in Apr - Nov, beating Government target 64% Q?Z:’;ﬂe
()
w »
86.05% | 50% [nocases| 50% 100% | 0.00% |nocases| nocases| 75% 82%
BV % of minor applications determined in 8 weeks (Gov't target 65%) 2005/06
S 3 109b  |CPA Key Threshold Est.Top
= O .
DS rtil
§ GE) 38 out of 41 cases on time in Nov and 313 of 357 in Apr - Nov. 87.7% Qg?%: €
w »
81.52% | 89.5% | 93.8% | 93.1% | 87% | 80.0% | 82.9% | 84% | 93% | | | | 83%
BV 109c |% of other applications determined in 8 weeks (Gov't target 80%) ¢ 2005/06
S @ CPA Key Threshold Est.Top
=9 ;
g GE) 114 out of 125 cases on time in Nov and 899 of 1003 in Apr - Nov, beating Government target. 90% Qg?f;'le
w o 2
92% | 98% | 906% | 927% | 86% | 79.6% | 945% | 88% | 91% | | | 92%
BV 204 |% planning application appeals allowed against the authority's decision to refuse. ¢ 2005/06
2 Est. Top
28 Quartile
§ GE) 2 appeals allowed out of 16 in Nov and 39 out of 99 in Apr - Nov 39% 25%
w »
32% | 43.8% | 44.4% | 38.9% | 60% | 66.7% | 30.0% | 41.7% | 13% | | | | 30% |
BV Average days to repair street lighting faults (except faults relating to power supply - see below) 2005/06
T ol 215a Est.Top
[0
% 2 - . . . . Quartile
2 % This indicator continues to show a consistent excellent performance and the trend is expected to continue. 1.80 34
W » )
192 | 208 | 168 | 191 | 296 | 140 | 189 | 159 | 153 | | | | 3.50
Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 4 of 16 12/01/2007



Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
BV 215b |Average days to repair street lighting power supply related faults, once they are with our District Network Operator (DNO) 2005/06
€ @ Our District Network Operator (electricity supplier) is EDF Est. Top
()] .
@ g November performance is slightly better than October's. However, the upward trend is due to fluctuating demands on EDF resources. The 16.04 Quartile
N8 performance is on track to meet the annual target. : 14
2196 | 9.75 213 | 373 | 4871 | 400 | 1554 | 1895 | 1850 | | | | 20.0
BV % of reports of abandoned vehicles investigated within 24 hrs of notification 2005/06
8 218a Est.Top
o) g : . — . Quartile
S5 Excellent performance. We have achieved the maximum of 100% for the third time this year. 98.8% 96%
I »
96.0% | 94.2% | 100.0% | 97.9% | 99.6% | 100.0% | 99.6% | 99.3% |100.0% | | | | | 90.0%
BV % of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hrs (from when the LA is legally entitled to remove them) 2005/06
=l 218b Est.Top
()]
o) g . . . . Quartile
S5 Excellent performance. Once again achieved 100%. YTD figure is well above the annual target. 98.3% 95%
o »
93% | 92.6% | 96.8% | 100.0% | 98% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 98% | 100% | | | | | 0% |To
BV % of household waste which has been recycled or composted 2005/06 8
= ,| 82ai+bi CPA Key Threshold. Latest figures tend to be low as information is often not fully up-to-date at reporting time. Est.Top |
28 Qrtle Lon | _
82 The figure for October as reported below has improved since the previous report. November performance is similarly likely to improve as 22 10% collect | —
W tonnage information is still being received. The year to date figure shows that the target is being met. e only 27% | O1
19.23% | 22.10% | 23.30% | 23.40% | 20.7% | 22.6% | 22.6% | 22.7% | 20.9% | | | | | 22%
BV 84a |Kg of household waste collected per head (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent - actual in brackets) * 2005/06
@ Amber is awarded if performance is top quartile (London 2005/06 est.). CPA upper threshold is 355 Est. Top
2 Qrtle Lon
§ November's waste has risen compared to recent months. Tonnage information for this month continues to be received so this figure may 360 collect
= improve. (actual 31)| only 378
s 370 [ 407 | 411 376 | 363 | 372 357 367
w 359.16 | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual | (actual 355
30) 35) 34) 32) 31) 31) 30) 30)
Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 5 of 16 12/01/2007



91| abed

Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
@ BV Number of casualties - People killed or seriously injured (KSl). Seasonally adjusted annual equivalent.
g Figures here (actuals in brackets) are the latest available from TfL. Trend arrow is from 1994-8 average (161). August figure was within *
o) 993 the target. The monthly figures are higher than in 2005. Recent analysis failed to find any common factors including location 'hot spots'.
n
5
@ 2005 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July August 128 (87)
" 94 | 70(6) | 130 (10)| 139 (12)| 114 (9) | 159 (14)| 131 (11)| 161 (16) | 76 (6) foass
BV Number of casualties - People slightly injured. Seasonally adjusted annual equivalent (actual)
2 0 Figures here (actuals in brackets) are the latest available from TfL. Target is from Mayor of London's Strategy. Trend arrow is from 1994-
o8 99c 8 average (1010). The level of slightly injured was on target to meet our performance figures for August and Jan-Aug.
5 -2
L% § 2005 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July August 754 (512)
712 | 546 (47)| 545 (42) | 382 (33) | 760 (60) | 748 (66) | 751 (63) | 786 (78) 657 (52) 82%9021
Was Number waste collections missed per 100,000 household waste collections (from Accord) w 2000 /01
t ¢| BV 88 Top
= 8 Quartile
g § A slight increase this month with 128/100,000 missed collections recorded. » 828 28
w ,
129.41 | 1134 | 1211 | 1240 | 126.8 [21,759.0] 1280 | 1240 | 1280 | | | | 130
@ Local Sports & Leisure usage (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent)
g Figures seasonally adjusted by Recreation.
o) S/IL are performing well - 10.5% above attendance target. Growth in attendance is primarily due to strong performance at White Hart Lane
42 Community Sports Centre's new pitch, and health and fitness at Tottenham Green Leisure Centre & Park Road Pools. Currently pushing | 1,199,994
9 'what's your worth?' marketing campaign to further increase membership base and utilization
]
o
|_|><_1 910,749 |1,070,115(1,148,567|1,160,349( 1,270,635 1,065,089|1,124,811( 1,159,420( 1,138,892 1.083 445
Local Parks cleanliness Index
S @ to be phased out as BV199 becomes available more frequently
= Q
g GE) Above target and 2005/6 performance being sustained at YTD 84.82 84.82
w »
80.92 | 8410 | 86.87 | 8370 | 83.45 | 86.03 | 86.00 | 8589 | 84.18 | | | | 80
Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 6 of 16 12/01/2007



Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
2 CPA Trading standards visits to high risk premises. No done / no due CPA
o
S E32 Upper
% Threshold
42 We are on target to reach our year end target. 126% 100%
Q
o) o o o 367% none
% 100% 10.0.& (2 10.0.& (5] 67% (8 (11 over | done or | 100.0% 74% 100% 75%
w visits) visits) | over 12) 3) due
BV217 |Pollution Control - % of improvements carried out of those due 2005/06
€ @ Calculated as 100% minus % of those due not carried out. Top Qirile
()]
@ g There are no outstanding improvements required in respect of our Environmental Protection Act permitted processes. The majority of 100% 100
L these premises are spray booths where new water based technology has reduced emissions. °
100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100% | 100% | | | | | 99%
_Tg - Local Debt recovery — parking income recovery target (%)
<§ § Recovery rate remains at 61%. 61% m o)
i | 61% | 61% | 61% | 61% | 61% | 61% | 61% | 61% | | | | | 61% | &
Unit Projected waste collection costs per tonne oD
Tg < Cost N
Q =
_E § Performance in November was better than the target bringing the year to date figure to target of £72. £72 :IL
L
£ | g72 | £73 | £73 | g72 | g£72 | €70 | £70 | £70 | | | | £72
Unit Projected net cost of service per parking ticket issued
.Tg - Cost Surplus shown as minus (-)
S =
i § Net cost of PCN remains at -£13.40.
=
£ | -£13.40 | -£13.40 | -£13.40 | -£13.40 | -£13.40 | -£13.40 | -£13.40 [-£13.40 | | | -£13.40
" BV Local street and environment cleanliness (litter) ¢ 2005/06
ol 199a The frequency of reporting this indicator is planned to increase over the course of the year Est. Top
= * These are the scores from in-house monitoring, which began on October 2006. Encams carried out some additional local monitoring in Quartile
3 October which showed similar results to the in-house monitoring. This information is provided as an indication of performance during the 4 17%
E month intervals between official surveys and has not been included in the YTD progress on the indicator. The in-house monitoring and 40%
2 additional surveys from Encams show better levels of performance than the official Encams service. This is an encouraging sign and
u% needs to be reflected in the official scores for Haringey.

37% | | 40% | | 33%* | 32%*

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 7 of 16

T T T |

12/01/2007




::tri?lz Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar F',\: :g::'sys Pr:;-r[(:ss 'I;)asrl%(_e,t
BV Local street and environment cleanliness (Graffiti) 2005/06
E a 199b The frequency of reporting this indicator is planned to increase over the course of the year Est. Top
@ g * See above. However, performance on graffiti is worse than that recorded in the official surveys and indicates there is a need to carry out 6% Quartile
53 work to improve performance. ° 8%
7% | | 6% | | | | | 7%* | 13%* | | | | 6%
2 0 BV Local street and environment cleanliness (Fly - posting) Target
2 .8 199c The frequency of reporting this indicator is planned to increase over the course of the year 05/06
g S See comment for 199a 4% 4%
u @ 4% | | | | | | 40% | 7% | 12%* | | | | | 3%
Social Services Monthly indicators
@ Ex The % of responsive (but not emergency) repairs during the year, for which the authority both made and kept an 2005/06
Q ' appointment. ¢ Est.Top
% BV 185 Quartile
5 I o T
@ HfH Audit being carried out in December as contractors' own monitoring shows better performance. 89.78% g
x
w 91% | 91.9% | 94.51% | 91.4% | 95.98% | 96.1% | 97.7% | 92.3% | 82.4% | | | | Red Red 99% C_DL
BV 212 |Average relet times for local authority dwellings let in the financial year (calendar days) 2005/06 | =
58| o4 |SmiartoExBVes @ Est.Top | 9P
Qs Quartile
x8 HfH 37.02 29
29.00 | 3363 | 38.04 | 4658 | 9071 | 7051 | 4820 | 30.99 | 27.33 | | | | 27
BV 66a |Local authority rent collection and arrears: proportion of rent collected 2005/06 |
_Tg < Year to date only. Bottom quartile 05/06 London (est) 96.1%. The figures provided by HfH are a forecast. Est. Top
5SS 96,249 Quartile
iJE_ T HfH £ /o 98.6%
97% | 935% | 96.0% | 95.8% | 95.15% | 95.6% | 95.44% | 95.90% | 96.24% ] | | | T o75% |
BV 66b |Percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears 2005/06 |
Tg < Year to date only. * Est.Top
@ § Quartile
1 T 15.46% | 4%

13.1% | 13.6% | 14.2% | 14.49% | 14.51% | 15.1% | 15.51% | 15.35% | 15.46% | | | |

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06

Page 8 of 16

10.0%

H

12/01/2007




61| obed

Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
< g (BV73) |[The average time taken to complete non-urgent responsive repairs (calendar days)
% 3 LHO 6 [Monthly figures exclude late reporting but the year to date includes late reports for all but the last month
o g| HH 13.11
w @ 13.98 | 17.71 | 1686 | 11.87 | 12.63 | 12.43 | 1408 | 1283 | 13.83 | | | | | 14
The % of urgent repairs completed within Government time limits.
= 5| BV72) *
o O
D g LHO 5 |Monthly figures exclude late reporting but the year to date includes late reports for all but the last month
L% 3 HfH 92.42%
98% | 95.9% | 93.4% | 95.2% | 92.6% | 91.6% | 95.0% | 90.12% | 87.11% | | | | Red Red 97% |
BV 184a |The proportion of local authority homes which were non 'decent’ 2005/06
S d 2007/8 This pi is measured at the beginning of the year. 05/06 outturn 50% 06/07 outturn 44.7%. Monthly target based on 0.225% reduction Est.Top
2 g each month. 42% target and monthly figures are for 07/08 outturn. Quartile
& g| HH 44.0% | 16%
44.7% | 445% | 44.4% | 44.5% | 44.5% | 44.5% | 44.0% | | | | | | T 2% |
Unit Cost per Private Sector Lease
© Cost
g0 £ 880.92
i T HSG
HS5a | £872.65| £852.43 | £862.57 | £866.91 | £866.91| £873.01 | £877.63 [£880.92 | | | £842.24 |
= Unit Cost per Nightly Rated Accommodation
° % Cost
2o HSG £ 4135
L HS5b | £40.77 | £40.71 | £40.91 | £40.93 | £41.10 | £41.23 | £41.29 | £41.35 | | | | £40.20
@ Private sector dwellings that are returned to occupation or demolished during the year as a direct result of action by 2005/06
g BV the local authority. (Annual equivalent - actuals in brackets). ¢ Est.Top
@ Quartile
g 64 27
E 89 (67)
I HSG
x
i 414 | 48 (4) [132(11)| 156 (13)] 36(3) [204 (17)] 108(9) | 12(1) | 108 (9) | | | | | 100 |
= 4| BV 183a |The average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation of households which include dependent children or a 2005/06
23 Est.Top
gg| mou 0| Quartile 1
w o | o [ o | o | o [ o [ o | o | o f [ 1 [ | 1
Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 9 of 16 12/01/2007



Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
BV 183b |The average length of stay (weeks) in hostel accommodation of households which include dependent children or a 2005/06
I= @ This indicator does not exclude pre 2004 cases as previously reported. National top quartile performance includes LAs with no Est. Top
% té HSG hostels or homelessness problem. Quartile 0
(&)
X9 61.39
6741 | Nii [ 10862 | NiI | 618 | 40.33 77 43 41 | | | Red Red 35 |
based on |Approaches from households who considered themselves as homeless to the local housing authority's housing advice service 2005/06
e @ BV 213 |where advice/intervention resolved their situation. Est. Top
% g Annual equivalent (actuals in brackets) Quartile
5] Eqv. To
Z 3| Hse 307 (230) | “77.
383 |264 (22)] 324 (27) | 156 (13)] 828 (69)| 444 (37)| 72 (6) | 324 (27) [ 288 (24)] | | | Red Red 400 |
BV 54  |Older people helped to live at home per 1000 population aged 65 or over Top Band
= 4 C32 100+
23 We had expected to see a drop in performance this year however the figures are lower than anticipated and work is underway to identify U
§ GE) what needs to happen to improve performance in the second half of the financial year. Performance remains within the 'good' performance 0 g
w o Soc banding but is moving in the wrong direction to the set target. [0
156 | 156 | 156 | 155 | 133 | 113 | 99.86 97 97.6 | | | I RrRed  HEEEPR
BV 55 [Adult and older clients receiving a review as a percentage of those receiving a service Top Band | I\
S d D40 This is a joint (older people and adults) indicator. 60<90 o
@ LE) This is monitored and reported on a weekly basis within social services and current projections indicate that we should achieve the target 589
X 0 Soc set. °
i »
42% | 43.0% | 42.0% | 40.0% | 47.6% | 51.4% | 54.4% | 54% | 58% | | | | | 60%
= BV 56 (% of items of items of equipment & adaptations delivered within 7 working days Top Band
& 8| D54  |CPAKey Threshold 85
§ GEJ Soc Good progress has been made and we intend to sustain this level of performance, we are extremely close to our end of year target 87.70%
I »
86% | 85.0% | 91.7% | 96.2% | 89% | 87% | 746% | 88% | 91.6% | | | | | 88%
BV 58 |[% of people receiving a statement of their needs and how they will be met. Top Band
< g D39 Joint Indicator for Adults & Older People - Deleted as BVPI from 05/06 100
o O
@ g This is monitored and reported on a weekly basis within social services and current projections indicate that we should achieve the target
x set.
w o Soc

70% | 64.0% | 64.0% | 64.0% | 79% | 76.0% | 80.0% | 80% | 79.3% | | | |

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06

Page 10 of 16

12/01/2007




::tri?lz Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar F',Vrl :g::'sys Pr:;r[(:ss 'I;)aerl%(_e,t
@ BV 195 Acceptable waiting time for assessment - average of (I) % where time from initial contact to first contact is less than 48 hours & * Top Band
§ (ii) % where time from first contact to completion of assessment is less than or equal to 4 weeks 90<100
§ D55 CPA Key Threshold. This Pl is based on acceptable waiting times for assessment for new older clients (65+).
?q:: This is under constant scrutiny - the figure reported here relates to the rolling year from Dec '05 to Nov '06. Looking at the data we have
@ Soc from 1st April to November '06 our current projections indicate that we should be very close to our end of year target.
i 59% | 58% | 53% | 47.6% | 47.8% | 49.8% | 48.8% | 52.5% | 51.4% | | | | | rRed M
BV 196 Acceptable waiting time for care packages - % where the time from completion of assessment to provision of all services in a Top Band
2 g care package is less than or equal to 4 weeks 90<100
% 8 D56 CPA Key Threshold. This Pl is based on acceptable waiting times for care packages for new older clients (65+).
2 GE, Good progress has been made and we intend to sustain this level of performance, based on current performance it is possible we may
w e Soc exceed our end of year target.
80% | 78.9% | 71.1% | 78.4% | 82.6% | 80.9% | 84.6% | 86% | 90.4% | | | | | 87%
Paf Older people aged 65 or over admitted on a permanent basis in the year to residential or nursing care per 10,000 older people Top Band
8 population * <90
‘E’ C72 CPA Key Threshold (using 2004 mid year estimate population of 21,000). Good performance is low. Top banding is <90. o
jqé This is a cumulative figure - the lower the end of year figure the better. To remain within the top banding nationally for this indicator we 8
S need to keep performance under 90. We are currently auditing the data on the system for this indicator to ensure it is an accurate ()
@ reflection of current performance - this is a relatively new indicator introduced mid-way through last year. It is sensible for us to test any —_
3 Soc new indicator to ensure the quality of the data being collected. B
69 | 343 37.0 48.0 630 | 754 | 77.0 78.0 84.3 | | | | 70
Paf The number of carers for Adults & Older People receiving a carer's break or specific carer's service as a proportion of all Adult Top Band
@ clients receiving a community based service * 12% +
Qo C62
% There are two sources to the data for this indicator. The nformation reported here is collected from Framework | where individual files exist
= for a carer and we can clearly pick up on the services they receive. Other carers whose details are held jointly with the cared for person
2 cannot be picked up and reported on via the database. This data is collected at intervals throughout the year and we are due to report on
g this next month however early indications show that we are close to our end of year target however early indications show that we are
w Soc close to our end of year target.

5% | 50% | 30% | 25% | 26% | 36% | 40% | 5% | 4.60% | | | |

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06

Page 11 of 16

12/01/2007




::tri?lz Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar F',Vrl sg::lsys Pr:;r[(:ss 'I;)aerl%(_e,t
® BV 201 Adults and older people receiving direct payments at 31 March per 100,000 population aged 18 or over (age standardised) Top1580and
[0}
O
% C51 CPA Key Threshold November Target 141
fé’ We are showing an improvement on last years performance - we have also set ourselves an ambitious target for this year and it will not be
2 easy to achieve however we are working towards it and have recently reset individual targets for each of our client groups to keep them
g Soc focused on reaching the target. This is on the agenda for our monthly performance call over meetings with third and forth tier managers.
. 89 | 122 124 | 121 | 118 117 121 123 126 | | | 150
o Local NHS & Community Care Act Complaints - Stage 1 responded to within 10 days
3 *Target up to September 06 was 80% in 14 days
L
E Six out nine on time in November, 36 out of 47 in the year to date. The year to date performance shows improvement on last year and is 779, 80% for
S Soc close to the target. ° 10 days
a 90% for
o 71% | *100% | *80% | *66.7% | *80% | *33.3% | *90% | 75% | 67% | | | | Red CECE 20 days
Local NHS & Community Care Act Complaints - Stage 2 responded to within 25 days
o Target up to September 06 was 50% in 28 days
g % 40% for
‘%‘ 0 None completed in November, none on time of the four cases completed in the year to date. 0% 25 days
& Soc 90% for
0% | None | 0% | None | 0% | 0% | None | 0% | None | | | Red Red 65 days |
_ Unit Cost of home care per client Top Band
8 5 Cost £11<£15
5 g The target set here was ambitious with an aim to reduce our unit cost and bring it into the top banding nationally. We may not reach the
= T| PafB17 |target set but we have shown a good reduction in unit cost so far this year.
Soc £20.60 | £20.60 | £20.60 | £20.60 | £20.60 | £20.60 | £20.60 | £20.60 | £18.93 | | | £15.50 |
T Unit Cost of intensive social care per client Top Band
g % Cost £415<£55
_E :CII:J Paf B12 3
L Soc £616 | £632 | £661 | £712 | £729 [ £724 | £712 | £730 | £752 | | | i Red ST
Finance Monthly indicators
The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that were paid by the authority within 30 days of such invoices 2005/06
[ BV lbeing received by the authorit @ Est.To
o g received by the authority P
5% Quartile
i.% T 86.2% 96.7%
89% | 88.3% | 83.3% | 83.1% | 88.1% | 83.08% | 87.75% | 88.7% | 90.5% | | | | | T 92.0% |

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 12 of 16 12/01/2007

2c | abed



)
o
=
(2]
ke)

ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar x :g::'sys Pr:;r[(:ss 'I;)asrl%(_e’t
_ BV 9 The percentage of council taxes due for the financial year which were received in year by the authority. 2005/06
.g < Est.Top
3 § Quartile
=T Performance maintained and on target 93.66% | 98.4%
93.35% | 93.67% | 92.98% | 93.94% | 92.80% | 93.70% | 94.04% | 94.03% | 94.64% | | | | | 93.75%
_ BV 10 [The percentage of non-domestic rates due for the financial year which were received in year by the authority. 2005/06
.g < Est.Top
5 Quartile
L|E_ T Fluctuations are to be expeceted when new accounts are raised. However, performance remains on target 99.04% 99.3%
98.98% [ 99.29% | 99.40% | 99.43% [ 99.70% [ 99.90% | 99.30% | 98.26% [ 96.95% | | | | | 99%
PM1 Average speed of processing new claims (Standard 36 days) ¢
E § Measured in days
g GE) The monthly performance continues to improve which demonstrates that the initiatives are working 43.61
W o«
41 | 50 56 49 43 42 42 34 34 | | | | T 36 |
PM7 Performance Indicator for the amount of HB overpayments recovered during the period as a percentage of total amount of HB |
S overpayments identified during the period.
53
L,E_ T Performance for November dropped slightly but the annual target should be met 54%
54% | 66% | 51% | 58% | 49% | N/A NA | 58% | 42% | | | | | 60%
£ PMO9 Performance Indicator for the amount of HB overpayments written-off during the period as a percentage of total amounts of HB
® overpayment debt outstanding at the start of the period plus amount of HB overpayments identified during the period.
T
©
(% Performance maintained and on target 3.00%
c
L 4% | 29% | 02% | 03% | 014% | NA NA | 2.14% | 3.24% | | | | | 2%
E @ PM11 What is the percentage of data-matches resolved within 2 months?
= 0O
§ GE) Performance maintained and on target 100%
w @ 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | | | | | 91%
= Fin 1 Overall revenue budget monitoring
% = Net overspend variance under 0.5% green, 0.5% to 1.0% amber, over 1.0% red
s [}
i~ | 04% | 09% | 1.0% [ 1.26% | 1.23% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | | | | |

£z abed

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06

Page 13 of 16

12/01/2007



Persp Monthly YTD Target
ective Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Progress | Progress 06/07
T Fin 2 Overall capital budget monitoring
I (_*'E“ Net overspend variance under 0.5% green, 0.5% to 1.0% amber, over 1.0% red
C ©
=N
i | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | | |
T Fin 3 Projected general fund reserves — projected unplanned use of balances
° % Under 20% green, 20% to 40% amber, over 40% red
T O
£ T
= [ 12.0% | 12.0% | 12.0% | 12.0% | 12.0% | 12.0% | 12.0% [ 12.0% | | |
T Fin4a |Treasury management- Exposure to Variable interest rates
° % - Remain within upper limit of 30% = green, between 30% and 50% amber, over 50% red
T O
£ T
L | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% | | |
T Fin4b [Treasury management - Authorised Limit for external debt
° % - remain within 95% = green, 95% to 100% = amber, over 100% = red
T O
£ T
L | 91.2% | 91.2% | 91.2% | 91.2% | 98.5% | 98.5% | 98.5% | 98.5% | | |
T Fin4c  |Treasury management - The Council's operational boundary for external debt.
° % - remain within 95% = green, 95% to 100% = amber, over 100% = red
T O
£ T
L | 943% | 94.3% | 94.3% | 94.3% | 101.8% | 99.1% | 99.1% | 99.1% | | |
£ Ein 5b Debt recovery - Overall Sundry debt.
3 n Reduction of Over 211 day debt from £8.80m @ 2005/6 year end to £5.74m by end of 2006/7. w
% £3.7m short against target, £2.5m Leasehold (annual service charges raised in Apr rolled forward, cash is being received monthly by
© standing order over the vear), £1.1m Schools (deductions from budgets are being made in Jan to correct position).
@ Target [£8.803m|] N/A [£8.293M|£8.038M[£7.783M|£7.528M| £7.273M | £7.018M [£6.763M|£6.508M [£6.253M|£5.998M| £5.74M
i Actual [£8.803m| N/A |[£8.603M|£8.326M|£8.118M|£7.793M| £8,197M| £10.38M [£10.46M £5.74M |
_ Unit Cost of office accommodation per sq metre (corporate property)
.g < Cost
cC®
2 L £214.91
L
£230.13 | £214.91| £214.91 | £214.91 | £214.91 | £214.91| £214.91 | £214.91 | £214.91 | £214.91

v | ebed

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06

Page 14 of 16

12/01/2007



Gg| abed

::tri?lz Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar F',\: :g::'sys Pr:;-r[(:ss 'I;)asrl%(_e,t
Chief Executive's Monthly indicators
BV 12 |Working days lost due to sickness per FTE employee 2005/06
A FTE = full time equivalent. Shown as annual equivalent. The year to date figure includes some late reported sickness inevitably missing gz;z-t?lg
o) from Monthly figures 8.34
9.24
10.37 | 5.59 8.72 8.65 869 | 763 | 8.09 9.59 9.42 | | | Red Red 8.80
< 0 was The number of physical visits per 1,000 population to public libraries ¢
2 8| BV 117 |[Shown as an annual equivalent.
g2 9.679
@ 9,850 | 9,008 | 10,216 | 9,340 | 9,387 | 9,181 | 10,057 | 10,232 | 10,012 | | | | 9,000
5 Local Members' Enquiries: % responded to within 10 working days
E 3
o O
2
O 85% | 84% | 77% | 78% | 80% | 76% | 81% | 86% | 87% | | | | |
5 Local Local Resolution complaints (stage 1) responded to within 10 working days
S g *05/06 Threshold was 15 days
§ 0 170 out of 221 in November, 1,273 out of 1,751 April to November
O 80%* | 71.6% | 69.3% | 71.3% | 69.5% | 73.5% | 72.3% | 75% | 77% | | | | 80%
g w Local Service investigation complaints (stage 2) responded to within 25 working days
=}
‘% é 25 out of 35 in November, 141 out of 189 April to November
O 74% | 66.7% | 52.9% | 77.8% | 84% | 61.1% | 84.0% | 94% | 71% | | | | 80%
5 LCE1 Independent review (stage 3) public complaints responded to within 20 working days
S g *05/06 Threshold was 25 days
‘g‘ 0 Four out of six on on time in November, 28 out of 31 in the year to date. 90%
O 94%* | 100% | 100% | 83.3% | 100% | 100% | 100% | None | 67% | | | | | 90%
5 Local |Freedom of information act replies within 20 day time scale
g % From June, this Pl excludes HfH FOI requests
§ L 66%
o 65% | 66% | 59% | 54% | 66% | 71.0% | 738% | 67% | 69% | | | | | 70%
5 Local Waiting times - % personal callers to Customer Service Centres (CSC) seen in 15 minutes ¢
E 3
O O
§ 8 47.4%
o 63% | 41.1% | 54.1% | 47.8% | 49.4% | 483% | 35.1% | 41.8% | 58.0% | | | | Red Red 70%
Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 15 of 16 12/01/2007



9g| abed

::tri?lz Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar F',\: :g::'sys Pr:;r[(:ss 'I;)asrl%(_e,t

5 Local |Switchboard - Telephone answering in 15 seconds ¢

: 8

*g' L 95.3%

O 98% | 97.9% | 96.3% | 95.4% | 95% | 94.3% | 935% | 94.8% | 95% | | | | | 90%

5 Local |Council Wide Position - Telephone Calls answered within 15 seconds as a % of total calls

g % (total includes those that reached the busy signal and unanswered calls) From June, this excludes HfH telephone performance.

§ 8 77.9%

O 79.3% | 787% | 79.7% | 79.4% | 79.2% | 775% | 75.2% | 76.2% | 76.9% | | | | | 77%

5 Local Call Centre: Calls answered in 15 Secs as % of calls presented ¢

5 3

‘g 0 26.8%

© 55% | 11.4% | 12.7% | 33.5% | 49.3% | 39.0% | 22.2% | 17.8% | 34.4% | | | | 70%

5 Local Call Centre: Calls answered as percentage of all calls presented

5 3

22

o 86.2% | 66.4% | 64.8% | 83.0% | 91.3% | 86.3% | 76.2% | 70.4% | 80.2% | | | | 90%

_ Local Call Centre: Average queuing time

g » Min:Sec

53

*g' L 01:48

© 00:49 | 03:14 | 02:56 | 01:17 | 00:43 | 01:04 | 01:56 | 02:26 [ 01:21 | | | 00:40

T Unit Cost per transaction (customer services)

2= Cost The benchmark is 05/06 out-turn of £4.41.

2 L £4.37

L £441 | £4.80 | £4.33 | £4.08 | £4.42 | £443 | £437 | £436 | £4.45 | | | | £4.41

= Unit Cost per visit/interaction (libraries)

% = Cost The monthly figure we are reporting here is the full year projected cost as included in Budget Monitoring not the YTD actual.

s [}

i~ £234 | £221 | £2.02 | £244 | £231 | £232 | £231 | £234 | £2.32 | | | | £2.40
BV 126 |Domestic burglaries, annual equivalent seasonally adjusted to 2005/06 figures. Actuals in brackets

T o (part)

28 2,570

c g (1708)

w g5y | 3352 [ 2949 | 2430 [ 2436 [ 1,879 [ 2,089 [ 2707 [ 2,884 m » 711

' (241) (240) (179) (176) (174) (192) (245) (261) ’

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Nov 06 Page 16 of 16 12/01/2007



Page 127 Agenda ltem 11

Agenda item: [N O .]

On 23" January 2007

Report Title: Council Community Buildings Portfolio

Report of: Director Corporate Resources

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: key decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out the current position of the 44 buildings occupied by Community
organisations and managed by Corporate Property Management Services

1.2 To propose standard heads of terms and conditions that should be adopted for any
future lease arrangements for community use.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

It is important that all the buildings which we hold on behalf of the people of Haringey
are properly maintained and are used to help deliver the priorities of their elected
Representatives.

In this paper we set out a system for ensuring that our community buildings are well
managed and that the council takes on the role of a good landlord and as such, we
assist our partners in delivering a wide variety of services for local people through our
property portfolio.

The report includes Heads of Terms for a standard lease which should form the basis
for negotiations for any new or renewed lease. This should over time lead to a more
standard and transparent approach across the portfolio.

At the moment it will apply to the 44 properties in Appendix 1. If it is successful, it may
be applied to further properties in the future, but this would be the subject of a further
report to the executive.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To note the current unsatisfactory position pertaining to the 44 buildings that are
subject to varying terms of occupation and responsibility which has resulted in a
general decline in the physical condition of the building stock.




Page 128

3.2 To agree a policy framework for all future community use of Council buildings to be
linked to the Community Strategy objectives and occupation by community
organisations should be in accordance with good asset management practice with
the Council acting as a an effective and socially responsible landlord.

3.3 To agree that the Heads of Terms and conditions for any new leases, as set out at
Appendix 2, be adopted and that officers be instructed to also seek to implement
these standard terms and conditions on existing agreements as they are renewed,
either by agreement or through negotiations, subject to there being no existing
adverse financial considerations of so doing.

3.4 To note that whilst under the terms of the proposed new lease the Council will retain
responsibility for structural and external repairs and maintenance, which will enable
better control over the condition of the properties.

3.5 To note the need for a dedicated post within Corporate Property Services to actively
manage this portfolio and achieve the outcomes proposed in this report .To this effect
the Head of Corporate Property Services has made a bid for this in the current
business planning process.

3.6 To agree that officers take action where it is considered that the Council is at risk due
to the non compliance of tenants terms particularly in regard to Health & Safety
implications. To this effect a programme of joint inspections are being set up with
officers from Health and Safety, Voluntary Sector Team and Corporate Property
Services.

3.7 To agree further individual reports be brought back to the Executive, as required, on
individual Community Buildings where decisions are required as to future use,
condition or management.

Report Authorised by: Andrew Travers Director of Corporate Resources

Signature: Date:

Contact Officer: Malcolm Dawes, Property Development Manager

4. Executive Summary

4.1 This report sets out conclusions from a review of the Community Buildings portfolio
that are within the Corporate Property Services current management,

4.2 A policy framework has been set out for the future community use and occupation by
community organisations.

4.3 The report sets out proposed standard Heads of Terms that members are
recommended should be adopted for any future leases and where, legally possible,
should be adopted for any renewals, subject to there being no existing adverse
financial considerations of so doing.




Page 129

4.4 Subject to a review of the financial and other implications and those implications
being resolved, other community buildings identified as such should also be brought
within the remit of the proposals contained within this report and brought back to the
Executive, as required.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 There is an inconsistent approach to lease arrangements.

5.2 In addition there are, and are developing, health and safety risks that need
addressing now and for the future. This is because either the tenants who in the main
have responsibility for such matter have no money to do the necessary works or the
Council, in the past, has entered into onerous obligations and not been able to set
aside sufficient funds to comply with such obligations.

5.3 In line with developing excellence and the management of the Council’s assets; and
in deciding if the Council wishes to continue to supply such accommodation in the
way it has done in the past, changes in policy are recommended in this report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
6.1 Report to Voluntary Sector Grants Committee on 6™ September 2005

7. Background

7.1 This report deals in the main with the 44 properties in the Corporate Property Services
management. Occupation of a lot of these properties, it is understood, was brought about
through the former Community Services Directorate. Many of the properties were also
originally occupied by groups, without formal agreements or leases (some still are).

7.2 Many of the existing agreements mean that either the Council is responsible for all, or an
element of, the repair and maintenance of the buildings. Many repairs and ongoing
maintenance obligations of the Council have not been budgeted for, or carried out in a
timely manner and, in some cases, there has not been any.

7.3 In cases where the buildings have been let on a FRI basis (full repairing and insuring) a
number of tenant organisations have not carried out their responsibilities and premises
have fallen into disrepair; in a few cases it is believed to be causing health and safety risks
which need to be addressed quickly. The usual reason for this is lack of funds and/or the
skills within community organisations to manage the properties concerned.

7.4 In some cases occupation of the premises may have changed without the permission
and/or knowledge of the Council.

7.5 It is therefore evident that further detailed reviews of the use, occupation and management
of each of the properties individually are needed.



Page 130

7.6 This report sets out the findings from the internal review process and recommends a way
forward.

8. Description

8.1 The Council’'s 44 Community Buildings portfolio, currently the responsibility of the Head of
Corporate Property Services, is made up of a mix of property types held on a mixture of
tenures which has been built up over decades.

8.2 The Council has, for sometime not had a transparent, clear and recognisable policy for
these types of lettings, nor has sufficient resources been employed to manage them.

8.3 Many of the buildings suffer from a decline in the physical condition due to lack of clarity as
to who is responsible or for lack of Council or Community organisations funds.

8.4 There has also been insufficient resourced management and, for what ever reason, a lack
of joined up activity within the Council and not a proactive response to breaches of
repairing and other obligations on both sides.

8.5 There is also a need to assess the risks arising from lack of repairs and non compliance
with statutory obligations e.g. Fire regulations, Asbestos inspections, etc to address key
Health & Safety problems.

8.6 Many are not fully accessible and some do not appear to be compliant with the Disability
Discrimination Act. At the very least this seems to be against the spirit of becoming more
inclusive with these community buildings being used for the benefit of those in social or
welfare need or vulnerable groups.

8.7 In some cases the Council has entered into very onerous terms and conditions which
either leave it powerless to change for many years without controversial litigation, make it
vulnerable to costly litigation against it, or are exceedingly costly.

8.8 Examples of recent problems that have occurred:-

e There is a Health and Safety investigation in progress following the death of a
contractor on site that one of the voluntary associations had employed.

e One of the properties structural and exterior repairs has been estimated at £100,000.
The Council is liable under the terms of the lease in this regard and are endeavouring
to carry out the required repairs. However it should be noted this property is let on a
peppercorn term and therefore there is no income generated by this asset.

e In several cases the Council has been denied rights of access and therefore the
Council has been unable to confirm the condition and health and safety issues of these
properties.

e An associations that was offered funding to repair or refurbish their property if they
would consider shared use of their over capacity of space with other community
groups have refused unless the control of the building remains completely with them.



Page 131

8.9 The way in which rents have been set appears to be inconsistent and in some cases

occupiers have been let into premises without formal agreements as to rent and other
terms.

8.10 It would appear some of the properties may not be fully utilised and local Community

8.11

8.12

8.13

9.1

9.2

9.3

requirements may also have changed.

Having said all this there are some that are being run efficiently and effectively giving
great benefits to the local and wider community.

Given the above it is clear that matters cannot continue as they are and it is also clear
that these premises require much more pro-active management by the Council with
dedicated resources to do so, at least in the short to medium term.

The Councils key objectives require a thorough assessment of its property assets and
therefore the Council will need to analyse and decide if the current form of
management of the portfolio is the way in which it wishes to continue.

Community Use and Occupation by Community Organisations - Policy
Framework

One of the key principles in the Corporate Asset Management Plan is to use Council
assets directly or in partnership with other organisations in the achievement of service
priorities and key policy objectives set out in the Community Strategy.

It would be good practice for the Voluntary Sector Team, when prioritising competing
uses for properties with new or renewed leases, to link with the various corporate
processes in a golden thread from policy through to resource allocation including
PBPR and budget setting.

Once a community use priority is determined there is a need to apply an objective,
transparent and equitable approach for deciding and agreeing the terms of occupation
by specific organisations. It is proposed to apply the following asset management and
community use criteria for that purpose:

e Community Use & Occupation — this should be for the benefit of the community and

subject to the same definitions and priorities as applied by the Council in it's service
priorities and Community Involvement Strategy. It should be an evolving portfolio to meet
the community needs and ensure effective use within individual buildings to optimise the
use of space.

e Inspection of Premises — The Council’s representatives shall have a right to inspect the

premises for any purpose under the terms of the lease and at any reasonable time,
subject to giving the Tenant/s one weeks notice, except where it is considered that there
is a breach of the health and safety legislation and immediate access may be required.

e Length of Leases — presumption for short term (maximum 5 years) to provide a balance

between the needs of the group for stability and to enable the Council to react to
changing priorities and new users. If longer lease periods are required to enable the
organisation to qualify for funding these should be subject to individual assessment and
Member approval.



Page 132

e Option to Break — regardless of the term all leases will contain break clauses to enable
the Council to react to future changes in circumstance and the potential redevelopment
and disposal opportunities that may arise.

¢ Rent levels — to be assessed as market rent for the use proposed (i.e. reflect community
use benchmarks) to ensure a transparent and equitable process. The Council to maintain
the right to take appropriate and firm action in regard to any rent arrears, this to include
the use of bailiffs and ultimately eviction for persistent offenders

e Sureties and safeguards — Personal guarantees will not be required as it is recognised
that trustees of community organisations acting in a voluntary capacity will not be able to,
nor are they likely to be prepared to provide such sureties. However a deposit of three
months rent will be required.

¢ Repairs liability — Council to retain responsibility for all structural and external repairs and
maintenance to protect the asset with a service charge for this. For clarity this to be
limited to floors, roof, foundations, lifts and external walls. Tenant to be responsible for
all internal repairs, gas, water, electricity, telecommunication, glass and any other
services and decorations.

e Taxes and utilities — tenant to be responsible for NNDR, utilities and any other charges
relating to the occupation and use.

e Health & Safety and other legislation requirement — tenant to be responsible for
complying with all health & safety legislation and any other such legislation pertaining to
their use of the premises

e Insurance — The Council will insure the building as part of its block policy. The tenant is
to repay the premiums to the Council. The tenant to insure the fixtures and fittings and
plate glass at their own expense.

9.4 As a socially responsible landlord it is proposed that a Community Buildings Landlord and
Tenant Handbook is prepared to clarify roles, responsibilities and provide practical
guidance and information for community organisations to assist them with their building
management responsibilities.

10.Consultation

10.1 The Corporate Voluntary Sector team (CVST) has been involved in this report and the
consideration that has been involved in its making.

10.2 That Haringey Association of Voluntary and Community Organisations (HAVCO) were
consulted and there comments incorporated on the proposed Heads of Terms established
by this report.

10.3 Actions that will be required as a result of this report, if Members agree it, will need to be
very sensitive to the local Communities that are involved in the current buildings, and those
in the areas concerned that have unfulfilled community building needs.

10.4 Therefore wider consultation will be necessary when dealing with the individual problems
associated with each of the properties to be considered



Page 133

11. Summary and Conclusions

11.1 This report seeks to advise Members of the current position but also outlines options for
the future direction of the portfolio.

11.2 Although, given the existence of current arrangements and leases, it can not immediately
solve all the current issues it provides an understanding of the future policy and will help
establish a clearer understanding between the Council and the Voluntary Sector.

12. Recommendations
12.1 Asin 3.1

13. Legal and Financial Comments

13.1 The Council has a duty to ensure its assets are in good condition and fit for purpose.
There may be some short term resource requirements to address health and safety
requirements which will need to be included in the capital programme planning process.
This report recommends the Council is responsible for structural and external repairs,
where in some cases, currently the tenant is. This will impact on future capital budget
demands, but will also reflect on the rent levels of the properties.

13.2 It is recognised that in order to proactively manage these buildings in a more effective
way there will be a bid for a dedicated post in Corporate Property in the business
planning process.

13.3 This report provides a general view of the various tenancies at present in existence in
these properties. Legal advice must therefore be obtained on how best to deal with each
individual tenancy if these are still subsisting. Tenancies mentioned in this report may
have the protection of Part Il of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 (“Act”) (unless
specifically contracted out). Officers may find that in dealing with these protected
tenancies there is very limited scope to change the terms without the cooperation of the
tenants as otherwise the court will have the power to determine the terms. It is noted that
there are those who are in occupation without any formal lease having been entered into.
This is a situation that must be rectified immediately as legally it puts the Council in a
disadvantage as to the terms and conditions governing such occupation and in some
case such occupation may even have the protection of the Act. In order to gain
possession of such protected tenancies the Council can only use the statutory grounds
set out in the Act.

14. Equalities Implications

14.1 The Council’s portfolio of community buildings are let to groups representing a wide
variety of the borough’s community.

15. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

15.1 Appendix 1 Community Buildings under the responsibility of Corporate Property
Appendix 2 Proposed draft Lease Terms



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



P;

hge 135

100441

APPENDIX 1

Photo CNa:.e Tenant Property g::; Ward
?{f)%i%ré Caribbean Day Nursery Ltd Q::Eago(;zribbean Day Nursery, 30 Hornsey NS Noel Park
African Women’s Welfare Group 100133 |r/o 594 High Road N17 Tottenham Hale
?&;)4lsr;tt)ernational Theatre Productions Lord Morrison Hall, Scales Road N17 Tottenham Hale
?nggisation of Cypriot Organisations Cypriot Community Centre, Earlham Grove N22 Woodside
3:}%5:;?_?(; zv;on;gg's Association in Mitalee Centre, Stanley Road N15 St Ann's
Broadwater Farm Residents Assn. 108a Gloucester Road N17 West Green
?Haa:ir?r? ; eayr; 816881{3?“26”3 Assn. Welbourne Community Centre, Chestnut Road N17 Tottenham Hale
Cherubim & Seraphim Church Movement Park Lane Community Centre, 46 Park Lane N17 Northumberland
100430 Park
Chestnuts Community & Arts Centre Chestnuts Community Centre, 280 St Ann's N15 St Ann's
100469 Road
gﬁjrzn;%rgizioad Tenants Assn. & Social Adult School Hall, Commerce Road N22 Bound's Green
GRACE Organisation 100447 wmzﬂz:: gt'r;e;terden Community Centre, N17 Northl;r;?kerland
Greek Parents Association Winkfield Community Centre, 39 Winkfield Road | N22 Woodside




Page

Greek Women's Organisation

» 136

Haringey Grove Community Centre, Denmark

101342 Road N8 Harringey
Haringey Irish Cultural & Community . . Northumberland
Centre 100440 Irish Centre, Pretoria Road N17 Park
':ggg?fy Mencap Ltd 676 High Road (Former Bell Brewery) N17 Tottenham Hale
Haringey Race Equality Council 14 Turnpike Lane N8 Noel Park
101400
Age Concern 100485 Tottenham Town Hall, Room 10, Town Hall N15 [ Tottenham Green
Approach Road
Harringay Boys Club Ltd Junction Ribblesdale Road, 52 Tottenham Lane N8 Hornsey
Occup@d by five groups including Frederick Morfill House, R/O 69 Bounds Green N22 |Bound's Green
Haringey Emergency Corp. Road
Hornsey Historical Society The OId Schoolhouse, 136 Tottenham Lane N8 Hornsey
Tg(;zz%y Vale Community Assn. Stationers Community Centre, 60 Mayfield Road | N8 Stroud Green
Jackson Lane Community Assn. Jackson’s Lane Community Centre, Archway .
100426 Road NG Highgate
Kurdish Advice Centre St Mary's Community Centre, Birkbeck Road, NS Hornse
100442 Hornsey y
Kurdish Community Centre Fairfax Hall, Portland Gardens N4 St Ann's
100483
MIND in Haringey Ltd Station House,73c Stapleton Hall Road N4 Stroud Green

100482




Pi

Jamait-Al-Nissa Womens Organisation

hge 137

101387 8 - 10 Bedford Road (Former Bedford Club) N22 Alexandra
North London Performing Arts Former Muswell Hill Village Club, 27 Alexandra N10 Muswell Hil
100421 Gardens

NSPCC 100464 Maya Angelou Centre (Part), Keston Road N17 West Green
Cara Irish Association 72 Stroud Green Road N4 Stroud Green
Selby Trust 100452 The Selby Centre, Selby Road N17 White Hart Lane
Tagore Centre 100448 First Floor, Alexandra Park Library N10 Alexandra
The Council for Asian People 8 Caxton Road N22 Noel Park
100910

The Markfield Project Ltd The Playce, Markfield Road N15 Seven Sisters
100425

1T0‘gt7%'yam Community Sports Centre Ltd | o ham Sports Centre, 701 High Road, N17 | N17 North‘g:’ke”a"d
ngjzg Cypriot Community Assn. 628/630 Green Lanes N8 Harringey

o apamio Gulural Gentre 6 Caxton Road N22 Noel Park
:J(I)(szlzmic Turkish Cultural Centre 10 Caxton Road N22 Noel Park
Victim Support Haringey 24 & 26 Commerce Road N22 Bound's Green




Page

» 138

W.I.L.C. (Haringey) Ltd 100467 |West Indian Cultural Centre, Clarendon Road N22 Noel Park
Burghley Under 5's 28 and half Burghley Road N8 Noel Park
Haringey Consortium of Disabled People |spy 1 ion Road, Tottenham N17 Bruce Grove
and Carers
Haringey Phoenix Group Winkfield Resource Centre, 33 Winkfield Road N22 Woodside
Northumberland P ark Women and Somerford Grove/ Rothbury Walk/ Bruce Grove | N17 Northumberland
Children's Centre Park
The Cue Company Ltd (London) Queens Wood Lodge, 42 Muswell Hill Road N10 Muswell Hill




10.

11.

Page 139

Appendix 2.

Proposed draft lease heads of terms

SUBJECT TO CONTRACT

THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT A TENANCY AGREEMENT OR LEASE OR A LICENCE TO

ENTER

PARTICULARS OF PROPOSED LETTING

LANDLORD:

TENANT:

PREMISES

TERM:

SUB-LETTING
ASSIGNMENT

RENT:

DEPOSIT:

RENT REVIEWS:

INSURANCE:

REPAIRS:

SERVICE CHARGE:

London Borough of Haringey, Civic Centre, Wood Green, London, N22
4LE.

Trustees of the (-) Trustee changes need to be advised to the Council in
writing by the organisation not less than one calendar month after such
changes have taken place and notified on the lease.

All that land and premises known as Community Centre.(as shown on the
attached plan)

Unless subject to a separate report to Executive Board will not exceed 5
years -- Years from the date of completion. The surrender of the Existing
(Lease/Tenancy) will take place on the completion of the new lease.

The Tenant will not be allowed to assign, share occupation or sub-let the
whole or part to any third party, save that the whole or any part of the
Community Centre may be hired out on adaily basis for bona fide
community activities so that no relationship of Landlord and Tenant is
created between Tenant and occupier and such occupier complies with the
use as set out in item 13 subsequently.

The tenant shall obtain approval from the Council for all sub-lettings and
keep a schedule with full details of all such sub-lettings and provide the
Landlord annually with an updated schedule for approval.

The landlord reserve the right to demand the immediate discontinuance of
any activity or proposed activity which it does not approve, providing that
such right is reasonably exercised.

£..... per annum exclusive of rates and other outgoings payable quarterly in
advance by standing order/direct debit. ( prior arrangements can be made
for monthly payments by direct debit)

The rent to be at a open market rent.

The Landlord to insure the building. The tenant to repay the premiums to
the Landlord as insurance rent and to insure the fixtures and fittings and
plate glass at their own expense.

The Lessee to be responsible for all internal repair and maintenance, gas,
electricity, water, telecommunication and other services and decorations.
Council to retain responsibility for all structural and external repairs and
maintenance to protect the asset with a service charge for this . For clarity
this to be limited to floors, roof, foundations, and external walls.

If applicable



12.

13.

14.

® Page 2

OTHER OUTGOINGS

USE

OPTION TO BREAK:

Page 140

January 15, 2007

The Tenant to be responsible for the payment of all other outgoing that
may be payable from time to time such as, but not exclusive to, rates,
electricity, gas, water, etc.

The premises are only to be used as a community centre to provide facilities
for social, educational, leisure and welfare activities for the benefit of the
local community, always in accordance with:

1 The tenants Memorandum and Articles of Association. (or
Constitution) or the aims and objectives of the charity

2 The aims and objects of the tenant as registered Charity number
(if applicable) The Landlord’s Equal Opportunities Statement.

3 To occupy the Community Centre and keep it open for the
Permitted Use (hours of operation to be inserted) and not to use
the Community Centre outside these hours.

4 Except one hour preparation time before opening and half an hour
clearing up time after closing.

5 Not to do in the Community Centre anything that may be a
nuisance or annoyance or cause damage or inconvenience to the
Landlord its tenants or any adjoining owner occupier or to the
general public.

Under no circumstances will it be permitted for the prime function to
become that of just letting out the whole or part of the accommodation
if this occurs it will be considered a fundamental breach of the terms
and conditions of the lease.

The tenant will have an option to break, for any reason, at any time after the
first year by giving 3 months notice to terminate provided they have
complied with all the terms and conditions of this agreement especially as
to repairs and maintenance of the building.

The landlord can determine the lease by not less than three months notice to
quit in the following circumstances:-

1. If the tenant deviates from or fails to implement the provisions of the
Tenant’s Articles of Association.

2. If there is a material change to community demand for the services and
the premises are substantially under utilised to the extent that the premises
are only open to the community base that they serve at less than 75% of the
permitted/agreed opening hours.

3. If the tenant shall make any material change or alteration or amendment
to the Tenant’s Articles of Association which inhibits the Tenant carrying
out its primary objects unless this has been approved by the Landlord.

4. If the Tenant fails to comply with any notice/s served by the Council
under the Tenants’ repairing and maintenance obligations.

5. If there should be any financial or administrative mismanagement of the
Community Centre.

6. If the Council require the site for redevelopment then notice must be not
less than 12 months.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

® Page 3

OTHER TERMS:

LEGAL COSTS:

REFERENCES:

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

COURT EXCLUSION

COMMITTEE APPROVAL:

ACCOUNTS

Page 141

January 15, 2007

The Lease to be in the standard form, where appropriate, as produced by
the Landlord's Solicitor, which includes the Council's Conditions of
Employee Protection.

The tenant to pay the Landlord’s legal costs in the transaction and surrender
of the existing lease whether or not the matter proceeds to completion. An
initial payment on account of £400 is required by return.

References will be required for new Trustees.

The tenant will comply with all Statutory Requirements and obtain full
insurance cover for the use of the premises so as to indemnify the Council
against any claims that may arise from the Tenants’ use and occupation of
the premises for at least £2 Million.

The lease will be excluded from the security of tenure provisions of Part 11
of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954

The grant of the lease is subject to the approval of the appropriate
committee to the Council.

A copy of the audited accounts of the organisation to be provided annually.



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143 Agenda ltem

Agenda item: NO .

Executive On 23 January 2007

Report Title: Haringey Housing Diversity and Equalities Strategic Framework

Report of: Interim Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services

Wards(s) affected: ALL Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

The report asks the Executive Committee to approve the Housing Diversity & Equalities
Framework and Action Plan.

2. Introduction by Executive Member (if necessary)

This report marks further progress in the programme of Housing service improvements.
The draft Diversity and Equality Framework is an important building block underpinning
new services such as the Prevention and Options Service and Home Connections. It
builds upon the strong support the Council obtained from the Audit Commission in the
2006 Comprehensive Corporate Assessment. The Diversity and Equality Framework
embeds diversity and equality objectives into all areas of Housing Service activity.

It is a statement of our fundamental commitment to valuing diversity and creating
opportunity for all residents. The Framework highlights our strong commitment, identifies
examples of good practice and sets out what further actions we propose. The Framework
has been the subject of extensive consultation and has benefited from that process and
from the comments and guidance of the Corporate Equalities Team. This is an important
document and will be crucial in helping the Council achieve the two stars in the pending
inspection of the ALMO”

3. Recommendations

That the Housing Diversity & Equalities Framework be approved,

That the Action Plan be agreed.

Report Authorised by: Jim Crook, Interim Director of Adult, Culture and Community
Services

Contact Officer: Hitesh Tailor, Interim Housing Partnerships Manager

12



Page 144

4. Director of Finance Comments

There are no direct financial implications from approving the Framework. Any cost of
printing will need to be contained within the existing Housing Budget.

There may be some resource implications (not quantified at present) if the Action Plan
suggests any change in the processes of providing homelessness needs.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

The development and implementation of the Framework and associated Action Plan will
assist the Council in complying with its equalities duties as a public authority and a
service provider. In particular it will assist the Council in meeting the requirements to
promote equality of opportunity and eliminate unlawful discrimination inherent in its duties
as a public authority under Section 71 of the Race Relations Act 1976, Section 49A of the
Disability Discrimination Act 1995 and Section 76A of the Sex Discrimination Act 1975. In
addition the Framework will also assist compliance with the general duties concerning the
elimination of discrimination on the grounds of religion or belief and on the grounds of
sexual orientation introduced by the Equalities Act 2006.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Haringey Housing Strategy 2003-08

Draft Housing Needs Survey 2006

Association of London Government (ALG) Black and minority ethnic housing strategy
guidelines for London

Housing Corporation Equality & Diversity Policy & Strategies

Experience Counts: Haringey’s Strategy for improving the quality of life for older people
2005-2010

Haringey Council: “Housing And Diversity In Haringey - Consultation With The Race
Equality Joint Consultative Committee.”(REJCC)

Haringey Council Equal Opportunities Policy - achieving equality; respecting diversity
Haringey Council Scrutiny Services : Report of the Scrutiny Review of Adaptations
Haringey Council, ‘Shaping the Future’. Draft Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-
2016.

7. Strategic Implications

The Diversity & Equalities Framework is an important document setting out the Council’s
commitment to achieving equality in housing for all residents and communities. The
Framework gives added focus to the diversity and equalities issues identified in the
Housing Strategy. It is structured around the needs of the six equality groups:

e Age e Gender
o Disability e Religion and Belief
e Ethnicity e Sexuality




Page 145

The Framework sets out the aims and objectives that will ensure housing services across
all tenures contribute to the Council’s Sustainable Community Strategy vision of making
Haringey a place where “people want to be.”

It also reflects the Housing Strategy vision of “Meeting the borough’s current and
future housing needs-and through doing so, making a major contribution to social
inclusion and the socio economic well-being of Haringey.”

The Framework includes an Action Plan that will guide the work of the Council’s Strategic
Housing Service in implementing the aims and objectives and proposed actions.

8. Financial Implications

The implementation of the Framework will be resourced from existing resources. Actions
that require additional resources will be considered by the Social Services and Housing
Departmental Management Team (DMT)

9. Equalities Implications

The proposed Framework is an important tool that aims to highlight the difficulties
communities within Haringey face in obtaining and maintaining housing. It sets a
direction of travel underpinned by the Action Plan that will deliver the Framework.

The Framework aims to ensure that housing across all tenures is accessible to all
residents facing housing need. It further seeks to ensure that housing services,
regardless of the provider of such services, meet the diversity and equality aims and
objectives of the Framework.

10. Consultation

The Framework has been developed following consultation with housing providers and
community groups that represent the various communities within Haringey. All the main
Haringey Strategic Partnership forums were contacted, along with housing associations,
and over 100 community organisations. The consultation included a survey form, a focus
group presentation to Turkish and Somali tenant groups, and to the Older Person Forum,
and individual interviews / meetings with various organisations.

The main survey form sought views on the intended aims of the Framework; what were
the key issues contributing to housing inequality; suggestions for improving access to
affordable housing and improving service provisions.

The Framework and Action Plan that will allow Haringey’s Strategic Housing Service to
develop close and effective working with partners and organisations across all tenures.

11. Background

The Housing Strategy highlighted the diversity and equalities challenges arising from
meeting local housing needs and related objectives and policies. The Diversity and
Equalities Housing Framework sets out current practice including examples of best
practice. It identifies actions to develop an excellent housing service. This would help in
attaining a two stars in a future Audit Commission inspection and further build upon the
progress identified in the Corporate Performance Assessment on diversity and equality.

3



Page 146

The focus of this Diversity & Equalities Framework has been to highlight the difficulties
residents face accessing affordable housing solutions, and in achieving a good quality of
life through responsive services within Haringey across all tenures.

Haringey Council has a proactive and positive approach to equalities work Much of this
has diversity at the forefront given the make up of the Borough and its residents. It is
imperative to document the inequality experienced by Haringey’s residents and to
develop housing policies and services, across all tenures, that will in the long term
address inequalities and eliminate discrimination.

12. Aims of the Framework

The Framework proposes actions to meet the following aims. To:

Eliminate unlawful discrimination on the grounds of race, disability, gender,
sexuality, religion / belief, and age.

Promote equal opportunities for all groups in the community

Deliver high standard services to people from economic and socially
disadvantaged communities and are sensitive to differences in needs,
language and culture

Promote community cohesion within Haringey by recognising the diversity of
local communities and fostering good relations between them

The Framework has identified four objectives to ensure the Action Plan reflects the
overall aims.

13. The Four objectives of the Framework:

Develop greater understanding of community housing needs and improve
services to residents across the tenures

Work with partners to maximise the supply of affordable homes, increasing
access and housing choice

Improve community safety, sustainability and cohesion in our most deprived
communities and create opportunities for people to achieve and succeed
Eliminate discrimination in the provision of our services by developing effective
performance information and monitoring of housing services

14. Wider Influences upon the Framework

Developing a cross tenure Diversity & Equalities Housing Framework reflects the
following local drivers. The:

Draft Community Strategy 2007-16

Housing Strategy 2003-08

Supporting People Strategy

Experience Counts — Older Persons Strategy
Children & Young People Strategy

There were also a number of national drivers. The:



Page 147

e Sustainable Communities Plan
e London Housing Strategy.

The Diversity and Equality Framework takes account of equalities legislation and
guidance including the CRE code of Practice and key performance indicators which
the authority must adhere to.

15. Delivering Equal Opportunities in Haringey

Haringey Council has a commitment to reflecting the diversity of the community it
serves and to promoting equal opportunity through its Equal Opportunities Policy.

Haringey Council also has a Race Equality Scheme with requirements to develop
Equalities Impact Assessments (EIA) for each policy and strategy the council
develops. This Framework has been subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment.

The Council also introduced a Disability Equality Scheme and will introduce a Gender
Equality scheme before March 2007.

The Council is also aiming to achieve Levels 3 and 4 of the Equality Standard for
Local Government.

16. Conclusion

This report asks the Executive Committee to approve the Housing Diversity &
Equalities Framework and agree the Action Plan.

The Framework sets out the Housing Services’ record of initiatives and activities
across the six equality groups. Within the Framework and summarised in the Action
Plan is the actions that we propose to take to meet the aims and objectives set out in
the Framework. It reflects the Council’s vision and sets out what we expect from all
providers of housing and housing services.

It further sets out how the needs of residents in all tenures will be met. The
Framework will be a key document underpinning the Housing Strategy of the Council.

17. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

The Housing Diversity & Equalities Framework is attached. Part of the Framework
includes 5 annexe:

Annexe A Legislation
Annexe B  Strategies
Annexe C Consultation
Annexe D Action Plan
Annexe E  Organisations



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149

Housing Diversity and
Equalities Framework

2007-2010

Version 10 @ 10 January 2007

Hitesh Tailor
& Nigel Long
Apex House

1

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 150

Content

\[e] Area Page
01 | Content 2
02 | Foreword 3
03 | Executive Summary 4
04 | Chapter 1 Introduction 5
05 | Chapter 2 Valuing Diversity and 12

Achieving Equality
06 | Chapter 3 The Six Equality Areas 26
07 | Chapter 4 : Performance 55
08 | Annexe A : Legislation 57
09 | Annexe B: Strategies 61
10° | Annexe C: Consultation 63
11 | Annexe D: Action Plan 65

Annexe E: Organisations 77

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07

2




Page 151

Foreword

Clir Isidoros Diakides
Executive Member for Housing

3

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 152

Executive Summary

e This Housing Diversity and Equality Framework sets out the Council’s strong
commitment to ensuring that housing services, across all tenures, meet our
commitment to value diversity and promote equality.

e The London Borough of Haringey faces a range of challenges relating to
deprivation and the diversity of the Borough. It is committed to valuing all
residents and creating opportunity and good housing choices for all.

e This Framework sits within a clear strategic context set by the Council and
supports the Council’s aims and objectives. These provide a vision that will
ensure unlawful discrimination is tackled and greater community cohesion is
promoted.

e The Borough faces a range of housing related challenges. These include
housing supply, access to housing, the concentration of Black and Minority
Ethnic (BME) residents in poor quality overcrowded housing, severe levels of
homeless, a lack of specialist accommodation, a lack of large units, high house
prices, rent levels, and insecurity of housing.

e The deprivation and housing need faced by many residents is well documented
in the 2001 census data, the draft Housing Needs Survey (2006) data from
homelessness and Housing Register monitoring, from the Older Persons
Housing and Support Needs Analysis (2005) and information from Supporting
People including the Haringey Supporting People Key Facts 2005-2010 (2006)

e This Diversity and Equality Framework identifies key cross cutting issues that
impact on or influence all equality areas. It takes account of legal requirements
(Annexe A) other key strategies (Annexe B) and highlights the importance of
consultation (Annexe C).

e This Diversity and Equality Framework addresses the challenges faced by the
Council’s Housing Service. An Action Plan (Annexe D). sets out the Housing
Service proposals, timescales and lead officers. It will be used as the basis for
reporting to the Council Executive. These proposals are Specific, Measurable,
Achievable, Realistic and time limited (SMART)

e The Framework highlights the critical importance of monitoring performance,
both the impact of the strategy, and the implementation of the Action Plan.

e In order to ensure effective implementation, monitoring, review and evaluation it

is proposed to establish a Sounding Board, with a majority of Service Users, to
achieve this.

4

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 153

Chapter 1 Introduction

This Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework is one of the key strategic
documents that will guide the London Borough of Haringey’s work over the coming 3
years.

The Council has improved its performance according to the most recent Corporate
Assessment by the Audit Committee. (2006)

We are a three star authority and our ambition is to perform at the level of excellent
councils. We aim to be a Four Star Council.

The Audit Commission recognised the progress we have made In mainstreaming
diversity and equality into the Council’s day to day activity and highlighted areas of
good practice such as on Domestic Violence.

This Framework is central to improving the Council’s performance further. Our
aspirations are great. We aim to deliver opportunity and improved services for all
residents and communities.

An Improving Borough of Challenges

The Borough is very diverse. A population of 225,000 people live in Haringey: women
and men, disabled and non disabled, ethnic minorities and supposed majorities, old
and young, heterosexual, lesbian and gay, faith and non-faith communities. These
communities and their experiences overlap, and it is the size and range of the diversity
that makes Haringey stand out:

e Nearly 45% of Haringey's population are from ethnic minority communities’
including Black African, Black African- Caribbean, Chinese, Greek-Cypriot,
Turkish- Cypriot, Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi, Irish, Jewish and Kurdish
communities. This population is changing with new communities arriving.
Approximately 10 percent of local people are refugees and asylum seekers.
More than 50% of the local population are women.

More than 10% of the local population are estimated to have a disability.

A total of 25% of the local population are aged 50 plus.

National Research suggests between 5-10% of the population are lesbian or gay.

Diversity and disadvantage co-exist in Haringey. Deprivation affects all local
communities. The Borough is marked by an east-west polarisation of deprivation and
wealth. Deprivation is particularly concentrated amongst ethnic minorities, women,
disabled people and older people.

Our evidence of housing needs in Haringey includes:

e Haringey has the largest number of households (5,600) living in temporary
accommodation (source: LB Haringey Housing)

' London Borough Haringey Equal Opportunities Policy (2001)
5

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 154

e Over 10,000 households on the Housing Register (source: LB Haringey Housing)

¢ Over one in five households live in unsuitable housing, of whom 70% are from non
White British households. (source: draft HNS)

e Over 18,000 households require support of a kind defined by the Supporting
People programme. Over 85% were due to physical disability or frailty in old age.
(source: draft HNS). 55% of households requiring supports are from BME
households.

e An estimated 9% (over 8,000 households) live in overcrowded conditions, including
a third of lone parent households.

Haringey’s Housing Strategy

This Housing Diversity and Equality Framework meets a high priority established in
the Housing Strategy 2005-08.

The Housing Strategy set out the major challenges the Borough faces and key actions
needed across all tenures. Tackling inequality, valuing diversity and increasing
housing choice and opportunity for all communities was a foremost priority.

The Housing Strategy made a commitment to develop a separate Housing Diversity
and Equalities Framework to highlight the difficulties faced by communities in
accessing affordable, decent and safe housing solutions appropriate to their needs
across the different housing tenures.

The Framework is complimented by a robust Action Plan. That identifies appropriate
housing policies and services to address inequalities and how we will eliminate
discrimination. This is achieved by understanding the impact of housing outcomes
across the six main equality areas:

e age e gender
o disability e religion / belief
o ethnicity o sexuality

This Framework is not be seen as an end in itself. It provides a direction of travel for
Haringey to achieve equality in housing.

Housing Strategy Vision

Meeting the borough’s current and future housing needs — and through doing

so, making a major contribution to social inclusion and the socio-economic
well-being of Haringey.

6

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 155

Aims
Our high levels aims are to:

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination on the grounds of race, disability, gender,
sexuality, religion / belief, and age.

e Promote equal opportunities for all groups in the community

e Deliver services to people from economic and socially disadvantaged communities
that are sensitive to differences in needs, language and culture

e Promote community cohesion within Haringey by recognising the diversity of local
communities and fostering good relations between them.

Our aims support the Strategic Vision.
Objectives
The objectives for the Framework are to:

1. Develop greater understanding of community housing needs and improve services
to residents across the tenures

2. Work with partners to maximise the supply of affordable homes, increasing access
and housing choice

3. Improve community safety, sustainability and cohesion in our most deprived
communities and create opportunities for people to achieve and succeed

4. Eliminate discrimination in the provision of our services by developing effective
performance information and monitoring of housing services

The 4 objectives play an important role in the structure of this Housing Diversity and
Equalities Framework. They are provide the core structure for the Action Plan at
Annex D. We consider future actions(What we will do) against each of the objectives.

Delivering Equality in Haringey
Equal Opportunities Policy

Equalities are a key element for Haringey's response to the needs and requirements
of all residents, employees and partners.

Haringey Council’s Equal Opportunities Policy states: “Throughout its work, Haringey
Council is committed to reflecting the full diversity of the community it serves and to
promoting equality of opportunity for everyone. We accept that the council is not free
of unintended institutional discrimination. We will work to eradicate it. We aim to
ensure equal access to our services by all citizens on the basis of need and to provide
services in a manner that is sensitive to the individual whatever their background. We
will represent the needs of our diverse communities to other agencies and make equal
opportunities a key guiding principle in all of our work with our partners. We will ensure
that our workforce reflects the community it serves. We will take positive action to
realise our equality of opportunity policy. We are committed to eliminating
discrimination on the grounds of:

7

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



e age

Page 156

o disability

e colour, ethnic origin, nationality,
national origin or race

e gender

e HIV status

Staff: Equalities Profile

marital status

religious belief

responsibility for dependants
sexuality, or

unrelated criminal conviction.”

Haringey has a strong commitment to a diverse workforce that reflects the diversity of
the borough’s population.

No Area % Comment

01 Percentage of White Housing staff 50

02 Percentage of BME Housing Staff 46

03 Percentage of Male staff 64

04 Percentage of Female staff 36 | This compares to the overall
Council breakdown where 70%
of staff are women.

05 Percentage of part time Male staff 1

06 Percentage of part time Female 5

staff

07 Staff aged under 25 years 5

08 Staff aged over 50 28

09 27 of the 855 staff had a disability 3.3 | The Council wide figure is 2.1%

Key Partners:

Equal Opportunities Policies

There are over 40 Housing Associations operating in Haringey, varying in size both as
organisations and the number of homes they own in the Borough.

Amongst the associations are various BME associations specialising in providing
information and services as well as homes for particular communities.

Housing Associations already operate their own equal opportunities policies and
practices. We will look to reconcile the different policies and practices of housing
providers to reflect Haringey priorities and to establish good practice for diversity and
equality in housing within the Borough.

Homes for Haringey, an arms length management organisation (ALMO), was
established in April 2006 as the vehicle by which Haringey will deliver the Decent
Homes target.

The ALMO initially adopted the Council’s own equal opportunities policy. It operates a
regular Equalities Forum which is currently working on the development of a new
Equalities policy. One of the ALMO’s key business objectives is: “create a service
based on equality of opportunity for all which recognizes the diversity of the
community it serves” through an effective partnership with Haringey Council.

8

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 157

Setting Standards across all Tenures

The Housing service is setting standards across all tenures. This reflects the
commitment to the establishment of a strategic housing service that commissions a
range of providers, public and private to provide housing and housing services. We
require all such organisations to meet the highest equality standards and to value all
customers.

Preferred Partners Protocol.

This protocol covers the 5 housing associations who the Council has chosen as their
key partners for the development of future homes. They are expected to ensure the
highest standards on diversity and equalities in keeping with the importance given to
such matters by this Framework.

Private Sector Landlords

Private Landlords play an important role in helping to meet the housing needs of
residents. Private landlords are often drawn from the borough’s ethnic minority groups
and this Framework recognises the need to respond to their needs. That is one reason
why the Landlords Forum is important.

We will in order to ensure standards across all sectors including private landlords,
housing associations and Homes for Haringey:

Enforce high standards

Ensure compliance on Race Equality standards

Ensure compliance with the Disability Discrimination requirements
Ensure good practice on Aids and adaptations

Developing consistent high standards and compliance on diversity and equalities
across all landlords is an important area of work.

Legal Framework and Key Drivers

This Framework reflects a variety of drivers at national, regional and local level and
has taken into account the legislative framework (see Annexe A).

Priority setting and the development of actions in the Housing Strategy resulted from
5 key drivers:

e The Haringey context and the local housing market

e National, Regional and Sub-Regional priorities

e Local Strategic Context, including the Council’s corporate priorities as stated in the
Community Strategy

e The prioritisation of resources

e Issues of concern for stakeholders and feedback from consultation

The overall Housing Strategy identified four key objectives:

9

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 158

Improve housing services to residents across the tenures

Maximise the supply of affordable homes, increasing access and housing choice
Improve community safety, sustainability and cohesion in our most deprived
communities and create opportunities for people to achieve and succeed

4. Regenerate our neighbourhoods, achieving decent homes for all and improve the
environment

wp =

Other key strategies that influence and direct this strategy include:

Supporting People Strategy, 2005

Experience Counts — Older Persons Strategy 2005

Children & Young People strategy, 2006

Unitary Development Plan, adopted by the Council in July 2006
Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy

Homelessness Strategy, 2004 — 08

Private Sector Strategy.

Details of these are in Annexe B

Commitment to Consultation

We undertook consultation with key stakeholders within the Borough to identify the
key aims for this Framework and the key issues arising from inequality. A survey form
with an accompanying letter was sent to over 300 organisations and individuals
(including housing providers and community groups and who represented a wide
range of the Borough’s residents) asking what they considered were key issues in
relation to accessing decent affordable housing in the Borough. It was considered
important to enable stakeholders to set the agenda in relation to the key equalities
issues and how they affect residents in relation to their housing needs. We contacted
colleagues within other departments in the Council for their views and additional
information.

In addition to the survey work which achieved a high response rate, the Framework
was also considered in detailed discussions with a range of key partners including the
Housing Association Forum, the Equalities Forum, Older Person’s Forum. The range
of respondents to the survey included housing associations, both general needs and
specialist, Supporting People providers, Social Services, the Drug and Alcohol Action
Team (DAAT)

The results of feedback have been built into the Framework and details can be found
in Annexe C.

It is our practice to monitor all consultations and to record any particular issues raised
by specific equality groups.

10

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 159

Performance Monitoring

There are a range of indicators on which the Government measures the performance
of local authorities in promoting equal opportunities and combating discrimination and
harassment. These are audited each every year. These are considered in Chapter 4
and include Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) and the Diversity Key Line of
Enquiry ( KLOE) indicators.

In addition to Government indicators, Haringey Council has adopted a number of key
local equality indicators. Homes for Haringey is also adopting a number of
performance indicators and is working with the Council to achieve a good level of
performance.

Partnership Working

Strong partnership working is essential in order to meet our strategic housing priorities
and to effectively tackle the various challenges we are facing. The Haringey Strategic
Partnership (HSP) is an important co-ordinating forum led by the Council and involving
our major partners. There is a robust partnership structure for housing beneath the
HSP.

Equalities Forum

The Framework is a important document and we will; establish an equalities forum to

bring together partners to oversee the implementation of the framework. The forum
will allow other discussions on diversity and equalities to take place amongst partners.

11

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 160

Chapter 2 Valuing Diversity and Achieving
Equality

This chapter considers the cross cutting issues that impact upon all areas of our
diversity and equality work.

Whilst specific issues affect certain groups, the strategy sets out how we work across
the strands to ensure that diversity and equality challenges faced by the six equality
groups are met. This chapter sets out :

e Our excellent record
e How we will build upon that record.

Cross cutting Issues
1. Equality Impact Assessments

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) is a way of assessing the effects a key policy,
strategy or existing service function may have on people depending on their racial
group, disability, gender, age, belief or sexuality. The proposed Diversity and
Equalities Sounding Board will monitor the effectiveness of the EIA.

We have:

Developed ElAs for all new policy and service initiatives

Developed ElAs following consultation with our Corporate Equalities Team
Established Action Plans linked to each EIA to guide our work

Asked Scrutiny reviews of policy change to consider the EIA related to that
area.

Example of Good Practice : Equality Impact Assessments

The Housing Service produces EIAs for each new service proposal e.g. Home
Connections, or policy proposal e.g. Lettings Policy. An EIA accompanies this
Framework and future strategy reviews relating to Housing Policy and Homelessness
will publish ElAs before detailed work on the new strategies commences.

We will:

We will ensure that before any new policy is developed or service introduced a EIA is
established to guide the work.

12

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 161

Example of Good Practice: Somali Housing Needs

There are between 10,000 and 15,000 in Haringey with significant concentrations in
some of the poorer wards: Northumberland Park, White hart Lane, South Tottenham
and Bruce Grove.

Haringey Housing services and Homes for Haringey have been working with the
Somali community to:

Establish a detailed understanding of Somali housing needs in the Borough as part of
a wider study into Somali needs.

Proposals to meet the needs of the Somali community include:

Building larger family homes

More culturally specific sheltered housing units for Somali elderly persons

Support for homeless families to consider options out of the area and London
Employment of a Somali housing officer able to advise Somali families on the process

Source: Sahil Housing Association.

The ethos of our approach is that we will involve and consult.

We aim to increase transparency of our diversity and equality work and subject it to
Service User and Member scrutiny.

We will ensure that EIAs are shared with our partners to highlight the importance we
attach to them.

We aim to highlight the importance we attach to them.

Involving Service Users in developing and reviewing EIAs will help enhance support
for our diversity and equality work.

13

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 162

This Framework highlights the importance throughout of monitoring, reviewing and
evaluating the effectiveness and impact of our work.

2. Race Equality Scheme

Haringey achieved Level 3 of the CRE Race Equality Standard in 2001/02. It then
achieved the general Equality Standard Level 2 a year later. Our aim is to achieve
Levels 3 and 4 by the end of 2006/07.

We have:

Complied with corporate standards

Embraced requirements under Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2002
Introduced Equality Impact Assessments

Introduced monitoring

Introduced staff training on race equality issues.

We will:

Placing Service Users centre stage is crucial to making the Framework effective.

The emphasis throughout the Framework is upon ensuring account is taken, at all
times, of diversity and equality challenges.

Haringey has a talented and valued workforce. We aim to develop its quality further
through training on diversity and equality.

3. Disability Equality Standard

The Disability Discrimination Act has introduced a range of measures to promote
equality of opportunity between disabled people and other people.

Haringey has introduced the Equality Standard to reflect the Council’s commitment to
improving services and opportunities for disabled people.

4. Local Government Equality Standard

The Equality Standard for Local Government, against which councils are measured,
was developed to ensure that local authorities consider gender and disability as well
as race. Levels 3 and 4 require us to demonstrate positive outcomes across all
equality areas including age, sexual orientation, and religion / belief. These standards
provide a platform of aspiration and good practice that this strategy will help the
housing service to achieve.

14

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 163

We have:

Complied with corporate standards

Consulted with a wide range of equality groups
Taken account of the Disability Discrimination Act
Introduced Equality Impact Assessments
Introduced monitoring

We will:

Involving Service Users in monitoring, reviewing and evaluating services will improve
those services.

By mainstreaming our diversity and equality work we believe our policies future
services will be more effective.

Monitoring is highlighted consistently in this Diversity and Equality Framework as
central to achieving the desired outcomes and to making Haringey an excellent
Council.

4. Involvement

The Framework takes as a good practice starting point that the Customers of our
services should be involved in developing services and in decisions on how services
should change and on their effectiveness.

We have:

e Ensured that all major policy changes are the subject of wide consultation.

e Involved our key partners in developing new services e.g. Home Connections
and new housing supply.

e We have worked through focus groups to ensure BME views are taken account
of

e We have worked with partners to develop specialist new housing provision

Example of Good Practice: Councillors Surgeries

Councillors at Haringey have set an example of good practice. In order to respond to
the needs of Somali speaking residents who were attending regular specialist advice
surgeries the Council has paid for translators to be available.

15

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 164

Example of Good Practice: Lettings Policy
The Council’s new Lettings Policy included:
- Writing to all Residents on the Housing Register

- A conference bringing together BME voluntary sector groups
- Focus groups with specific BME communities e.g. Turkish speakers

We will:

Equality Forums are central to judging, with Service Users how well the Framework
and Action Plan is doing.

Constant feedback and dialogue with Customers through forums, surveys and a range
of tenant association and community bodies will help the service to be judged.

Regular surveys will allow a judgement on the effectiveness of the Framework and
services.

Specialist surveys and focus groups will allow consideration of the needs of equality
groups.

16

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 165

Example of Good Practice: Homes for Haringey Tenant Forums.
1. Homes for Haringey Tenant Forums
Specific User Groups:

* Disabled Peoples’ Group

* Turkish-speaking group

» Somali-speaking group

* French, Lingala & Portuguese group — currently moribund

Also outreach work via equality groups — LGBT, gender — using known groups and
forums. There is also a youth sounding board, a supported housing forum

As part of the residents consultative forum, there are a number of panels including an
Elderly and Special Needs Panel.

Hard to reach Project

The aim of the Hard to Reach project is to develop ways in which identified sections of
the wider community who are currently under represented could become more
involved in dialogue with Homes for Haringey. The groups the Outreach worker will be
working with:

Chinese

Turkish

Kurdish

Somali

French speaking African

Visually and hearing impaired.

LGBT — Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender
Bangladesh

5. Sustainable Communities

Haringey is committed to developing inclusive communities. This theme is a key
strategic objective and reflected in the objective of ‘narrowing the gap’.

We have:
e Developed our new homes work to build balanced communities with a mix of

tenure
e Revised our Lettings policy to meet the needs of larger overcrowded families.

17

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 166

Example of Good Practice: Hornsey Water Works Development

In July the Council adopted a new planning policy. This will be used to deliver 50%
affordable homes in each new development in the Borough. Phase 3 of the Hornsey
Works development will deliver over 150 new dwellings for rent and shared ownership.
These are larger homes and will address the needs of larger families drawn primarily
from BME communities. It will help reduce the number of larger households in
temporary accommodation or living in unsuitable overcrowded housing.

Our commitment to Sustainable communities is both about reducing the inequality
between the poor east of the borough and the better off west, but it is also about
reducing inequality between different sections of the community.

We will:

Developing an increased supply of larger properties is key to tackling overcrowding
and this will have benefits for overcrowded and homeless BME households.

Making the best use of Brownfield sites within the Borough and re-development
opportunities will be critical to increasing the supply of new homes.

The Council’'s new Lettings Policy aims to ensure that overcrowding is tackled as a top
priority.

New and existing homes must be accessible to ensure they allow full access for
disabled people and to meet changing household needs e.g. with age

6. Respect

The importance of valuing neighbours is a key cross cutting theme. This is reflected in
the need to create safer communities. The Government’s respect programme was
launched on 10 January 2006, it builds on the Governments drive to tackle anti-social
behaviour and its underlying causes, complementing the Home Office’s Together
campaign.

We have:

18

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 167

e A Executive Member with responsibility for tackling Anti Social Behaviour

e Played a full role in the Borough wide Crime and Disorder Reduction
Partnership (CDRP)

e Promoted action to tackle anti-social behaviour including establishing an Anti
Social Behaviour Team

e Developed a Drug and Alcohol service

e Require Homes for Haringey to enforce the Tenancy Agreement to deal with
anti social behaviour

e Operate a Noise Response Team

e Established a nationally acclaimed Domestic Violence service.

e Used Anti Social Behaviour Orders (ASBOs) and injections.

Example of Good Practice: Sensitivity in the use of ASBOs

Haringey makes effective use of ASBOs but applies for them in a measured way. In
every case of anti social behaviour reported a full investigation is carried out,
irrespective of the age, sex or race of the alleged perpetrator.

Only, if after a full investigation, there is evidence to support the allegations will we
take further action. We do not take further action if allegations cannot be
substantiated. We are fully aware that on some occasions allegations made are
malicious and may be racist, hence why we are thorough in our investigations. The
high standards we operate to are offered to all residents in the Borough, irrespective
of ethnic background. These have been recognised by the Courts. The Council have a
100% record on all legal applications.

e A nationally acclaimed Domestic violence and harassment service

Example of Good Practice: Domestic Violence case study — Hearthstone
Domestic Violence (DV) and Support centre

Hearthstone is a multi agency centre financed by Haringey council to support and
advise residents experiencing domestic violence. Many of their clients originate from
the east of the Borough. This is not necessarily linked to deprivation but rather the
availability of temporary accommodation when people are leaving situations where
they experience violence.

With the lack of available social housing, the insecurity of DV victims can be
compounded by the wait for transfer to other properties (where they are existing
council or RSL tenants); or time spent in temporary accommodation, as well as trying
to secure deposit for a private rental. The service felt that the operation of a rent
deposit scheme would help many DV victims move into safe accommodation whether
within Haringey or outside the Borough.

The Service would like to see increased awareness of the effects of DV amongst
housing staff with a uniformity in the way it is dealt with.

19

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 168

We will:

This is a nationally acclaimed service addressing domestic violence and harassment.
We will develop it and continue to meet the needs of Women and Men.

The Council will continue working closely with the Primary Care Trust (PCT) to
provide an out of hours service. The PCT has provided funding for this.

Tackling anti-social behaviour is an important priority. Such behaviour often impacts
disproportionately upon poorer BME communities.

Tackling anti-social behaviour involves creating opportunities as well as using
measures such as ASBOs. Creating leisure related options is a key element.

This is an important partnership working across agencies to tackle anti-social
behaviour.

We aim to help vulnerable people have access to good quality affordable housing and
help them sustain their homes. We will work with Supporting People and care support
agencies to achieve this,

Sure Start schemes support parents in challenging situation to develop skills, and find
work whilst participating in their communities. Sure Start will continue to have the
Council’s support and to ensure BME parents access and benefit from the schemes.

7. Customer Care

Central to the strategy is the commitment to valuing all residents. This requires
recognition of varied equality needs. Different people require different responses.
Future services are being tailored to both the needs of the individual customer but also
to the needs of the diverse communities that make up the Borough'’s population.

We have:

e Established a Vulnerable Adults Team to provide specialist support.
e A Specialist Older Peoples Service to ensure specialist support.
¢ Introduced a Customer focus in all housing service centres.

20

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 169

Introduced new standards for telephone answering
Introduced a new complaint system

Ensured access to translators and advocates

Advertised our services in a range of languages

Worked closely with a range of specialist advice agencies.

Example of Good Practice: Turkish Speaking Elders Project

This advice service helps older Turkish speakers to access a range of advice and
housing advice. It is aimed at people over 60 and meets the needs of many long
residents. Both the Housing Service and Homes for Haringey have a good record of
involving Turkish speakers in consultation activities. These involve the use of a skilled
translator and facilitator.

Example of Good Practice: Support for BME Advice Services

Haringey benefits from the presence of a wide range of BME advice agencies. These
provide a wide range of advice including help with housing and language problems.
They also provide a range of care and support services. Examples include the
Chinese Day Centre, Jewish Care, Somali Carers Trust, Turkish Cypriot Women’s
Project, Black and Ethnic Minority Carers Support Service.

Example of Good Practice: Choice Based Lettings

In introducing Choice Based Lettings, through Home Connections, we have created a
wide range of Customer contact points to ensure people on the Housing Register can
effectively bid. 60 staff in Libraries, 70 staff in Customer services as well as Housing
Officers at Haringey and at Homes for Haringey have been trained on the new service
including how to work with vulnerable people and how to respond to households with
language needs. Our telephone service offers 9 different community languages.
Documentation includes the option to obtain translations and audio information.

We will:

The Diversity and Equality Framework seeks to involve Service Users in all actions
because the Council recognises their valuable role in judging the outcome of the
services and helping to determine how policy and services can best be developed.

21

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 170

The challenges faced by the size equality groups will vary and change with time. The
Framework, underpinned by monitoring and evaluation will allow the Council’s
response to change over time as required.

Responding to diversity requires that services provided by the Council and its partners
are culturally sensitive and that where required information and services is available in
the full range of community languages.

9. Understanding — filling gaps in knowledge

In order to develop responsive services and have effective polices that address the
needs of the six equality groups we need to understand the challenges people and
communities face.

We have:

o Commissioned Housing Needs Surveys (2003, 2006)
o Commissioned an Older Persons Housing and Support Needs Analysis.(2005)
. Reviewed the impact of the 2001 Census Data

In order to understand the needs and the varied solutions that may be available to
meet the specific needs of the six equality groups we have adopted an evidence
based approach. We propose to link this to active research in order to understand the
way that people from the six equality groups experience issues.

Example of Good Practice: Older Persons Housing and Support Needs Analysis

The Older Persons Housing and Support Needs Analysis was commissioned by the
Council to obtain detailed information on the “current and future need for housing and
related support services for older people.”

This work helped provide valuable information on service gaps and has helped
Housing Services develop its policy and services for older people.

We will:

The Housing Service will base all its policy and service development on independently
commissioned evidence or performance data from.

We will commission a range of research to help ensure we meet the actions in the
Diversity and Equality Framework and wider challenges.

22

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 171

This is an important source of objective information to aid policy development and
meet the Council’s aims and objectives.

This is an important source of objective information to aid policy development and
meet the Council’s aims and objectives.

We will ensure that all policy and service development is based upon evidence.

Involving Service Users in all aspects of our words is crucial to the effective
implementation of the Framework and all our diversity and equality work.

Cross Tenure approach

The 2006 HNS survey reveals the following tenure breakdown of households:

Tenure Number of households % of total
Owner-occupation (no mortgage) | 16382 17.6
Owner-occupation (with mortgage) | 29252 31.5
Council 16761 18
Housing Association 10293 11.1
Private renting 20221 21.8
TOTAL 92909 100%

Housing Tenure by Ethnicity

Ethnic Group % Owners % %
Social Private
Rented
White British 62 20 18
Asian British 51 28 21
Black British 29 54 17
White Other 35 25 40
1. Social Housing

This Framework aims to ensure that social housing is accessible and appropriate to all
of the six equality groups. Just under than 30% of homes in the Borough are rented
from social landlords.

23

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 172

The Framework will address the need for safe communities and for new larger social
housing.

This tenure houses higher numbers of vulnerable people. This Framework will
highlight the importance of care and support to sustainable tenancies. Childcare
options will be a major factor linked with social housing.

2. Owner Occupation

Increasing access to owner occupation including shared ownership and low cost home
ownership is a consistent theme highlighting the importance placed upon choice. With
49.1% of households owner occupied the level of ownership is below the national
level.

Given that some owners are on low incomes, many from BME communities and many
are older people the borough faces a range of problems linked to difficulties
maintaining home ownership and maintaining homes to a high standard.

The strategy advocates measures to ensure home ownership is both sustainable in
terms of paying for it and maintained as the owners become older and improvements
or adaptations are required to maintain independence.

3. Private rented housing

The strategy recognises the important role that private renting can play. Nearly 22% of
households rent from the private sector. There is a need to obtain long term security
for tenants and to ensure properties are well maintained and adapted to ensure both
sustainability and independence.

A feature of the Borough is the large number of private landlords who are drawn from
BME communities. In particular many are drawn from the Cypriot community.

4. Homelessness

The six equality groups are disproportionately effected by homelessness. The
Framework responds to this challenge by promoting choices and alternatives to
homelessness by recognising the importance of care and support. Preventing
homelessness is a central feature of the strategy

5. Meeting Housing Need

The challenges facing the six equality groups are many and substantial. The

importance of understanding the scale of housing need is vital. This will allow long
term planning to meet the needs of these households.

24

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 173

6. Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)

HMOs raise particular diversity and equality concerns for the Housing Service. At one
level they provide much needed accommodation often for young people and
vulnerable people. At another level the conditions are often poor with low
management, maintenance and security of tenure. The need to address issues arising
from HMOs is highlighted in this Framework.

25

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 174

Chapter 3 The Six Equality Areas

Chapter 2 looked at the key cross cutting stands that impact upon the six equality
areas. This chapter considers the specific areas. These are:

o Age e Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and
e Disability Transgender
e Gender e Religion/Belief
e Ethnicity
Age

This Framework considers age in terms of:

e Older people. (Over 50)
e Younger people. (Under 24)

Older Peoples’ Context

Less than a quarter of the population are over 50 (22.3%):".

AGE Population % of population
0-15 44,605 20.6
16-24 28,728 13.3
25-49 94,883 43.8
50-59 19,299 8.9
60-64 7,817 3.6
65-74 11,973 5.5
75 & over | (9,202 4.3

The key features of the older peoples’ population raises policy and service
challenges for the Council. The key features are:

e 75% of older peoples’ households contain just one person. These households
alone account for 30% of all single households in the Borough.

e Over 50% of all older person households own their homes (with the vast majority
having paid the mortgage). The level of owner occupation varies across the
Borough with lower levels in the east.

e Around 20% of homes in the Borough, 19,376 are deemed unsuitable, of these 3,
855 or 4% are in major disrepair or unfit.

e Almost 40% live in social housing — making up 20% of all lettings in that sector —
this may have implications for the future supply of specialised housing.

" Housing Need Survey 2006
26

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 175

Over 33% of older person households live in one bed dwellings — which is greater
than the proportion for non older households.

In contrast, 38% live in dwellings of 3 beds or more — and given the earlier
comments about the size of old person households, this implies a significant
amount of under occupation.

Most under occupation is found in the owner occupied sector — where over half of
older person households occupy homes of 3 or more beds.

In the social rented sector, one in fives homes are under occupied to the same
extent.

17% older person households expect or need to move within the next five years.
20% would like to move into some form of supported or sheltered housing,
although few expect it.

The vast majority would like to move into ordinary residential accommodation.
The average income of pensioners is lower than that for other adults. The
average income for a single pensioner was est. at £12,619, whilst that for 2 or
more pensioner households was just under £23K.

The average equity for owner occupiers who have paid the mortgage is over
£350K.

50% of older persons households have support needs,

An additional 33% of mixed age households that contain elderly persons also
have support needs.

In 2005 the Council carried out an Older Persons Housing and Support Needs
Analysis . This highlighted a range of issues that needed action including:

The need for extended partnership working

Supporting People money needs to focused on people without support
More flexibility needed in service delivery

A radical rethink is needed on supported housing and floating support
Referral routes for people with complex needs are not well developed
More care and support is needed at the upper age range of older people
Floating support needs to be increased

Extra care provision required.

Needs of BME older people need addressing

Needs of older owners needs consideration

Key issues for Older People.

In 2005, Haringey commissioned an Older Persons Strategy ‘Experience Counts.’
“to tackle discrimination and promote positive attitudes towards ageing”. Its housing
related goal for older people was:

Having a safe, comfortable and well maintained homes: to ensure that older
people have a safe, comfortable and well maintained home (and garden) which
meets their needs

Other additional goals in the Strategy which linked to housing included:

27

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 176

1. Living with support - to enable older people to live independently with support for
as long as possible in their own homes.
2. Feeling safer: to create safer communities

Nationally, the National Framework for Older People (2003) set out 4 key areas of
concern that inform this Diversity and Equality Strategy:

Rooting out age discrimination

Person centred care

Promoting older peoples health and independence
Fitting services around peoples needs.

The challenge addressed in this Framework is to consider the housing and related
needs of older people including the importance of good health, social care and safe
neighbourhoods for a high quality of living.

There are 5 major housing areas faced by older people:

1. Accessing appropriate housing:

Consultation pointed to :

. a lack of specialist and sheltered housing

o a desire to for quicker access to council and social housing flats.

o aspirations for extra space to live in, with the possibility of extra rooms.
2. Maintaining homes and independence

There is a need for :

e Staff coming into peoples homes to be vetted and trusted

e Help to pay for repairs for many people

e Help for family and friends who have to provide support for elderly members in
their own homes on a short term basis perhaps due to iliness.

3. Safe Neighbourhoods
Older people have concerns about:

Home security

Unlit streets and areas

The need for safe well maintained pavements.
Anti social behaviour

4. Accessing information
Older people want:

e Clear information about the full range of housing services
28

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 177
¢ Communication difficulties addressed e.g. language challenges.
e Advice, across tenures about care and support services.
5. Promoting good health, care and support.

There is a strong link between good housing, health, care and support with
residents:

e Receiving appropriate care in their homes to maintain independence
e Being supported to maintain their tenancies or mortgages when vulnerable
e Support for vulnerable people discharged from hospital.

Example of Good Practice: Cypriot Elderly Community

There was praise for Supporting People programme has been invaluable in assisting
vulnerable elderly as well as young adults with physical disabilities. Programme has
also enabled home visits to be made by the Cypriot centre staff as part as an
outreach service. The Supporting People programme also enables the Cypriot centre
to provide intense linguistic advisory and access service for housing and social
services needs. The programme also fund Cypriot meals on wheels, help for people
with diabetes, lunch club and day centres

Future actions are likely to include providing information and access points within
the community e.g. in community centres. Regular outreach information session at
the main day and community centres

Example of Good Practice: House Proud

House Proud is partnership arrangement that the Council has to improve the
maintenance of owner occupied homes.

It aims to help low income, elderly and disabled and BME people to improve, adapt
or update their homes or to carry out major repair or improvement work.

29

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 178

Example of Good Practice: Supporting People Strategy.

The Council has adopted a five year Supporting people strategy, covering the period
2005-2010. It promotes the following key themes:

- Improve services: providing better quality, accessible services
for everyone who needs them, particularly health and social care
- Narrowing the Gap: improving the most deprived
neighbourhoods
- Safer Communities: creating safe and confident communities
with less fear of crime and the ability to prevent crime and resist committing crimes

The strategy was agreed following:

- Wide consultation with over 160 organisations, all partnership
boards, statutory agencies and with service users via focus groups.

- Consultation with the voluntary sector and all Supporting
people providers.

The strategy places a strong emphasis on tackling the borough’s
problems in the following areas:

- Tackling the high levels of mental ill health and reducing mental health hospital and
residential care admissions

- Tackling the large numbers of homeless households in temporary accommodation
- Reducing the numbers of new homeless
- Supporting new immigrant populations

- Tackling crime including supporting survivors and victims and supporting the
rehabilitation of offenders and people recovering from substance misuse

The strategy’s preferred support model is generic floating support, which supports
vulnerable households living in their own home and covers Council and Housing
Association tenants, private tenants, owner occupiers and households with no fixed
abode.

30

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 179

Example of Good Practice: Scrutiny Review of Adaptations

The council’s Social Services and Health Scrutiny Panel’'s Review of Adaptations
was completed in spring 2005. It's mandate was "To review the current arrangements
by the Council and its partners to provide adaptations for all disabled people and
their carers within the Borough and, in particular, consider issues relating to meeting
of local needs, value for money and funding levels and to make recommendations on
possible improvements to the service to Overview and Scrutiny Committee”

Amongst its key recommendations was to:

Establish a Disabled Housing Register — Haringey has a policy to leave adaptations
in place following a property becoming empty. Its success would require the
involvement of as many landlords as possible in order to ensure that there are
sufficient numbers of properties to make it viable.

Despite the potential conflict with a choice abased lettings scheme, overall the use of
adapted properties should be maximised. Where properties become available, efforts
should be made to match the property to a disabled person seeking an adapted

property.

In order to meet the demand for adapted properties, it was recommend the Housing
service explore ways — legal and operational - of seeking possession of properties
where the person for whom the adaptations were intended is no longer living there eg
through death, even where the tenancy has succeeded.

Recognising the processing of Disability Facilities Grant (DFG) was slow and time
consuming, and with limited funds, it was recommended the Council enter into
negotiations with relevant housing associations on the possibility of reaching a broad
agreement with them on providing match funding for any applications for DFG
funding from their tenants. This followed concern RSL tenants were missing out on
DFGs when the council felt housing associations should contribute towards the costs.

Our Approach

This Framework reflecting our cross cutting priorities seeks to value older people and
to engage them in decisions both about their home and their neighbourhood.

Our strategic approach is to:

Increase choice in housing and provide support

Develop independence by working with health and social care agencies
Ensure homes are accessible through adaptation

Ensure homes are properly maintained across all tenures

Ensure the needs of older people are considered in neighbourhood renewal
Develop forums to involve and listen to older people.

31

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 180

e Improve access to information

e Work with the police and community safety partners to improve older peoples
safety and reduce the fear of crime.

e Work with Environment services to improve lighting and the quality of roads
and pavements in the vicinity of older peoples housing

e Develop a range of supported housing choices

e Address fuel poverty and increase benefit take up

We will:

Supporting People funds will be used to help support older people reside in their
homes.

The achievement of higher standards in both Council and private housing will benefit
older people. This is especially true of Council housing where many tenants are older
people.

The Housing Service is developing new ways to help older owners maintain their
homes.

[}
Ensuring that older people can heat their homes or benefit from insulation
improvement schemes is important. We have a dedicated resource working to
achieve this.

[}
We will use evidence to develop services to benefit older people across tenures.

The future of sheltered housing is one that we are reviewing. It has an important but
changing role in meeting the needs of older people.

e Links to other organisations.

The Housing Service will work with a wide range of support, care and specialist
agencies to improve the quality of housing and life for older people.

32

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 181

Older home owners face major problems maintaining their homes. We are
developing services to help them maintain their homes and remain independent as
long as possible.

A new scheme to encourage people to move to more appropriate housing is being
developed building upon existing incentives.

The Housing Service proposes to maximise funding for these grants and to ensure
they are available across all tenures.

Maximising older peoples independence is important. Well designed homes that can
be adapted over time are a part of promoting such independence.

Young Peoples Context

Haringey has a high population of people aged under 25. At 34% this raises a range
of policy challenges.

This challenge has become more important since the law changed in 2002 and the
Council must address the needs of young people aged 16-17 who are homeless.

Many young Haringey residents face severe housing problems:

e Between 2003-2004 122 16-17 year olds were accepted as priority homeless.
78 (64%) of these young people were female and about 90% were from ethnic
minorities.

e The principal ethnic minorities were Black African and Black Caribbean with
just under 25% of the total coming from each of these groups.

e Forty two teenage parents were accepted as priority homeless between
August 2003 and August 2004 In addition, during the same period, 17
applications were made and refused.

¢ In the three years to March 2006, 689 single persons under the age of 25
were accepted as homeless, of which 66% were female. Like the younger age

group, the principal ethnic categories were Black African and Black Caribbean
making up 40% of those accepted as homeless.

33

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 182

Key Issues Facing Young People

Young people in Haringey face a range of problems:

Poor housing, often living in overcrowded homes
Homelessness

Substance misuse, drug and alcohol related problems
Poor health arising from quality of housing

Educational opportunity effected by poor housing

Long term unemployment has an impact on housing choice

Any combination of these factors can mean that opportunities to secure and retain
decent housing are reduced. The following key issues also impact upon young
people:

With the average price of a one bed home at £156,000, a typical income
required to buy would be in excess of £40,000. This presents great difficulty
for many young people, whose income levels are far less than this, even
obtaining shared ownership.

Evidence suggests that despite high prices in the rental sector, young people
have little choice but to rent privately. They are unlikely to gain access to
Social housing.

Housing Benefit is available for young people who are either in receipt of
benefits or on a low income to assist with the payment of rent. However if the
young person is single, under the age of 25 years and renting in the private
sector, they are only entitled to housing benefit that pays for a single room in a
shared house.

Many young people earn too much to qualify for housing benefit but are
struggling to pay rent in the private sector.

Our Approach

This Framework reflecting our cross cutting priorities seeks to value young people
and to engage them in decisions both about their home and their neighbourhood.

Our strategic approach is to:

Help young people avoid homelessness

Help young people stay at home, where appropriate

Engage with young people at housing forums

Offer supported housing options where appropriate and required
Ensure that 16 and 17 year olds receive support and opportunities for
permanent homes at age 18.

Ensure that young people leaving care are supported.

34

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 183

We will

We will place a higher emphasis upon mediation, by developing the role of the
Connections staff working in the Vulnerable Adults Team. This will allow work in
schools and with families to prevent homelessness.

Specific housing information and advice for young people is available so that their
needs can be addressed.

The Council has a programme of partnership arrangements working with specialist
housing providers to develop homes aimed at vulnerable and BME groups.

Disability
Disability Context

Haringey faces a major challenge if it is to meet the housing needs of disabled
people

The 2006 draft Housing Needs Survey identified that over 18,000 households in
Haringey with one or more members in an identified support needs group (as
covered by the Supporting People).

This represents 19.5% of all households — this is slightly higher than that found
elsewhere in London.

It is sub divided as follows:

e The highest category of support is “physically disabled” — representing over
60% (11,000 households) of all support needs (and 12% of all Haringey
households).

e Frail elderly account for 25% of support needs (over 4000 households)

e Another 20% contain someone with mental health problems.

e 75% of those in need of support have just a single support need.

The housing features of the disabled population include:
e 50% of support needs households are one person households.

35

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 184

25% live in two person households.

Over 90% of households with a members requiring support live in general
residential accommodation — the rest living in sheltered accommodation.

50% of all support needs households will reside in social rented dwellings,
whilst almost 25% will be living in their own homes — reflecting the age factor
in support needs.

Over 33% of households in social rented sector have a support need, and this
applies to over 25% of those who own their homes.

The most sought after improvements to households are for aids and
adaptations including, level access shower units, extra handrails, and
emergency alarms.

25% of all households with support needs said they had a problem with
maintaining their home.

A further measure of the Disability challenge facing Haringey is the take up of
benefits:

Attendance Allowance (AA) is a benefit for people over the age of 65 who are
so severely (physically or mentally) disabled, that they need a great deal of
help with personal care or supervision. At August 2004, over 2800 people
were in receipt of Attendance allowance — representing 14% of residents over
65.

Disability Living Allowance (DLA) is a benefit for people who become disabled
before the age of 65. In November 2005 there were over 9200 claimants,
nearly 85% of whom have been claiming for over 2 years, and 60% for over 5
years.

Mental health is a very major issue in Haringey. Mental Health Admissions
are much higher than in London and surrounding boroughs.

However admissions account for a fraction of those that actually suffer with
mental illness and it is estimated that around 25% of adults have a mental
health problem such as anxiety or depression at any one time.

Key Issues for Disabled People

Nearly 20% of Haringey households are effected by disability. Addressing their
needs of people with a disability is a major challenge. Disability is varied and often
has to be addressed alongside other challenges such as ill health, unemployment,
poverty and low income.

36

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 185

Disabled people face huge obstacles in locating and obtaining suitable housing. The
problems include:

Shortage of accessible accommodation - the lack of suitable properties
applies across all levels of accessibility up to full wheelchair standard.

Delays and long waiting times for adaptations, shortage of funds for home
improvements and lack of awareness among architects and developers;
Problems with re-housing, delays in assessment, lack of flexibility and choice.
There is also too little information about possible options including shared
ownership, other low cost home ownership

Lack of scope to move from one local authority area to another, especially if
reliant on social housing.

Vulnerable people with mental health challenges often face

homelessness. The Council has a close working relationship with St Anne’s
Hospital and other local hospitals. This allows referral from the Hospitals to the
Council to ensure housing options are available on hospital discharge and that
support packages can be put in place.

Our Approach

This Framework reflecting our cross cutting priorities seeks to value disabled people
and engage them in decisions both about their home and their neighbourhood.

Example of Good Practice

St. Lucy’s Lodge

We work with St Lucy Lodge, a specialist supported housing provider to provide a
personalised group homes and shared accommodation for people with mental health
support needs following discharge from St Anne’s Hospital. This is funded through
Supporting People funds and ensures that the individuals have person support.

Our strategic approach is to:

Promote independence
Offer choice through Choice Based lettings with support to participate
Help Disabled people stay in their own homes
Ensure care and support, where required, is available
Help people maintain their homes
Provide opportunities for disabled people to be heard and listened too.
Ensure that estates and neighbourhoods are accessible
Ensure that work and education options are available
To liaise with health agencies to avoid Mental health relapse
To offer a progression of housing options from care to maximum
independence.
Ensure that high heating costs and fuel poverty are addressed.
37

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 186

We have:

e Established a Vulnerable Adults Tea,

Worked closely with the health service e.g. St Anne’s and the Whittington
Hospitals.

Worked closely with specialist Mental Health providers

Worked with specialist Learning Disability providers

Organisations that support and advise older people

Developed a range of Supporting People services

Commissioned research to judge specific needs

Worked with Social Services

Worked with the Private Sector Housing Team.

We will

A review of adaptations, with Homes for Haringey is in process. The provision of a
high quality adaptations service is portent to promoting independence. We will
integrate Disability Facilities Grant with Housing Revenue Account funded
adaptations.

How disabled people are supported to remain independent and to retain their homes
requires a wide range of support to be available.

Managing the discharge of people with Mental; Health challenges raises issues of
long term stable housing and support. This is a good support service provided
through Housing Services.

[
Our acclaimed VAT team supports vulnerable people both in applying for housing

and with support over the longer term. We will develop this service to meet needs of
disabled and other vulnerable people.

Housing Services works closely with the Health Service and will continue to develop
a range of partnership arrangements.

38

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 187

Example of Good Practice

Haringey Association for Independent Living

Haringey Association for Independent Living work with over 100 service users with a
learning disability. They provide support to people living in social housing or private
rented housing.

Gender

There are a wide range of gender related challenges facing the Council. This section
of the strategy has a focus upon 4 areas within the gender equality group:

Lone parents
Women coming out of Prison
Older Women
BME Women

Context

The housing needs of women are addressed in this Framework. However this
equality group is not homogenous in terms of need and provision.

Nearly 50% of households in Haringey were headed by a females according to the
2001 Census.

Lone parent households made up 14% of all households in the last Census. Of those
with dependent children, 94% were headed by a female parent.

Women in the Borough:

Head 40% of households in the private sector.
Head over 50% of all households in the social rented sector.

Over a three year period from March 2003 to March 2006, of all single
households accepted as homeless two thirds of applicants were women — 440
out of 689.

Of all single applicants on the housing register at March 2006, just over half
were female.

The 2006 Housing Needs Survey highlighted that the highest level of
unsuitable housing is to be found amongst lone parent households — with an
average of 44% against the general average of unsuitability at 21%."

! Haringey Housing Needs Survey 2006

39

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 188

The highest rate of overcrowding is to be found amongst one parent
households at approx 30%.

Key Issues

Lone Parents

Family breakdown is a major factor contributing to homelessness. The lower
income levels of women compared to men may mean that women are not
always able to sustain their tenancy or keep up with payments on their
mortgage. This may particularly be the case for women following the
breakdown of a relationship or the death of their spouse.

30% of lone parent families have experienced homelessness in the past ten
years compared to only 3% of couples with dependent children.

Most young lone parents live with either parents or in social rented
accommodation. The high level of social renting remains high the older lone
parent women get, and the level of owner occupation grows steadily
particularly amongst those with partners.

Affordability is a major issue for lone mothers who are often living on low
incomes and are more likely than other parents to be dependent on benefit.
This can restrict the kind of housing they can afford.

Lone parents are often housed in poor quality homes without access to
gardens.

There are however disincentives to applying for a transfer to larger
accommodation. In particular the rent levels for larger socially rented
properties can often exclude lone parents further by increasing their
dependence on HB

Women coming out of Prison

The rising number of women in prison has meant that the problems faced on
release are becoming more widespread. Homelessness on release from
prison is now the reality for a significant proportion of offenders. 20% do not
have accommodation on release and less than 50% of women prisoners
return to the address they had prior to imprisonment.

As the majority of women serve short sentences, they are less likely to receive
support from the probation service which makes finding housing and sorting
out benefits prior to release a much more difficult process. Housing Benefit is
another issue that adversely affects women in prison.

Older women

40

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 189

In many respects some of the key issues affecting older women and housing
are similar to those considered in the age section; particularly around design
and safety issues. Housing need may be compounded due to financial
circumstances with the ability to purchase or maintain accommodation..

Older women have often been dependent upon their partner providing the
majority of household income. If that person has passed away it can create
problems of low income or debt.

There are differences amongst the various communities with BME elderly
women preferring to live with family and close to places of worship.

Older women'’s housing requirements will vary over time with some continuing
to live in their current home with little assistance while others may need a
responsive flexible support package to maintain this option. For others,
moving to another home or to live with family or friends may offer a solution.
Those needing more support or care may be best suited to living in a scheme
specifically designed for older people.

BME Women

For BME women accessing housing is often identified as an issue due to a variety of
factors including:

not having English as their first language — this can lead to many being
unaware of their housing rights and what could be done to fulfil their needs.
the requirement for larger properties for large or extended families

lack of affordability — on average, ethnic minority women have lower incomes
than their white female counterparts and as such are less likely to be able to
afford to rent in the private rented sector or enter owner occupation.

A lack of affordable housing for key workers is a particular issue for minority
ethnic women, given their overrepresentation among those working in many
public services.

Harassment is a major issue for BME women. British Crime Survey data in the
past has reported that about four in ten Asian women and one third of black
women nationally are very worried about racist attacks. Recent events,
particularly affecting the Muslim communities means this is an area we may
need to consider in developing and maintaining community cohesion in the
Borough.

There are differences amongst the various communities with BME elderly women
preferring to live with family and close to places of worship.

Our Approach

This Framework reflecting our cross cutting priorities seeks to value women and
engage them in decisions both about their home and their neighbourhood.

Our strategic approach is to:

41

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 190

e Develop strong family support

e Challenge harassment and Domestic Violence

Engage with the Women'’s forum on housing issues so that their views are
heard

Address the need for childcare

Develop specialist housing

Ensure women leaving prison obtain stable housing and support

Address language challenges faced by BME women

Seek to increase the number of large sized homes available.

Widen housing choice.

We will

Promoting community cohesion including support for parents is important for the
securing of stable housing in sustainable safe communities.

Ensuring stable accommodation for women leaving prison is important in preventing
homelessness and important for the well-being of children.

Ensuring that women from a range of communities can access services means we
will provide translations and translation services.

42

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 191

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT)

Context

Information about housing issues concerning LGBT people within Haringey is difficult
to obtain as little is collected through housing information monitoring or through
surveys. Our recent Housing Needs Survey did not include sexuality as an area for
analysis.

National research would suggest that between 5 and 10% of the Haringey would
consider themselves be of LGBT. This community is as diverse as any other and
discrimination faced by many can be compounded if they tend to be from an ethnic
minority background. There will also be generational differences in the housing
issues faced by younger and older LGBT people.

Recent legislation will help to reduce direct discrimination on the grounds of
sexuality. The Civil Partnerships Act will have a positive impact and the Housing
Service in Haringey has already recognised tenancy succession rights for Gay,
Lesbian and Bi-sexual partners. It also tackles harassment and hate crimes through
the work of the Anti-Social Behaviour Team.

Key issues

LGBT people tend to be low on the scale for housing priorities, unless they have
dependents — a situation particularly acute for younger people. A key aspiration
amongst those who contact LGBT advisory groups are for affordable secure housing
that would be in a good location — one that is not riven by harassment, and has good
access to services and public transport.

For this strategy we did consult with ‘Wisethoughts’ (a local arts based group) and
Stonewall HA. The key housing issues are:

Community Safety

¢ Nuisance neighbours - there should be an assessment of the wider environment
people are placed in — whether in permanent housing, or temporary - and of
needs for when a couple in a relationship want to be housed together. This can
be an issue for elderly LGBT couples who need to move into care homes.

e Harassment - can lead to further problems including homelessness, isolation and
ostracism within communities as victims have to reveal their sexuality in order to
report attacks.

¢ Domestic violence / relationship breakdown. This can affect young people who
suffer violence as a consequence of their sexuality from family members, and
same sex partners already in relationships.

¢ Double discrimination — the problems can be compounded if people are also
disabled and/or from a BME group.

43

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 192

Access to safe and affordable housing and information / advice

safe places to stay - There are few emergency options available to men who
suffer domestic violence or homelessness. Aside from one safe house in
Haringey there is no other dedicated accommodation for LGBT communities.

It would be very helpful to have easily accessible information and advice available
within venues that already provide dedicated access to information for LGBT
people

LGBT friendly accommodation. People require accommodation that is self
contained rather than shared, and where the landlord is not likely to discriminate.

Awareness of LGBT issues

The life experiences of older men and women will differ. Older LGBT people often
face greater social isolation due to direct and particular indirect discrimination,
exacerbated by their invisibility that follows a long culture of concealing their
sexuality.

Consider needs of accommodating same sex partners into specialised housing
e.g. care homes, sheltered housing provision

Sheltered or supported housing services tend to ignore needs of older generation

A higher level of young LGBT people experience homelessness as a
consequence of eviction from home due to their sexuality.

Responsive services

Front line housing staff may not be aware of issues faced by LGBT people and
need to be trained to be sensitive

There is no mediation services for younger LGBT people and their parents
Provision for confidentiality and privacy in dealing with housing applications, and
with housing management issues

Greater consultation with the LGBT community and organisations working with or
representing them.

Needs to be effective monitoring of sexuality as well as other equality measures
Ensure legislative changes are fully implemented esp. impact of Civil Partnership
Act 2004

Our Approach

This Framework reflecting our cross cutting priorities seeks to value Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Transgender people and engage them in decisions both about their
home and their neighbourhood.

Our strategic approach is to:

Ensure there is effective support for people facing harassment in their housing as
a result of their sexuality and gender identity, and action taken against
perpetrators

44

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 193

Working with other agencies in dealing effectively with domestic violence and
relationship breakdown issues

Develop information and advice on housing opportunities for LGBT people
Increase knowledge and recognition of LGBT housing needs

Working with prevention & options to reduce homelessness amongst young LGBT
people

Review provision for same sex partners in specialist housing

Ensure sexuality and gender identity is incorporated into equalities training for
Haringey staff

Increase awareness of sexuality and gender identity housing needs amongst all
housing providers

Improve customer service experience for LGBT housing applicants

We will

We are committed to ensuring the LGBT households are able to access appropriate
advice to meet their needs.

We will work with housing providers to make specialist accommodation available ir
required, to help provide security and promote independence and specialist care
needs

The Housing Services commitment to valuing diversity and equality as set out in this
Framework means that we will help ensure people are free from harassment and
have fair access to housing regarding of their sexuality.

45

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Religion and Belief

Context

Page 194

Faith is an emerging public policy area. It has grown due to the importance of
renew neighbourhoods,

engaging with faith communities

in programmes to

regenerate communities and enhance social cohesion.

The table below from Census 2001 shows the levels of faith by the ethnicity of the

household.

Ethnicity

Christian

Buddhist

Hindu

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

Any
other
religion

No
religion

Religion
not stated

All 50.7% 11% | 2.1% 2.7% 11.3% | 0.3% 0.5% 20% 12.1%
residents

White 65.4% 26.0% | 2.0% | 94.7% 50.3% | 4.0% 63.7% 82.6% 62.6%
Mixed 3.9% 26% | 2.2% 1.9% 6.2% | 1.1% 6.1% 5.2% 5.6%
Asian / 1.3% 8.1% | 91.9% 0.9% 23.8% | 91.0% 14.3% 1.3% 6.2%
British

asian

Black / 27.7% 29% | 1.7% 0.8% 16.4% | 0.4% 13.9% 6.8% 22.9%
Black

British

Other 1.6% 60.4% | 2.1% 1.7% 3.3% | 3.5% 2.0% 4.1% 2.7%

e The 2001 Census included a voluntary question about the religious identify of
individuals.

¢ |n Haringey over 30% stated either no religion or ignored the question.

e Of those who answered just over 50% of individuals classified themselves as
Christian — a figure reflected in a similar proportion of households.

e The next largest religions denomination were Muslims with over 24% of all
residents (11.3% of households)

e In many cases there are close links between ethnicity and faith esp. amongst
south Asian households.

e In Haringey half of all Muslim households are in fact white residents — reflecting
the residency of people from Turkish backgrounds.

e Jewish households are the most likely to own their own homes (77%), followed by
Hindus (62%) and Sikhs (57%).

e Muslims households are the least likely to own their own homes (28%), and the
most likely to be renting socially (45%), with Jewish households the least likely,
with less than one in ten households

e There is a higher level of overcrowding amongst Muslim households than other
groups.

Issues
Ethnic categories alone do not provide a comprehensive picture of faith communities

and tend to be too broad to pick up particular communities where faith is an important
factor in personal and community identity.

46

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 195

There is an overlap between ethnicity and faith and this in the past has tended to
refer in particular to south Asian communities. This does not apply so easily in
Haringey where the largest numbers of Muslims tend to be of Turkish or Somali
background (shown up as white and black within the census categories.)

The overlap means there are issues covering overcrowding, access to housing and
housing services and these were partly covered in the ethnicity chapter. Other issues
around faith and housing have been around:

Knowledge of particular communities

e Perception of a lack of knowledge of community needs e.g. Orthodox Jewish and
Somalis
e Housing services staff do not reflect the population at large in the Borough

Design and layout of housing

e need to accommodate both large households and extended families — common
amongst south Asian Muslim families — not enough large homes

e location is often more important than design with the need to live in proximity to
extended families and wider social networks

e generous space for the storage and preparation of food, space for the installation
of shrines and religious observances; the provision of toilets and washing facilities
for ritual washing

e room design that enables large religious gatherings to take place — whether
connecting doors or rooms

e ease of access to religious and cultural facilities,

e the safety and security of residing in areas of community concentration rather
than isolation.

Accessing housing information and affordable housing options

e Lack of knowledge on how to access social housing schemes is due in part to
lack of knowledge about community needs

e Maintaining larger homes in the private sector is expensive

¢ Need information on how to acquire or apply for social housing including housing
associations and low cost housing schemes — these are similar to concerns
amongst ethnic minority groups

The changing generational aspirations
e some communities like to remain close proximity to local facilities and services
e.g. orthodox Jewish

e younger members of communities may not always want to remain in same area
e younger generations may want to live in different forms of housing

47

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 196

Our Approach

This Framework reflecting our cross cutting priorities seeks to value people
regardless of their religion or beliefs and to engage them in decisions both about their
home and their neighbourhood.

Our strategic approach is to:

¢ Increase knowledge of particular religious communities and their housing needs
within Haringey, and of different generations

e Develop culturally sensitive housing services

e Ensure faith awareness is incorporated into equalities training for Haringey staff

e Work with RSL partners including BME specialist providers on building larger
homes in response to demand from local communities

e Work with RSL partners including BME specialist providers to develop guidelines
for building culturally appropriate forms of housing

¢ Review adaptations policies to consider how they meet cultural needs

e Work with organisations to increase awareness of affordable housing
opportunities and how to access housing generally

Example of Good Practice
Orthodox Jewish

There are around 3000 people living residing in approx 450 family units in the South
Tottenham area. These are made up of largely young families. There has been an
increase in the population in recent years causing a shortage of appropriate sized
housing in the area. The community is a close knit community residing in an area
with access to local facilities and services including Kosher shops. This makes it
difficult for members of the community to move away from these areas. Those with
long term secure housing often reside in the private rented sector which are
expensive (due to the size of dwellings) and poorly maintained. Many of the families
live in poor economic conditions.

We will

We propose to build upon our first rate record of developing specialist housing for
people with religious or belief based commitments.

48

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 197

As with other equality groups we will provide support to tackle discrimination in any
form.

We will be introducing the monitoring of rehousing by religion as part of the
development of effective and comprehensive monitoring of housing lettings under the
new Home Connections Choice Based Lettings Service.

Example of Good Practice: Hornsey Housing Trust

Hornsey Housing Trust in north London has developed a 27 bed multi-cultural
residential scheme for older people which caters for each ethnic groups’ dietary
needs and celebrates their different faiths. The scheme has a prayer room with
corners set aside for different faiths.

49

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 198

Ethnic Minority Housing Needs
Context

Haringey has evolved into one of the country’s most ethnically and culturally diverse
districts, especially in Tottenham and Wood Green, as the map below highlights.

censLs

2001

Bounds Green MNorthumberland Park

i White Hart Lane 68.6%
G Woodside 56.4%

51.9%

MNoel Park Tottenham Hale,

55.6% West Green  Bruce Grove
61.5% 63.7%

Tottenham Green
65.5%
St Ann's
58.5%

Seven Sisters
57.7%

Percentage BME

B 55510686 (3)
B 49 tE55 @B
B 37 t0488 (3
O 25tk @)

Haringey: 48.3%
Residents from Black and Ethnic Minorities in Haringey Londain: 36.1%

@ Crown Copyright ONS 2001 Census

e When we include ‘other white’ born in Eastern Europe and the Middle East, White
Irish and ‘other white’ born in the UK and Ireland in our definition of black and
ethnic minorities then 49% of Haringey’s population is from black and ethnic
minority communities.

e A third of people classified in the 'other white' category were born in Eastern
Europe (including Turkey). This is the largest proportion of "other white" born
outside of the UK. Western Europe (20%) and the Middle East (14%) were the
other larger groups. The ONS definition of the Middle East includes Cyprus.

e In 2003 over 160 languages were reported to be spoken in homes in Haringey.

It is estimated that over 80 per cent of pupils in Haringey schools are from BME
communities and about half of all pupils in Haringey schools speak English as a
second language.

Diversity inevitably gives rise to different needs, and the diverse nature of the
borough means that needs and aspirations differ from and within communities. This
challenges the Council to look for ways to improve how it reaches local people and
how it provides services that are appropriate and meet the needs of the different

50

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 199

communities. This rich diversity also challenges the Council to foster good relations
between people and build a borough where every individual and community feels
part of and has equal access to opportunities to improve their lives and contribute to
the life of the community they in.

Evidence for our recent draft Housing Needs Survey (2006) revealed:

e Black British / African households have the highest average size of households of
households at 2.95 persons per household against an average of 2.33 for the
Borough.

e Other significant average size households include Asian / Asian British at 2.81,
and white other at 2.55.

e White British and Asian / Asian British households are more likely to be owner
occupiers at 62% and 51% respectively.

e By contrast over half of black households are residing in social housing dwellings.

e The highest proportion of private rented housing is found amongst white-other
households (at 40%)

e All BME categories show levels of income and savings lower than white British
households.

e The highest average income levels are amongst White Irish households at over
£34K,

o the lowest average incomes are found amongst black — African households.

e Over 40% of Black African, and a third of black other households live in
unsuitable housing.

e A third of Asian households, and mixed households live in unsuitable housing.

Gypsies and Travellers

Gypsies and travellers were not specifically researched as part of the Housing Needs
survey as it was based on permanently based residents. The GLA has tendered a
contract to complete a London wide survey, carried out at a sub regional level, into
the housing needs of this community. This is due for report in 2007. Haringey has a
proactive approach to working with Gypsies & Travellers through our Travellers
Support team based in social services.

Key Issues

A survey form was sent to all recognised community organisations across Haringey.
We also attended tenant forums set up by Homes for Haringey with Somali speaking
and Turkish speaking tenants. The key housing issues are:

Housing conditions

e Many families spend a lot of time in temporary accommodation
e Temporary accommodation tends to be of poor standard and at high rent levels
e Families often do not have access to garden spaces

51

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 200

e Concern expressed at concentration in tower blocks and certain areas where the
quality of housing tends to be worse
e Concern about community safety through bogus officials and noisy neighbours

Housing requirements

e There is a need for larger homes. Many families live in overcrowded conditions.

e There are generational differences in housing aspirations — younger would like to
own rather than rent in social housing

e Lack of specific sheltered housing schemes for ethnic elders

e Could develop more or enable access to smaller housing units for younger
members of communities

e More supported housing

Access to housing and related services

e There is a lack of information / awareness about all housing options for some
communities

Not enough information about options to move out of London

There is a lack of access to housing opportunities for single people

People within communities don’t always know how to access housing information
Not enough information about support available for existing elderly home owners
Time spent waiting for accommodation. Do some communities wait longer than
others?

Customer services experience

There are language difficulties in using housing services

Written communications should be available in different languages
Employ people with linguistic skills

Homelessness service experience is not positive

Knowledge of communities and housing needs
e Lack of information about communities and their housing needs

e Housing services staff do not reflect the population at large in the Borough
¢ Insufficient monitoring of housing needs of communities

Our Approach

This Framework reflecting our cross cutting priorities seeks to value BME people
and engage them in decisions both about their home and their neighbourhood.

52

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 201

Example of Good Practice: Agudas Israel Housing Association

Haringey in partnership with Agudas Israel Housing Association and Family Mosaic
has opened a new housing development of 56 homes. 17 are for rent and 39 are for
home ownership. The new homes are for residents from the Orthodox Jewish
Community

Our strategic approach is to:

e Work with Housing Association partners to build housing that meets demand for
larger homes and those from specific communities

e Develop supported and sheltered housing schemes for elderly members of
communities

e Improve the communication of housing information

e Work with agencies and organisations in enabling greater access to housing
information

¢ Increase awareness to all communities about services

e Undertake more research into the main communities and their housing and
across generations

e Improve customer service experience for all service users

e Ensure BME Customers have access to a range of languages and translation
services.

We will

In order to ensure that this Diversity and Equality Framework is effective we propose
to ensure people effected by it are involved in monitoring it. We will do this through
existing forums but in addition we will establish a Sounding Board to oversee the role
out of the Action Plan.

Housing Services must respond to and reflect the needs of different cultures and
communities.

We already have a good record in working with specialist providers to develop homes
for defined BME groups. We will continue to make this a key area of our work to
increase housing supply.

There is a need for larger homes in the Borough especially four and five bed
properties. We are working with housing associations to deliver more larger homes.

53

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 202

We will be improving the level of information for Customers across all tenures
including specialist information for people with learning disabilities. We remain
committed to information in a range of languages and forms as required.

Staff training is a priority to promote knowledge and good practice with regard to all
equality groups.

We strongly support the right of all communities and people to live from anti-social
behaviour or harassment. We will act to deal with peoples concerns. We will use the
full range of measures available to the Council to tackle anti-social behaviour. This
will be done in a sensitive and measured way to ensure that no discriminatory or
inappropriate action is taken. Our approach will be based on evidence.

The VAT has an excellent record. We will broaden its role to ensure that vulnerable
BME people obtain the support specific to their needs.

We aim to dramatically reduce the numbers of households in temporary
accommodation. A range of measures are being adopted to achieve this.

We are investigating the range of temporary accommodation currently provided to
ensure we are not providing inappropriate accommodation.

We will investigate the housing needs of Gypsies and Travellers and consider
developing a housing strategy to meet their needs once we have considered the
results of the Greater London Authority research.

We will consider the pattern of lettings as part of our comprehensive approach to
monitoring in order to ensure that we are not undermining our objective of inclusive
sustainable communities.

54

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 203

Chapter 4: Performance Monitoring, Reporting
and Review

This Framework sets the direction of travel for Haringey to achieve equality in
housing.

We will through our excellent partnership working secure ownership of the strategy
by our partners across the tenures and with local residents. Both are central to
making the Strategy work and to ensuring it remains effective and current at all
times. The Action plan will be monitored and updated on a quarterly basis to reflect
progress and ensure we can achieve the SMART targets. This Framework will be
reviewed on an annual basis although we will use the quarterly meetings to ensure it
remains current.

The effectiveness of the Framework will be monitored and reviewed at three levels:

e The achievement of the cross cutting objectives set out in Chapter 2

e The achievement of the specific actions set out in the Action Plan in Annexe D

e The establishment and improvement in performance monitoring of equalities
indicators.

At Annexe E is a table of all organisations that the Council works with.
Performance Monitoring

There are a range of indicators for which the Government measures the performance
of local authorities in promoting equal opportunities and combating discrimination and
harassment. These are audited each year. The Council is required to report on its
performance in relation to a number of Best Value Performance Indicators, and on its
progress with regard to Audit Commission Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) indicator on
Diversity. The key Housing BV Indicators are:

overall service with landlords
black & minority ethnic satisfaction
non black & minority ethnic satisfaction

BV74 -Tenant satisfaction

BV75 Satisfaction with
participation

All tenants
BME tenants
c. Non BME groups

SpooTe

BV164 Is the CRE Code of | whether the council follows the CRE Code of guidance in rented
Practice applied in the housing, and also follow the ODPM Code of Practice for Social
provision of rented housing Landlords in tackling harassment. This will have been amended as a
result of the new CRE code of practice.

Other BV indicators Monitored by other council departments
BV 2b Duty to promote Race Equality
BV174 /175 extent to which council monitors the reporting and action of racial

incidents in their area where it has some measure of involvement in
remedying the situation

BVPI 225 this assesses the overall provision and effectiveness of local authority
services designed to help victims of domestic violence and prevent
further domestic violence.

55

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07




Page 204

Key Lines of Enquiry - KLOE 31 - Diversity

KLOEs represent sets of questions and statements around either service or
judgement specific issues which provide consistent criteria for assessing and
measuring the effectiveness and efficiency of housing services. They are designed to
provide inspectors, the council and others with a framework through which to view
and assess services. Descriptors of excellent and fair services will help organisations
to understand how the quality of services is judged against the

KLOEs. In inspections, service-specific KLOEs are used as a basis for assessing
‘How good is the service?’ and the diversity KLOE is key to this. The purpose of
focusing on diversity is to ensure that services address the different needs that
customers have. Customers’ needs differ for a variety of reasons. The diversity
KLOE covers the following areas:

corporate culture and governance;
access and customer care;
service user involvement;
partnerships;

harassment; and

legislation.

Developing Local Indicators

Both Haringey Council and Homes for Haringey are developing local equality
performance indicators by which it will be able to measure the success of this
Framework specifically, and of service planning generally. Haringey Council will be
concentrating upon developing indicators with regard to accessing housing services,
whilst Homes for Haringey will be concentrating upon services to council tenants.

We will also be undertaking an audit of policies and practices against the
1) CRE Code of Practice on Racial Equality in Housing
2) Tackling Homelessness amongst Ethnic minority households

The performance data on the impact of the strategy will be reported to:

e Departmental Management Team quarterly.
e Executive Committee annually.
e Equalities Forums quarterly.

Delivering Equality Standards.

Haringey Council has a duty to ensure all equality standards are met. It requires
Homes for Haringey, as its Managing Agent to implement all equality standards and
to report on the standards.

Housing Services will monitor Homes for Haringey to ensure the highest level of
performance.

56

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 205

Annex A
The Legislative Background

This annex sets out key Statutes, Secondary Legislation and Guidance that has
provided a strong framework upon which an effective Diversity and Equality strategy
sits.

Sex Discrimination Act 1975

This Act prohibited direct or indirect discrimination and, by implication, harassment
on the grounds of sex.

Race Relations Act 1976 and Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000

The first Act prohibited direct or indirect discrimination or harassment on the grounds
of race, national origins or culture. It included an enforceable duty to promote equality
and good relations between different races (especially Section 71 which has been
important to procurement).

The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 amended the 1976 Act and introduced a
new positive duty to promote race equality. It requires public authorities to have due
regard to the need, in everything they do, to tackle racial discrimination, promote
equality of opportunity, and to promote good relations between people from different
racial groups.

Under the Race Relations Act, it is unlawful for a person to discriminate on racial
grounds against another. The Act defines racial grounds as including race, colour,
nationality, ethnic or national origins. There are four main types of racial
discrimination: direct, indirect, victimisation and harassment.

Disability Discrimination Act 1995

This prohibits unlawful discrimination on the grounds of disability in relation to
employment, access to goods and services and in the buying, renting and
management of premises or land.

Disability Discrimination Act 2005

The extension of the DDA to extend the number of groups covered and provision in
private clubs with 25 or more members; sanctions for publishers of discriminatory
adverts; a simpler process for people who think they have been discriminated against
when using services; and new protection for local authority councillors.

Local Government Act 1999

Not specifically Equalities legislation but requires continuous improvement of Local
Government performance including specific equality indicators.

57

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 206

The Human Rights Act 1998

This enables individuals to bring actions against a public body for breach of the
rights covered in the Act, which originate from the European Convention on Human
Rights.

Civil Partnerships Act 2004

The purpose of the Civil Partnership Act is to enable same-sex couples to obtain
legal recognition of their relationship by forming a civil partnership. They may do so
by registering as civil partners of each other provided: The legislation gives new
rights and responsibilities within housing. It will impact in various orders including:

Occupation orders; non molestation orders, succession and assignment rights,
property division and equitable interests; matrimonial home rights, and benefit
entitlement.

New Statutory Code of Practice on Racial Equality in Housing October 2006

Legislation is supported by a Commission for Racial Equality Code of Practice on
Racial Equality in Housing

The Commission for Racial Equality (CRE) first issued statutory housing codes of
practice in 1991 (for rented housing) and 1992 (non-rented housing). In October
2006 it issued a new statutory code to replace both the 1991 and 1992 Codes. The
aims were to:

e Set standards for achieving racial equality;

e Provide practical guidance that will help organisations and individuals involved in
all areas of housing to avoid unlawful racial discrimination and harassment,
promote equal opportunities for all, and encourage good race relations; and

e Make sure that anyone who is considering taking a legal case, or who has
concerns about the way decisions on housing matters have been made,
understands the legislation, their rights, and what constitutes good practice in the
field of housing.

This code will be useful to anyone involved in housing, as well as to those who make
decisions about providing housing, opportunities for housing and services related to
housing, including developers, tenants and residents.

It applies to all providers of housing and related services in England, whether in the
public, private, or community and voluntary sectors, including landlords, 'arms-length'’
housing organisations, large-scale voluntary transfer organisations, planning bodies,
house builders, housing advice providers, private sellers and estate agents.

The code covers all forms of housing tenure, including caravan sites as well as
'bricks and mortar' housing. It also covers housing provided as part of an employment

contract, for example tied housing, or housing provided for nurses, police officers or
prison officers by their employers.

58

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 207

This new code also takes into account the many important social and economic
changes that have taken place over the past decade and a half. For example,
Britain's ethnic minority population is no longer the same, with the arrival of new
migrants, including refugees. Integration and community cohesion have become
increasingly important considerations for housing organisations and agencies. Also,
while there have been improvements for some ethnic minority groups, significant
differences still persist overall in the type and quality of housing available to people
from ethnic minorities, who are more likely to live in inferior housing, and to have
fewer opportunities to improve their circumstances than people from other groups.

It specifically mentions that:

e BME households are more likely to live in overcrowded conditions, be more
dissatisfied with their homes and be more anxious to move, compared with
households from white groups.

e BME communities are up to three times more likely to be represented in statistics
on homelessness.

e Segregation, mainly in urban areas where one ethnic group predominates over
others, continues to pose problems for social integration in parts of the country.

e Racial harassment is a continuing reality for BME communities in some areas; for
example, they are four times more likely to see racial harassment as a serious
problem in their areas than white households.

The Code specifically states that public authorities have a duty to make the
promotion of racial equality central to the work, therefore requiring public authorities
to take a lead in preventing unlawful racial discrimination, and in promoting equality
of opportunity and good race relations. To achieve this, public authorities are
required to prepare and publish a race equality scheme and monitor specified
employment procedures and practices, by racial group, and make this data public in
an annual report.

For more details about the Code see:

http://www.cre.qov.uk/gdpract/housing code.html

Disability Equality Duty
Local Authorities will be required from December 2006 to
e Promote equality of opportunity between disabled people ad other people
e.g. advertising jobs with disabled people’s organisations where disabled
people are under-represented
e Eliminate discrimination that is unlawful under the Disability Discrimination Act
e.g. ensuring access to information such as picture signs for people with
learning disabilities

¢ Eliminate harassment of disabled people that is related to their disability

59

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Page 208

Gender Equality Duty
Arising from the Equality Act 2006 the Gender Equality Duty will introduce a general
duty upon Local Authorities from March 2007 to

¢ Eliminate unlawful sex discrimination and harassment, and
e Promote equality of opportunity for women and men.

60

Housing Diversity and Equalities Framework 2007-2010. Version 10 @ 10.01.07



Annexe B - Key Drivers for the Housing Strategy

Plan / Strategy Summary
Community This is the borough’s overarching strategy adopted by the Haringey Strategic Partnership.
Strategy

The strategy sets out the priorities for the borough until March 2007. The Housing Strategy objectives are aligned to these
priorities and the strategy sets out the housing activities which the Council and partners will undertake to meet these priorities

Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy.
‘Narrowing the Gap:

A strategy to improve Haringey’s most
Disadvantaged Neighbourhoods 2002-
2012’

Provides a framework for the renewal of the most deprived parts of the borough over the next ten years. The Housing Strategy
considers the impact of the supply of new affordable housing options — both temporary and permanent, on the objectives of the
strategy and the impact of housing led regeneration on the creation of sustainable communities in Haringey

London Borough of Haringey
Supporting People Five Year Strategy
2005-2010

Provides and overview of the programme and sets out the strategic priorities for Supporting People for the next five years. It
describes the contribution SP will make to the achievement of Community Strategy objectives, including SP’s overall contribution
to meeting Housing and Health agendas. The Housing Strategy details how SP work in Haringey contributes to the housing
strategy priorities and how the work of housing staff contributes to meeting SP objectives.

Experience Counts — Older Persons
Strategy — 2005

This strategy aims to tackle discrimination and to promote positive attitudes towards ageing so that by 2010 ‘older people are
enabled to be as informed, active, healthy and independent as possible and empowered citizens at the heart of the community’.
It describes our priorities and commitments to people aged 50 and over with regard to ten goals including housing. The Diversity
& Equality Strategy incorporates the work undertaken in terms of the needs analysis and the key housing goal.

Changing Lives: The Haringey children
and young people’s plan 2006-09

The Children and Young People's Plan (CYPP) is required by the Children Act 2004 to cover all services for children, young
people and their families and carers..

Changing Lives builds upon:

1. Haringey’s Children and Young People’s Plan (2005-6),

2. Knowing Our Children and Young People — planning for their futures — the needs assessment produced by The Children’s
Service in Haringey in 2006

3. Growing Up in Haringey — the Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust’'s (HTPCT) recent annual public health report.

Changing Lives sets out twenty key priorities for the next three years. The selection of these priorities has been informed by an
extensive needs assessment by the Metropolitan Police, Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust and by the Children’s Service.

61

602 obed



Plan / Strategy

Summary

Unitary Development Plan, adopted by
the Council in July 2006

Details the council’s planning guidelines. The UDP influences our work on the supply of new affordable housing, both permanent
and temporary. The UDP and other planning policy is based in part on housing needs information supplied by the housing
service.

The new UDP was adopted in July 2006 and will be incorporated into the Local Development Plan in coming years.

Private sector Strategy and Renewal
Policy

The Private Sector Strategy details our plans for work across private sector housing. The strategy is currently being reviewed
and will be closely linked to the delivery of the homelessness strategy. The housing Renewal Policy details how we intend to
target our renovation grants programme.

Homelessness Strategy, 2004 — 08

The Homelessness Strategy details our aims, priorities and actions on homelessness. The strategy was developed following a
comprehensive review of homelessness in the borough and it addresses our housing strategy objectives. We are currently
undertaking a further review of homelessness and will update the strategy accordingly by 2007

The Haringey Safer
Communities
Strategy 2005-2008

The Safer Communities Strategy is the key means of directing and coordinating the statutory and community agencies’ response
to reducing crime and anti-social behaviour levels and minimising the harm caused by drug and alcohol misuse. It is aimed at
supporting individual residents and communities in tackling criminal and anti-social behaviour by working in partnership to
address their needs. The Housing Strategy sets out in particular how we contribute to tackling anti-social behaviour across all
housing tenures

Haringey Race Equalities Scheme

The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 introduced a General Duty, which requires all public authorities to which the Act
applies to “have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful racial discrimination and to promote equality of opportunity and
good relations between persons of different racial groups”. The Race Equality Scheme sets out how the Council will work to
eliminate racial discrimination and promote race equality. The Housing Strategy considers the equalities impact of housing
related activities in Haringey using the scheme.

The Framework North London
Housing Strategy

Sets out the approach of the six local authority partners in the North London sub region towards developing a North London
Housing strategy. Haringey’s housing strategy is aligned with the sub-regional approach to supply, particularly with reference to
key-worker and shared ownership schemes.

62

012 ebed



Annexe C — Consultation

The Diversity & Equalities strategy has been developed on the basis of consultation with key stakeholders in the Borough. Following best
practice guidance a decision was made early on to consult on identifying the key aims for the strategy and the key issues resulting in
inequality. We deliberately sought the views of housing providers, and community organisations that represented different groups of residents
across the Borough. We have also utilised the results obtained from different consultations including those for the Council’s new Lettings
Policy, and a new Homelessness Review — both of which took place during summer 2006.

Who contacted How When Main comments impacting on strategy development
Housing Associations — Survey forms via e-mail & post Apr — Highlighting general experiences of inequality; evidence of equal opportunities policies
over 40 in total June
2006
Housing Association Forum meeting | July Identifying key aims for strategy
2006
Specific BME RSLs: Survey forms via e-mail & post Apr — Highlighting experience of inequality affecting particular BME groups — Irish, Somali, and
June Orthodox Jewish residents; also provided references to previous research undertaken
2006
Meeting with Sahil HA May
2006
Race Equality Joint Survey form sent by post to April In July 2005, the REJCC had met to consider housing issues.
Consultative Committee members of Committee 2006
Community / advocacy Survey forms via post: Apr — Some groups responded with evidence of the housing experience of specific communities
groups representing wide June e.g. Cypriot elderly and disabled
communities: 2006

e Ethnic Minority
Communities (60
groups)

e Women’s Groups
(over 30 groups)

e Disabled Groups (7

63

| 12 ebed



Who contacted

Main comments impacting on strategy development

groups)
(Homes for Haringey) Focus Group meetings April — Focus groups helped to inform key housing issues affecting BME communities — issues
Council tenant focus May about overcrowding, accessing services
groups: Somali; Turkish 2006
Equality Community Survey Forms sent by e-mails to Apr — Specific forums were asked to use Forums to identify housing issues affecting particular
Groups: coordinators June community groups represented. The Forums consider a wide range of issues not just
2006 housing.
e Women’s Forum
e LGBT Forum Attended meeting of Older persons | May Information specifically from Wisethought (representing LGBT forum, together with
e Disabled Forum — Forum to present aims and to 2006 Stonewall HA) informed our key findings in the LGBT section.
Phoenix Group receive initial feedback followed by
e Older Persons Forum | return of form. Attending the Older Persons Forum amplified some of the key housing issues already
e Faith Forum highlighted by the Older Persons Strategy — Experience Counts.
e Youth Forum Telephone conversation with May
coordinator of Disabled Forum 2006 Youth Forum was not meeting at the time of consultation.
LGBT Forum — in addition to form Apr For other forums, it was not possible to identify some of the issues due to the scheduling of
being returned, there was a 2006 meetings.
telephone conversation with the co-
ordinator
Homes for Haringey Attendance at Equalities Forum on April — Initial agreement on the project plan and later comments on draft reports have aided the
Equalities Forum main project plans July direction of the strategy.
2006
LB Haringey Supporting Meeting with SP Manager Mar Enabled access to approx 90 SP providers to whom a survey form was sent out. Some
People Service 2006 responded in relation to small client groups including those with disabled learning clients.
Referred to the SP Strategy which highlights key issues esp for younger people.
LB Haringey Gypsy & Meeting with Travellers Support April — Built up awareness of Gypsy & Traveller issues. GLA is coordinating a London wide
Travellers Service team + survey form June Housing needs survey being undertaken at the sub regional level. This will report in 2007.
2006 Increased knowledge meant we were able to identify areas of good practice. CRE Report on
Travellers was published in Sept and Haringey was one of the authorities surveyed for good
practice. This will be an area of focus in the Action Plan.
LB Haringey Children’s Telephone conversation with April In the absence of the Youth Forum, the Service was able to cast light on some issues.
Services Strategy Officer 2006 Would like to address the issues over the longer term including raising at a future Youth

Forum meeting. The new CYPP had a brief section on housing focussing upon affordability

issues and benefits.

64

2l obed



Annexe D Action Plan

Through consultation and our findings, it is clear a number of objectives for action planning are essential to enable this strategy to succeed.
The objectives will guide the action plan and enable us to work with our partners to achieving the aims set out at the beginning of the strategy.

1. Develop greater understanding of community housing needs and improve services to residents across the tenures
There is a need to develop more awareness and knowledge of particular communities and vulnerable groups and the problems they face.
This will enable Haringey and its partners to improve the range of housing services that are delivered to all residents in Haringey.

2. Work with partners to maximise the supply of affordable homes, increasing access and housing choice
There is a clear need to improve information about housing options to residents. We also need to work with our partners to tackle the worst
aspects of overcrowding by increasing the number of appropriately sized dwellings.

3. Improve community safety, sustainability and cohesion in our most deprived communities and create opportunities for people to
achieve and succeed

4. Eliminate discrimination in the provision of our services by developing effective performance information and monitoring of
housing services
There is a need to develop an effective performance monitoring regime in relation to equalities and to utilise the data to influence housing
outcomes. We need to develop our performance monitoring to ensure we do not discriminate in the provision of our services, and to
understand whether there may be differences in outcomes for particular community groups

Note
The Action Plan will be amended to identify individual Officers as being responsible for each action identified

LEAD Business Units

HSP  Housing Strategy and Performance HS Housing Supply

VAT  Vulnerable Adults Team SP Supporting People

HN Housing Needs CYP Children’s & Young People Services
OPS Older Peoples Service ASBAT Anti — Social Behaviour Action Team

HfH Homes for Haringey

65

€1 obed



OBJECTIVE 1: DEVELOP GREATER UNDERSTANDING OF COMMUNITY HOUSING NEEDS AND IMPROVE SERVICES TO RESIDENTS ACROSS THE TENURES

LINKAGES Community Strategy;
Supporting People Strategy;
Experience Counts — Older Persons Strategy
Children & Young People Strategy
Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy / Private Sector Strategy
EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES AGENCY / DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
ALL Utilise or develop forums that will involve residents from each of Review Q1 Review Q1
the 6 equality groups to engage with housing issues Existing HSP
New
e Review existing forums structures Q2
e Review overall partnership structures
ALL Establish / improve baseline number of: Existing HSP
e Disabled persons —incl people learning difficulties and Q2
mental health problems, and the extent of disability
e LGBT population
e Faith communities
ALL Ensure all housing staff receive equalities training and awareness Existing HSP
of the housing needs of all 6 equality groups
Q2
e Review existing training contents
e Identify appropriate material
e Implement training schedule for all staff
ALL Increase awareness of housing needs of residents across 6 Existing HSP
equality groups amongst all housing providers:
e Distribute Housing Framework Q1
e Establish Equalities Sub Group Q2
OLDER Work with the Older Persons Team to support older people with Existing VAT / Social Ongoing
care needs. Services
YOUNG Liaise with Children’s Services and Supporting People to identify Existing HSP /SP/ Q2

66

1¢ ebed



EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES | AGENCY/ DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
housing needs of younger people: CYP
Ensure young people leaving care are supported: Existing HN / SP
¢ Work with Supporting People to review current service Q3
provision
DISABLED Understand the housing and support needs of: Existing VAT / Social Q2
Services
1. Disabled people and their families
2. People with learning difficulties
3. People with mental health problems
DISABLED Review effectiveness of support services to Existing VAT / Social Q3
Services
1. Disabled people and their families
2. People with learning difficulties
3. People with mental health problems
DISABLED Develop the delayed discharge links with St Ann’s Hospital Existing VAT Q2
DISABLED Develop the Vulnerable Adults Team work with disabled persons Existing VAT Q3
LESBIAN GAY Increase knowledge and recognition of LGBT housing needs Existing HSP
BISEXUAL & through better working links with LGBT organisations:
TRANSGENDER
(LGBT) Ensure representation on housing partnership forums Q2
Improve customer service experience for LGBT housing Existing HSP Q1
applicants esp relating to confidentiality
Conduct survey on current experiences Existing HSP Q3
RELIGION OR
BELIEF
ETHNCITY Review impact and quality of temporary accommodation being Existing HN Q2
used
ETHNICTY / Improve /maintain communication methods for all customers Existing HN / HfH Q3
DISABILTY including interpretation and translation services

67

Glg ebed



Undertake research into housing needs of specific communities,
and across generations:

1. Somali

2. Orthodox Jewish
3. Gypsy & Travellers
4. Refugees

Existing

Q4

GENDER

Increase knowledge of the housing needs of particular groups of
women:

1. Lone parents

2. Women out of prison

3. Older women

4. BME women

Existing

HSP

Q4

68

91g obeyd



OBJECTIVE 2: WORK WITH PARTNERS TO MAXIMISE THE SUPPLY OF AFFORDABLE HOMES, INCREASING ACCESS AND HOUSING CHOICE

LINKAGES Community Strategy;
Experience Counts — Older Persons Strategy
Children & Young People Strategy
Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy / Private Sector Strategy
Unitary Development Plan
Homelessness Strategy
EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES AGENCY / DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
OLDER Achieve Decent Homes targets Borrowing HfH Annual Annual Annual
Approval Target Target Target
Replace house proud Existing HSP Q3
Review of sheltered housing to take account of Supporting To be identified HSP Q1
People Inspection report.
Develop a full range of housing options for older home owners Existing OPS Q2
Develop a revised under occupation schemes to make moving Existing / North HN Q4 Target to be Target to be
attractive / help people to move London Sub set set
Region Pilot —
Target for number of moves in later years? DCLG funds
Promote Ensure Disabled Adaptations and Facilities Grants to Existing OPS Ongoing Target to be Target to be
ensure effective take up set set
ALL Increase awareness of initiatives to tackle fuel poverty and Warm Air Front HSP / Fuel Q2 Target to be Target to be
increase benefit take up British Gas ‘Hear | Poverty Officer set set
to Help’ and (NRF funded)
Target for number of grants?? Neighbourhood
Renewal Fund
Maintain linkages to older person organisations and ensure Existing HSP/VAT/OPS Q2
consulted upon with regard to policies and strategies, and
through partnership forums.
YOUNG Improve access and availability of housing advice and information Existing HN
to younger people
e Provide information to school leavers and colleges about
housing options and homelessness Q4

e Develop a comprehensive directory of housing and support
services for young people in Haringey available using new

69

/g 8bed



EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES AGENCY / DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
technology
e Develop advice service specific to young people
Ensure 16 & 17 years olds receive support and opportunities for Existing HN / SP Ongoing
permanent homes at age 18
Ensure young people leaving care are supported Existing HN / SP Ongoing
DISABLED Offer a progression of housing options from care to maximum Existing VAT/OPS Q2
independence
Undertake a review of the Disabled adaptations service Existing HSP Q1
Increase awareness and take up of resources available to help Existing HN Q2
disabled people maintain their homes
OLDER/ Work with RSL partners to increase availability of accessible Existing HS / Housing Q4
DISABLED homes ADP Association
e Establish a housing register of accessible social housing n Preferred
the Borough Partners
e Achieve a minimum of x% wheelchair accessible
accommodation in new build developments
e Implement life time home standard as a minimum standard
for all new build schemes in the Borough
o Explore Life long homes to improve accessibility in older age
OLDER/ Encourage participation from health agencies into housing Existing HSP Q2
DISABLED partnership forums
DISABLED To offer a progression of housing options from care to maximum Existing HSP/VAT/OPH Q2
independence
LGBT Develop housing support through specialist agencies Existing HSP Q2
LGBT Working with prevention & options to reduce homelessness Existing DG Q2
amongst young LGBT persons
LGBT Review provision for same sex partners in specialist housing Existing HSP Q3
LGBT Provide clear information for LGBT residents on housing options Existing HSP Q2
LGBT Publicise and highlight tenancy succession rights for LGBT Existing HSP Q2
residents
RELIGION Work with RSL partners including BME specialist to develop Existing HSP/HS / Q4
OR BELIEF guidelines for building culturally appropriate forms of housing Housing
Association
Preferred

70

812 ebed



EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES AGENCY / DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
Partners
RELIGION Work with community and faith organisations to increase Existing HDP/HN Q3
OR BELIEF awareness of housing options

71

612 abed



EQUALITY ACTION RESOURCES LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP AGENCY/ DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/8 2008/9 2009/10
RELIGION Review adaptations policies to consider how they meet cultural Existing VAT/OPS Q3
OR BELIEF needs
RELIGION Work with RSL partners to build housing that meet demand from Existing Housing Q4 (for next 2
OR BELIEF / | families, and of specific communities for larger homes ADP Supply / year ADP
ETHNICITY Housing allocation)
Association
Preferred
Partners
ETHNICITY Review into housing needs of older members of BME Existing HSP/HN Q2
communities
ETHNICITY Increase awareness of all affordable housing options to all Existing HSP Ongoing
communities.
ETHNICITY Develop our work with Vulnerable Adults team for vulnerable Existing HSP/VAT/OPS Q2
BME residents
GENDER Continue to provide support to women leaving on housing options Existing HSP/VAT/OPS Ongoing

72

02c obed



OBJECTIVE 3: IMPROVE COMMUNITY SAFETY, SUSTAINABILITY AND COHESION IN OUR MOST DEPRIVED COMMUNITIES AND CREATE OPPORTUNITIES

FOR PEOPLE TO ACHIEVE AND SUCCEED

LINKAGES Community Strategy;
Supporting People Strategy;
Experience Counts — Older Persons Strategy
Children & Young People Strategy
Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy / Private Sector Strategy
Anti Social Behaviour Strategy / CDRP
EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES AGENCY / DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
OLDER Work with environmental services to improve lighting and the Existing HSP / HfH / Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing
quality of roads and pavements in areas of high concentration of ES
elderly persons
OLDER To develop advice specific to older people on addressing crime, Existing HSP/VAT/OPS Q2 Ongoing Ongoing
fear of crime and anti social behaviour / ASBAT
YOUNG To develop advice specific to young people on addressing crime, Existing HSP / ASBAT Q2 Ongoing Ongoing
fear of crime and anti social behaviour
DISABLED Ensure that estates and neighbourhoods are accessible Existing HSP / HfH Q4 Ongoing Ongoing
DISABLED Ensure that work and education options are available to all Existing HSP Qs
residents
DISABLED Liaise with mental health agencies to avoid mental health lapses Existing HSP/VAT Q2
LGBT Ensure LGBT community and people are fully aware of Council’'s Existing HSP / ASBAT Qs Ongoing Ongoing
harassment procedures
LGBT Encourage / increase non police reporting of homophobic crime Existing HSP / ASBAT Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing
incidents
LGBT Increase knowledge and awareness of Hearthstone Existing HSP / Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing
Hearthstone
RELIGION Promote access to specialist support if facing harassment or Existing HSP Q2
OR BELIEF discrimination
Ensure faith / religious groups are fully aware of Council’s Existing HSP/ ASBAT Q2 Ongoing Ongoing
harassment procedures
ETHNICITY Develop work to tackle Anti social behaviour / race harassment / Existing HSP / ASBAT Q3 Ongoing Ongoing
hate crime

73

122 obed



ETHNICITY

Ensure BME communities and people are fully aware of Council’s
harassment procedures

Existing

HSP/ ASBAT

Q2

Ongoing

Ongoing

GENDER Address the need for childcare Existing HN Q1

Link housing work to community cohesion initiatives e.g. sure start Existing HSP /CYP Q2
GENDER/ Maintain the Hearthstone service to provide support for women & Existing HN Ongoing
LGBT LGBT people facing domestic violence

74

2ae obeyd



OBJECTIVE 4: ELIMINATE DISCRIMINATION IN THE PROVISION OF OUR SERVICES BY DEVELOPING EFFECTIVE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION AND

MONITORING OF HOUSING SERVICES

LINKAGES Community Strategy;
Supporting People Strategy;
Experience Counts — Older Persons Strategy
Children & Young People Strategy
Private Sector Housing Renewal Strategy / Private Sector Strategy
EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES AGENCY / DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
ALL Ensure resident across all equality groups are fully consulted in Existing HSP/Homes Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing
housing service changes and improvements for Haringey
ALL Ensure ElAs are effective and undertaken for each policy initiative | Existing All Housing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing
or service change Business
Units / HfH
ALL Review allocation of social housing by geography, size and type of | Existing Housing Q3 Annual Annual
dwellings: Supply / HSP monitoring monitoring
e By ethnicity
e Sexuality and gender identity
¢ Religion or belief
ALL Monitor aspects of aspects of harassment on housing estates: Existing HSP / ASBAT Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly
/ HfH / HAs monitoring monitoring monitoring
e Sexuality and gender identity
o Ethnicity
e Gender
o Religion or belief
ALL Meet and comply with BVPI targets: Existing HSP / LBH Annual Annual Annual
Targets Targets Targets
° 74 a,b,c
e 75ab,c
o 164
o 174/175
o 225

75

cee obed



EQUALITY LEAD TARGET TARGET TARGET
GROUP ACTION RESOURCES AGENCY / DATE DATE DATE
OFFICER 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
ALL Develop and meet local equality performance indicators in relation Existing HSP Quarterly Quarterly
to housing services: monitoring monitoring
e Religion or belief Q1
o Age
e Gender
e Sexuality and gender identity
e Ethnicity
e Disability
ETHNCITY Undertake audit of policies and practices in relation to: Existing HSP
e CRE Code of Practice on Race Equality in Housing Q1
e Tackling Homelessness amongst Ethnic Minority Households Q3
ETHNCITY / Ensure Housing Services comply fully with duties under the Existing HSP / LBH Annual Annual
DISABILITY Equality Standards: Equalities Unit Monitoring Monitoring
BV 2b - Race Equality Q1

Disability
Gender

76

yee abed



Page 225

Annex E

Organisations Checklist

The following voluntary organisations work closely with Haringey Council:

Name of Organisation
African Caribbean Leadership
Council

Organisation description

community centre

Age Concern

older people's services

Alhijra Somali Community
Association

somali organisation

Angolan Community Association

advice agencie

Asian Action Group

community centre

Bangladeshi Womens Association

womens organsiation

CARA

Housing for Irish Elderly

CARIS

Homeless family service

Collage Arts

arts organisation

Council of Asian People

community centre

Cypriot Centre

community centre

Cypriot Elderly & Disabled Group

elderly and disabled group

Ethiopian Community Centre

ethiopian and refugee centre

Exposure

Youth magazine

Greek Cypriot Womens Organisation

womens organsiation

Greek Parents Association

greek organisation

HAGA

advisory group on alcohol

Haringey CAB

citizens advice bureaux

Haringey Chinese Centre

community centre

Haringey Consortium of Disabled
People

disabled people and carers group

Haringey Emergency Corps

older people's services

Haringey lrish Cultural & Community
Centre

community centre

Haringey Law Centre

advice agencie

Haringey Pensioners Action Group

older people's services

Haringey Phoenix Group

blind and partially sighted

Haringey Play Association

childrens org

Haringey Racial Equality Council

racial and equality advice

Haringey Somali Community Centre

community centre

Haringey Womens Forum

womens organsiation

HAVCO Umberella group for VCS
HAVCO - CAP community accountancy project
Home Start childrens org

Hornsey Vale Community Centre

community centre

Jacksons Lane

community centre

Jamait-al-Nissa

womens organsiation

Kurdish Advice Centre

advice agencie

Kurdish Community Centre

community centre

77




Page 226

Name of Organisation
Markfield Project

Organisation description
children woth disabilities

Mencap Pathways

employment

Middlesex Association For the Blind

blind and partially sighted

MIND in Haringey

Mental health org

Northumberland Park Women &
Childrens Centre

women & children centre

Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

mental health org

Relate counselling
Samaritans counselling
Selby Centre community centre

Stepping out

day centre fpr children woth severe
disabilities

Stroke Club

stroke sufferes

Tottenham Hard of hearing

deaf

Turkish Cypriot Women's Project

womens organsiation

Venture Club for the Blind

blind and partially sighted

Wise Thoughts

gay, lesbian & trans gender org

YMCA

homlesness/ young people

78




Page 227 Agenda ltem 13

Executive On 23 January 2007

Report Title: Haringey’s Local Area Agreement (2007-2010)

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):

Report of: Justin Holliday

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose
1.1 To obtain sign off on the final draft of Haringey’s Local Area Agreement.

2. Introduction by the Leader

2.1 The Local Area Agreement is a three year agreement between the local authority,
its partners and central government.

2.2  The attached document (to follow) represents Haringey’s Local Area Agreement
agreed by the Haringey Strategic Partnership. The key aspects of the agreement
are:

2.2.1 The introduction which lays out the draft overall priorities as emerging through the
Sustainable Community Strategy and five priority themes for the LAA.

2.2.2 There are four blocks in the LAA: children and young people, healthier
communities and older people, safer and stronger communities and economic
development. Each of these blocks include the following:

o mandatory targets which have been set by central government;

o optional targets which partners believe are important locally and where
partnership working can add value to overall outcomes;

o funding streams that are nationally pooled and those that partners have

identified locally for alignment.

2.2.3 Reward Element which will include 12 stretch targets to be agreed with
government departments. If the stretch is delivered this will draw down funding
known as the Performance Related Grant (PRG) potentially worth £9m in three
years time. Currently there are 14 targets which are being negotiated. The final
intention is to agree 12 targets which will receive pump priming funding not
exceeding £81,000.




Page 228

2.2.4 The agreement also includes three freedoms and flexibilities that Haringey has
requested from central government in order to deliver some of the key local
outcomes around worklessness and the environment. However, the signs are that
these will not be granted by central government.

2.2.5 An equalities impact assessment (to follow) on the LAA has shown no adverse
equalities impacts arising from the agreement.

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Executive notes Haringey’s final draft of the Local Area Agreement.

3.2 To delegate the final drafting changes to the LAA and the finalisation of the stretch
targets to ACE(PPPC) in consultation with the Leader.

Report Authorised by: Justin Holliday

Contact Officer: Nilam Popat, Principal Policy Officer, 020 8489 2979

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 Haringey Council is the designated Accountable Body for the LAA and therefore
has responsibility for ensuring that clear and robust governance arrangements are
in place for delivery of the financial element of the LAA.

4.2 In accordance with this, work is currently underway to ensure that appropriate
financial management arrangements are in place for April 2007.

4.3  The funding being pooled into the LAA represent existing funding streams
received by the Council. Therefore work is underway to ensure that the current
funds are aligned to priorities in the LAA.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments
5.1 The Head of Legal Services has read the report and confirms that there are no
specific legal implications that the Executive should be aware of.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 Local Area Agreements: Guidance for Round 3 and Refresh of Rounds 1 and 2,
March 2006.

6.2  The Reward Element of the Local Area Agreement: Negotiations of Stretched
Targets, May 2006.

6.3  Feedback from Government Office for London (GOL) October 2006 and
December 2006.




8.1.1

8.1.3

9.1
9.1.1

9.1.2

Page 229

Strategic Implications
The LAA presents an opportunity to strengthen partnership working and to align the
LAA to the borough’s local priorities.

Analysis
LAA Summary

Mandatory Outcomes Framework

More than 75% of indicators are baselined and accompanied with three year
targets in the final draft. The MORI Survey results are now available and therefore
baseline information can be included. Council block leads and thematic
partnerships will continue to complete the outcome framework over the course of
the year.

Reward Element (stretch targets)

Negotiations and testing of stretch targets is still continuing and therefore the
recommendation is that the ACE(PPPC) in consultation with the Leader sign off the
final 12 based on analysis of deliverability.

Enabling Measures
There has been no formal feedback on these but the indications are these requests
will be denied. This is consistent with experience of Rounds 1 and 2 of the LAA.

Financial Implications
There are four financial aspects to the LAA. These are:

The local authority is the financially accountable body for the funds associated with
the LAA.

Alignment of Funding

Partners have only identified funding for alignment where nationally pooled funding
does not support the mandatory targets or where extra targets are being included
locally as optional.

Pump Priming Grant (PPG) for stretch targets

The Pump Priming Grant (PPQG) is payable upon signing off the LAA and is
designed to help kick start projects and interventions. It is worth £750,000 plus £1
per head of population. This will total approximately £970,000. The pump priming
grant will be distributed across the 12 stretch targets with an upper limit of £81,000
for each target.

Performance Related Grant (PRG)

This is worth up to 2.5% of the local authorities’ net budget requirement, which
could equate to up to £9m. The payment of PRG is dependent upon the HSP
achieving a minimum of a 60% profile against the agreed end targets. This will be
payable at the end of the LAA in 2010/11. Principles will need to be agreed by
partners, before the start of the LAA in April 2007, on how investment decisions will
be made about any future PRG (not applied until 2010-2011).



10
10.1

11
11.1

12
12.1

13
13.1

14
141

15
15.1

15.2

Page 230

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications arising from the current round of the LAA.

Equalities Implications

The equalities impact assessment shows no adverse impact arising from the LAA
and suggests that there are likely to be measures which address some of the
current inequalities.

Consultation

The key local priorities of the LAA are informed by the wide level consultation
undertaken for the Sustainable Community Strategy. In addition the LAA is the
result of consultations with statutory and voluntary and community sector partners
across the Haringey Strategic Partnership network.

Background

Haringey is in the Round 3 of the national roll out of Local Area Agreements. The
Haringey LAA is the outcome of numerous discussions in the five HSP thematic
partnerships and the HSP as well as a response to national government guidance.
The whole LAA process has been overseen by the LAA Partnership Group, the
members of which include key statutory, voluntary and community sector partners.

Conclusion

The Haringey Local Area Agreement is the result of concerted effort by all partners
through the Haringey Strategic Partnership and its five thematic partnerships.

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs
Haringey’s Local Area Agreement appendix 1 (to follow)

Equalities impact assessment appendix 2 (to follow).



Page 231 Agenda Iltem 14

B HARINGEY COUNCIL &

Agenda ltem [ ]
Executive 23 January 2007

Report title: Discretionary Licensing in the Private Rented Sector

Forward plan Reference (if applicable)

Report of: Interim Director of Urban Environment

Ward affected: Bounds Green Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To introduce a discretionary licensing scheme in Haringey.

1.2 To establish a pilot scheme within the Myddleton Road Area of Bounds Green.

2.0 Introduction by Executive Member, Enforcement -Clir Nilgun Canver

This proposal to introduce discretionary licensing in the borough will provide the opportunity
to take forward the successes that the Council has already achieved with mandatory
licensing, and test the discretionary powers given to us. Widening the controls available to
the Council on private rented accommodation will help support the underlying aim of the
new sustainable community strategy of improving the quality of life for everyone in
Haringey. Myddleton Road is a small area where there are large numbers of HMOs. This
work will enable us to expand to other areas in an informed and controlled manner.

3. Recommendations

That the Executive agrees to Myddleton Road as the pilot area for the introduction of
discretionary licensing in Haringey and authorises the Interim Director, further to the outcome
of the detailed consultation, to submit a proposal for the designation of a scheme to the
appropriate  Government Authority, that is the Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG).

Report authorised by: Graham Beattie, Interim Director, Urban Environment

| Signed:
Contact officer: Tony Jemmott, Acting Housing Group Manager

Telephone: 020 8489 5196/7808 email: tony.jemmott@haringey.qov.uk

4. Executive Summary

4.1In April 2006 Haringey Council successfully introduced mandatory Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMO) licensing. The Executive meeting on the 21 February 2006 also
expressed a commitment to piloting and testing discretionary licensing powers and agreed
for a further report to be brought to a future Executive meeting.

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 1 of
13



Page 232

4.2 Problems of poor management and facilities are not only confined to those HMOs subject
to mandatory licensing, nor do these problems only relate to HMOs. For this reason, the
Act gives the Council powers to require certain other private rented accommodation to be
licensed in specified circumstances.

4.3The Council aims to use these new powers to ensure that other private sector landlords
improve the management, amenity and safety standards of their properties, and also to
tackle anti-social behaviour.

4.4 A discretionary scheme requires the consent of the Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG). The Secretary of State intends to extend general approval for
additional licensing schemes to those authorities in England classified overall as "Excellent"
or "Good" in Comprehensive Performance Assessment”. In all other circumstances an
individual scheme will require confirmation from the DCLG.

4.5 Additional HMO licensing schemes will apply to a particular type of HMO, or for a particular
area of the borough where the Council considers that a significant proportion of the HMOs
of that type are being ineffectively managed and as such present concerns for either the
occupants or the public.

4.6 A selective licensing designation may be made if the area is one experiencing low housing
demand or is experiencing a significant and persistent problem caused by anti-social
behaviour, where the designation with other measures, will lead to a reduction in, or
elimination of, the problem.

4.7 This report presents the options and implications for the introduction of discretionary
licensing in Haringey. It recommends that the Executive approves a discretionary
licensing scheme to commence in the Myddleton Road, N22 area in April 2008, subject to
DCLG approval.

4.8 The Council has the discretion to charge for licensing so that the function is self-financing.
A licence fee will be charged for each property application.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)
5.1 New legal powers and responsibilities introduced by the Housing Act 2004.

6 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 - The following documents were
used in the preparation of this report:-

6.1 DCLG Additional and Selective Licensing Scheme Guidance for approval for area
designation under Parts 2 or 3 of the Housing Act 2004 (the Act).

6.2 Myddleton Road Neighbourhood Plan 2003

6.3 Bounds Green/Haringey Neighbourhood statistics — ONSe
6.4 Haringey Monthly Crime Update — November 2006

7. Background

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 2 of
13




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 233

The private rented sector has an important role in providing housing options for those
who do not own their own home, or for those unable to access social housing.

HMOs pose particular problems and it is known that in many of these properties
standards of management and living conditions are unsatisfactory. In renewal areas
and other neighbourhoods where there are problems with anti-social tenants, the
council will need to identify and engage with the less responsible landlords who do not
proactively manage their properties. The council is promoting voluntary landlord
accreditation and Haringey currently has the second highest number of landlords
accredited to the London Landlord Accreditation Scheme (LLAS).

Haringey Council has already fulfilled its statutory duty under the Housing Act 2004 (the
Act) and has successfully introduced mandatory licensing for prescribed types of
HMOs. At present this is those of three storeys and above occupied by at least five
persons who constitute more than one household.

Problems of poor management and facilities in an HMO are not confined to those
subject to mandatory licensing nor do these problems only relate to HMOs. For this
reason, the Act gives the Council powers to require certain other rented
accommodation to be licensed in specified circumstances.

The Council aims to utilise all controls available to ensure that private sector landlords
improve the management, amenity and safety standards of their properties, and to
tackle anti-social behaviour.

The introduction of discretionary licensing would provide an additional tool to intervene
in areas where private rented housing has been identified as contributing to local
problems. It must been seen as part of our overall approach to the private rented
sector, as described in our Private Sector Housing Strategy. Wherever possible, we
work with private landlords to improve conditions and management in the sector. We
have developed the accredited lettings scheme, are members of the London Landlord
Accreditation Scheme and provide support to landlords and tenants. Selective licensing
would build on our success in introducing mandatory licensing and would provide a
strong intervention as a last resort where all other attempts at intervention had been
unsuccessful.

Types of properties

The borough has a high proportion of 2-storey HMOs. The Council considers that the
introduction of additional licensing scheme will tackle problems in these smaller HMOs,
and in other converted properties.

Bed & Breakfast hostels — Although the number of these premises has been steadily
reducing, we have 66 registered hostels and many other properties in the Borough are
used for temporary accommodation by Haringey and other Councils. Those which are
licensable under the mandatory scheme are already being dealt with. There remains
however a significant number of properties which house temporary families and which
could more effectively be controlled through discretionary licensing.

Many HMOs above shops do not fall within mandatory licensing. The Accommodation

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 3 of
13



7.5

7.6

8.0
8.1

9.0
9.1

Page 234

above Shops project is a continuation project funded by the Stronger and Safer
Communities’ Fund. The many poorly managed properties which fall outside
mandatory licensing may be dealt with under the discretionary schemes.

Certain HMOs registered under the existing registration schemes with control
provisions in Hornsey Park and West Green would be passported into any approved
discretionary licensing scheme.

Potential Designation Areas - Designation will target areas as part of wider
neighbourhood objectives, with problem areas and wards of high deprivation our
priority. Traditionally this is the east of the borough but also includes the
Harringay/Green Lanes/St Ann’s wards.

The Myddleton Road area in Bounds Green has itself been a source of problem HMOs
predominately due the amount of converted properties. It continues to be of high
concern to the council, local businesses and residents. The area provides a suitable
profile for the piloting of the discretionary licensing scheme.

The Area Profiles - See Appendix A

Myddleton Road comprises mixed residential and commercial uses. The central part of
the area has a small shopping centre. Bowes Park Station is at the east end of the road
which is bisected by the New River corridor. The road is within a conservation area that
is essentially Victorian in nature.

Appendix B provides information regarding the socio-economic characteristics Bounds
Green. The data has similar aspects to that of the borough generally and provides a
reasonable indicator of the Myddleton Road area character.

Applying the conditions of designation to the Borough

The Council considers that a “significant proportion of the HMOs in the area are being
managed sufficiently ineffectively as to give rise, or to be likely to give rise, to one or
more particular problems either for those occupying the HMOs or for members of the
public.

Evidence of properties being managed ineffectively, and as a result having a
detrimental affect on a local area, include;

e Properties in poor external condition including yards and gardens which are
eyesores.

e Poor internal conditions, such as poor amenities. Overcrowding etc, adversely
impacting upon the health, safety and welfare of the occupiers and where their
landlords are failing to take appropriate steps to address the issues.

e Significant and persistent problems of anti-social behaviour affecting other
residents and/ or the local community and where the landlords of the HMOs are
not taking reasonable and lawful steps to eliminate or reduce the problems.

e The lack of management or where poor management skills or practices are so
evident such that there is an adverse impact on the occupants, or upon the
community.

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 4 of
13



9.2

9.3

10.0

Page 235

Low Housing Demand

In deciding if the area is suffering from, or likely to become, an area of low housing
demand as per section 80 (4) of the Act the Council considers the following factors:

e The turnover of occupiers of residential premises in rented and bought sectors.

e The number of residential premises which are available to buy or rent, and the
length of time for which they remain unoccupied.

e The community mix in terms of tenure, for example, a high proportion of rented
properties, or a low proportion of owner occupied properties.

e Local facilities, for example, type and loss of shops in the area, parking, open
space and transport.

e The impact of the rented sector on the local community, for example, poor
property condition, anti-social behaviour etc.

e Criminal activity.

Anti-Social Behaviour
An area can be deemed to be suffering from significant and persistent anti-social
behaviour if it suffers from:

e Crime: tenants not respecting the property in which they live and engaging in
vandalism, criminal damage, burglary, robbery/theft and car crime.

¢ Nuisance Neighbours: intimidation and harassment; noise, rowdy and nuisance
behaviour; vehicle related nuisance; anti-social drinking; drugs trading and use
within the curtilage of the property.

e Environmental Crime: tenants engaged in graffiti and fly-posting; fly-tipping;
litter and waste; nuisance vehicles and evidence drugs abuse around their

property.

The making of any designation on the grounds of anti-social behaviour will tie in with
the governments’ RESPECT agenda.

Consultation
Detailed consultation must be undertaken and included in the report to the DCLG,
therefore this report seeks that the Executive agrees that:
e Reasonable steps are taken to consult persons who are likely to be affected by
the designation; and
e Any representations made are considered.

Consultation will be undertaken with local residents, including tenants, landlords and
where appropriate their managing agents and other members of the community who
live or operate businesses or provide services within the proposed area of designation
and those in the surrounding area who will be affected.

During consultation, the Council must give a detailed explanation of the proposed
designation, explaining the reasons for the designation, how it will tackle specific
problems and the potential benefits. The results of the consultation will be published
and made available to the local community.

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 5 of
13



11.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

Page 236

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report.

The Department for Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Selective and
Additional Licensing makes it clear that licensing should not be looked at in isolation.

Authorities must not use their power to make a designation for a selective area or for
additional licensing unless other courses of action have been considered. Designations
must not be made unless they will significantly assist the authority to achieve the
objective intended, namely to ensure that private sector landlords improve the
management and safety standards of their properties and tackle anti- social behaviour.

The power to designate areas for selective licensing does not apply to properties
subject to a tenancy or licence granted by a Registered Social Landlord.

The power to designate areas as subject to additional licensing does not apply to
properties which are listed buildings or to those exempted from the definition of a house
in multiple occupation, the latter as described in Schedule 14 of the Act.

The Council will be required to conduct a full consultation, the outcome of which must
be submitted to the Department for Communities and Local Government as part of the
formal application process.

Comments of the Director of Finance

The Act allows the Council to recover the costs of any potential additional and selective
licensing scheme that may be implemented. Any future fee structure must be in
accordance with the Council’s external incomes policy. Income from fees and charges
will need to at least cover the full cost of the new service including all appropriate
overheads.

Equality and Diversity

This is likely to impact on the community, on businesses and particularly on vulnerable
groups, young single people and young families in the sector. There is an economic
impact to HMO landlords operating in the borough. Tenants may face increased rents,
but this is more likely to be to cover the landlord’s costs of the improvements needed to
reach the higher licensing standards rather than the cost of the licence fee itself. This
cost may be set against the improvement in conditions.

Regulatory Impact Assessments for licensing were undertaken as part of consultation
during the Bill stages of the legislation in 2004. The consultation reports set out the
general impact of licensing on landlords, tenants and the business sectors and also in
relation to equity and fairness and to the economic, social and environmental benefits
and costs.

RIA for HMO licensing:- http://www.communities.gov.uk/index.asp?id=1164430

RIA for selective licensing -
http://www.communities.gov.uk/index.asp?id=1152032#P21_1768

Conclusion

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 6 of
13



Page 237

The Council considers that discretionary licensing will improve the area and that the
designation will work alongside other existing policies or measures that are already
being taken .e.g. Empty Homes, regeneration and anti-social behaviour.

The report highlights the types of properties and the areas of the borough which are
appropriate for discretionary licensing designation. The Myddleton Road area fits the
general borough profile and is already subject to the Myddleton Road Neighbourhood
Plan (July 2003), the Draft Myddleton Road Sustainable Suburbs Action Plan (Oct.
2006) and Strategic Planning and Development Control.

The neighbourhood data provided in Appendix B supports that Myddleton Road is
therefore considered as a suitable area for piloting the scheme.

15.0 Recommendation
That this report is agreed and that a proposal in line with the approved DCLG
Guidance, be submitted to seek the introduction of a discretionary licensing scheme in
Myddleton Road, N22.

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 7 of
13



Page 238

Appendix A

1.0

2.0

Conditions applying to Additional and Selective Licensing

Section 56 of the Act gives powers to designate specific areas, or the whole borough
as subject to additional licensing. Before making an additional HMO licensing
designation for a particular type of HMO, or for a particular area, the Council must:

(a) consider that a significant proportion of the HMOs of that type are being
ineffectively managed and as such presents concerns for either the occupants or
the public;

(b) have regard for relevant codes of practice approved under section 233, this
includes consultation;

(c) consider other actions available which might be effective;

(d) be confident that that making the designation will significantly assist in dealing
with the problem and meet desired objectives; and

(e) consult persons likely to be affected by the designation.

Section 80 of the Act gives powers to designate areas, or the whole borough subject
to selective licensing. A selective licensing designation may be made if the area to
which it relates satisfies at least one of the two following general conditions:

e The area is one experiencing low housing demand

e The area is experiencing a significant and persistent problem caused by anti-
social behaviour and selective licensing designation with others, will lead to a
reduction in, or elimination of, the problem.

The Haringey Borough and Myddleton Road Area Profiles

The Borough Profile

The most recent private sector housing stock condition and needs surveys were
completed in 2001 and reported in May 2002 (Haringey Council - Fordham
Research). Statistics from these surveys when compared with English House
Condition Survey (EHCS) 2001 report show:

o Affordability and Housing Need - Almost 95% of households (8,440
households) currently living in unsuitable housing cannot afford either a mortgage
or suitable private rented accommodation.

e Tenure - 22.1 % of households rent from private landlords. This is well above the
London (17.9%) and national (10%) averages.

¢ Unfithess — 15.7% of the borough’s private housing stock is unfit. This compares
with an unfitness rate of 4.2% nationally (2001 EHCS). The level of unfitness in
Haringey is much greater in the private rented sector (21.3%) than in other
tenures. Nationally this level is 10.9% (2001 EHCS).

e Borough HMO Profile — The survey estimated 3077 HMOs (does not include
converted flats), 1126 of them in the bedsit category. A high proportion of bedsit

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 8 of
13



3.0

3.1

Page 239

HMOs lack adequate fire precautions and amenities. 17.5% of bedsit HMOs are
“worse than adequate” using the Management Regulations as a measure. 67% of
HMOs were in the private rented sector. The figure suggests that the majority of
HMOs will fall outside mandatory licensing and also that 33% are in the public
sector.

Crime Figures (See Appendix C) — Although the year 2006 to date (November
2005-November 2006) overall crime is down, 1396 burglaries were recorded for
the period January to June 2006. Between August and September 2006, there
was a slight increase of 2.7% in the British Crime Survey (BCS) comparator
crimes and the trend for October to November 2006 is up (3.8%). Haringey has a
high incidence of burglary. Other statistics show that HMOs are eight times more
likely to be burgled than other residential premises. BCS crime offences in
Bounds Green ward have increased by over 6% compared to a 14.4% reduction
throughout the borough between April and November 2006 compared to the
same period last year.

Anti-social Behaviour — From January to June 2006 there were 334 cases of
antisocial behaviour borough-wide reported to the ASBAT. This is lower than the
previous half year when they were 404. Bounds Green ward was identified as one
of the top three wards for Disorder CAD calls (calls requiring Police action relating
to public disorder), non-domestic noise complaints, abandoned vehicles between
January and June 2006. Hotspot locations for Disorder CAD calls were located on
the Myddleton Road area.

Environmental Complaints — From January to June 2006 there were 3479
environmental complaints to the council. Of these 2800 were noise complaints
with the majority of these about domestic noise. The reminder of the complaints
mostly related to refuse on private property.

Deprivation — According to the Indices of Deprivation 2004, approximately 31%
of the borough super-output areas are amongst the 10% most deprived using the
crime and disorder measure of deprivation. From the DETR Index of Deprivation
2000, which combines income, employment, health, education, housing and
housing, Bowes Park is ranked amongst the top 20 percent most deprived wards
in England.

The Myddleton Road Profile
The Enforcement Service has joined up with other council services and interest
groups over several years to deal with problems arising in Myddleton Road.

HMO/Planning survey work undertaken in 2004 showed

e 143 properties surveyed

e 78 of these with residential accommodation above shops

e 54 conversions identified, 17 between the Palmerston Road and the railway
boundary (key Area)

e Breaches of Planning legislation with only 7 of the 54 conversions granted
planning permission.

e A significant number of unauthorised developments to support the private
rented market need in the area.

e At least 9 HMOs with unsatisfactory shared basic amenities.

e 4 properties identified as being used for Asylum Seekers accommodation

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 9 of

13



Page 240

Problems of safe access and egress e.g. the accommodation associated with
the timber yard.
Myddleton Road is included within the Council’'s Restricted Conversion Zones.

3.2  Condition of the existing housing stock

Poor internal and external fabric of residential buildings

Incidence of empty dwellings

Number of properties not meeting the Decent Homes Standard.
Energy efficiency of buildings and household affected by fuel poverty
Poor security measures of HMOs.

3.3 External conditions

Shop fronts installations presenting planning/conservation issues.

3.4  Environmental factors/crime

It is considered that the area suffers from extreme parking pressure and that
this has a significant adverse effect on the residents and use of the local
amenities.

Safer Neighbourhood Team expanded to improve community policing.

Issues of rubbish and drinking at the entrance of the New River Path and
community garden.

Lack of adequate waste storage provision of premises in multiple occupation.
Open drug dealing occurring on the street.

Notification of burglaries to the Police.

3.5 Local Housing market

Significant housing market issues regarding, temporary accommodation,
transience, property and tenancy turnover.
Use of a number of properties for social housing i.e. private sector leasing or
managed by Housing Associations (RSLs).

Appendix B — Bounds Green/Haringey Statistics — Key Figures for Housing @

Haringey

Bounds Green (London London © England
o Borough) @ ot
Accommodation type: Flat; maisonette
or ... of a converted or shared house o
(including bed-sits) (Household % 24.57 25.94 13.94 4.35
Spaces, Apr01): 0
Changes of Ownership by Dwelling
Price, Price Indicators by Dwelling
Type: Flat - Mean (Dwellings, Jan02- £ 128,219 171,483 203,793 139,762
Dec02)'+ @
Amenities @
All Occupied Household Spaces Count 4,933 92,170 3,015,997 20,451,427

(Households)' @

With central heating: Without sole use
of bath / shower and toilet Count 95 1,298 20,519 66,706
(Households): @

Without central heating (Households):

i ]

Count 437 8,014 234,644 1,744,144

Without central heating: Without sole  Count 43 725 11,441 32,739

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 10 of

13



Page 241

use of bath / shower and toilet
(Households)' @

Housing Stock @
All Household Spaces (Households)'# Count 5,060 94,616 3,109,657 21,262,825
Unoccupied Household Spaces: Vacant

household space (Households)' @ Count 115 2,265 77,845 676,196
Occupancy Rating @
Haringey
Bound;Green (London London England ©
Borough) &
All Households (Households): @ Count 4,933 92,170 3,015,997 20,451,427
OEELFEnEy (S 6F 4 2l e Count 1,204 25,060 991,846 10,050,403

(Households): @
Tenure (KS18) @

All Households (Households)' @ Count 4,933 92,170 3,015,997 20,451,427

Owner occupied: Owns outright
(Households)' &

Rented from: Housing Association /
Registered Social Landlord % 13.20 10.52 9.09 6.05
(Households)' @

Rented from: Private landlord or letting
agency (Households)' @

Rented from: Other (Households)' & % 3.73 3.78 2.93 3.22
Changes of Ownership by Dwelling Price @

Changes of Ownership by Dwelling
Price, Number of Transactions by

Dwelling Type: Flat (Dwellings)' @&
Changes of Ownership by Dwelling

Price, Number of Transactions by Trend
o C t 251 4,534 173,281 1,261
Dc\‘velling Type: Total Sales (Dwellings): Data oun > o3 3,281 1,261,536

% 16.78 16.22 22.05 29.19

% 19.54 20.13 14.34 8.80

Trend

Dat: Count 122 2,416 84,342 218,537
Data

Population Turnover Rates o

Inflow of Persons; All Ages (Persons)’* Trend Rs:i 92
o a4 000

: Rate
Outflow of Persons; All Ages (Persons)? Trend 120
1 Data per

- 1000

Age Groups — Summary a
Aege Groups - Summary; All People (Persons) -, ., 19 905 216,507 7,172,091 49,138,831
Age Groups - Summary; Aged 20-44; years % 47.08 46.81 42.72 35.31
(Persons)' @
Household Composition @
All Households (Households)' @ Count 4,933 92,170 3,015,997 20,451,427
One person: Other (Households)' @ % 24.85 25.53 22.04 15.70
One family and no others: Lone parent
households: With dependent children % 10.10 9.82 7.60 6.42
(Households)' @
Marital Status o
People aged 16 and over: Single (never % 48.51 49.15 41.23 30.23

married) (Persons)' @

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 11 of
13



Page 242

Ref: ®
http://neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadDatasetList.do?a=7&b=594207
8&c=Bounds+green&d=14&9=335118&i=1001x1003&m=0&enc=1&domainld=7

APPENDIX C: HARINGEY CRIME

Haringey Wards Figures — April-November 2006 compared to 2005

Ward Domestic MV Robbery Bicycle Vehicle Theft Theft Criminal Wounding Common Total
burglary Interference personal Theft theft/TDA from from  Damage Assault
property vehicle person

Highgate -14.4% -33.3% 0.0% 33.3% -17.8% 49.5% -15.4% -35.8% 28.6% 30.8% 1.1%
Fortis Green -32.6% 50.0% 50.0% -60.9% -14.9% 47.4% 111.1% -32.7% -22.0% 10.3% -7.7%
Alexandra -20.7% -87.5% -1.3% -50.0% -35.4% 19.2% 16.7% -17.2% -7.3% 35.7% -9.0%
Muswell Hill -22.2% -71.4% -43.1% -45.2% -17.0% 4.2% 20.0% -36.0% -6.0% -42.3% -20.5%
Hornsey -1.7% -100.0% -16.7% 8.7% -17.4% -25.2% 183.3% -29.3% 8.2% 2.6% -12.9%
Crouch End -46.5% -90.9% 88.0% 16.0% -32.0% 55.8% 89.5% -27.1% -26.9% -22.2%  -8.0%
Stroud Green 44.9% -71.4% 6.9% -6.7% -29.5% 21.5% 237.5% -23.5% -19.4% -64.0% 1.7%
Bounds Green -28.9% 0.0% 77.5% 40.0% -6.4% 30.9% 25.0% 4.0% -9.1% -9.8% 6.6%
Woodside -13.0% -75.0% 20.0% 116.7% -54.7% 9.6% 0.0% -19.7% -24.3% -37.5% -17.9%
Noel Park 59.4% -100.0% -36.7% 16.7% -4.0% -1.5% -15.9% -5.8% -7.7% -7.5% -7.9%
White Hart Lane -36.6% 0.0% -25.9% -66.7% -38.8% -8.2% 23.5% -22.6% -32.9% -56.8% -30.5%
West Green -2.1% -66.7% -17.5% 10.0% -47.8% 2.4% 0.0% -9.6% 12.5% -34.7% -9.9%
Bruce Grove -14.5% -50.0% -5.8% 50.0% -28.6% -17.4% -15.6% 0.8% -15.7% -27.7% -14.0%
Northumberland Park 2.3% -66.7% -21.6% -14.3% -17.8% -21.3% 72.6% -5.6% -18.3% 9.2% -8.1%
Tottenham Hale 20.5% -75.0% 6.8% 90.0% -35.1% -37.2% -6.9% -12.0% -15.8% -7.3% -11.7%
Tottenham Green -18.8% . -57.1% 11.1% -24.0% -60.5% -12.1% -20.6% -35.3% -40.0% -32.9%
Harringay 25.6% 0.0% 95.8% -36.4% -43.8% -18.8% 67.2% 12.3% 8.8% 19.4% 16.2%
St Ann's 4.0% 0.0% -29.1% 0.0% -14.1% -9.2% 54.3% -31.5% -12.8% -52.0% -14.6%
Seven Sisters -9.0% -100.0% -40.4% -56.5% -12.3% 3.4% -33.8% -30.1% -40.4% 51.5% -22.5%
Total -9.1% -63.9% -13.2% -9.4% -27.1% 0.2% 8.5% -18.1% -16.6% -19.2%

Note: Percentage changes for MV interference and Bicycle theft need to be read in context with actual number of crimes
which are usually no more than 2 or 3.
.. Denotes that a percentage change could not be calculated because there were 0 offences in the previous performance

year.

Bounds Green Ward Key Performance

Crime

BCS crime offences in Bounds Green ward have increased by over 6%
compared to a 14.4% reduction throughout the borough between April and
November 2006 compared to the same period last year. ASB related offences of
Criminal Damage and Motor Vehicle Interference remained largely unchanged
(the 4% increase in Criminal Damages offences was a result of only 4 additional
offences). Burglary showed the greatest year-on-year reduction of 28.9%
surpassing the 9.9% borough performance. However ‘street-crime’ type offences
of Robbery of Personal Property (77.5%), Theft from Person (25%) and Theft
from a MV (30.9%) all saw considerable increases. The Robbery increase is
especially notable as most of the other wards have seen reductions and
Haringey currently has an overall reduction of 17.3%.

Anti-Social Behaviour

Bounds Green ward was identified as one of the top three wards for Disorder
CAD calls (calls requiring Police action relating to public disorder), non-domestic

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI Page 12 of
13



Page 243

noise complaints, abandoned vehicles between January and June 2006. Hotspot
locations for Disorder CAD calls were located on the Myddleton Road area.

Borough performance

Target 2006/07 PYTD (April- | November 2006 November
November) compared to | 2006 compared
November 2005 to October
2006
BCS Comparator 4.1% reduction 3.8% up
Crimes
Burglary 5% reduction 1.2% up 6.5% up
Key Points:

e There was a fall of 14.4% in the number of British Crime Survey (BCS)
comparator crimes in the performance year to date compared with the

same period last year.

o All of the BCS crime types have seen a decrease in the performance year
to date, and most have decreased between November 2005 and
November 2006. However, since the previous month, half of the crime
types have seen increases between October and November 2006.

e Between October and November 2006, there was an increase of 3.8% in
the BCS comparator crimes.

o Despite the decreases, Haringey has the highest incidence of burglar
(6.93 crimes per 1,000 households), among its ‘Most Similar’ CDRPs .

Burglary per 1,000 households — comparison chart,
Dec 2003 — Nov 2006

.....

Duc Jan Fubh Ms A Ky An
m M R M K b n

A g TEp
[

Od M Dac dn Feb ka Ap Aw An W@ Lg T Od
®m oM om m m mom m m

M Dac Jan Fumb Mm Ap Mw n W0 Mg Sep Od M
m m m m m m m m m m|m

Metropolitan Police - Haringey

MSCORP Avg

Metropolitan Police

" iQuanta comparisons are made using Most Similar comparison groups. These groups provide a
benchmark for comparison of crime rates with similar areas elsewhere in England and Wales. The Most
Similar CDRPs to Haringey, making up the ‘Haringey Family’, are: the London boroughs of Brent, Croydon,
Ealing, Enfield, Greenwich, Hackney, Hounslow, Lambeth, Lewisham, Newham, Southwark and Waltham

Forest, plus Birmingham and Leicester.

Executive20070123 Agendaitem14DiscretionaryLicensing0.docENSGLZI

13

Page 13 of




Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 245 Agenda ltem 15

HARINGEY COUNCIL

V11

Report to The Executive 23" January 2007

Report Title: Recycling Strategy

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): n/a

Report of: Stephen McDonnell, Assistant Director Streetscene

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:
e propose the adoption of a Recycling Strategy for Haringey; and

¢ outline the options for developing the recycling collection service over the
next two years.

1.2 The proposed Recycling Strategy for Haringey sets out a vision for recycling in
Haringey in the period until 2020 and identifies the aims and objectives for
delivering this.

1.3 Recycling collection services will need to be developed to achieve equitable
services for all residents providing the opportunity to recycle the full range of
materials as conveniently as possible. This will require the expansion of doorstep
and near-entry collection services for residents in blocks of flats, including Homes
for Haringey estates, and the development of kerbside collection services to

- capture the full range of materials. This report sets out the options for expanding
and developing recycling collection services over the next two years leading into
the tendering of a new Integrated Waste Management Contract due to commence
in December 2009.

2.  Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 The recycling collection service is one of the most high-profile and strategically
important services provided by the Council. The introduction of statutory recycling
targets, the Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme and the planned tendering of a
new waste management contract to commence in December 2009 make it
necessary for the Council to adopt a strategy for developing recycling collection
services in Haringey. This strategy must provide a vision for recycling in Haringey
and identify the aims, objectives and actions that will deliver the vision between
now and 2020.




Page 246

2.2 The Council has been able to meet past statutory recycling targets by rolling out
new services with significant levels of funding provided by successful bids to
various funding bodies and through mainstream funding. Two of the most
important issues that now need to be addressed are the standardisation of
collection services to collect the full range of recyclables and the provision of easy
to use and convenient services to all households. This can be achieved by
expanding doorstep and near-entry collections to all households in blocks of flats,
including Homes for Haringey estates, and by developing the kerbside collection
service to capture the full range of recyclable materials.

2.3 This report proposes the adoption of a Recycling Strategy for Haringey that sets
out the vision for recycling services along with the aims and objectives that have
been identified to turn the vision into reality. It also sets out the options for
expanding and developing services in 2007/08 and 2008/09 which will build on the
good progress already made in Haringey.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Recycling Strategy for Haringey is adopted by the Council and that it be
reviewed and updated annually in consultation with the Lead Member for
Environment. (para. 7.2.4).

3.2 That the Council considers the options presented in Section 7 of this report and
agrees to adopt the option that will deliver services capable of meeting the
expectations of residents, achieve higher recycling rates and compliance with
the EU Landfill Directive (para. 8.7).

Report Authorised by: Graham Beattie, Interim Director of Urban Environment

Contact Officer: Michael McNicholas, Acting Head of Waste Management

Tel: 020 8489 5661
e-mail: michael. mcnicholas@haringey.gov.uk




Page 247

42

Director of Finance Comments

This report presents a Recycling Strategy for Haringey and considers options to
develop recycling services further. The capital and revenue costs associated with

each option are detailed in the table below.

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
(Base Position)

£000 £000 £000
Capital Cost - 1,485 3,030
Additional Capital Requirement - 1,485 3,030
Revenue Cost — Collection (a) 1,384 1,679 2,898
Additional Revenue Requirement - 295 1,514
Net Revenue Cost/Saving —
Treatment / Disposal (b) -131 -2 -643
Total Net Revenue Cost (a + b) 1,253 1,677 2,255
Tonnage collected (tonnes) 13,000 19,760 19,760
Revenue‘cost per tonne £96 £85 £114
Recycling performance 22-24% 28-30% 28-30%

It is anticipated that the additional services will be implemented over the next 2
financial years and the estimated phasing of capital and revenue costs are as

indicated in the table below.

£000 Option 2 Total Option 3 Total
2007/08 | 2008/09 2007/08 | 2008/09

Capital 1,080 405 1,485 1,950 1,080 3,030

Revenue 132 163 295 230 1,285 1,515

Total 1,212 568 1,780 2,180 2,365 4,545

4.3

4.4

The Council’s budget process for 2007/08 to 2010/11 includes indicative bids for
the additional capital and revenue requirements in respect of extending recycling
services.

The capital and revenue costs identified above are in respect of collection services
and treatment and disposal services. The treatment costs associated with option 2

~are significantly more than option 3 as gate fees of £48 per tonne are payable for
mixed multi-materials, whereas materials collected under option 3 can be sold and
an income received. However, overall costs for option 2 are still lower than option
3 due to the much higher revenue costs associated with the collection services
required under option 3.




Page 248

4.5 The report also considers other measures which are likely to have a financial
impact within this financial planning cycle. These include:

o the introduction of wheeled bins for collecting recycling materials,
estimated capital cost of £2m,

o fortnightly residual waste collection service estimated to deliver a saving of
approximately £1m per annum. This is likely to be a consideration for the
new integrated waste management contract and

o extending recycling collection services to households in blocks of flats.

4.6  The introduction of these measures will be subject to further detailed reports to
Members for approval.

5 Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 The Council has a statutory duty to comply with targets in respect of recycling as

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

set out by the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and subsequent government
guidance.

To assist the Council in meeting these targets, Environmental Services Directorate
has produced a Recycling Strategy for approval by Members.

When deciding which option to approve, Members will need to bear in mind these
recycling targets, and the impact that the respective options will have on the
environment.

The Head of Legal Services notes the contents of the report and advises that there
are no legal reasons preventing Members from approving one of the options set out
in the report.

In respect of the future waste management contract, Environmental Services
Directorate should ensure that legal advice is sought at all stages of the
procurement.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Integrated Waste Management and Transport Contract with Haringey Accord Ltd
North London Joint Waste Strategy 2004-2020

Streetscene Pre-business Plan Review, 2007/08

The EU Landfill Directive

The Mayor's Municipal Waste Strategy

Environmental Protection Act, 1990




71
7.1.1

7.1.2

7.2
7.21

7.2.2

Page 249

Strategic Implications

Influences on Recycling Strategy

The Council stands at a critical point in the evolution of its recycling services. The
current recycling collection service is likely to deliver a recycling rate of around
22% for this year, which would be on target based on locally set performance
indicators. The same service is probably capable of delivering up to a maximum
24% recycling rate provided participation campaigns and communications
strategies are successful in encouraging more residents to use the existing
services.

However, recycling collection services need to be developed for four important
reasons. These are as follows;

» current service provision is inequitable with residents in different parts of the
borough experiencing different levels of service;

e to achieve rates of 35% recycling and composting by 2010 and 45% by 2015
as set out in the North London Joint Waste Strategy (NLJWS);

e the Government is considering a new round of statutory recycling targets and
it would be prudent to plan now for Haringey’s new statutory target to be
increased in stages in line with the targets in the NLJWS: and

e the Integrated Waste Management and Transport Contract expires in
December 2009 and the current range of recycling services may not transfer
easily into the new contract that will replace it.

It is essential that a recycling strategy is developed that addresses these issues
and that options for delivering the necessary changes and improvements to
services are brought forward for consideration.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey
The Council needs to consider how to develop existing recycling service provision
so that the above-mentioned issues are addressed. Appendix A attached to this
report is the proposed Recycling Strategy for Haringey, 2006 to 2020. The
Strategy maps out a vision for recycling in Haringey and identifies the following
aims:
 to provide a high quality, convenient recycling service which is easy to use
and meets the needs of residents;
« for all households in Haringey to have a kerbside, doorstep or near entry
recycling collection with the ability to recycle the same range of materials;
 to educate residents and work with schools to educate young people about
the impact of waste on the environment and promote waste minimisation
and recycling as the way forward; and
o for the Council itself to lead by example through workplace recycling and
‘green procurement’ policies.

The Recycling Strategy for Haringey has two key objectives. These are:
» Objective 1 - to achieve zero growth in waste arisings in Haringey in terms
of BVPI 84, kg of waste generated per head by 2010/11, using 2005/06
baseline figures and
e Objective 2 - to increase the amount of waste recycled and composted in
Haringey to 35% by 2010/11 and 45% by 2020/21.



7.2.3

7.2.4

7.3
7.31

7.3.2

7.3.3

Page 250

These aims and objectives are linked to the NLJWS which the seven north London
Boroughs and the North London Waste Authority have all formally adopted. The
Recycling Strategy for Haringey defines a range of actions that will need to be
undertaken to achieve the stated objectives. The Strategy will need to be
constantly reviewed and updated to adapt to changes in services, technology and
statutory targets, and to ensure that it continues to meet the vision, aims and
objectives set down.

It is recommended that the Recycling Strategy for Haringey is adopted by the
Council and that it be reviewed annually in consultation with the Lead Member for
Environment.

Options Analysis

In order to meet the first two of the four stated aims of the Recycling Strategy for
Haringey, existing service provision will need to change. The two most important
areas of service development are;

s doorstep and near entry recycling collection services for the full range of
materials from properties in blocks of flats, including all Homes for Haringey
estates; and

¢ provision of recycling collection services for the full range of materials to all
kerbside properties.

The current household recycling collection services in Haringey fall into the
following categories:

e Kkerbside sort, limited range of dry recyclable materials collected and sorted
at the kerbside from approximately 40,000 households;

e green waste collection from 20,000 households that also receive kerbside
sort collections;

e kerbside mixed multi-material service, full range of mixed materials, including
green and organic waste, collected from approximately 35,000 households;

e doorstep and near-entry collection trial for the collection of mixed multi-
materials from 6,000 Homes for Haringey households in blocks of flats, which
commenced in November 2006;

e on-street banks, network of separate, limited-range material banks placed at
strategic locations around the borough to service households, usually flats,
that cannot have a kerbside collection; and

e collection of white goods through the free white goods collection service and
the community clear up service.

In addition residents can recycle a wide range of materials at the Council’s two Re-
use and Recycling Centres in Tottenham and Hornsey.

The development of doorstep and near-entry collection services from Homes for
Haringey estates in 2007/08 and 2008/09 is proposed as part of the 2007/08
Streetscene Pre-Business Plan Review process. Subject to approval, this would
provide for the expansion of the trial of the doorstep recycling collections to include
the collection of food waste from 3,000 Homes for Haringey properties and the
setting up of a service to collect dry recyclable materials from 5,000 street facing
blocks of flats, both from April 2007. The roll-out of doorstep and near-entry
collection services to all remaining 10,000 properties in blocks of flats, has also
been identified as part of the business planning process and, if approved, these
services could commence in 2008/09. The split between doorstep and near-entry

6



7.3.4

7.3.5

7.4
7.4.1

7.42

7.5
7.5.1

Page 251

collection roll out would be dependant upon the outcomes from the trial currently

being conducted.

With regard to the kerbside collection service there are three potential options.

These are as follows;

e option 1, no change, continue with current range of kerbside service provision;

e option 2, expand mixed multi-material collection service to all 75,000 kerbside
properties and discontinue hand-sorted collections; or

e option 3, expand hand-sorted collection service to all 75,000 kerbside
properties and discontinue mixed multi-material collection service.

The kerbside collection service plays a pivotal role in the overall recycling collection
service as it makes the most significant contribution towards the recycling rate
achieved in Haringey. It is also likely to have a major influence on the specifications
set down in the new Integrated Waste Management and Transport Contract from
2009. Therefore, it is vital that development of this service is efficient, effective and
sustainable. The options for the kerbside collection service and the relative
advantages and disadvantages of each option are detailed below.

Option 1, No Change
Kerbside collection services are currently provided through a combination of hand
sorted, mixed multi-material and green waste collections. The advantages of
continuing with the current range of collection services are;

e no additional revenue expenditure required; and

* no additional capital expenditure required in the next 3 to 4 years.

The disadvantages of continuing with the current range of collection services are;
the service received by residents is inequitable;
the Council will not meet locally set targets or the targets set down in the
North London Joint Waste Strategy;

e the Council will not be in a position to meet any new statutory recycling
targets set by the Government;

e the current range of service provision would not be as clearly and easily
specified within the new Integrated Waste Management and Transport
contract as a borough-wide, single mode of operation collection service
would be; and

e communications with residents are made difficult due to the different levels of
service provided to different households.

Option 2, Expand Mixed Multi-material Kerbside Collections
The advantages of expanding mixed multi-material collections to all kerbside
properties are:
¢ the service would offer the best value for money overall;
o the service received by residents would be equitable;
e a wider range of materials would be captured;
» the Council would be in a better position to meet locally set recycling targets
_.and the targets set out in the NLJWS; S
e the service could be easily specified within the new Integrated Waste
Management and Transport contract;
e communications with residents would be much easier due to the consistent
service levels across the borough; and
e the service can be adapted to use wheelie bins.

7



7.5.2

7.5.3

754

7.5.5

7.6
7.6.1

7.6.2

7.6.3

7.6.4

Page 252

The disadvantages of expanding mixed multi-material collections are;
e additional revenue and capital expenditure would be required; and

o the materials collected would not have a saleable value and would attract
treatment costs.

It has been estimated that this service could be provided through the deployment of
nine split-back, refuse collection vehicles, with compaction capability and up to 10
tonnes payload, at one pass per week.

It is anticipated that option 2 would provide the potential for achieving a recycling
rate of between 28% and 30%.

It should be noted that mixed multi-material recycling is delivered to the NLWA
under their powers of direction. Whilst the Council seeks to work closely with the
NLWA in developing recycling collection services, it is the NLWA that enters into
contracts for onward processing and treatment of materials delivered by the seven
north London Boroughs.

Option 3, Expand Kerbside Sort Collection of Multi-materials
The advantages of expanding kerbside sort collection of multi-materials are;
the service received by residents would be equitable;
e 3 widar range of materials would be captured;
the Cauncil would be in a better position to meet targets set out in the
NLJWS;
¢ = service could be easily specified within the new Integrated Waste
Maragement and Transport contract;
e communications with residents would be much easier due to the consistent
service levels across the borough; and
¢ the materials collected would have a saleable value and would not attract
treatment costs.

The disadvantages of expanding kerbside sort collection of multi-materials are;
¢ the service does not offer as good value for money as option 2 for the same
outputs;
¢ additional revenue and capital expenditure would be required and at a higher
level than for option 2; and
¢ the service cannot be adapted to use wheelie bins.

It has been estimated that this service could be provided through the deployment of
a total of twenty six service vehicles made up of sixteen kerbside sort plus two
refuse collection support vehicles, and eight green waste refuse collection vehicles.
The vehicle provision required is substantially higher than for option 2 because kerb
side sort collections move at a slower pace than mixed multi-material collections, do
not have compaction capability and carry only 2 tonnes payload. Without
compaction capability kerbside sort collection vehicles would have insufficient
capacity to hold the volume of cardboard and plastics being collected, hence the
requirement for two support vehicles.

It is anticipated that option 3 would provide the potential for a recycling rate of
between 28% and 30%.



Page 253

7.6.5 It should be noted that hand-sorted materials are not currently under the power of

7.7
7.71

direction of NLWA and the Council is currently able to make its own arrangements
for selling these to achieve the best prices.

Other influencing factors

There are a number of other influencing factors which will need to be taken into
consideration in deciding which option is the most appropriate for Haringey. These
are;

environmental sustainability;

the new Integrated Waste Management and Transport Contract;

use of wheelie bins for recycling collections; and

depot facilities.

7.7.2 Environmental sustainability
7.7.21 The provision of recycling collection services has a distinct environmental

impact in respect of the range of materials collected, the number of vehicles used to
collect them and the transport, sorting and reprocessing of those materials after
collection. It would be a very complex task to analyse all elements of the recycling
process and there would be many factors to quantify in order to reach any
conclusion over the full environmental impact of different collection options. In
addition, the factors that affect environmental impact are subject to change almost
on a daily basis and many of these are outside the control of the Council.

7.7.2.2 However, it is possible to make a comparison between the three options in

terms of the environmental impact of CO2 emissions for each of the collection
services. Table A below shows the estimated level of CO2 emissions created by
options 1, 2 and 3.

Table A
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Estimated level of 526 tonnes per 796 tonnes per 995 tonnes per
CO, emissions annum. annum annum

7.7.2.3  Table A shows that of the two options that are capable of delivering higher rates

of recycling, the CO, emissions under option 2 are 25% lower than that for option 3.
This is due to the higher number of vehicles deployed to provide the hand sorted
service. The number of vehicles that would be deployed under option 3 would also
increase the level of congestion in Haringey to a limited degree.

7.7.3 New Integrated Waste Management and Transport Contract
7.7.3.1  The current Integrated Waste Management and Transport Contract is due to

expire in December 2009. The Waste Management Service will begin the process

of creating a new integrated contract early in 2007. As the emphasis of waste
management services changes from disposing of waste to recycling, it is vital that
the savings that can be achieved from falling levels of waste can be recognised and
reinvested in recycling services. This is only truly possible if both services are
delivered under one, integrated contract so that the service provider can switch
resources as a result of changing levels of waste and recycling, keeping overall
service provision costs as low as possible. Therefore, the new Integrated Waste
Management and Transport Contract is likely to include the provision of recycling




Page 254

collection services and as such the option chosen going forward will potentially have
a long-term impact.

7.7.3.2 A key consideration for the new contract will be whether Haringey should move
towards fortnightly collections of residual waste. Boroughs that have introduced
fortnightly residual waste collections have reported that savings have been
recognised from doing so. Based on the information available the estimated level of
savings could be around £1m per annum. This, and the possible inclusion of
recycling collection services, would need to be considered as part of the scoping for

% the new Integrated Waste Management Contract. A scoping document will be

brought to Committee later this year which will provide detailed proposals for the
new integrated contract.

7.7.4 Use of wheelie bins for recycling collections
7.7.41 Of the three options available to the Council for kerbside collections, the only
one which offers the opportunity to incorporate the use of wheelie bins to all
households where this is practicable, is option 2. This is a significant consideration
because wheelie bins offer;
¢ a more healthy and safe collection service;
e speedier collections where high recycling volumes may otherwise require
muitiple individual collection boxes; and
e best use of space where front gardens might not be large enough to store
the number and range of recycling containers required for the full range of
materials.

7.7.4.2  Should the Council decide to move towards fortnightly refuse and recycling
collection services, the use of wheelie bins for both types of collection service would
be a key consideration. Fortnightly collection services are not universally welcomed
where they have been introduced but would be more likely to succeed if residents
have been provided with separate containers which have sufficient capacity to hold
all of their residual and recyclable waste. It has been estimated that introducing
wheelie bins for kerbside recycling collections would cost £2m.

7.7.5 Depot facilities

7.7.5.1 The major implication of any decision to adopt either option 2 or 3 relates to the
provision of depots to operate recycling collection services. Should the Council
adopt Option 2 there is a real possibility that the Western Road depot currently used
to operate the service may no longer be required. Western Road depot itself already
has a limited life due to the plans for developing the Heartlands in the next 2 to 3
years. Its main operational use is currently as a bulking facility for separated
materials from kerbside sort collections and bring banks, and for parking operational
vehicles.

7.7.5.2 If Option 2 was pursued the need for the bulking facility would reduce substantially
as most recyclables would be delivered direct to Edmonton and if the current
network of bring banks for separated materials were converted to mixed multi-

- materials, Western Road would no longer be required as a bulking facility at all.
Provided space could be found to park displaced service vehicles and
accommodate operational staff at Ashley Road depot, Option 2 provides the Council
with the possibility of selling Western Road and gaining a capital receipt with no
requirement to purchase an alternative site. Should this depot strategy be adopted it
would be necessary to invest capital in improving the infrastructure of Ashley Road

10



Page 255

depot to accommodate the relocation of the recycling service, including vehicles
and operatives.

7.7.5.3 Conversely, should the Council adopt Option 3, there is no possibility that the
increased bulking activity and size of fleet could be accommodated either at
Western Road or any similar sized site that may replace it in future. Therefore, any
site which does replace Western Road would have to be substantially larger and
would require capital investment in infrastructure. As a result the Council would
need to make a substantial capital provision for a depot facility capable of sustaining
this type of collection service.

7.8 Table 4 in appendix B provides an indication of the levels of capital expenditure or
receipts that may be derived from the decision to adopt option 2 or 3.

8. Financial Implications

8.1  Appendix B attached to this report provides a breakdown of the capital costs for
Options 1, 2 and 3. These costs include the proposed expansion of the doorstep
collection trial to include food waste collections from 3,000 properties and the
introduction of a collection service for 5,000 properties in street-facing blocks of
flats. Table A below provides a summary of the key financial implications of options

1,2 and 3.
Table A

Option 1 Option2 Option 3
Revenue collection costs per annum £1.384m £1.679m £2,898m
Net revenue collection & treatment £1,253m £1,677m £2,255m
costs / disposal savings per annum
Cost per tonne £96 £85 £114
Additional revenue requirement for £0 £295k £1,515m
collection service
Additional capital requirement for £0 £1,485m £3,030m
vehicles and containers '

8.2 Table A shows that, in terms of revenue and capital investment, Option 2 provides
the best value for money in delivering the aims and objectives of the Recycling
Strategy for Haringey.

8.3  If Option 2 or 3 were adopted the Waste Management Service would roll-out the
new services phased over two years. Tables 2 and 3 of Appendix B show how the
services and associated revenue and capital costs for year 1 and year 2 would be
rolled-out. oo , ; Bitine Btenating

8.4 Other factors that will affect the estimated costs of recycling and waste collections
in future include:

e recycling credit scheme and tonnage-based levy
e the Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS)



8.4.1

Page 256
¢ changes in gate fees and disposal costs

Recycling credit scheme and tonnage-based levy

8.4.1.1  The recycling credit scheme allowed for waste collection authorities to receive

payments from waste disposal authorities for materials sent for recycling. Payments
were based on the highest waste disposal cost that would have been charged had
the materials been disposed of rather than recycled. The recycling credit scheme is
in the process of being phased out and will no longer play a role in financial cost
analysis after 2008. For this reason recycling credits have not been included in
financial estimates for options 1, 2 and 3.

8.4.1.2 Instead of receiving recycling credits, Haringey will benefit from recycling

through a lower levy from the NLWA as household waste disposal weights fall due
to higher levels of recycling. In addition, the system of charging a levy based on
number of council-tax band D properties is being phased out in favour of an actual
onnage-based levy. These factors together provide Haringey with an incentive to
achieve higher recycling rates as the full effect of all of the potential savings from
recycling will come back to Haringey.

8.4.2 Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS)
8.4.2.1 LATS is a system whereby Waste Disposal Authorities are issued with allowances

for sending waste to landfill. Landfill allowances will be reduced over time to
encourage more sustainable waste management policies like recycling, waste
minimisation and re-use. At the moment the NLWA has spare allowances and these
will be banked. It is difficult to predict, but over time these banked allowances could
be sold to other authorities that may be in danger of exceeding their allotted
allowances, which may generate additional income for NLWA. However as the
value of LATS is not yet clear it is not possible to predict how much income will be
generated. Nevertheless, it is likely that boroughs failing to achieve the reductions in
landfilling required to meet allowances set by Government can expect to pay fines
of around £150 per tonne. The cost of not complying with set allowances is not
sustainable.

8.4.3 Changes in gate fees and disposal costs

8.4.3.1

8.5

The cost of disposing of residual waste in future can be expected to rise much
faster than the gate fees for disposing of materials collected for recycling. This is
because regulations for disposal of waste will make it more costly to treat and
dispose of and because of the landfill tax escalator. Therefore, the value of the
savings made by recycling instead of disposing of waste will increase over time.
Options 2 and 3 estimate that there will be an increase in recycling tonnage of
around 6,760 tonnes per annum. Based on this estimated increase in tonnage the
Council would avoid additional landfill tax levy costs of £95,000 per annum by
2011/12 under plans to escalate the tax from the current level of £21 per tonne to
£35 per tonne.

‘As referred to in Section 7.7.5 above, option 2 provides the potential to recognise a

capital receipt from the sale of Western Road depot without the need to purchase a
new site for bulking of sorted recyclable materials. Conversely, option 3 would
require the capital purchase of a new site, larger than Western Road depot, to allow
bulking of substantially higher volumes of recyclable materials than are currently
handled. ‘

12



8.6

- 8.7

10.
10.1

11.
111

11.2

11.3

12.
12.1

12.2

Page 257

In drawing up the financial estimates provided in this report a number of
assumptions have been made. These are detailed in Appendix C attached to this
report.

It is recommended that the Council considers the options presented in Section 7 of
this report and agrees to adopt the option that will deliver services capable of
meeting the expectations of residents, achieve higher recycling rates and
compliance with the EU Landfill Directive.

Legal implications
The Legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report are
outlined in Section 5 above.

Equalities

Options 2 and 3 are designed to provide comprehensive recycling collection
services that give all residents and sections of the community the opportunity to
recycle as many different materials as possible and as conveniently as possible.

Consultation

Homes for Haringey is regarded as one of our most important partners in
delivering recycling services to residents. The Waste Management Service has
consulted with Homes for Haringey with regard to the Recycling Strategy for
Haringey. Consultation has also taken place in regard to the introduction of the
trial of doorstep and near-entry collections to ensure that the properties chosen will
give a good indication of how successfully the service can be rolled out to other
locations.

During the summer of 2006, the Streetscene Business Unit held six focus groups
with residents to gain feedback on Streetscene services. Residents were generally
positive about the improvements in recycling services, but some were not clear
about what they could recycle, where and how. There was a lack of understanding
about the recycling process, especially mixed collections. There was some
dissatisfaction when residents saw separated items being loaded onto collection
vehicles together. Residents said they would welcome more communications.
Options 2 and 3 would allow the Council to address many of the issues raised by
the focus groups in a more uniform and comprehensive manner.

In drawing up the Recycling Strategy for Haringey, officers have visited other
boroughs to see how their collection schemes work, learn from beacon councils for
recycling and understand more about those who are already carrying out the types
of service not currently being provided in Haringey.

Background

Recycling collection services in Haringey are currently provided through different
collection methodologies in different parts of the borough which are capable of
capturing different ranges of materials. The majority of the kerbside collection
services provided have come on stream over the last 3 years and have been
funded through a combination of grant and mainstream funding.

In July 2006 the Executive approved the recommendation to bring the Recycling

Collection Service in house. The service came in-house on 23™ September 2006.
The central drivers behind the decision to bring the service in house were that this
would provide the Council with a better understanding of the cost of delivering the

13



12.3

12.4

13.
13.1

14.
141

Page 258

service and it would provide the greatest degree of flexibility to deliver the

recycling services that will meet strategic aims, government targets and residents’
requirements. The provision of different collection methodologies through an in-
house service has provided the Council with the opportunity to assess how each of
these compare in a number of important ways. These are as follows:

revenue and capital costs of collection services
cost of / income from disposal

number of households covered per round
tonnage collected per round

participation rates

contribution to recycling rate

challenges experienced in service delivery and
depot provision requirement

Although the current recycling collection service has provided the opportunity for
the Council to assess how each of these compare, it is also the case that the
current services are not equitable. Some residents can recycle 4 materials (not
including plastic and cardboard) from their doorstep through the hand-sorted
kerbside collection service, complemented for some households with a green
waste collection. Others residents can recycle 6 materials (including plastic and
cardboard) from their doorstep through the mixed multi-material collection service.
A trial of doorstep collections from blocks of flats commenced in November 2006,
but in the meantime most residents in flats cannot recycle any materials from their
doorstep and have to rely on the bring bank network to be able to recycle.

Residents who are interested in recycling are usually keen to recycle as many
materials as possible. Residents are more likely to participate when the service
provided is easy and convenient to use. The inequality of service in Haringey has
prompted many residents to lobby the Council to expand the range of materials
that are collected from them or, in the case of blocks of flats, introduce facilities
that are more convenient to use. The inequality of service also means that the
Council has to produce different communications material for different households
and there has been some confusion amongst residents as to what can or can’t be
recycled. Such confusion can act as a disincentive to recycle and reduce
participation and capture rates.

Conclusion

Haringey needs to consider the adoption of a recycling strategy to ensure that the
recycling collection service is developed within a clearly understood framework
which will deliver more equitable services that achieve higher rates of recycling. In
addition, the strategy will need to focus on how services will be developed to fit
effectively into the new integrated waste management contract, ensuring that the
efficiencies to be gained from rising levels of recycling and falling levels of waste,
are recognised and the savings returned to the Council.

" Use of appendices

Appendix A - Proposed Recycling Strategy for Haringey
Appendix B- Tables 1, 2, 3 and 4 showing breakdown of costs.

Appendix C -  Tables showing assumptions made in financial estimates

14



Page 259

RECYCLING STRATEGY REPORT APPENDIX A

RECYCLING STRATEGY
FOR HARINGEY

2006 — 2020

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 1 of 28



Page 260

CONTENTS PAGE

INTRODUCTION

THE WIDER WASTE FRAMEWORK

LocCAL POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES
RECYCLING SERVICES IN HARINGEY
CONSULTATION AND FEEDBACK
LEARNING FROM BEACON AUTHORITIES
OUR PARTNERS

OUR VISION

HARINGEY’S CHALLENGES

ACTIONS

APPENDIX 1 — GAPS IN THE SERVICE REQUIRING ADDITIONAL
INVESTMENT

APPENDIX 2 — REVENUE AND CAPITAL BIDS MADE AS PART OF THE
STREETSCENE PRE-BUSINESS PLAN REVIEW — 2007/08

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 2 of 28



Page 261

INTRODUCTION

Waste management faces tough challenges. In Haringey, nearly 85,000 tonnes of
household waste are produced each year, equivalent to nearly a tonne of waste per home.

There are many ways of dealing with waste and reducing the amount which has to be
disposed of. This is illustrated by the waste hierarchy below. The more environmentally
friendly options are at the top of the hierarchy, with disposal being the least
environmentally friendly option at the bottom.

This shows that it is better to produce less waste in the first place, but where waste does
exist, it is better to reuse items (thus keeping it out of the waste stream). Recycling comes
in the middle of the hierarchy and means that materials are reprocessed into new
materials. This is followed by recovery which includes incineration which generates energy
from waste. Disposal (to landfill) lies at the bottom of the hierarchy and we should aim for
as little waste as possible to fall into this category.

Figure 1: The Waste Hierarchy

 Recover

Disposal

The amount of waste produced in North London has been climbing steadily at a rate of
2.5% over recent years. There are tough recycling targets in place for Local Authorities to
ensure that as more waste is produced, there is an increased emphasis on recycling.

Without any attempt to reduce this trend of waste growth, by 2020 an extra 36,000 tonnes
of waste will be produced each year. This is equivalent to a 40% growth in waste between

The graph below illustrates this increase in waste until 2020, and shows the amount of

recyclables that will need to be captured to meet recycling targets as set by Government

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 3 of 28



Page 262

and as agreed with the North London Waste Authority. The graph also shows the effect of
waste minimisation activities resulting in zero waste growth over the period until 2020.

Waste and recycling growth till 2020

140,000

120,000

100,000 -

80,000

Annual
Tonnage

60,000

Target 35%
by 2010

40,000 -

20,000

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Year

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 4 of 28



Page 263

THE WIDER WASTE FRAMEWORK

The following is an overview of regional, national and European strategies and legislation
that are key drivers to Haringey's recycling service.

The Landfill Directive

The Landfill Directive came into force in 1999 with the aim of reducing landfilling, by
encouraging Local Authorities to introduce strategies to reduce the amount of
biodegradable municipal wastes going to landfill, and banning the landfilling of certain
wastes such as tyres.

The Landfill Directive requires that the amount of biodegradable waste sent to landfill is
reduced to 75% of 1995 levels by 2010, by 50% of 1995 levels by July 2013 and by 35%
of 1995 levels by 2020.

Authorities are issued with an allowance for landfill, to help reduce reliance on disposal.
Authorities can bank, borrow or trade their allowance, under the Landfill Allowance Trading
Scheme (LATS).
» Bank — authorities which have surplus allowances can ‘bank’ them for use in future
years (however allowances do expire at each of the target years, the first being
2010 which encourages authorities to use or loose spare allowances).
Borrow — authorities which exceed their landfill allowance can borrow their future
allowances whilst they put in place measures to meet their targets.
Trade - authorities can trade or sell allowances with other authorities. This is a
distinct financial incentive for authorities to increase the amount of waste which is
recycled and composted and reduce the amount of waste disposed of via landfill.

Authorities which exceed their landfill allowances without trading credits as outlined above
risk a fine of £150 for every tonne by which their allowance was exceeded. Furthermore, if
England misses its overall targets then the EU can fine the Government £500,000 per day.
This cost can be expected to be redistributed to those authorities failing to meet their
landfill targets.

Allowances are allocated to Waste Disposal Authorities, which for Haringey is the North
London Waste Authority (NLWA). However, Waste Collection Authorities such as Haringey
need to work very closely with their disposal authorities to ensure that the allowance
scheme works effectively and that LATS targets are met. Should the NLWA exceed its
landfill allowances then the costs would be borne through the NLWA and recovered
through the levy in proportion to amount of waste produced by the failing authorities.

The LATS targets provide a clear fiscal incentive for authorities to increase the amount of
bio-degradable waste collected for recycling and/or composting, including food and green
garden waste, and paper and cardboard.

Furthermore, waste produced by businesses (non-household waste) also contributes to
the authority’s tonnage so this provides an incentive for boroughs to reduce trade waste
through recycling and composting schemes.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 5 of 28



Page 264

The introduction in Haringey of a kerbside food waste collection scheme will prove an
important factor in reducing the amount of biodegradable municipal waste landfilled by the
council and thus should be considered an important step towards the implementation of
the NLWA's waste strategy.

Statutory Requirements

Recycling performance is subject to statutory targets. In 2005/6 Haringey's statutory target
was to recycle 18% of households waste, which was exceeded with audited performance
of 19.23% recycling for the year as a whole. Further statutory recycling targets are
expected to be set by Government when the Waste Strategy Review is published in 2007.

Mayors Waste Strategy

Published in 2003, the Mayors Waste Strategy sets out a vision for London to help the city
manage its waste better, so that its impact on the local and global environment and on
London communities, economy and health is minimised.

In line with Government’s ‘Waste Strategy 2000’ report, the Mayor’s strategy sets out the
following targets:

To recycle or compost at least 25% of household waste by 2005

To recycle or compost at least 30% of household waste by 2010

To recycle or compost at least 33% of household waste by 2015

The NLWA Joint Waste Strategy

The seven North London boroughs, in partnership with the NLWA, have produced a joint
waste strategy for 2004-2020. This was formally adopted by Haringey at full Council on
15" November 2004. This strategy will provide the policy basis for how Haringey Council
will deal with its waste until 2020.

This Recycling Strategy has been developed in line with the agreed principles of the
NLJWS which includes:

Waste reduction and minimisation activities

Support of waste reuse schemes

Home and community composting initiatives

Supply of a bring recycling system

Continuous improvement of Reuse & Recycling Centres

Provision of doorstep recycling services

Recycling services for properties of multiple occupancy

Minimising disposal to landfill.

The NLJWS also sets out challenging recycling targets for the partner authorities:
To recycle or compost 35% of household waste by 2010.
To recycle or compost 45% of household waste by 2015.

These targets play a key role in the direction of this Recycling Strategy for Haringey

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Directive

New European legislation coming into force in July 2007 will prevent electrical items from
being sent to landfill and these items must be recycled. This will effect all electrical
household goods ranging from small electrical greeting cards to large household
appliances.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 6 of 28



Page 265

Incentive Schemes & Compulsory Recycling

Haringey Council trialled an incentive scheme from November 2005 to March 2006 as part
of a national pilot study organised by DEFRA. The Haringey scheme used a mixture of
financial incentives, rewarding residents for using their green box, and community
incentives, raising money for charities through increased recycling. The information below
lists the various types of incentive scheme which can be applied to recycling:

Financial incentives — individuals or communities are rewarded with a financial
inducement to participate in a scheme e.g. prize draws, cash back incentives, cash
rewards or discounts.

Community incentives — appeal to people’s good nature and willingness to do
something good for the community or environment. For example, community
rewards, pledges, charitable donations or rewards for schools.

Examples of Incentive Schemes - ‘traffic light’ schemes

Many Local Authorities have begun to use a ‘raffic light’ scheme to target contamination of
recycling containers. This involves using yellow stickers to label bins which are
contaminated, and red stickers to notify persistent contamination. This leads to the use of
financial penalties, or the removal of refuse collection services from residents who
continue to fail to separate recycling properly. Examples of these schemes are given
below.

Recycle for Hampshire trialled a recycling rewards scheme in Portsmouth as part of the
DEFRA Household Incentives Pilot Scheme. This was based on a ‘traffic light’ system to
indicate to residents how well they were doing with recycling. The scheme was intended
to combat contamination problems, and as such residents were notified through the use of
green, amber and red scores about the content of their recycling bin (green meaning ‘all
recyclable’, amber meaning ‘some recyclable’ and red meaning ‘non-recyclable general
waste’). Those residents who received a green score at least twice during the 3 month
scheme were rewarded with a voucher to redeem for a leisure experience. As a result of
the publicity circulated during the scheme and the incentives offered to residents, the rate
of green scores rose from 36% at the beginning of the scheme to 70% at the conclusion.

Breckland Council in Norfolk has also trialled a contamination card system, where a red
card was left when the recycling bin was heavily contaminated, and ‘gold stars’ were
awarded when there was no contamination at all. These gold stars were collected at
community centres and schools, and when a target number was reached they could be
redeemed for a community benefit such as playground equipment. The scheme was
deemed to be a success, in that the quality of recyclables improved and contamination
reduced. Breckland Council is planning to use a modified version of the pilot elsewhere in
the region as a means to reduce contamination.

Financial Penalties
Increasingly Local Authorities are looking to financial penalties to improve participation in
recycling services. Using financial penalties individuals face a cost or levy for non-

participation in-a scheme, or additional costs for waste generation. For example, charging =

schemes such as for green waste or bulky waste collections, or compulsory participation
such as fines for non-recyclers.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 7 of 28



Page 266

Many local authorities, including neighbouring authorities such as Barnet and Hackney are
now moving towards compulsory recycling to encourage residents to recycle. Compulsory
recycling is becoming accepted as an effective way to increase capture of recyclables with
Barnet reporting an 28% increase in recycling tonnage.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 8 of 28



Page 267

LocCAL POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

Recycling is a clear priority for the Council as demonstrated through key Council planning
documents. A summary of Haringey's principle community and corporate documents are
set out below. These key documents provide the golden thread for how we work and the
services we deliver to our residents.

Haringey’s vision and values
Haringey Council's vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone in the borough —
putting people first, being bold in dealing with issues for the benefit of all.

Our values are: ~
- Service — we work for the good of all our diverse communities.
Integrity — we keep our promises
Improvement — we strive for excellence
Passion — we are passionate about our work and proud of what we do.
One council — we deliver by working together.

Haringey’s Corporate Strategy

Our priorities are:

» Achieving excellent services - We have many excellent services - but we want all of
our services to be of an excellent standard.
Building safer and stronger communities - Our residents want and deserve to live in
strong, safe communities, which is why building stronger, safer communities is a
high priority for us and the partners we work with.
Raising educational achievement - Our aim is to improve the life chances of all
members of the community through Education. This is why we are constantly
working hard to raise the level of educational achievement in the borough.
Better Haringey - Better Haringey is a £5 million environmental improvement
programme, launched in September 2003, to make Haringey Cleaner, Greener and
Safer.
Putting people first - We aim to provide the individual support people need to fulfill
their potential, through targeted investment aimed at ensuring no one is
disadvantaged because of where they live or their personal circumstances.

Local Area Agreements

Haringey's Corporate Strategy sets out the Haringey Strategic Partnership’s drive to
develop Local Area Agreements (LAA) which are three year agreements setting out the
priorities for a local area agreed between Central government and local partners, including
the council. One of Haringey’s LAA priorities is to improving recycling performance, thus
this strategy will continue to support this objective.

Haringey’s Community Strategy

The Community Strategy 2003 -2007 is the overarching plan for the borough to improve
the quality of life for people living, working, learning, visiting and investing in Haringey.
This Strategy sets out the priorities of the Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP).

These priorities are:

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 9 of 28



Page 268

Providing modern, better quality, accessible services for everyone who needs them.
Creating safe and confident communities with less fear of crime and the ability to
prevent crime and resist committing crimes.

Creating a cleaner, greener environment with better transport and leisure
opportunities.

Raising achievement in education and creating opportunities for life long success.
Narrow the gap between the east and west of Haringey by improving the most
deprived neighbourhoods.

The next community strategy for 2007 — 2016 is currently being developed.

Corporate Performance Assessment

The Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA) for Haringey published in October 2006
recognises that ‘specific priorities such as ... improving recycling have been agreed and
shared with key stakeholders including residents. These priorities have been identified
using feedback such as resident's surveys and engagement through the area assemblies
to ascertain what matters most to local people’.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 10 of 28



Page 269

RECYCLING SERVICES IN HARINGEY

Haringey Council brought the majority of recycling services in house in September 20086.
Some further services are provided by Haringey Accord Ltd.

Recycling and waste services in Haringey include:

» A weekly kerbside collection of recyclables from 75,000 households, including:

o Multi-material recycling collections for 35,000 households (40,000 by March
2007) including paper, glass, cans, cardboard, plastic bottles, green garden
waste and kitchen food waste.

o Kerbside sorted collections for paper, glass, cans and textiles for 40,000
households.

o A separate green waste collection for 20,000 homes with the kerbside
sorted collection service (fortnightly service in Autumn and Winter months).

A network of 96 bring banks serving the 16,000 homes on housing estates, in
blocks of flats, and flats above shops. This includes 17 special bring bank sites with
landscaping and recycled artwork to enhance and promote the recycling message.

Commuter recycling facilities for paper outside underground and rail station in the
borough.

A recycling collection of at least one material to 95% of Haringey’s primary,
secondary and special schools, plus composting at 41% of schools.

Two Reuse & Recycling Centres collecting a wide range of materials.

A free collection of white goods and other items including gas bottles, car tyres and
IT equipment.

Annual ‘community clear up’ collections of bulky waste from all homes with a front
garden, with white goods collected separately for reuse and recycling.

Home composting scheme offering subsidised home composting bins, and free
bins for schools.

‘Real nappy’ scheme promoting cotton nappies to parents through a subsidy.
A weekly collection of refuse.

Street sweeping and graffiti removal services throughout the borough.
Hazardous waste services contract with Corporation of London.

A chargeable on-demand collection of bulky waste, an element of which is recycled
after collection.

The graph below illustrates the breakdown of service types between the wards in
Haringey. This illustrates the significant variation in service currently provided across the
borough.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020

Page 11 of 28



Page 270

Graph illustrating the range of recycling services offered across Haringey's 19 wards

0,

100% (0 Flats & Estates - Bring
90% ] ' Banks
80% -

. O Flats & Estates - Near
70% Entry or Doorstep
60%

50% Kerbside - Stillage
40%
30% Kerbside - Stillage +
20% Green waste
10% -
° ~ 1 ] Kerbside - Mixed
0% 5 o o - - c ‘ " o - @ v E o O Materials
o 2 c E @ o c ® @2
3388 3L 2 33ESTFIEI 3T
o — o - = [22] c - L oo rud & Lo 17 o & I
9056253850253 E055 59 ¢
L T F 0o »n I 9O I %) £ 0 £ 8 B c 5 @
< 3 £ 2 2 = c =T Z 3T o 2 5§ £
- g =0 3 £ = > 5 &
” 3 S * 5
pd -
WARD

Graph illustrating the range of recycling services offered across Haringey’s wards including the service
improvements that are outlined in this strategy. This illustrates a reduced reliance on bring banks, with
more households receiving mixed material collections at the doorstep and from near entry sites.

90%

{1 Flats & Estates -

80% Bring Banks

70%

60%

J Flats & Estates -
Near Entry and
Doorstep

50%
40% -
30%

Kerbside - Mixed

20% Materials

10%

0% -

Alexandra
Bruce Grove
Stroud Green
Woodside
Harringay
St Anns
White Hart Lane
Tottenham Green
Seven Sisters
Highgate &
Muswell Hill |
Fortis Green
Bounds Green ‘
- West Green "
Crouch End
Hornsey 4
Tottenham Haleu
Noel Park 4
Northumberland Park

WARD

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 12 of 28



Page 271

CONSULTATION AND FEEDBACK

2006/07 Streetscene Customer Satisfaction Focus Groups — Recycling Feedback
During the summer of 2006 six focus groups were held with Haringey residents to gain
feedback on Streetscene services.

Ten residents were invited to each group; residents were selected from a contact list
drawn from the 2005 Residents’ Survey, according to age profile/ residency within the
borough.

The group profiles are illustrated in the table below:

. No of
Group | Date Age range Area of residence attendees
1 12 July 06 60+ Borough wide 6
2 12 July 06 25-44 East 6
3 13 July 06 45-64 East and Heartlands 9
4 15 Aug 06 Under 25 Borough wide 6
5 16 Aug 06 25-44 West 5
6 17 Aug 06 45-64 West 6

The findings of the consultation found that the improvements made to the recycling service
have been seen as highly positive, and that it is almost a ‘luxury’ service.

However, as a result of the rapid service development and the differences in service
provision across the borough, many residents are unclear about what they can recycle,
where and how.

There is also a widespread lack of understanding about the recycling process, especially
mixed collections, with some residents suggesting that it is re-sorted by hand in a sorting
office. This is causing some dissatisfaction, when people see separated items thrown in
together. Residents would welcome more communications.

The focus groups were held prior to the official opening of the Hornsey R&R centre.
However, even at this stage, very few residents were aware of where their closest bring
sites and R&R centres are. Some were travelling to neighbouring boroughs to deposit
their recycling.

In order to further develop the recycling service, residents requested the following:
* A bigger recycling box and to combine smaller numerous receptacles

* All would like more materials collected. Those with the basic service would like
collection expanded to include plastic, including bring sites to include plastic. Those
with mixed collection request a wider range of plastic to be collected.

» Feedback on work within schools to encourage recycling is positive, and residents
suggest that more can be done to engage parents this way, e.g. bring sites near
schools

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 13 of 28



Page 272

LEARNING FROM BEACON AUTHORITIES

The London Boroughs of Bexley and Sutton have been awarded Beacon Status for Waste
Management. They are currently achieving the highest recycling rates in London at 37%
and 30% respectively. They offer the following advice to authorities aiming to improve
waste and recycling services:

Communication is very important — make sure you have money to communicate in
a variety of ways and always take up every opportunity you are given

Achieve the backing of all Members for a common policy — if this isn't secured then
it won'’t succeed

Know your waste and recycling streams — make sure you have waste compositional
data for the borough, showing the differences between areas and do this regularly
as the waste stream will change. This will allow you to plan your services according
to the wastes you are collecting.

Encourage markets for recyclate as a council — buy recycled goods from all sorts of
materials and help to ‘close the loop'.

Enable people to recycle at home, work, school, community areas — anywhere they
are likely to go so they can keep up the habit.

The other waste management services provided by the Council need to be good
otherwise residents will not trust your recycling service.

Make sure you know the costs and savings on disposal for your scheme.

Know your borough — the housing types, people etc — get good marketing data
about them such as acorn classifications.

Choose the right vehicles — involve the crews in this as they are the ones who
operate them.

Engage face-to-face with residents at every opportunity to provide opportunity for
residents to comment. Use road shows, go to supermarkets, community halls,
sports centres etc.

When delivering a new scheme make sure the containers have been delivered
properly.

Set standards for the service that everyone can find or are told about.

- Trial new schemes in two completely different areas to get data from different

environments.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020

Page 14 of 28



Page 273

OUR PARTNERS

There are several key organisations who will play an essential role in helping to deliver the
aims of this strategy:

North London Waste Authority

The North London Waste Authority (NLWA) is the waste disposal authority for Haringey.
The NLWA has a contract with London Waste Limited until 2014. The authority will
‘coordinate all of its future waste and recycling contracts with Partner Authorities to identify
the most appropriate moment for moving to a commingled collection of dry recyclables,
and to enable the development of appropriate composting facilities’.

Waste is either incinerated at the London Waste Ltd site at Edmonton, or taken by train to
landfill sites in Cambridgeshire and Bedfordshire. The site at Edmonton also has facilities
for bulking of commingled recycling, and an In-Vessel Composting Plant for the process of
organic waste.

Homes for Haringey

Housing in Haringey is managed through an Arms Length Management Organisation
(ALMO) called Homes for Haringey (HfH). HfH will be a key partner to this strategy, both in
its development, and its delivery. HfH manages 21,000 households, the majority of which
are based on estates where kerbside ‘green box’ services are not suitable.

This strategy proposes services that are designed for housing estates, making services in
these areas equitable with those provided in other parts of the borough.

Registered Social Landlords

Approximately 5,000 homes in Haringey are privately managed. Provision of recycling
services for these homes, predominantly in properties in blocks of flats, requires the
support of both residents and management agencies.

These blocks have historically been excluded from recycling services often due to the
inadequate storage space for large numbers of green boxes. This strategy proposes a
recycling service designed for such blocks to ensure the same level of service is provided
to all residents in the borough.

Schools

The Recycling Team works closely with Haringey’s schools, including primary, secondary,
special and independent schools. Of the 87 primary, secondary and special schools in the
Borough, 83 participate in a recycling service and 36 also compost on site. Recycling
Officers regularly meet with schools and offer to present assemblies, give lessons and
provide practical advice to help schools to recycle and reduce their waste.

Haringey recognises that where children learn to recycle at school, they often introduce
the practice at home as well. This so called ‘pester power’ can help to raise participation in
recycling services across the borough.

The NLWA is also developing a network of Waste Education Officers to meet and develop
joint resources to co-ordinate and improve waste education across North London.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 15 of 28



Page 274

Restore
ReStore Community Projects is a registered charity which recycles and reuses domestic
furniture and appliances for the benefit of people in need. Their key objectives are:
To provide good quality low cost furniture and appliances to those in need.
To provide training and employment opportunities, in particular those who are or
have been homeless or those with other social needs.
To help the environment through the reuse and recycling and appliances.

Haringey works in partnership with Restore to supply them with fridges and other white
goods that can be reconditioned for reuse, and collecting reusable furniture from the
borough's two Reuse & Recycling Centres.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 16 of 28



Page 275

OUR VISION

Through this strategy we aim to provide a high quality, convenient recycling service which
is easy to use and meets the needs of our residents.

Our aim is for all homes in Haringey to have a kerbside, doorstep or near-entry collection
of recyclables from their home. All homes will be able to recycle the same range of
materials so that the service provided across the borough is consistent and equitable.

We aim to promote waste and recycling services and to educate residents about their
waste responsibilities. Education through schools will continue to be an important link to
the community by fostering the enthusiasm of the young who learn to recycle and school,
and take this action back to their homes.

As a Council, we will lead by example by increasing the amount of our waste which is
recycled, and to increase ‘green purchasing’ such as procuring recycled paper and other
products. This helps to ‘close the loop’ and generate demand and markets for recycled
materials.

Objective 1: To reduce overall waste arisings in Haringey.
Key target: To reduce household waste collected to 345Kg per person in Haringey by
2010/11.

Key target: To reduce household waste collected to 340Kg per person in Haringey by
2015/16.

Objective 2: To maximise the amount of waste recycled
Key target: To increase the amount of household waste recycled and composted in
Haringey to 35% by 2010/11, of which 7% should be composted.

Key target: To increase the amount of household waste recycled and composted in
Haringey to 45% by 2015/16, of which 10% should be composted.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 17 of 28



Page 276

HARINGEY’S CHALLENGES

The following pages demonstrate the key actions that are required to meet the targets set
out above.

We have specific challenges in Haringey that we need to consider when planning our
waste services:

Communications

Over 190 different languages are spoken in Haringey making it one of the most
culturally diverse communities in the country. This brings specific challenges to
ensuring that our communication with our residents are effective, particularly for those
people for which English is not their first language.

Type and density of housing

A high proportion of homes in the borough are fiats and muitipie occupancy homes.
59% of Haringey’s homes are in medium to high-rise flats. 46% of homes in Haringey
do not have a garden, so are unsuitable for home composting and green waste
collections. Many homes do not have front gardens to store recycling containers, or
indoor space to store recyclables. The density of housing in some areas makes it
difficult to provide communal recycling containers where they are most needed.

Levels of deprivation

Haringey has a diverse mix of some of the highest levels of deprivation in the country,
with some of the most desirable neighbourhoods in London. 40% of Haringey's
population live in wards that are amongst the 10% most deprived in the UK.

Transiency

Haringey has high levels of transiency, with 40% of residents moving on every 5 years.
This means that messages regarding how to separate, store and present recyclables
need to be reiterated regularly to ensure new residents are aware of waste policies and
practices.

Levels of service

At present there are multiple levels of recycling service provided in the borough. This
means that communications have to be specific to individual areas or even roads and
cannot be produced at a borough-level. This limits the scope, value and effectiveness
of communications at present and leads to confusion amongst residents.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 18 of 28



Page 277

ACTIONS

Objective 1: To reduce overall waste arisings
Key target: To reduce household waste collected to 345Kg per person in
Haringey by 2010/11.

Key target: To reduce household waste collected to 340Kg per person in
Haringey by 2015/16.

Action 1a: To provide and promote a subsidised home composting scheme to residents
and schools.

Action 1b: To promote and subsidise Real Nappies as an alternative to disposable
nappies.

Action 1c: To deliver a waste minimisation campaign, including promotion of the Mailing
Preference Service, provision of ‘No Junk Mail’ stickers, and advice to reduce waste in the
home.

Action 1d: To further develop the range of materials accepted at the Reuse & Recycling
Centres to promote diversion of waste from landfill, and increase the volume which is
reused and recycled.

Action 1e: To cease the collection of side waste from residential properties with wheeled
bins in line with the introduction of an additional wheeled bin for recycling (action 2i). This
is to promote use of recycling service and increase waste awareness.

Action 1f: To investigate the potential for reduced frequency collections of refuse.

Action 1g: To develop an on-line waste exchange, or ‘Swap Shop’ promoting reuse of
items, and diversion from the waste stream.

Action 1h: To provide a bulky waste collection service for reusable items of furniture and
appliances, in partnership with the community sector to promote reuse and diversion from
the waste stream.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 19 of 28



Page 278

Objective 2: To maximise the amount of waste recycled

Key target: To increase the amount of household waste recycled and
composted in Haringey to 35% by 2010/11, of which 7% should be
composted.

Key target: To increase the amount of household waste recycled and
composted in Haringey to 45% by 2015/16, of which 10% should be
composted.

Action 2a: Provide an expanded multi-material kerbside recycling service to all houses,
blocks of flats and estates, enabling plastic bottles, cardboard, paper, glass and cans (and
more materials as reprocessing becomes possible) to be recycled.

Action 2b: Develop a multi-material recycling collection service for flats above shops.
Action 2c: Develop collections of food waste from households on estates, through
doorstep collections and transport to an external composting facility, or through community

composting initiatives based on the estate.

Action 2d: Enhance bring bank network to accept materials including plastic bottles,
paper, glass, and cans. Add on-street facilities to recycle textiles and shoes.

Action 2e: To provide schools with an enhanced recycling service allowing for more
materials to be collected, including paper, cardboard and food waste.

Action 2f: To enhance education work with schools and educational establishments.
Action 2g: To provide a free recycling collection to charities, faith groups, community
centres, and places of worship, and to allow these groups to bring recycling to the Reuse
& Recycling Centres.

Action 2h: To increase participation in recycling services, through effective
communications and work of the Participation Team.

Action 2i: To provide wheeled bins for recycling to all suitable households.

Action 2j: To increase the range of materials accepted for recycling at the Reuse &
Recycling Centres.

Action 2k: To segregate litter collected through street-sweepings into recycling and waste.
Action 2I: To develop Community Clear Up collections of bulky waste into two streams of
materials, one for items which can be reused or recycled, and the other for waste

materials.

Action 2m: To enhance the network of commuter recycling bins for paper with mini -
recycling bins for plastic bottles, glass and cans, both on-street and in parks.

Recyecling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 20 of 28



Page 279

Action 2n: To incentivise recycling to residents through financial rewards, or fine residents
who fail to participate in recycling services.

Action 10: To introduce a recycling service for trade waste to help reduce the amount of
biodegradable municipal waste being sent to landfill.

Recycling Strategy for Haringey 2006 -2020
Page 21 of 28



Page 280

82 40 zZ abed

020Z- 900Z Asbulier Joj ABsjens Bujjofoay

apew sBuineg "ssauaieme pue uoionpal
ajsem ajowoud Aew sbueyos Aoijod siy |

"SUOI}03]|00 9sNjal J)jSaWop
UUM pa108]]00 AJusLIngd S| 81SEM apIS

seipadold jenuspisal Wolj 8)SEM apIS
JO UORO3||00 BY} 8SESD 0] 8] UONIY

‘payiuspl
S| 9)IS 9|gBJINS [IUN UMOUNUN S}S0D)

‘sjuswidojaaapal spuejUesH

KasuloH 0} anp g0z aunr Aq 81eoojal
0} aAey ||IIM 8IS AssulioH "ybnouoq

8y} Ul $81jud)) BulpAoay R asnay oM

‘pajoAoal pue pasnal S| YdIym awnjoA
8y} 8SeaJoul pue ‘||Ijpue| Wolj 8)Sem Jo
uoIsIaAIp ajowoid 0} sasuan) Buiphooay
® 8snay sy} Je peidedoe sjeusjew Jo
abuel ay) dojoaap Jayuny 0] :pL uonoy

‘'suonowousd
pue SUOIJEJIUNWIWOD UOHESIWIUIW 9)SEM
poddns 0} sieaA ¢ Joj wnuue Jad %0zZ3

(uonedidiyed ¥ suolEOIUNWIWOYD
Joj Buipuny 44N) seoinosal Bunsixs
ybnouyy passaiep ubiedwes pajwi

‘awioy ay}

Ul 81SEM 32Npal 0] 8JIApE pue ‘S1axoNs
JIBIA YUNP ON, JO uolsinoid ‘aoInI8g
aousIajaid Buljiey ayi Jo uonjowoid
Buipnjoul ‘ubredwed uonesiwiuI
B)SEM B JBAIIBP 0] 2] uonoy

Jayiom
yoeasno Addep |eay Joj wnuue Jad %o¢3

"VMIN uBnouyy papiaoid Apisans 163

‘soiddeu a|qesodsip
0] 8Aljeula}je ue se saiddeN |eay
asipisqns pue sjowoid 0] :q} uonoy

sulq
jo Apisgns anuiuod o0} wnuue Jad Y053

L00Z Pue 9002
10§ M AQ papuny swayos pasipisqns

"S|OOYIS pue Ssjuapisal
0} swayos buisodwoo swoy pasipisqns
e ajowoud pue apinoid 0] el uonody

a3diN0IY ONIANN4 40 ILVNLLST-

NOISINOYd INTFHAND

ADILVHLS NI A3aNILNO SNOILOY

'91/510Z Aq AsbBuuen ul uosiad Jad B)OPE 01 Po}09s]|00 Bisem pjoyssnoy aonpal 0] :1obie} Aoy

"1 1/01L0Z Ag AebBuuey ul uossad 1ad B)GHE 0} paloo]j00 81sem pjoyasnoy aonpal 0] :1ebie) Ay
sBuisuie 81Sem ||e19A0 39npal 0] L aARoalqo

‘|le1ap 9J0W Ul PIBA0D ale S)S0D pue SUOOB 9S8y) 81aym
Z Xipuaddy 0] apew Si 90UaI19}8) B MalAay Buluue|d ssauisng-aid 8y} ul Joj pauue|d ussg aABY SUOIIOB 8IBUAA "MOjaq pajsl| aie
yoiym AbBejeng Bulphoay ayy wolj suoijoe Aoy ayy Buuaalep o) pajeoojie Buipuny ou S| 818y} Yyons sy '8/.00¢ 10} $S8001d MaireY
Buluuejd ssauIsng-aid 8y} Ul JO} pajunodde uaaq Jou aAey yolym ABsjelis sy} Ul pauipno suonoe ayi sisl| sjge) Buimoljo) ay |

ININLSIAN] TVNOLLIAAY ONIRMINDIY FJIAYIS FHL NI SdVD — | XIANIddY




Page 281

8z J0 £Z abeq

0202- 9002 febuler ot ABajens Bulokoay

wnuue 1ad anuaAdy MZvL3

suopoe
9saU) JaAl19p 0} palinbai Buipuny |ejo]

"SOOIAISS UOI109)|09 8)sem AY|ng Jua.uno
By} 0} saioualdlys Bupjew AQ palaaod
aq ued abueyo sy} Bunuswsjdwyi 10} S}500D

‘Jo pssodsip ale

pa)08|j0o0 swall Jo Ajiofew syj pue ‘asnal
10} swis)l 199|102 0} Ajoeded pajiwi aAey
SOOIAISS UOI109)|0D 8)SEM AYjNg Juaun)

‘weans

8]SEM BU) WOlJ UOISIBAIP pue asnal
sjowoid 0} 10}08s AjIUNUIWOD BY] Yyiim
diysssuped u; ‘seoueydde pue sinjuiny
JO SWB}I 9|qesNal JO} 82IAI9S UOIJ09||0D
a1sem Aying e spinoid 0] Yy} uonoy

"92I1AI8S BY) djowoid pue dojaasp 0}
18010 abueyoxg aisep) Jo) paiinbal Moe3

‘uoIsInoid 891AI8S JUS1IND ON

‘weans ajsem

By} WOJ} UOISISAIP pUB ‘SWs}l JO ashal
Bunowolid doyg demg, Jo ‘ebueyoxs
a)sem auij-uo ue dojaasp 0] 61 uonoy

‘pansiyoe

aq pjnod w3 jo Buiaes e ‘(syjuow Jawiuns
Buunp eo1nIes Apj@am panuiuod) Jesh

9y} jo syjuow g 10} Aousnbaly paonpas e

1e papiaoid a1om $8DIAI9S BSBU) JI ‘SBDIAIBS
asnjal 10) ed/w/ €3 JO 1SOD B UO paseg

"Apjeam papinoid
AUs.iIND aJe SUO(}09||00 asnyal dlIsewog

'010Z wouy AyBiupioy 0} SUOIS||0D
91SEM D1}SSWIOpP 80Npal 0] L uondy

ysiggnu
padwnp Jo sadcuapioul pasealdsul Ag 19Slo
8q Aew s1s09 |esodsip paonpad ybnouyy

'SuIg PajeayM yum




Page 282

82 10 pZ 8bed

0202~ 900z Asbuuer 1o ABejens Buinhosy

"$9|0IUBA
aueId wolj JuswAhojdapas Buisn palsaod
8Q p|nNoD s821YsA 8say) jo Buiyes ay |
"SB|0IYSA BURID G JO YIOM 8y} 8oe|dal
pue JUSIDIYS 8I0W SHUBQ WO} SUOJD8|j09
81 ayew pjnom YdIym 30923 JO 1s00

e 18 SADY om] Jo aseyoind ay) alinbau
pINOM SHUE(Q JO }JOM]BU 8y} 8ouByus 0]

19ded pue sued ‘sse|b 1deooe sajis jsow
pue s|eusjew juaiayip 1o} pajebaibas aie
syueq ay| "syoes abie| ul syuUeq By} JO N0
BuipAoal syl Uil Yoiym sooIysA suerd, Aq
paoIAIaS ale salijioe) yueq Buuq juaun)

"'S90YS
pue saj|i}x8} 9joA0ai 0} saljIoe) 199.S
-uo ppy ‘sued pue ‘sse|b ‘Jaded ‘sanoq
onsejd Buipnjoul sjeusiew 1daooe 0}
}MOMIBU yueq Buug aoueyus :pg uonody

‘(D12 SUONEDIUNWWOd/YRIS) BNUBASI

083 pue (S3|21YdA /S1O3001) JUSWISBAUI
jendes o3 a4inbas pjnom spjoyasnoy
000'8g 01 sswayos Bunsodwos Ajunwiwos
apinoid pue ‘sa)e}sa Uo spjoyasnoy
000°S J8ylour 0] SUOIJOB||0D PUsIXd O

'8//00Z Ul S8]B]S8 UO spjoyssnoy
000€ 01 papiroid aq 0} 89IAI8S SIY) 4O}

dddd au) ybnoiy) spew ussq sey piq v

"9)B]1Sd By} U0
paseq saAneniul bunsodwos Ajunwiwiod
ybnouyy 1o ‘48)sodwod |9ssaA-ul

ue 0} podsuel) pue suolos||0o deysioop
ybnouy} ‘sejejss uo SasnoY Wody 8)Sem

poO} JO SUOIDB}|00 dojoAS( :0Z UonIY

‘(buiobuo) anusaal 083 pue
‘quswsaaul jeudeo JOg L3 aainbas pinom
sdoys aAoqe s)ejj wol) sa|gqejohoal Jo
B0IAIBS UOI109]|02 e apiacid 0] seAnelado
Z bue JBALIp ‘B|21YSA paiedipap v

‘ybnoloq
8y} punoJe s)yueq Buuqg JO YIOoM}BU
ay) Agq panlss aie sdoys saoge sie|d

sdoys
BA0Qe S]Bj) JO) 99IAI8S U01108]100 BuljpAdal
jeusijew-nw e dojaasq :qg uonoy

Z xipusddy aes

Z xipusddy 888

‘pajohoal

aq 0} sueo pue sselb ‘Jaded ‘pieogpied
‘sajpoq onsed bulgeus ‘salejse pue siey}
JO s)00|q ‘sasnoy |je 0} 821A19s BuijpAoai
|euSlBW-jNW B SPIAOIH ‘ez uonoy

a3adinDIY ONIANNS 40 J1VAILES

NOISINOHd INJJHIND

ADALVHLS NI G3NITLNO SNOLLOY

‘pa1sodwod ag piNoYs %0} Yoiym jo

‘91/5102 Aq %Gt 01 AsBulieH ul pajsodwod pue pajoAoal 8)sem pjoyasnoy JO Junowe ay} asealsoul o] :1abie) Asy

‘paysodwod aq pjnoys 9%/ Ydoiym Jo

‘11/010Z Aq 9%G¢ 0] AeBulieH ul paisodwoo pue pajoAoss 81sem pjoyasnoy Jo Junowe sy} asealoul o] :19bie) Asy]
paj2Ao2al a)sem JO Junowe ayj asjwixew o] g aandafqo




Page 283

82 40 GZ abed

0202~ 9002 Aaburier joj ABarens Buiafosy

a)qejoAoal Jo) Aed Jo 109]109 siainoejnuew
Auew se abuel sy} asealoul
0} Juswisanul paliwi asnbas pjnom

"'SaIU9D MY s.AsbuneH ybnoayy psjokosl

aJe sjeuslew jualayip 0z ‘yussaid 1y

"saljua)) BulpAday 9 asnay
8y} Je Buijohoal Jo} paydaooe sjeusew
Jo ebuel sy} aseaou; 0] :fz uonoy

Z xipuaddy e8g

Z Xipuaddy 883

‘'spjoyasnoy ajgeyns jje o} buijphoal
10 suiq psjsaym apiaoid 0] :1Z Uonoy

wnuue 1ad

MOt3F 1O 1S02 B Je ‘SUOiEOIUNWWOD 92IAIBS
JO UOINQUISIP BAI198Yd SI0W B|geud

pue ‘s9oIAI8S Ul uonjedioiped asealour dipy
0] yjuow yoea sjuapisas 10w Yyoeal 0]
wiea} ay) sjgeus pjnom wes | uonedoied
9y} JO} slsquisw g |euolippe uy

"SJusA8 e uonowoid

pue Bunsjes| “yom Aaains ‘Buijoou
-100p Buipnjoul BuipAoss sjowold 0}
sannp jo abuel e 1no A11ed oym yess  Jo
SisIsu09 Ajjuauno wea] uonedidiued ay |

‘wes | uoneddiued

9y} JO YJOM puB SUOHEDIUNWWOD
aAnosye ybnouy ‘seoinies Buiphoal

Ul uonedioped asealdul 0] Yz uonoy

(2 + 19ALIP) H08F JO 1S00 BNUBASI [eNUUR
ue snid %0g 1 3 JO 100 jeuded e 1e 9j0IydA
jeuolppe ue aiinbal pjnom sasuso assy)
apnjoul 0} suoi1098}j0o BulpAoas puedxs 0]

‘s1ebie)

BuijoAoas spiemoy Ajjueoiiubis singuUuod
PINO2 910J948Y) pUB D1}SBLIOP, PaISpISU0D
s| sdnoub asayy Aq paonpoid a1sem ay)
‘JOABMOH "SWa)sAs U0199)109 s AsbulieH
ybnouy) sjohoas 0} sdnoib asay) ajeyijioe)
0] aoe|d ul wajisAs ou Ajjualnd s| a1y |

‘'saljuan

BuioAoay % asnay ayj o) BuipAoss Bulqg
0] sdnolb asay} mojje o} pue ‘diysiom

Jo ssoe|d pue ‘sanusd AJunNwwod
‘sdnoub yiey ‘saieyd 0] UOID8)|00
Buiohoal asu) e apinoud o] Bz uonoy

'$92Jn0sal 10} wnuue Jad Y013

jeuonippe ue snid ‘wnuue Jad ¥9¢7F JO 1S0D
B e 4901 SSouUsIeMy |BJUSWIUONALT
S|o0yog pasjedipsp e sasnbal 10sfoid siy |

"}JOM UOIBONPS puR S|O0YIS 0}
BuioAoas Bupowosd uo swy Jivy) Jo %07
spuads 49010 Bulpphosy suo Ajusun)

"Sjuswysl|gelss
|[BUOIEONPS pPUB S|O0YDJS YlIM
}IOM UOI}BONPS 80UBYUS O] :JZ Uonoy

‘(seAnelado xy pue siaALIp

XZ) Y0913 8q pinom Buiyess 1o} $1s00
aNUBASY MOOE3 JO 10D jelded e e SADY
.onp, z jo eseyoind sy} adinbai pjnom
8)sem pooj pue AIp Yjoq Joj uoios|joo
[euslew-jNnw e yjm sjooyos apiaoid 0|

‘'SuUed

Jo/pue pieoqgp.ted BuipAosl osje sjooyos
awos ypm ‘yaded ajoAoa1 0} sanjioe)
UM papiaold Ajjuanind ale sjooyos

"8]Sem pooj} pue pieogp.tes ‘uaded
Buipnjoui ‘ps)o8||00 8q 0} Sjelsiew alow
404 Buimojje aoinies BuipAoas paosueyus
ue ypm sjooyos apinoid o] :9g uonoy

"S$yueq 89IAI8s 0} palinbai Bulyjels paonpal
pue ‘}199}} 9|0IYSA SUERID JuBpUNpal

8y} JO 1s00 Buluunl pue soueUSUIEW
1suiebe apew aq pjnom sBuiaeg




Page 284

82 40 9 abed

0202- 9002 As8burier 1of ABojens Bunohosy

lended }.z83 ‘OnusaAay 9¢83

suonoe
9say) JaAl|9p 0) pasinbau Buipuny jejo |

"SU0I}09)j02

a1sem apeu 10} wisiueyoaw Buibieyod Jivy}
ybnouy) p1q ploooy AsbuueH Aq paisa0d
ag pjnom a21A19s siy) Buipiaoid Jo 1s09 8y L

'100zZ Aenuep ul 92IA18S
e uejs 0} buisodoid ale psjwi] ploooy
AsbBuueH ybnoyy papiaoid a2iA18s ON

"8)SBM 9pERJ} 10} BDIAIBS
BuipAoal e sonposjul 0] :0Z uondYy

‘wnuue Jad %0G3 Jo 1S09 e Je padojeasp
8Q pjn09 SWBYIS SAUSDUI JIBYUN} Y

"SUJUOW g JBAO

%8113 JO 1S00 B Je 9/G00Z Ul YBnoiog sy}
Ul 8WBYos aANuUaoUl ue pajjel AsbuueH

"'S92IAIBS BuljoAdal

ul ajeddiped o} |1Bj Oym sjuapisal

auly JO ‘spiemal |eloueuly ybnouyl syjuapisal
0} BuipAoal 8SIAUBDUL O] Uz UondY

"SUO0I199]|02

9)ew 0} pasn sa|o1yaA Jo Aloeded ay)

uo joedwi ue 8q 0S| PjNOM 818y "SHUN
001 40} M/ 3F pjnom sjeusiew 184lo 10} sulq
BuioAosl mau JO uoie|jeisul pue aseyolind

"Ajuo Jaded 1oy suiq BuijoAoal Jsnwiwiod
0< Jo yJomiau e sey Ajjuaiing AsbuueH

‘syed

Ul pue 18813S-u0 Yjoq ‘sued pue sse|b
‘sapoq onsejd 1oy suiqg BuioAoal- 1w
yim Jaded 1oy suiq BuijpAoal Jeinwiwios
JO YJOMIBU By} SOUBYUS O] Wiz uonody

'JO pasodsip aJje

pa109]j09 swall jo Ajuolew sy} pue ‘asnal
10} Swall 198}109 0} Ayoeded pajwi aAey
S8OIAIBS UO1109]|00 81Sem AY|ng Jusin)

‘S|eua)ew ajsem Joj

1810 8y} pue ‘pajoAdal 10 pasnal ag ued
YoIym SWSY 10} BUO ‘Sjeuslew JO sweal)s
OM] OJul 81Sem A)ng JO SU0o1j09|j00 dn
Jes|n Ajunwwo) dojsasp 0] :jZ uonoy

‘pajebaibas

J1 syebue) BuipAosl spiemoy pajunod

8Q 8104818} P|NOD puUB B]SEM D1}SBWOP SB
payisse|o ale sbuidooms 198.1)S ‘JOASMOH

~ yuow Jad sauuo} 0Gg O} sjunoue
yolym ‘jo pasodsip ase sbuidesms

192118 ybnouy) pseyos)joo Jayy e uasaid 1y

"9)SEM pue
‘Buijohoal ojul sbuidesms-1oans ybnoay)
pa109}|00 1oy 81ebaibas 0] iz uonoy

‘sjeusiewd




Page 285

8z 40 /2 abed

0202- 9002 As8burier 1oy ABsrens Buiofosy

‘wnuue Jad (sauuo}
08) %1 0 S! 81es Buiohosu
"90IAIDS BpISqIay X0q usaib, sy yum ul asealoul pajewnsy
soipadoid o} papirosd 801AI8S Byl Yim 119002 SNUBASY ; mm:.._maoa
sul| Ul ‘saje)se Buisnoy Wwoiy sUoids|Iod |y paonponul se UOI}09]|0D v_%mm 8//002 S8jelse 000 € woly
dajsioop jojid 8y} Jo Hed se pejos)|00 Bulokosl feusiew-HNW [eNae9 SUoR29||0d s)seMm
sjeusiew Jo abuel oy} AISISAIP | dajsio0p € BAI828I YOIUM A583 POOj} jo uolsiAoid
01 :89IM13s sjqejinba ue Buipiroid $9]BJS8 U0 Sployssnoy
000'€ 94} 0} B2IAI9S MBU B
apinoid pinom Buipuny siy L
‘saipadold QOO‘G 959y} 10 8OIAIBS MBU | | .
wnuue Jad (ssuuo
e Buipianoid snyj ‘ajgeyns Jou ale saxoq %z m_A o mwmw\mow siey
usalb aloym s$)}00|q 10} a01AI8S J1j109ds c“, 0S2BIoUl DS ewns 40 $)90jq Buipnjoul
B Sopn|oul pIg SIYL :s}el} Jo syoojg . e anusAsy | 8nuaray ‘uonoa|joo mv_mmgmu
. '000°08 H0€23 10023 B Uim ssiuisdol
a1sem . 8/.00¢ ;
) 0} 000‘0¥ WOJj 82IAI8S enden [euden [le 0] SUONO3||0D
P00} pue LsaIb “pieogpIe Ucm. Somoq Burohoal jeusiew-pinw NOS3 wo'L3 Buijohoal
onseld jo uonos|jod Buipnjoul ‘aoIAIes :
: : . P ay) Buiaisoal spjoysasnoy |elrajew-pINw
JO [oNo] BUIES 8L} SAISDS] UONOS||0 JO Jaquinu 8y} asealou| Jo uoisuedxgy
apisqJay e 1oy} a|qibys sseiuadoud pInom Buipun; w::_ :
Il :921A18s 8jqgejinba ue Buipinoid : :
Z ¥V3A | ¥V3A | NOILONAOHLNI
NOILYANIWNODTY 40 NOLLYDIdILSNP mouwﬁwm“ﬂuzﬂmwmh\%mw ¥Oo4 ALIALLOY
150D IVOSaNIL

"900¢ Joqusde( ui pieog AIosIApY 8AlnNoax3 ay) 0} paniwgns Bulaq poday Buiokosy sy 0} 198fgns aq M Siy L
"PaWLIUOD 8q 0} J9A aie pue ‘Mainey Bujuueld sssuisng-ald 8y} Ul papiwgns Se aJe Mojaq 8|ge] 8y} Ul PauljIno S1S00 8y | ;30N

‘ABa1edis siy) ay) Jo SaA108lqo oy} JoAldp 0} palinbai aie eyl 8//002
1o} mainey Buluueld sseuisng-aid ay) Jo yed se payiuspl sjuswsAcidwi 8o1A9s pasodoid Asy sy} $9]eJISn||l Mo|aq ajge} 8y |

80/.002 — M3IA3YH NV1d SSANISNg
~38d INIOSLIFULS FHL 40 LYVd SV IAVIN SAIF ONITOAITY TVLIAVI ANV INNIATY — Z XIANIddY




Page 286

82 40 gz 8bed

0202~ 9002 Aebulier ioj ABsjens BuioAosy

‘sa|qejoAoal Jo ajel ainided

pue uonedioiued Jo siaAs] Jaybiy
abeinoous |jim BuljpAoal 1o} Sisuleluod
Jab.e| JO UOISINOId :9ouewIOLdd

‘Buouis sI Bulohosl 1o} sisuieyuoo Jebiej

‘wnuue Jad (ssuuo) 009‘L
-008) %2Z-1 S! 81es buljohoal
Ul 8sealoul pajewisy

‘(anoge se) Juswanoiduw

BuijpAoal

1O} puewIap JUBPISaY 'SOxX0q usaib 90IAIBS [BLBIEW lenden
Buimolpiano Jo Apiun Woly Jayns ueo | -nw apim-ybnoloq wz3 6/800C | 104 Sulq p3jaaym
yoiym soialaes BuijpAoal ay) jo sbew | ay} 0} Juswianoidwi ue JO uoisiAold
8y sAoidwi| tuopoeysies JIBWOISNY | se ‘Buiokoal [eLSjRW-)NW
‘Buypuey | A4p Jussaud 0} spjoyasnoy
[enuew saonpal pue saAljesado 000°08 40} Sulq psjeaym
104 Joyes si BulpAoal Jo uonosjjoo | @PIA0Id pinom Buipuny siy L
10} suiq pajssyp\ :Ajejeg @ yleaH
‘wnuue Jad (seuuo} 000°2)
9,G°Z S! 1.1 BuijoAoal
Ul 8SB8IOUl pajeWwsy
"aAll A8y yoiym ul pjoyssnoy Jo adAy - , anuensy spjoyssnoy
oy} Jo ssojpiebal ajgennba si yoiym 000Gl ©1 0009 | enusAsy %0823 lle 0} suod9||0d
ybnoJog sy} Ul SUBPISAI ||B O} BIIAISS oy} uonos|j09 buljohdal ASL3 iended 6/8002 Bujjohoal
BulppAoal |eualewW-NW B apiacsd [eusjew-Hinw Ajjus-1esu | jeuonippy xwmmu dajsioop saje)}sa
0] :e91A19s 8jqeynba ue BuipiAold Jo daysioop e Buineosl jo uoisuedxy
$9]B]S8 U0 spjoyasnoy
JO Jaquinu ay) aseaudul
pinom Buipuny siy |
‘goi1Ales Buijohosl ay) M8 0] MMWM_%% S1oUEI00
o SeKood U5 SIS0 SIONSIE | oy o pue s | FICED | RIOEO | gy ook
: pue pabewep ‘10| soe|dal H0€F H0€3 :

8y} ulejuIeW 0} paJinbal S| JUBWI]SBAUI
SIY] :92IAI3S JO 9oUBUIUIBI

0] slaurejuoo Buiphosi
apiaosd pjnom Buipuny siy |

JO UOISIAOId




Page 287

008'v¥E3

000'9863-

soom sad wv_nm_u 981 JO mwccg
08¢ J0} 1500 [ESOUSIP /063 jo Buines

“Yoom Jad Sauuc} z| bullunsse
‘auuo) Jad £63 :91SEM POD) /UBBID

009'2863-

SlelsIew PaXIW ON

WO 1BI0L

0v8'L0e3-

o “Waom sad seuuo) g} Bununsse
ooLGes ‘auuoy Jad Gy3- pAeOGPIED PUOS
P ‘yooMm sad sauuol 04 Buwnsse
000°253 *auuo} 8d 0013~ $9Moq onserd pauog
siaam 1od Ajaanoedsal

OP8'PELI- $BUUY G /G 7 Bununsse 199is Jo} O
- Wnjuufe auuo) 4ad pGEJI- SURD PaLIog

i “faam 1od ssUL0)
024’153 2 Bununsse ‘auuol 1ad G613 5s€16 pauiog
58 J5d SEUUGT 8p1 |

Bupunsse *suuo) 1ad Op3- Uaded papog

S

suuot 18d 1502 (Jau) |Ej0L

005'vve3

woam sad sauuol 0ge

“¥oom 1od SBLUO) GZ | DuHLINSSE
‘auuo) 18d £G3F 191SEM POO) fUBIO

1ZL P93

Sjesm 15d $9LUCT GG7 bununsse
‘auuo) 1od GE Y3 SIRUSIeW POXIN

awoou; 8104

9uu0} Jad 1509 (18u) (B10 |

OvL'6L13

2Bejjns o) SBUUD] 0 HOOM

$1500) jejo

130 SBUUOY O0Z SPUNDJ [EUSTEWHNN

sbuiaes jesodsiq
1 81800 Jusuneas ] 9N

Yoam iad sejqepioal Jo mmccow
0GZ 1031500 {esodsip /053 jo Buineg

sBuineg jesodsig

Noom 16 §aUUOT GO BUILNSSE
‘auuo} 1od £07 :91SEM POOJ /UBBID

pateIoush SWooUl OU OS ‘POXIW Bie S[eUSIEW fiy

211'6£€3

841663

“Woam jod SouL0] GE | DURLINSSE

$1509 JudLNeBl |

LOHDSHOS BRUBAOLISN

S1S03 UORI3I0Y) 19N

OO BIO L

“yaam 1ad Ajaanoadsal

864223~ | sauuol p'0/ez L Buiunsse '198ls Jof 03

WhILILNE BUU0} 480 (GE3- SURD PaLoS

. “yoam sad Seuuo) gi

Uit sununsse ‘suuo 1ad g1 3- sseib pauog
SEam 150 S5TU0

005293 g ) 08

Buiunsse ‘auuoy sod op3- seded pavog
55 9IS 0 1503 anuen

s1es wioyy pajessuab swosu;

sieLvIEW 9)qR|oAdal JO

'z uopdo
sabueud o8BS safueyd soes sabueyo aoiAes
se sieusiew o sbues) 0000013 Nt 000'0013 . 03 ; s1800 Joddng
SWES 19900 0} paNba: woddns o) Buijels pue SUoHESUNWWOY uoddns 0] ButljEls pue SUCHEOIINIWOY, poddns 0} Buiyels pue SUOREDILIMULLOD
aJe | JO pesIsul SafoIyBA i ‘sjel
Z 'uBnoiog ay; ssose ubnoiog s ssoioe 10 SOOI IO} BONIBS
9|gENNDS S SIS 05
ajqennba si aoines ‘pIEOGPIED PUE S3I0G ON 'yBnoiog au ssosoe aBepns pEE
©S preogpIes pue| 00063 spiyan sad ed ye3 000'023 apyan Jod d 63| stgeunbs jou sts0MBS]  000'SYI . .
somoq onserd Bupniow %wm_a_mu%mﬂmw ,MWMMM “PB193100 SIEBIEw 104 Bd MZF ‘SPUNOI PAXIL 40} maw PYioRs 10} Jed} pue JESM Hejun
U902 LIOS 3pISqIey ang08 (s1ely %.o SHO0(Y
€ 9A13091 (SJey JO SOOIy oc;. SPIOYBSIOY (00'08
ou) spioyasnoy 000°08 000°1623 sabeyns 10 : ‘yoam Jod , ed . abeyins o) ed 251 103 190
‘sepsadosd 000' ed Mg3F 'saiysA aisem usaib soped MGL3 safedosd po's SaAIAS 0000123 HEL3 nus poxiu aneoas|  O00'SELT 33 ‘'spunos [eustew paxiw Joj ed Y613 1934 404 jond
SOAIS PUNOI BISEM DPOOJ punos SisEM oo} Yook Yy 000'0¥ - sBueyd oN
“sioam Jad spjoyssnoy 1od saiadoid 000'G YoBD HIIM
000'G $9AI8S punoy mwamw, pUNos S1El 10 18d sefyedoid 000'L
Sley) JO $Y001Q ‘'Yoes . sush Jad ed B . on 1ad ed SAISS LOS SPISQISH . abenns 1oy ed Mz L3
woom 1ad SpIOGBSAOY 000°0823 o1 HOL3 Mwwo%“o“.wmz ..,mawchww 000°vEZ3 MOL3 “yoes yoom J6d 000'8¥13 ‘Spunos eUstEL pexil 10j ed Y813
Q0¥ BAIBS SpUNOS m.tc;oh mwwwumm:.z o ssrpadosd 009’ anIes
a)seMm pooy/usaib - P et BN $pUNno! [eUSIBW-IINKY
“oes yaom sod 2 + JOAUD PUNOI 5918153,
N - UO B1SEM DOOJ PUE 'Z + JBALIP PUINOI S1ejy - 7 + JBAUD YUM SpUNOI -
%_w:mwmww mmw v, wqu 000'0VLZ3 | 10 cynorg 1y + 1oAUD i SafoIUBA oddns 000'620"43 7 'SOAIEIRO b 4 JOALID LM SPUNGE § 000'661'L3 $3ANRIMO  + JBALD UM SPUNGI | |
P PISGISH Z 's8Aleiado p + JOAUD YIM SPUNOI §Z
80IABS|  wnuue aoiues| wmnuue QoI9S winuue
30 19A8} uo Joeduwy|  sod [RlO] 30 tans; uo jordwy| sed 1301 40 A8t Uo 10edun|  tad (RI0)

. SWISISAS LOR30[100) BUIS, omm,m

ondo

DISQISS IUSISHG JO SIS 1500 - | S1aeL

g xupuaddy ‘podey ABsjeng Buijohosy



Page 288

000°'68Y°L3

000's0¥3

‘U3 0S | Jed A Ul peseyoind
siauelu00 Bulpkosi HHGOFI SUoI0s|00
feusiew-ynw papuedxs 10} SBjOIUA MON

000°080°L3

‘MG 13 90IAISS SOIRISS 10} SIBUIBIUOD
pue ‘}0/3 Uonos|jo2 81sem poo}

S31B1SO JOJ BIOIYSA MOECT 90IAIOS BpISIoY
poddns 0} SiBuIBIUOD [BUORIPPE ‘MG/GF
SUONO8Y|09 papuedxs 1o} (SiBUIRIUOD

#nq pue sbeq aysem uapieb ‘saxoq
usalb ‘salpped pue $8xoq 21Sem pooy)
siauieyu0d BuloAdal M6EF SUONOS|0D
[eudlew-NW pepuedxs 1o} S8j0IUBA MBN

paiinbal jusunssayy jeyden

8/1'663 PeE'vL3 $9|qe[0AD8I JO BeS JO SSOTY|  GB/. P23 $3|qe|oAd81 JO BjeS JO SSO07] BUWIOdU} Ul UOHIONPaY
. , sabueyo aoines . sabueyo aojnIes s1805 uoddn

0000013 000013 Hoddns o} Buiyjels pue suolesunwwo) 000063 Hoddns o} Buijjels pue suoneoUNWWOD i e S
‘ ‘ SSIOIYSA € 10} BIIXD ‘ S9OIYBA ; L ELT

000 5c3 000Zt3 IPIUSA £ 103 BIX® MES| 00083 2 105 MG3 snid ‘SBI0IUBA Z 10} BIIXD MET 10} 1ed) pue Jeam Jiejun
! ) S9I0IUBA ¢ 1O} BIIXD ¢ SOII4aA 99|} 1o} |an

000623 000163 [OIUDA € JOJ BIXO MBF| 00023 7 10} MG 13 SN|d ‘SSIOIYBA Z O} BIX Y63 199} 10} [an4
' ‘ SOI0IYBA ¢ Jo} palinbal eilxe MWg" ‘ SepIysA Mou josy

000'943 00283 [o1UdA € J0} padl X2 M8'83| 008'vC3 Z 104 3913 Snd ‘SOPILSA Z Joj BIXS Hg'g3|  J10j S350 Butuuni aoIYsA
. . ‘smalo Bunsixe . "'sannesado b jo Buiaes ‘smauo Bunsixa

000°083- 000 0¥3- 000 0v3- wiea] jeuonessdo

o Juswhoidepal - paunbal yeis eaxa ON

10 yuswAojdapal - paiinbas 4els eijxe ON

SPUNOJ [BLIBJRW-PAXIW Z JO JNO-||OY

§5]E)60 U0 Spjoyasnoy

000€ WO4) SUOHOD}OD B)SEM POOY JO
IN0-|j0J puE S} JO SHD0|Q JO) puUnod |
pue ‘punol jelsjew-paxi | Jo INo-{|oY

winuue
Jad je30)

wnuue
1ad jpjo

[ERIVES

no-fjo. o} poLied yuow 9 uo peseq)
Jeef Led aie $1S00 A8y | JBBA [OJON

punou aysem pooy} dajsioop s9je}ss | @ punol
sjel} Jo syoojq Buiorj-leans | ‘(e01A19s apIim-ybnoioq) spunod [eLIsjeW-JiNW Paxiw ¢ Jo PasLdwod Spunol UoKd[|0d LI

Z uondo

judwdojanap aoinleg

Z JEOA PUB | JEBA - ¢ Uond() 10} polinbal S]500 JO UMOPYEaly - ¢ SlqeL

g xipuaddy ‘Lioday ABajeayg Buijphosy



Page 289

|ooo‘oco‘es

000'080°L3

"} JBBA Ul piq SE [IU3 SUOKDS)|00 papuedxs
10} sisueluoo BulpAoss HMOZLF Je o)sem
uaa1b 10} ADY MBU | 093 1B 9D1ydA
voddns | 3063 1e sopiuaa sbejs ot

000°056'13

MG1L3 8dnes

$91B1S3 10} SISUIBJUOD PUB M0 /3 UOHIS8]|09
9)SEM POOJ SBIBISD J0) BOIUBA “MOCT
901AI9S BpIsquay poddns o) sisuleu0D
jeuOIPPE MG/ GF SUORDB|0D papuedxd

1oy (sssutejuo2 yng pue sbeq sjsem uspied
‘sax0q usaib ‘Saipped pue Sexoq S}Sem
PO0}) sisueuod BulpAoal HIOZLF 1 sjsem
usalb 10§ SADH MBU Z Y093 1B SajoIyaA
Hoddns z ‘Y063 Je seoiyana abejns oL

paiinbei Juaunsaauj jeuden

so|qgeohoal jo ajes

AR JLE°008- sjeusiew ajqe|oAoal Jo ajes peseasoul|  agtzELy- s|eualeWw ajgeloAos) JO ajes Pasealoy| WO} BLIOOU) JO UOREISUSD
) . sabueys soines . sabueyo 8o1AI8S s1805 poddn
00070013 000043 poddns o) Buiyeys pue suopeounwwon| 000063 voddns o} Buiyels pue suonesUNWWoD 1509 s
_ . ) 100y
000'0€3 005°2Z3 sjoiyan sod ed He3 005 23 dpo1yeA Jod ed ye3 10} 1B9] pUB JEOM JBJUN
0009513 000°2113 oz 000°6£3 oz j98l} 10} |94
199|} POSEAIOU! 10} S}SOD [BN) Ul BSESBIOU] 199} POSES.IOU| JO} S}SOD |ON) Ul 8SB8I0U|
. . aoueusjuiew }as)) Bunsixe ; sIoIUeA Jod o8
000°2EL3 000253 1surebe sBuiaes yum spiyea sad H0L3 000's.L3 o H0L3 10 53809 Buiuuny a|dIyaA
saAnelado g pue SISAUP { jBUOHIPpE poo
000'68S°L3 000'SY¥'1L3 soAnelado G + SISAUDP €L [RUOPPY|  000'0VL3 " 6P HP ¥ 1BUOHIPPE PESN wes | [euonessdQ

'smalo Buisixa jo JuswAhojdepal swog

ajoyaa poddns
L UM SpUNOI LI0S 9pIsqIay g JO Jno-{joy

§9)E}S9 U0 SUONDI||0D

9)SEM POO} 10j punou | ‘sjey Jo s)o0iq
104 punol | pue ‘ajoiyaa poddns |

YJIM ‘Spunod Hos apisqiay g Jo Ino-jjoy

wnuue Jad |g)o |

wnuue
Jad fejo |

[EEES

Jeof ued aie s1S00 A8Y | IRBA (OJON

punoJs ajsem pooj S9Je}sa | ' punoa sjeyy Jo $Ho0|q Buloey-joa43s | ‘spunol ajsem
pooy/uaaib g ‘spunoi poddns 10s apIsqay Z ‘(991A19S apim-ybBnoloq) spunol 1os apIsglay 9} Jo pasudwod muczo.. uonRo9||0d 87

¢ uondo

‘Juawdojanap 901AI9G

no-jjos Q pousd yjuow g uo paseq}i

Z 1eoA pue | JesA - ¢ uondQ Joj S1S00 JO umopyeald - € a|qe |

g xipuaddy ‘Joday ABajeng BuioAoay



Page 290

ainyipuadxy
w3

‘uoielado siu) Joj siqelns

aq Jou pinom peoy Asjysy 1e jodap Buisixs
SE 8)IS MBU JO aseynd pasnbal ajIs

jebie| e 0] peOY UIBISOAN WO} UONED0IDY
‘syueq Bulg pue apisqey woly sjeusiew
payos Jo awn|oa pasessoul Buissenoud

Jo} painbau jodap Buiohoas Jobie

1deinay
wes

‘peoy UIB)SapA

JO 8jes 8y} WoJ4 [1ounon ay) sy}

10} 8)j0u JipaJo e slessusb Aew pue
¢ uondo Joj pasnbal ueyy Jsiduwis
8q pjnom ayis Juawaoe|dal e Joj
sjuswanbal ‘JenamoH jodap peoy
As|ysy Jo 1no aiesado Ajlenuaiod
pINoo ydiym ‘109| Bulohoss

sy} Bupiied Joj palinbai aq pjnom
BOJE JB||BWS YONl i "$9jge|oAosl
10 Bupying Joj pasinbau aq 48buoj ou
PINOM Udium jodap peoy UIBISaAA
JO 9jes Wouy 8)ou §PaId BgISSod

I

N

awweiboiy
uone.ssusboy
puejesy

KabuueH o1 anp
sieah £-z 1xau ui
pajesolal aq 0} pasu
M SIU} Janamoy
“oda(g Buiphooy
peoy UIBISOM

10 9sn panuiuon

jodag
jeuoneladp
Ul JUBWIISBAU|

000'0€0°c3

"MOEF 921A19S BpIsq.ay Woddns

0} SJBUIBIUOD [BUOIIPPE MG LT 90IAIS
$8]L)S9 10} SIBUIBJU0D (/3 UO09}j0D
8]SEM POO} $91BISO IO} B|OIYIA MG/GF
SUOI08J|0D papuedxs 1o} (SJBuUBlu0d
¥Ing pue sBeq ajsem uapieb ‘saxoq
u9aib ‘saIpped pue saxoq a)Sem pPooy)
siauleluoo Buokoas (30163 199)) [euslew
-iinw Bunsixa Buistan) M0Z 13 e s1sem
u2alb 1o} SADH MBU € Y093 1B SO|oIYaA
Joddns ¢ 063 18 safolysA abeyis 0z

000°G8Y'L3

“MOEF 90IAI0S apisqlay Woddns

0] SJBUIBjUOD jeuonippe MG L3
9OIAISS SO]BISO JO} SIBUIBJIOD MO/F
UOI}08||00 B}SeM P00 S3JB1ISs 104
BIDIYDA HG/GF SUOIOB)|00 papuedxae
10} (si8uiBlu09 Ying pue sbeq

a1sem uapieb ‘saxoq usslib ‘saippes
pUB SBX0( 9]SEM POO0J) SIBUIBIUOD
Bunohosl HMGE/.F SUONDS}OD [elRIRW
-jnw papuedxs 10} SDIYSA MBN

$3J01UsA

MBU J Ul spew
Apealje Jusuwsaul
M0163 - BUON

paiinbal
JUSWIISAAUY
[eyde)

SWaIsAS U01199]|0D) BuljoAoay apIsqiay ustaylq Jo suoneoldw] 150D [eude) Jo sisAjeuy suondQ - ¥ 8|qe ]

g xipuaddy ‘uoday ABajenyg Buijohoay



Page 291

WiNIpajy 0} MO
“JusWaNNbal punoi/aioiyaA Jaybiy Jo ysiy

"60/8002 104 MBIASY UB|4 SSBuUISNg-ald
3y} Jo Hed se paJapisuod aq pinom sy |
‘sjudwalinbas punol s|oIYSA pajeulise
JO uonEenjeAs-al e Ul Jnsal pinoo

sjena| uonedonted pajoadxs uey JaybiH

"S@DIAISS

JO JUBLUSSOSSE SNONUIUOD MOJJE |JiM

1IN0 P3J|0L BiB SBDIAISS MBU BIBUM Seale
Ul paAsiyoe ase uonedpiied Jo SipAs;

"90IAJ9S SIU) Ul s|aAs| uonedionted Bunsixe 0} patedwod
uonedionied Jo S[OA9] ||BISA0 JOMO] Ul Ajjeiul NS4 0] paloadxe SINo-{jod e
$9)IS UsaMIaq Bulj|aABl} W} UMOP OU 10 9l
yium sjqissod se Jusioiys se aq 0] pabueie aie Spunos mau jeyl Buunsus e
:Aq pabeuew ag
ueo asealoul siy) jey) pebesiaus si ) "yeam lad spjoyasnoy 0og'g 01 ¥oem Jad 0og'g
wouy Buisealoul 9o1yaA Jad padiAIas SplOYasnoyY JO "ou Ul 9seaJoul saunbal g uondo
‘saniadosd 000'0r Wosy Bunosiod soiysA oeg Jiids 9 Jo [oAs] aBeIaA0d JuaLINy

JeUM BUILLIBOP 0} uoneuswaldwI paseyd ‘seiadoud apisqiey 000G 921AI8S 0) palinbal sajo1yaA Yoeg-liids § 91ewnsy Z uondo
"SjudpIsal 10} sareqas Buipnpour Ajgissod
(pajuswa|du sjans| uonedionsed sseasoul 0] ubjedwed ssaualeme dlgnd BAISUBIXT e
81 ¢ 10 z uondo papiroid) \so.m VMIN Ag Busodwod pue Buyohoss uonos|joo-jsod 1ayung e
:a1e4 Buljokoss 9,0 BuIASIYOE 10U JO ¥SIY 821AI8S U0NO8|100 Bunsoduioo
pue BuloAcal wolj se1el UOISISAIP ||PUB] 9%,69 Wwnuiuiw BuiAsiyoy e
‘81e1 BUIPADDI %GE BUIABIUOE SPIEMO) SB4IUBD Y P Y 1B $9]BJ UCISISAIP [liipue) 9%,00 Bulnsiyoy e
a1nqLyuoo M subredwes uonedion.ed SUORD9||00 Bisem [enpisal Apybiupio4 e
BAISUBIXS pue sueld uonesIwitiw :Ajreuonippe
9]sem jo uonejuswalduwl ‘siey) Jo S0 pue Jobie} %Ge aAaIyOe 0} PaUSP! SUOHOE |je ainbai jim 196.1.) %G aAsIyoe 0]
Ul Spjoyasnoy j|e 0} suoioa)joo Anus
-jeau pue ds)sioop Jo 1no-jjoJ ‘Ajjeuoippy "saAnusoul Buisn Ajgissod ‘subedwed uoediosed pauleisng e 12/020Z Aq

"a1el BuijoAoal 9,08 0)
dn Buiasiyoe Spremo] alnqUILoD M € 10
Z uopdQ jo uonejuswajdw Jey) pajeunsy

‘spjoyasnoy Jo %,GE O] SUONDS|0D
Anus jeau 10 desioop ‘apisqley ouebio pue usalb ‘eigeioas Aig e
‘ubredwied vollesSIWIUIW DISEAN  ®
:aJinbau jjim 186.1e) 9,6¢ ansIyoe 0

%St pue 11/0L0Z Aq
o,.G¢ 0} sajel BulpAoal

asesuoul ‘g 8AI08lao
ABareng Buiphooay

wnipap
UMoIB a1sem 019z BUIASIYDE 10U JO NSy

AabuueH Jo) ABajensg Buiohoey
ul paynuapt suejd uonoe uonesILIUIW
a)sem jo uonejuswsidwi pue uoneeasD

‘ueld
uonesIWIUIN 31SeM YN J0 uondopy

‘peay Jad BY £z %% L0t UsaMIaq 0] 8seauoul pinom ainbly ¥ |dAG penunuod
S|y} §| "wnuue Jad o%¢ 01 Z 18 Bumolb ajsem pjoyssnoy jo pual) [eieuab e st sisy |

‘uoleindod jo pesy Jad 6y Gog sem ainBiy UININO 90/S00Z ¥ IdAL

90/500¢
0} pasedwod |1/010
Ag ymoub sisem oiaz

¥8 1dAg ‘| 8A0sIq0
ABsieng Buljphoay

S|9A8| YSIy/ SaInseaul [0JJUD))

¥siy / uonduwinssy

uonduosaqg

suopdwnssy pue sysiy ‘voday Abajesig Buiohoay - 9 xipuaddy




Page 292

(psjuswsidui

s1 ¢ o z uondo papiroid) Mo VAN
woy} sebieyo pesesiout fed o) apise

189S g 0] Pasu Jim swns Jaybiy 1eyl ysry

*S1S09 JuslWea] 91sem Jaybiy
pue uollejjul ybnouuy Jayuny pue Z1/110Z Aqg Joje[eos3 xe] [ypueT ay) ybnouy) suuoy
1ad 13 189 18 AQ 9SU 0] }9S S 1509 siy| "duuo} Jjad 063 Apualind si jesodsip jo 1S0D

jesodsip jo 1s09D

Mo ;€ 9 Z suondo usamiaq
$]S0D UO[}D9]|02 aNnuaAal a|gesedulod
ur Buninsai senjea ajes Jaybiy Jo siy

‘51500 g uoido 0] 1094 OU 8 PINOM dI9Y| "JOMO] S}S0D € 9
| uondo axeus pjnom sanfea ajes Jaybiy Jaybiy 1809 ¢ 9 | uondo ayel pinom sanjea
ajes Jjamo ‘puewsp pue Alddns 0} Buipsoooe abueyd 01 199qns aie sen|eA assy |

auuo} Jad g3 - pJeogpied
auuo) Jad goL 3 - onserd
auuo} Jad gp3F - sueod |991s
suuo] Jad 0663 - SuBD wniuwnie
auuo) Jad g3 - sse|b
auuoyl Jod op3 - Joded e
1SMOJ|0} SE AjJUBLIND BJ. JO} SBNJBA dles [eusiew palog

e & o o

sa|qe|oAoal jo ajeg

WnIpapy :s1s09 [any} 18ybiy Jo ysiy

"MaIAal Japun jdoy

(FBIo BNUBIESS MMM) UOPUO- 10} 9JNIN} S|GBUIRISNS B 8}E3ID 0)
SS9UISNQ puE SaljlIoyINe [2o0] YiM Bunuiom Ajueyd [eluswuosaug pue Auedwod joud
-10j-Jou B ‘uonoy ABisu3g s|geulelsng Wwoly aduepinb uo paseq ejep suoIssiwe 20D

‘a4yi| Jod di; @ posn saJy JO JOqUUINU PSIBWIISS U0 POSE] IS0 [BN4 e
a1 Jod BY £9'Z JO [9S3Ip 10} SUDISSIWD 20D  *

SUOISSIWD ZOD

9q |IIm 1800 |an4 "8|jejoA a1 saoud [an4 ;510108 BUIMO[0) B} UO Paseq SI UOHEWIOJU! SUOISSIWS ZOD ‘s}S00 9N+
WINIPS|\ 01 MO
:JuUsWwaNbal punol/ajoIyaA Jaybly Jo sy
"SPUNOJ JO [BAOWISI JO UONBISPISU0D Aue
210joq usyeuapun aq pinom uonedioied “901AI9S SIU} Ul S|oA8] uonedionied Bunsixs o}
aseaioul 0} subiedwies ‘JaramoH | patedwoo uonedioilied 10 sjeAs) [[eien0 J8ybiy Ul Jnsal o} pejoadxe siJno-jjol e
"SjusLWaIINbal pUNOI 9IOIYSA pPajeWISa 921AJ8S JUBLIND By} 0} patedwod PajIsyod
JO UOIIEN|BAS-0J B Ul JNS81 PIN0D | 8q PINOM Jey) S|eisjew [euonippe ay) 0} enp A|Mojs aJow arow 0} pajoadxe aq pinom
sjana| uonedionied pajoadxe UBY) JOMOT | SMaID UOND9||09%9:S10108) BUIMO||0) 8y} 0} anp yoes yaam Jad sansaedold 009’y 01 I8}
pINOM SIY} PolBWIISe S §i ¢ uondo Jspun "yoea xoam Jad spjoyasnoy 0p0‘L d0IAI8S
‘s90IAJ9S | (pieogpJed pue sonse|d 109)|00 Jou Op YDIym) SPUNOL HOS SpISGIaY JUSLIND “JIOASMOH
JO JUSWISSBSSE SNONURUOD MOJ[B [IM
1IN0 POJ|0] e SBOIAISS MBU BI9UM SEDIR ‘a|qissod s uostedwod 193.1p OU 0S Juswow 3y} 1e ybnoiog ayy Ul papiroid
U1 paasiyoe ale uonedonsed Jo S|OAS) JoU I 92IAI19S JO 9dA) S1y 1 “spunoJ ojuebiojusalb g pue ‘sonseld pue pJeoqpied ioj
Jeym aulwIe}ep o) uoneyuawaidwl paseyd | Loddns 10s apisqlay Z “UOS 9pISq.ey 9| JO dn SpeW SPUNOJ UONDS||00 8T JO Bjewns] ¢ uondo




Page 293

ybiH :seouemoly
jiypue Buneatu JoU WO} SBUL JO Ysiy

"'S8OUBMO|Y |jpueT
J1ay) Buipesoxa Joj suuol Jad 0G| 3 senloyine aul aq 0} pausiealy) sey yy43a

abieyo auuoy Jod G113

MOT 1SUOND3|I0D

ApuBiunoy wosy Asbulier ui paasiyoe
aqg pjnom Buiaes ou jey) pue moj 00} 818
S}S09 UOID3Y|09 8SNJ8J JUBLIND JBey] YsSiy

"AeburieH w1 wnuue Jad w3 Jo Buiaes e ol alejsue

Ajybnou pinoo siy) suoi1oajj0d asnjal Uo ainipuadxa JO S|9AS| JUSLIND Uo paseq
"PBASIYDE UBBQ BABY 0,GE JO JOPIO BU) Ul 891AI9S UONDSII0D Bsnyal ay) ul sBuires
ey} palediput aAeY suoloaljoo Aubiulio) 0] pasow Apeasje aaey jewy sybnolog

Buines
uonosijoo Apybiuiioy

"ybiH

0] WNIps :sjgejieae aq jou Aew ybnolog
SU} UiyNM BYis S|gelns e 1ey) Msi e sl
alay) pue punoj 8q O} BABY PINOM SPROY
uJolsapn uey) ays sebie| e ‘g uondo Japun

‘lie 1e 3 eoejdai 0] Juswasnbal
ou aq Aews aiay} Jo peoy UIB)SaAA aoe|dal
pINoo ays Jajjews e ‘g uondo Jepun

YNOBYP B9 JIm yBnolog sy} uiynm
S1IS sAleUIS)E Ue Yim 8YIS siy) Buioeiday ajij payw sey 10da(] peoy LIo1Sap

jodaQ

MO ;8 JBA0
2NJOOk 10U |[IM S1S0D Juswiesal) pue s}s09
[esodsip usamiag [luBIBYIP 18U} YSiY

"BISEM JO

Bursodsip uey; sayjes aysem Buijohoas woyy pasiubooss Bulag sbuiaes Jsybiy Ajipes)s
ut Buninsal jueoyubis alow sW029q ||IM JUBWIES) JO }SOO PUB [BSOdSIP JO }S00 By}
usamiaq [ellusIaIp sy swi JaAQD AMois sl [IIm SIS0D asauy Jeyl pajedionue s §|

auuo} Jad £G3 - ajsem oluebio/usalf e
auuo} Jad gyF - SleUslBW-NW paxiw e
:91sEM OlUEBI0/UBSIB pUE S|eLBBW-NW POXIW JOf SISOO JUSWIes) |

juswiiesli JO 1s0D




Page 294



Page 295 Agenda ltem 16

APPENDIX B
_ REPORT TEMPLATE
EHARINGEY COUNCILE
Agenda item: N D =

Executive On 23 January 2007

Report Title: Establishing a Haringey Groundwork Trust Partnership

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: Graham Beattie, Interim Director of Urban Environment

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 Approval of Groundwork’s proposed business plan and ratification of proposal to become a
formal council partner.
1.2 Approval for core funding to support a new Groundwork Trust for Haringey.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 This report is brought to the Executive for Members to approve Groundwork’s business
proposal and consider options for funding the organisation.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That The Executive Members give approval for Groundwork’s business plan proposal and
ratify a 6 year partnership for agreement for the establishment of Groundwork North London.

Report Authorised by: Graham Beattie, Interim Director Of Urban Environment

Contact Officer: Mark Hopson, Acting Business & Enterprise Manager

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 The proposed Haringey Council contribution of £70k per annum is subject to approval as part
of the current 2007/08 budget setting process. Providing the projections of income, including
the investment by other partners, materialise and Council approval is given, the Director of
Finance would have no objection to supporting approval of the project. It is suggested that a
contingency is identified from the service’s base budget in the event of income projections not
being fully achieved.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 1



Page 296

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 The statutory basis for the Groundwork trust proposals is to be found in the “well-being”
powers in the Local Government Act 2000. These permit the Council to enter into
arrangements with others and to incur expenditure for the promotion of the economic, social
and environmental well being of the Borough. In reaching their decision, Members must have
regard to their Community Strategy which has objectives consistent with those of the
Groundwork trust. Members must also have regard to Government Guidance which is broadly
supportive of such initiatives and contains no restrictions which would prevent the approval of
the recommendations in this report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 [List background documents]
6.2 [Also list reasons for exemption or confidentiality (if applicable)]

7. Strategic Implications

7.1 The proposed Groundwork partnership aims to consolidate a number delivery gaps in the
Council’s environmental, regeneration and neighbourhood spheres.

7.2 Groundwork in Haringey will prioritise programmes that contribute to (1) sub-regional strategies
particularly within the context of sustainable regeneration of the Lee Valley and (2) narrow the
gaps between the east and the west of the borough by focusing on areas of greatest need.
Groundwork will add greatest value in Haringey by:

Strengthening our focus and capacity for improvement on environmental, climate
change and sustainability issues.

Brokering partnerships with the private, public and voluntary sector to deliver local
environmental regeneration

Strengthening the capacity of local communities to successfully regenerate their
neighbourhoods

Engaging the private sector more fully in environmental regeneration/stewardship.
Attracting and investing resources to maximise the impact and targeting of Groundwork
activity to areas of need and in doing reduce pressure on council resources to deliver
improvements.

Providing additional project management capacity to increase the volume of
environment regeneration projects that can be undertaken

Improving consultation and engagement with local communities

7.3 Groundwork’s close association with Government departments and other bodies (DCLG, DTI,
GLA, LDA) is also seen as an advantage that could further strengthen the Council’s existing
partnerships with such agencies and, pave the way for greater involvement on regional/sub-
regional projects and programmes.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 The financial forecast for a Haringey Groundwork Trust is estimated at £2,509,000 over 6 years
— with a predicted annual Groundwork investment (including DCLG, private & other income) of
£70,000 and LBH investment in the region of £70,000 per year for 6 years - subject to relevant
approvals. (SEE APPENDIX 1 FOR THE PROPOSED FINANCIAL BREAKDOWN).

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2



8.2

8.3

8.4

9.

9.1

Page 297

Groundwork’s ability to attract external funding for projects is a major benefit for the Council’s
financial resources. Groundwork’s constitutional status as a charity allows it to access external
funding sources not directly available to the Council. Groundwork’s excellent track record for
accessing funds include:

. Government Office funding and Growth Area Funds

. RDA/LDA funds

. Landfill Tax

. National Lottery funding

. Private sector sponsorship e.g. Barclays Spaces For Sports

The national Groundwork model is for the local authority to provide the core funding which is
matched by Groundwork through the DCLG, private and other income. The expectation is that
Haringey would contribute £70k for six years to fund a secure organisational platform from
which the project and fund raising can be undertaken. It might be thought that the core cost
could be charged to the voluntary sector budget however it is the experience of Groundwork
nationally that this creates a deep tension within the voluntary sector and makes it very hard for
Groundworks to establish a working relationship as they are viewed by the local voluntary
sector as competing for council investment

There is a bid in for growth funding in the Pre Business Plan Review from the strategy business
unit to meet the core cost as part of the budget planning process for 2007/08. Any funding
allocated from Haringey will only be spent in Haringey. This will be a clear critierion set out in
any funding agreement with them.

Legal Implications

The comments of the Head of Legal Services set out that there are no legal barriers and

establishing a trust is consistent with our powers.

10.

10.1

11.

Equalities Implications

A particular focus of Groundwork Trusts is work to engage with hard to reach groups.
Therefore a Haringey Groundwork Trust would assist with our objectives of engaging all
residents in the green agenda.

Consultation

11.1 In Spring 2005, extensive stakeholder consultation and desk research study was undertaken

12.

12.1

12.2

to test the role and need for Groundwork services in the borough. The outcome of this was
extremely positive, and subsequently the phase 2 process over the last year has developed a
business plan for Groundwork in Haringey. All partners, stakeholders and Councillors have
now been consulted.

Background

Groundwork is a federation of Trusts in England, Wales and Northern Ireland, each working
with partners to improve the quality of the local environment, the lives of local people and the
success of local businesses in areas in need of investment and support. A primary
environmental regeneration charity, Groundwork’s mission is to “build sustainable
communities through joint environmental action”.

Last year, Groundwork Trusts nationally delivered projects to the value of £117 million in
neighbourhoods characterised by high unemployment and crime levels, poor public health,

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

Page 298

run down housing and public spaces, waste ground and struggling local economies. The first
Groundwork Trust was established on Merseyside in 1981 and there are now over 50 Trusts
in the UK.

Each Groundwork Trust is a partnership between public, private and voluntary sectors with its
own board of trustees. National and regional offices of Groundwork UK support the work of
the Trusts, by distributing Government funding, securing support for national/regional
programmes and promoting good practice. Groundwork works closely with the Government
and national and regional assemblies, local authorities, public bodies and the private sector.

In 2004, Groundwork approached Haringey with the proposition of expanding their operations
into Haringey and the North London sub-region. At the time, the Council had no form of
voluntary sector environmental development body and thus saw this as an opportunity to
engage a long term cross cutting environmental/regeneration delivery body.

The formal process of adopting a Groundwork Trust involves a two staged review; Stage 1 to
assess existing services, scope delivery gaps, understand the strategic context and identify
existing/potential partners/networks; Phase 2 to build support, demonstrate delivery and
formalise a proposal to Groundwork UK and DCLG (Department for Communities and Local
Government).

Members were consulted on the review process in July 2004. Consequently a Council
Steering Group was set up in April 2005 to guide the research, consultation and pilot project
process. It is intended that this group will continue to oversee the development of
Groundwork services in the borough. Phase 1 is complete and Phase 2 is now drawing to a
close. As part of Phase 2, Groundwork have been tasked to project manage 8 cross cutting
pilot projects (Please see appendix 2 for more information). Working closely with a number of
Council services, Groundwork have been scrutinised on their ability to work with partners in
Haringey and successfully deliver set project targets and objectives. The projects
demonstrated their work across a range of fields and included design work and consultations
with residents on improving open spaces in council and RSL housing as well as formal parks,
exploring the barriers to the recycling of trade waste by small business in Wood Green,
designing a community garden on Campsbourne Estate and finally becoming a joint bidder to
the new Big Lottery Fund to develop healthy living projects.

The conclusions of the Phase 1 and emerging Phase 2 research is as follows:

» Haringey would benefit from a dedicated Groundwork presence, taking into account the
role of other agencies and the views and plans of existing key stakeholders.

» There is a residual need for Groundwork in the London Borough of Haringey based on
the views of local stakeholders.

= Groundwork’s niche and role is in the provision of environmental expertise — working in
partnership with other organisations.

= The feasibility study was welcomed by key stakeholders but Groundwork must continue
the dialogue with partners to ensure they do not duplicate the work of existing
organisations.

» The stakeholders support the establishment and development of Groundwork in
Haringey.

Groundwork’s proposed Operations Plan highlights the forecasted projects that Groundwork
will deliver in Haringey under 6 programme objectives and outputs, including the relevant
partners and resources required for their success. Groundwork’s attraction is in ‘joining-up’
these programmes — offering the opportunity to bring together the expertise of Groundwork’s
Landscape, Community, Youth and Employment Teams to deliver in a holistic way — focusing
on the greatest areas of need in the borough. Groundwork’s approach to working will ensure

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 299

that local people are fully engaged in the planning and designing of their neighbourhood
environments. The Phase 2 pilot projects have demonstrated the way Groundwork engages
with businesses and local residents to improve their local area — through neighbourhood
planning, new provision of community facilities and improving open spaces.

12.8 Groundwork in Haringey will add value in Haringey by contributing to the following:

e EMPLOYMENT: reducing levels of worklessness and increasing environmental
training opportunities

e BUSINESS: increasing small business engagement in environmental management
good practice, local environmental regeneration and Corporate Social Responsibility

e YOUTH: increasing youth inclusion and engagement in environmental /
neighbourhood regeneration initiatives

e EDUCATION: raising educational achievement and opportunities through
environmental initiatives and training

e COMMUNITIES: improving the environment on housing estates to increase quality of
life for local residents - adding capacity to local community development and helping
to reduce health inequalities particularly between east and west of the borough

e LAND: delivering physical environmental improvements — contract management,
design and implementation of community-led land improvement schemes to improve
public spaces, community facilities and landscape schemes

12.9 However, in addition to these broad objectives we believe there are very tangible examples of

the way they could assist Haringey:

= Strengthening our focus and capacity for improvement on environmental, climate
change and sustainability issues.

= Brokering partnerships with the private, public and voluntary sector to deliver local
environmental regeneration.

= Strengthening the capacity of local communities to successfully regenerate their
neighbourhoods, including managing projects and fundraising.

= Engaging the private sector more fully in environmental regeneration/stewardship.

= Attracting and investing resources to maximise the impact and targeting of Groundwork
activity to areas of need and in doing reduce pressure on council resources to deliver
improvements. In particular they can access funding sources not available to a local
authority such as landfill tax or national lottery charity funding.

* Providing additional project management capacity to increase the volume of
environment regeneration projects that can be undertaken.

= Improving consultation and engagement with local communities by using environment
projects to engage with different sections of the community or spending more time on
the development phase than we or other partners would normally be able to do.

12.10 In order to deliver new services in Haringey, Groundwork would need to set-up the necessary

12.11

governance, infrastructure and resources. Of the feasible options, the best approach would
be to extend the services of Groundwork Camden & lIslington — who have delivered the
successful demonstration projects and are the adjacent Trust.

Subject to agreement, the Council would enter into partnership with Groundwork for the
delivery of the agreed Operations Plan. Groundwork’s services in Haringey will be delivered
by Groundwork North London as of 1% April 2007.

A Haringey Steering Group or Committee will be established to monitor the local delivery of

services in the borough and assure that these are attuned to local needs. This mechanism
would facilitate engagement with local stakeholders and partners and ensure that local

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



13.

13.1

13.2

Page 300

accountability remains with Haringey stakeholders and Groundwork. The council would have
major role to play on the steering group in light of its core contribution.

A practical example of the benefits a Haringey Groundwork Trust would bring is one of the pilot
projects.

Topsfield Close

Background Topsfield Close Estate consists of 50 units, about 150 residents in total
and is owned by Family Housing Association (FHA). FHA
commissioned Groundwork Camden & Islington to carry out a
consultation process and feasibility study for improving two problematic
open spaces on the estate. The original budget was only the funding
held by the Housing Associations. The main problems were the need
for environmental improvements to neglected and unattractive spaces
and a lack of facilities for young people on the estate or nearby. Costed
plans were produced, additional funding was secured and successful
new open spaces were created.

Budget: £ 64,000 (Onyx Landfill Tax £25,000, HBOS £10,000, Family Housing
£25,000, Presentation Housing £5,000)

Performance management

If members decide we should proceed with establishing a Groundwork Trust for Haringey the next
steps would involve establishing a board and a local delivery agreement which may include setting
additional local performance indicators. However Groundwork already has national level monitoring
criteria. These illustrate that Groundwork is not about undertaking studies but has a real focus on
actual delivery. They have 14 national Performance Indicators each Trust has to report on. These Pls
include the following:

e Trees planted

e Area of land improved

¢ Area of land maintained

e Jobs created

e Training weeks provided

e Schools involved

e Businesses involved

¢ No of physical environmental improvements

The other important indicator of performance is the extent to which they bring additional funds. In
addition to the core funding it is likely they will run projects on our behalf but even so they demonstrate
significant ability to increase the pot of funding available for environment improvement. In 2005/6 the
neighbouring Camden and Islington Ground work Trust achieved the following:

Camden.
75% of funding came from non local authority sources and this equalled £605,484

Islington

51% came from non local authority sources and this equalled £358,992

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 6



Page 301

14. Conclusion

14.1 Emerging evidence from Phase 1 and 2 research indicates that there is a need for a cross-
cutting, interlinked service delivery and, that the creation of a Groundwork partnership in
Haringey would allow the engagement simultaneous engagement of council services and
partners to deliver a comprehensive project management approach.

14.2 Groundwork’s excellent national and regional track record for management/delivery of
programmes demonstrates the potential to replicate such work in Haringey, making available
new avenues for funding and injecting extra resources that are needed.

14.3 Subject to the necessary agreements, that the Council enter into a partnership with
Groundwork for the delivery of the agreed Operations Plan (Please see appendix 3).
Groundwork’s services in Haringey will be delivered by Groundwork North London as of 1%
April 2007.

15. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

15.1 Financial projections
15.2 Phase 2 pilot projects

15.3 Draft Groundwork Business Plan Proposal

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 7



Page 302

This page is intentionally left blank



INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Development Income
Predicted Groundwork investment (incl.private, DCLG & other)
Predicted Haringey Council investment

Project Income
Income growth
TOTAL INCOME
Indirect Expenditure
Staff Costs
Support costs

Full cost recovery
Direct project costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
SURPLUS
Surplus % [Target 5%)]

Cumulative Surplus

APPENDIX 1

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010111 2011/2012 2012/2013 6 Years
70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 420,000
70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 420,000

140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 840,000

445,000 510,000 590,000 655,000 699,000 720,000 3,619,000

14.61% 15.69% 11.02% 6.72% 3.00%

585,000 650,000 730,000 795,000 839,000 860,000 4,459,000
70,000 74,000 77,000 80,000 84,000 87,000 472,000
45,000 46,350 47,740 49,172 50,647 52,166 291,075

115,000 120,350 124,740 129,172 134,647 139,166 763,075

445,000 503,500 575,000 630,000 669,000 685,000 3,507,500

560,000 623,850 699,740 759,172 803,647 824,166 4,270,575
25,000 26,150 30,260 35,828 35,353 35,834

4.27% 4.02% 4.15% 4.51% 4.21% 4.17%
25,000 51,150 81,410 117,238 152,591 188,425

€0¢ obed



Page 304

This page is intentionally left blank



Groundwork Camden & Islington §
$
Haringey Briefing Sheet — Update Dec 2006 §A
Project Name: Paignton Park Master Plan & Quick Wins
Status: PHASE 2 PROJECT About to get underway
Partners & Funders: London Borough of Haringey (Recreation Services), Friends of Paignton Park, Bridge NDC
Budget: £tbc (LB Haringey). Quick win budget of £24,000
Description: Background

LB Haringey Parks Department and Friends of Paignton Park have commissioned Groundwork to produce and consult
on designs for the improvement of Paignton Park and to identify and implement some quick win improvements.

Update
Initial meetings have taken place with LBH Recreation Services and Friends of Group to agree a brief and obtain
background information.

Gog obed



Groundwork Camden & Islington §
S s

Haringey Briefing Sheet — Update Dec 2006 <§
Project Name: Happening Horticulture (Community Gardening)

Status: PHASE 2 PROJECT On-going

Funders: Bridge House Estates Trust and Help a London Child — plus contributions from groups worked with.

Budget: Approx £3,000 in Haringey

Description: Background

Groundwork’s Community Gardner is able to provide a programme of support to local groups wanting to create and
maintain new or existing community gardens across Camden, Islington, Westminster & Haringey.

Update
Progress to report to date: the Community Gardner has worked with elderly residents of Stokley Court sheltered housing
¥ to help improve communal areas, this included a planting day with residents in June.

90¢ obed



S

Groundwork Camden & Islington §
S s

Haringey Briefing Sheet — Update Dec 2006 N

CAMDEN & ISLINGTON

Project Name:

Partners & Funders:

Budget:

Description:

Noel Park
PHASE 2 UNDERWAY

London Borough of Haringey Parks Department

£10,000 (LB Haringey)

Background

LB Haringey Parks Department has commissioned Groundwork to carry out a master planning exercise for improving
Noel Park. The main objective of this project is to carry out a feasibility study, which will make recommendations on
how the park may be developed in the future. Funding options will also be looked at during the course of the feasibility
study to pay for the proposed scheme. As well as a funding plan, designs will also be produced as part of the project to
show visually how the Park could be developed.

The feasibility study will investigate the possibility of improving the facilities, access and biodiversity of Noel Park,
which will hopefully bring about increased usage in the Park. The Project got underway in November and will be
completed by end of March.

Update
Groundwork has undertaken the first phase of local consultation — engaging local residents, local stakdholders and
users of the Park. The master plan is currently being drawn by Groundwork’s landscape design team. The next
phase of consultation will take place between mid-January and mid-February. Over 1000 local residents were
involved in the local consultation and key stakeholders and community representatives took part in a park meeting in
November.

) 3 I- -

/0€ abed



S

Groundwork Camden & Islington §
S s

Haringey Briefing Sheet — Update Dec 2006 N

CAMDEN & ISLINGTON

Project Name:

Status:

Partners & Funders:

Budget:

Description:

Belmont Recreation Ground

PHASE 2 PROJECT: Feasibility study completed, fundraising underway.
London Borough of Haringey (Recreation Services)

£10,000 (LB Haringey) for feasibility. Improvement works up to £200,000
Background

LB Haringey Parks Department commissioned Groundwork in December 2005 to carry out a feasibility study for
improving Belmont Recreation Ground. The feasibility study was to make recommendations on how the park could be
developed in the future. This was to be done through consultation with the local community, stakeholders and users of
the Park. Funding options would also be looked at during the course of the feasibility study to pay for the proposed
scheme. As well as a funding plan, designs would also be produced as part of the project to show visually how the Park
could be developed.

Following the successful completion of the feasibility study LBH has asked Groundwork to help the Council and Friends
of Belmont Rec to raise funds for improvements. It is anticipated that fundraising and works will be carried out in
phases.

Update

Groundwork sent out initial questionnaires to all residents in the neighbourhood before Christmas and made contact
with key stakeholders. A public meeting was held on 19" Jan. Sketch plans of the Park were produced based on the
views of residents and stakeholders. These plans were circulated to all local residents and stakeholders for their views
and a public meeting took place on 27" Feb. Two design options were produced, agreed and estimate costs produced.
The final feasibility report was completed in early April and copies provided to key partners. Fundraising efforts are
underway.

80¢ obed



Groundwork Camden & Islington

N
Haringey Briefing Sheet — Update Dec 2006 N

CAMDEN & ISLINGTON

Project Name:

Status:
Partners &
Funders:

Budget:

Description:

Campsbourne Estate

PHASE 2 PROJECT In progress
London Borough of Haringey (Neighbourhood Management)

£50,000 (LB Haringey, s106)
Background

LB Haringey Neighbourhood Management has commissioned Groundwork to create, consult and implement designs for
a new community garden on the Campsbourne Estate, Noel Park. The designs will be created in partnership with the
Campsbourne Community Residents Association (CCRA).

Update

Following an initial meeting with CCRA three sketch designs were produced and then circulated to LBH and CCRA for
comment. Designs were amended and then discussed with CRA and LBH who selected two designs they would most
like to proceed with. The designs and associated costs have enabled draw down of s106 funding. A consultation fun-
day took place on 15" July and residents are also now being consulted via a questionnaire. Groundwork is also
exploring opportunities to provide a small amount of match funding.

60¢ obed



Groundwork Camden & Islington §
Sy

Haringey Briefing Sheet — Update Dec 2006 S

CAMDEN & ISLINGTON

Project Name:

Status:
Partners &
Funders:
Budget:

Description:

Local Employment Action Programme (LEAP)

PHASE 2 PROJECT: Under development
London Development Agency, Job Centre Plus

£100,000 over 2 years
Background

As part of the Groundwork feasibility planning there has been identified need to provide training and employment
opportunities in the horticulture and grounds maintenance sector.

Successful LDA and Job Centre+ funding applications have been submitted which will fund Groundwork to develop
employment opportunities across several London borough’s, including Haringey.

Update
Contract with LDA has only just been signed (by them) so work has not been able to get underway yet. A proposal has
been sent to LBH Employment & Skills Team to explore green jobs and other employment projects in Haringey.

01 abed



Page 311

$
§
S
N
S
S
CHANGING PLACES
CHANGING LIVES

EHARINGEY COUNCILES

GROUNDWORK IN HARINGEY

A proposal made by Haringey Council and Groundwork

A partnership of the public, private, voluntary and community sectors for the sustainable
development of Groundwork in Haringey

Final Draft October 2006



Page 312

CONTENTS Page

Foreword

Executive Summary
Section 1 Introduction

Section 2 Strategic Context
Section 3 Area profile

Section 4 The role for Groundwork
Section 5 Operations Plan

Programme 1
Programme 2
Programme 3
Programme 4
Programme 5
Programme 6

Section 6 Organisation Plan

Section 7 Income and Expenditure

Section 8 Outcomes
Section 9 Conclusions

Appendix 1 — List of partners and supporters

Appendix 2 — Key local regeneration/investment initiatives including a list of
individuals involved in the residual needs study

Appendix 3 — Press Cuttings of Pilot Projects

Appendix 4 — Operations Plan Summary



Page 313
FOREWORD

Support by a prominent local person for the proposal.

Suggest this is either ClIr Lorna Reith, Clir Amin, ClIr Brian Haley? LBH to advise.



Page 314

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report concludes the feasibility study for developing Groundwork services in Haringey. The Phase 1
document supported the need for establishing Groundwork in the Borough and this report demonstrates
that there is a sound business case and viability to those operations, highlighting the way in which
Groundwork will complement existing provision and how the new services will be delivered and managed.

Haringey Council's Economic Regeneration Unit first approached Groundwork to investigate the
development of services in the borough just over two years ago. In Spring 2005, a widespread
stakeholder consultation and desk research study were undertaken to test the role and need for
Groundwork services in the borough. The outcome of which was extremely positive, so subsequently the
phase 2 process over the last year has developed a business plan for Groundwork in Haringey, amongst
existing organisations and regeneration initiatives.

There is a wealth of regeneration initiatives in the borough that have been driven through the various
regeneration programmes via the Council and other strategic/local partnerships. BTCV are the main
environmental sector focusing on conservation activities. Overall, it has been clearly demonstrated that
Groundwork’s ability to deliver and add capacity will complement and join up existing work in the borough.
The report also recommends that there are sufficient resources via programmes and alternative funding
sources to support this delivery of services into Haringey. There is currently no one organisation fulfilling
Groundwork’s ability to tackle social and economic challenges through local environmental regeneration.

Groundwork in Haringey will add value in Haringey by contributing to the following:

o EMPLOYMENT: reducing levels of worklessness and increasing environmental training opportunities

e BUSINESS: increasing small business engagement in environmental management good practice,
local environmental regeneration and Corporate Social Responsibility

¢ YOUTH: increasing youth inclusion and engagement in environmental / neighbourhood regeneration
initiatives

o EDUCATION: raising educational achievement and opportunities through environmental initiatives
and training

¢ COMMUNITIES: improving the environment on housing estates to increase quality of life for local
residents - adding capacity to local community development and helping to reduce health inequalities
particularly between east and west of the borough

e LAND: delivering physical environmental improvements — contract management, design and
implementation of community-led land improvement schemes to improve public spaces, community
facilities and landscape schemes

The Operations Plan highlights the forecasted projects that Groundwork will deliver in Haringey under
each of these 6 programme objectives and outputs, including the relevant partners and resources
required for their success. Groundwork’s attraction is in ‘joining-up’ these programmes — offering the
opportunity to bring together the expertise of Groundwork’s Landscape, Community, Youth and
Employment Teams to deliver in a holistic way — focusing on the greatest areas of need in the borough.
The Groundwork style of working will ensure that local people are fully engaged in the planning and
designing of their neighbourhood environments. The pilot projects have demonstrated the way
Groundwork engages with businesses and local residents to improve their local area — through
neighbourhood planning, new provision of community facilities and improving open spaces.

In order to deliver new services in Haringey, Groundwork has reviewed human resources, legal and
governance structures. The best approach would be to utilise the services of Groundwork North London
— who have delivered the successful demonstration projects and are the adjacent Trust. It is important to
the DCLG, Groundwork UK and local partners that the delivery of services is resourced now and in the
future. The financial programme forecast is estimated at £3,619,000 over 6 years — with predicted annual
Groundwork investment (including DCLG, private & other income) of £70,000 and LBH investment in the
region of £70,000 per year for 6 years - subject to relevant approvals.

This report has been developed in partnership with LBH, Groundwork UK and strategic partners within the
Borough, overseen by a Strategic Development Group (Steering Group).



Page 315

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

This is a proposal to deliver Groundwork services to the London Borough of Haringey. Haringey Council
has decided to investigate if Groundwork in the Borough would assist it and its partners in its work in
continually improving the Borough and the lives of those who live and work in or visit the Borough.

To establish Groundwork in any part of the UK a process has to be undertaken involving, normally, six
stages these are:

Initial enquiry

Research into the potential role and niche for Groundwork then, assuming the conclusions of 2
are positive;

Building support

Establishing a steering group

Formulating a proposal to Groundwork UK and DCLG

Assuming that 5 above results in approval; formation of Groundwork Trust or new services

N —

ook W

This report addresses stage 5 above.

The methodology used in this study has been a detailed policy and data analysis coupled with a wide-
ranging stakeholder consultation. This study set out to investigate if there was a need in Haringey in terms
of deprivation, environmental and social inclusion work and for additional capacity; and would it broadly be
welcomed and how could it enhance existing activity.

The research findings are summarised in the body of this report‘, and it is clear from the local, sub-
regional and London policy contexts that Groundwork can enhance Haringey Council’s and other
organisations’ efforts to continue to improve the local environment and quality of life of local communities
including a reduction in crime, improved health and greater community cohesion.

Groundwork in Haringey will add value to borough and sub-regional priorities by: adding to and
strengthening capacity; attracting and investing resources; and developing new ways of creating
sustainable projects.

1.1 The Strategic Development Group (Steering Group)
1.2 Role of Steering Group

A Steering Group was set up to oversee the research process in March 2005 to progress the findings of
the feasibility study and generate this proposal in accordance with the requirements of the prescribed
process of Groundwork Trust development. The Group will continue to oversee the development of
Groundwork services in the Borough.

The key roles for the Steering Group

a) Brings to bear a range of local knowledge and stakeholder views.
b) Introduces an element of partnership and openness about the process.
c) Enables probing and searching of the emerging findings to test out the robustness of the work.

Generally speaking the Steering Group is not there to decide if it wants Groundwork or not but to ensure
that a good research and consultation process is undertaken so that when the Council, its partners,
Groundwork and the DCLG make the decision they have the right information and range of views in front
of them.

1.3 Membership of Steering Group

A full list of Steering Group members is attached in Appendix 1. A range of organisations is represented
including the Council, and the private and voluntary sectors.

" The full documentation of the research and data/policy analysis is contained in what is referred to as the Phase One report —
available separately. The findings are summarized in this report. 4



Page 316

1.31 Letters of Support
Letters of support awaited from:
- Haringey TPCT
- North London Ltd
- Tottenham Hotspurs
- Lee Valley Regional Park Authority
- North London Chamber of Commerce: Huw Jones

- London Waste: David Sargent



Page 317

SECTION 2: STRATEGIC CONTEXT

2.1 Strategic Regeneration Framework for area: Directions and Priorities

Policies for building a society of sustainable communities include the DCLG’s Sustainable Communities
and the Liveability Agenda: the DCLG’s aim is to create prosperous, inclusive and sustainable
communities for the 21st century, places where people want to live, that promote opportunity and a better
quality of life for all. Almost thirty per cent of Haringey residents live in areas amongst the 10 per cent
most deprived in England. Haringey's level of deprivation is the 10th most extensive in England. The
Haringey Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy aims to improve these deprived areas over the next decade —
linked to the programmes supported through Neighbourhood Renewal Funds and Safer Stronger
Communities Funding in the area.

Sub-regional and Borough level framework into which Groundwork will fit

Haringey is a London borough, which is part of the North London sub-region as identified in the London
Plan. This grouping comprises the boroughs of Barnet, Enfield, Haringey and Waltham Forest and has a
population of approximately 1.1 million. Thirty percent of the sub-region’s population comes from a black
or minority ethnic background, making North London one of the most multicultural in London and the UK
as a whole. There is a significant need for regeneration in the area, and it contains a number of strategic
growth sites that have been identified in the London Plan. Along its eastern side, the Upper Lee Valley
contains one of London’s largest concentrations of manufacturing industries and is a key development
zone. Other major development opportunities exist in Haringey — the Haringey Heartlands development,
which includes Wood Green town centre. North London has had mixed economic success recently, with
some strong jobs growth, but some areas of continued decline and deprivation, such as in the Upper Lee
Valley.

One of the principal market drivers in North London is the creative sports/leisure and emerging green
industries - a sector with strong growth potential. This is reflected in the strategies developed for the sub-
region by the North London Strategic Alliance (NLSA) — a key focus is developing tourism and building on
the area’s industrial and cultural heritage. (Flagships of North London include Alexandra Palace in
Haringey, the William Morris Gallery in Waltham Forest and Lee Valley Regional Park).

Strategic priorities for the North London sub-region as outlined in the London Plan:

o Priority of the London-Stansted-Cambridge corridor (which passes through Haringey) for
development, regeneration and transport improvement, while recognising the links with other
parts of the corridor (mainly the Thames Gateway development area.)

o Accommodation of new job and housing opportunities and appropriate mixed-use development.
This is especially important in relation to the Upper Lee Valley and other Opportunity Areas and
Areas for Intensification, in Haringey this covers the Haringey Heartlands/Wood Green town
centres.

o The Upper Lee Valley Area Partnership covers parts of Haringey, and the area is identified as a
priority area by the London Development Agency within the European Structural Funds
programme. Objective 2 of the European Structural Funds aims to revitalise all areas facing
structural difficulties, whether industrial, rural, urban or dependent on fisheries. There is a focus
on different types of socio-economic difficulties that are often the source of high unemployment.

o Open spaces — parkland, woodland, nature trails - and Blue Ribbon Networks are key features, in
particular the Lee Valley Regional Park

o Animportant stimulus to the regeneration of the Lee Valley, is the London 2012 Olympic Games.

2.2 Introduction to Groundwork and its Strategy for London

Establishing the first inner-city Groundwork Trusts in the early 1990’s, Groundwork across London has
built productive relationships with local regional and national authorities and agencies at strategic levels.
In the past three years in particular, this positioning has helped Groundwork contribute to Greater London
Authority (GLA) and Government policy on spatial planning, liveability and sustainable communities. It has
also allowed the London Trusts to make a great impact on the capital by working effectively together.
Partnerships are a key delivery principle in order to address the issues set out in the Government’s
policies and the London Plan and are a key element of Groundwork’s approach. 6



Page 318

A Strategic Plan 2006-09 has been agreed by Groundwork nationally which reflect the organization’s
overall strategic priorities. Nationally, sustainable development is at the core of the Groundwork’s strategic
aims, and the objectives focus on achieving excellence in delivery, improving quality, effectively
measuring our impact by building wide-ranging partnerships and programmes.

Groundwork’s purpose and practice is to deliver local environmental projects in partnership with
communities in need — and to continue to be valuable, viable and relevant.

Regional strategic priorities mirror these national objectives, and Groundwork has a strong track record in
delivering pan-London programmes - in order to better address London-wide issues.

A key cornerstone of the Groundwork London strategy is to ensure services are delivered across the
capital by 2007. This will ensure that Groundwork operations are able to target all of the capital's most
deprived communities and neighbourhoods. This provides the strategic backdrop to this proposal to
expand Groundwork to cover the London Borough of Haringey. Groundwork North London as the
neighbouring Trust would be delivering in Haringey if the proposal is successful. Currently Groundwork is
moving towards more sub-regional working (e.g. Groundwork North London are now also delivering in the
City of Westminster); however Groundwork will always maintain local Borough accountability.

In summary, Groundwork’s Strategic Objectives for London focus on key regional issues, which
include:

e Delivering the London Plan

e Delivering and contributing to the liveability agenda and the Sustainable Communities Action
Programme

o Working in partnership to deliver this work

Working in Partnership - The principles behind this proposal

Groundwork recognises the importance of working in partnership with existing players in the area.
Behind this proposal are the following principles:

o Adding value to the work of existing organisations

o Learning from, and working in partnership with those who are already delivering in the
area.

o Increasing the overall level of resources for projects and programmes in the area.

o Sharing in the collective mission to build up the capacity of communities and the voluntary
sector in particular so that local people can sustainably run things themselves

In summary, Groundwork aims to position itself as a strategic delivery partner to organisations
currently working in Haringey — the Local Authority and other partners — to deliver the targets and
priorities for Haringey.

This is also reflected in the principles of expanding Groundwork’s services into a new area - as
highlighted in Groundwork’s Corporate Plan and the DCLG Grant Memorandum. Paragraph 50 of the
Grant Memorandum states:

The criteria that shall be used by Groundwork UK in considering the establishment of each new Trust or
borough shall be that:

the Trust will further the Government’s aim of improving the quality of life for the people in towns and
cities by securing environmental improvements through the formation of local partnerships, combining
public, private and voluntary sector support;

having regard to the level of deprivation and environmental decline there is demonstrable need for the
services to be provided by the creation of the proposed Trust, which will complement the work of
these organisations;

there are opportunities to attract sufficient alternative resources from other sources, including the
private sector.
7



Page 319

SECTION 3: AREA PROFILE

The London Borough of Haringey covers 11.5 square miles and is home to over 200,000 people.
Haringey is an ethnically diverse borough - around 193 languages are spoken locally, and almost half of
Haringey's residents come from ethnic minority groups including Greek and Turkish Cypriot, African,
African Caribbean, Indian, Pakistani and Bangladeshi, and Irish. More recently, Kurdish and Somali
refugee communities have settled in Haringey. It is primarily residential, with some light industry in the
eastern part of the borough. The largest employer in the Borough is the Council. Some of Haringey's
landmarks are well known, including the extensively restored and renovated Alexandra Palace.

3.1 Summary of Demographic Trends and Inequalities within the Borough

Although Haringey is considered geographically to be an outer-London borough, it has many of the social
and economic characteristics of the inner city. It has significant disparities in relation to income, wealth,
housing, and employment within its boundaries. For more than 10 years, the Tottenham area has had one
of the highest rates of unemployment in the country, at 16.1 per cent. Haringey’s high position in
deprivation rankings in the previously used Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2000, and currently in the IMD
2004, have led the provision of government Neighbourhood Renewal Funds and European funding
streams. From 2001-08 the NRF in Haringey will have been worth over 44m.

There is a sizeable social and economic gap between the ‘east’ and the 'west' of the borough — the
deprivation patterns are strongly linked to geography. The 'east' side of the borough experiences high
levels of unemployment, poverty and related disadvantages, whilst the 'west' enjoys greater levels of
economic prosperity. Health inequalities also mirror this pattern — health deprivation is higher in White
Hart Lane, Tottenham Green, Noel Park and Northumberland Park.

The West side of the borough includes some of the most affluent areas in London - Highgate, Crouch
End, Muswell Hill, whilst in the East are located nine of the 10% most deprived wards in the country.
Some of these wards are in the worst 5% nationally on average for housing conditions, child poverty, and
income, and within the worst 10% on employment and the multiple index.

7.1% Haringey residents were claiming Job Seekers allowance in November 2003 compared to the
Greater London average of 4.9% and in some parts of Tottenham it is as high as 14.3%. Average
earnings are also below that for London as a whole.

Wood Green is the commercial centre of Haringey, and has been the focus of a master-planning exercise
focusing on town centre renewal. There are approximately 7700 businesses in Haringey that employ over
60,000 people, and over 95% of these businesses employ 24 people or less.

Haringey is one of seven nationwide pilots for a City Growth Strategy (CGS). This is a strategy model
which focuses on competitive advantages of inner cities, as a way of tackling deprivation, and
concentrates on developing the eleven wards to the east of the borough through focusing on their
economic advantages rather than their social disadvantages.

For Haringey the Indices of Multiple Deprivation (2004) has further recognized the extent of deprivation in
the Borough. The IMD 2004 found that Haringey is the 10th most deprived district in England, as
measured by both the average of ward ranks and the extent of deprivation. Approximately 30% of
Haringey Super Output Areas (SOAs) are amongst the 10% most deprived in the country, and these
SOAs are concentrated in the east of the borough mainly in White Hart Lane and Northumberland Park.
Comparative to London, Haringey is the 5th most deprived district in London after Tower Hamlets,
Hackney, Islington and Newham.

Major environmental issues facing the most deprived neighbourhoods include:

e Enviro-crime and poor environment due to litter, dumping, abandoned vehicles, graffiti and
vandalism and associated high petty crime levels

e Lack of civic pride

e Poor air quality, road traffic accidents and heavy traffic congestion

e Poor access to quality public transport



Page 320

Residents’ views? include:

3.2

Lack of open space and gardens

Lack of control over decisions affecting the neighbourhood
Crowding and over-development

Lack of facilities and resources — e.g. meeting places

Summary of challenges facing Haringey:

Haringey is geographically split between the relatively prosperous West and the disadvantaged wards
in the East and centre.

Worklessness is disproportionately high in particular sections of the community including black and
ethnic minorities, the young and lone parents. Unemployment is high in the borough as a whole and
even higher in the 20% most deprived wards. Long term unemployment is noticeably high.

Two thirds of the Borough population commute to work elsewhere, and people commuting in take one
half of the jobs.

Haringey is an ethnically diverse borough, and the diversity is increasing. Research on social
exclusion highlights that these groups are often vulnerable and it is very important to address potential
inequalities between service uptake of different groups.

This is a Borough with a transient population. In-migration has been associated with substantial
population mobility. People who stay on a temporary basis may not have the opportunity to build a
local commitment.

Educational achievement is below national standards. Whilst evidence shows that standards are
improving at more than twice the national rate and rapidly closing the gap, many leave school without
adequate skills.

Unemployed people often face a number of other issues such as housing, healthcare, childcare and
language barriers.

Liveability is a key issue for Haringey — many of the wards to the east suffer from higher perceptions
of crime and a neglected environment.

The demand for decent housing exceeds the supply and the demand for social housing needs to be
managed.

Health inequalities across the Borough need to be addressed, particularly the needs of priority groups

Residents views on challenges include the need for substantial additional investment in housing, open
spaces, street scene, community facilities and services, as well as :

Over development and increase in the Borough’s population, putting strain on already-existing lack of
social infrastructure.

Loss of informal green spaces, including 'backland' sites and front gardens.

? Received through the Haringey Federation of Residents’ Associations 9



Page 321

3.3 Summary of the regeneration framework and existing organisations
Haringey Community Strategy 2003 -2007

The purpose of the Haringey Community Strategy is to make changes that will improve the quality of life
for people in Haringey. The Haringey Strategic Partnership, which brings together the Council and
statutory organizations with local businesses, community and voluntary organisations and other partners,
produced this strategy and is responsible for its implementation. This is also the overarching Strategy for
the Borough.

New community Strategy 2007-2016

Consultation on a new Community Strategy has taken place throughout July and August 2006. The
information will be used by the Haringey Strategic Partnership to develop the next Community Strategy for
Haringey (2007-2016).

Priority Neighbourhoods highlighted in the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy

¢ South Tottenham — east of the old Tottenham Central wards running into Seven Sisters wards.
The Seven Sisters Bridge New Deal for Communities programme is focused in this area and is
the major neighbourhood renewal project. Other major development opportunities exist in
Tottenham Green, Clyde Road and Bernie Grant Centre®.

¢ Northumberland Park — centred on Coleraine ward and including part of Park ward, with some
overlap with Bruce Grove and High Cross. Joining Up Northumberland Park SRB is the major
project in this area.

o White Hart Lane ward — the emphasis is on community development work by the Council’s
Neighbourhood Management Service and through Sure Start outreach activities.

e Wood Green town centre — centred on Noel Park ward and including parts of Woodside. The
Haringey Heartlands SRB has been the major regeneration programme in this area for some
years. Further work will be carried out by the Noel Park Estate Neighbourhood Management to
continue community engagement.

¢ Mid-Tottenham — centred on Bruce Grove and High Cross wards and also including the
Broadwater Farm Estate. Development of neighbourhood management on the Broadwater Farm
Estate, as well as Sure Start outreach work are key projects.

Haringey Local Area Agreement

Haringey is a third-round Local Authority and are currently in the process of drawing up its Local Area
Agreement (which will run from 2007 to 2010).

A Local Area Agreement (LAA) is a three year agreement that is based on an area’s local Sustainable
Community Strategy, and it sets out the priorities for a local area. These priorities have to be agreed
between Central Government and the Council usually with the involvement of partners through the Local
Strategic Partnership. Haringey’s LAA is currently being drafted and the final document will be submitted
to Government in January 2007. The Haringey Strategic Partnership which was responsible for the
Community Strategy is also responsible for drawing up the LAA. There are four ‘blocks’ or core areas
around which the LAA will focus : -

o Children & Young People’s Service: Informed by the priorities identified in the newly developed
Children and Young People’s Plan, and consultation with children, young people, parents,
professionals, schools and the voluntary sector.

o Safer & Stronger Communities: Involves reviewing and strengthening of the arrangements already
in place for the Stronger and Safer Communities Fund around issues of crime, community
engagement, neighbourhood working and the environment.

3 A £14 million funding package including £6 million from the Millennium Commission and £3.5 million from LDA was approved in
Nov. 2004 to transform the former Tottenham swimming baths into a major performance and education centre fostering and
showcasing local and national artistic talent. 10



Page 322

o Healthier Communities and Older people: Reflects the priorities, strategic objectives and outcomes
of the Well-being Partnership — one of the thematic partnerships within the HSP — as well as the
Supporting People Strategy 2005-2010. Another relevant strategy is Experience Counts: Haringey’s
Strategy for improving the quality of life for older people 2005 — 2010, which was developed to tackle
discrimination and to promote positive attitudes towards ageing in Haringey so that by 2010 “older
people are enabled to be as informed, active, healthy and independent as possible and empowered
citizens at the heart of the community.”

o Economic Development and Enterprise: Focuses on the key economic issues for the Borough such
as increasing levels of employment and skills and business activity, specifically for core groups such
as young people. Also draws on the City Growth Strategy which focuses on economic renewal and
improving the business environment and opportunities in the Borough. The neighbourhood element of
the Safer and Stronger Communities Fund will also inform this block with key objectives of tackling
worklessness and improving the employability of vulnerable people in the community.

3.3.1 The major regeneration programme opportunities are as follows:

¢ The Bridge New Deal for Communities — a £50 million regeneration programme based in the South
Tottenham and Seven Sisters area, which started in April 2001 and runs for ten years until 2011. The
NDC is just beginning its capital programme, in the next few years we will be investing £5m to re-
furbish local estates, local buildings and create new community facilities. A major re-development is
planned for Wards Corner and the NDC are exploring the possibilities for what can be done with the
Seven Sisters / St Ann’s Road bridge, Chestnuts, Pulford Road, Triangle Centre and Plevna Under 5s
Nursery.

¢ Haringey Heartlands and key development sites— potential scope in Groundwork contributing as a
strategic player in development sites within the borough; Haringey Heartlands being one of the major
development areas identified in the UDP. The Community Infrastructure Fund (part of Growth Areas
Fund — see below) programme includes improvements for pedestrians and cyclists. Groundwork can
provide landscape design and stakeholder consultation skills for vision planning or for more specific
environmental/public realm design and build.

¢ Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (including Safer Stronger Communities Fund) — The
Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF) is a Government funding programme available to 86 local
authorities in England with the 10% most deprived wards. Eight of Haringey’s wards are within the
10% most deprived and include:

Bruce Grove

Noel Park
Northumberland Park
Seven Sisters

St Ann’s

Tottenham Green
Tottenham Hale
White Hart Lane

O O O O O O O O

The NRF is being used in Haringey to improve services and narrow the gap between the most deprived
areas and the rest of the borough. This is done by focusing the NRF on priorities within the Haringey
Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy (HNRS) and the national deprivation related floor targets. It is
administered and approved by the Haringey Strategic Partnership. This is a key source of funding for
supporting Groundwork activities in the borough in areas of greatest need.

The Safer Stronger Communities Fund in July 2005 merged existing DCLG and Home Office funding
streams that shared a number of closely related objectives. These are aimed at tackling crime, reducing
the harm caused by illegal drugs, addressing anti-social behaviour, improving the poor condition of streets
and other public spaces; in particular for deprived neighbourhoods where these issues are often more
prevalent.

The NRF and SSCF allocations for 2006/7 and 2007/8 for Haringey are as follows:

o NRF - £ 8,214,164 for 2006/7 and £7,485,974 for 2007/8
o 2006/7 Neighbourhood Element of the SSCF funds - £412,800 and for 2007/8 -
£516,000
11



Page 323

o The Cleaner, Greener, Safer Element of the SSCF funds for 2006/7 - £970,000 and
for 2007/8 - £1,130,000

¢ Haringey City Growth Strategy — The strategy was launched in 2003, prepared by EDAW
Consultants on behalf of North London Ltd. In May 2006 the CGS Board agreed the strategy’s
implementation plan and Groundwork have been welcomed by LBH and North London Ltd to become
an environmental partner in delivering and developing the green economy cluster — providing both
environmental business services alongside physical environmental improvements to key businesses
and industrial estates in the borough.

¢ London, Stansted, Cambridge Peterborough Growth Area - Haringey lies within London Stansted
Peterborough Cambridge Growth Area — the associated financial income has supported schemes
including Hale Wharf redevelopment studies (Tottenham Hale), Markfield Recreation Ground
improvements and accessibility improvements at Tottenham Marshes.

e Upper Lee Valley (ULV) and Lee Valley Regional Park - the North London Strategic Alliance has
recently commissioned consultants to develop a vision for the Upper Lee Valley. Groundwork has
been invited to participate in the Upper Lee Valley Steering Group — to input into discussions in order
to inform future green infrastructure and environmental improvements. Groundwork continues to work
closely with the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority, who are supportive of the delivery of Groundwork
services in the Borough.

e The Big Lottery Fund and Children’s Play Initiative — The BLF will make available £124 million to
local authority areas in England for portfolios of projects that will improve or develop local play
provision. Applications for funding are required to come from play partnerships led by the Local
Authority who will develop children’s play strategies for their area. BLF will fund projects that respond
to the needs identified in these strategies, which create, improve and develop free local play spaces
and services for children and young people. The grant will be awarded to the local authority to
manage.

The aim of the Haringey Play Strategy is to generate a commitment to ensuring that all children have
access to a range of rich, stimulating and fun play environments, which are free from unacceptable
risk, embrace diversity and encourage inclusion of all children. Play must also encompass the 3
Free’s — free to choose, free of charge and free to come and go.

The four key objectives identified by the Play Strategy:

o To raise awareness and understanding of play, children’s needs and rights to play
within Haringey.

o To increase participation of children and parents/carers and other stakeholders, in
planning and decision making about play.

o To increase the amount and range of local play provision

o To improve and ensure consistency of quality in local play provision

Haringey’s application will be successful if the Council and partners can demonstrate that the range of
projects will make a difference to the lives of children and young people.

¢ Children’s Fund - The Children's Fund is a government initiative intended to prevent social exclusion.
The aim is to fund projects that run activities and provide support to children and young people aged
between 5 to 13 who need it the most. An emphasis is placed on:

Children, young people and families most at risk of exclusion through poverty and disadvantage.
Adding value to, build on or link with existing Government initiatives or local projects.

Promoting the participation of local families, children & young people in the design and working of
the programme.

Being culturally appropriate and sensitive to particular needs.

Minimising local bureaucracy by building on suitable existing local partnerships which reflects
improved joint working and co-ordination between sectors.

70% of the Children's Fund allocation for Haringey is targeted on the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund

wards in the east of the Borough. The Children's Fund Budget is 100% externally funded through 12



Page 324

the Department for Education and Skills, Children, Young People and Families Directorate (DfES

CYPFD). Funding has also been committed for a Junior Youth Inclusion Programme (JYIP) and a
Youth Inclusion Support Panel (YISP). The activities that the Children’s Fund has developed and

supported are grouped together under four key themes:

Play & Creativity - after-school and weekend play provision

Language & Literacy - curriculum activities for children whose first language is not English
Self & Others - helping children develop their social communication skills.

Voice - giving children and young people a say in the way their services are planned and
delivered; celebrating their achievements

e Sure Start in Haringey - Sure Start is a government funded
programme to improve services for children from 0 - 4 and their
families. They encourage local agencies groups and parents to work
together to provide services. The main aim is to improve the health
and well being of children so they are ready to flourish when they start
school. Help is provided to services to identify children who need extra
help at an earlier age and support parents.

There are 5 local Sure Start programmes across Haringey — mostly
concentrated in the East of the Borough: High Cross, Noel Park,
Roundway, Park Lane, West Green & Chestnuts.

In June 2006, Haringey's SureStart month included Campsbourne
Playground opening, Broadwater Farm Children's Centre Mini-beasts
carnival, the launch of West Green and Chestnuts After-School Club and Noel Parks Children's
Centre Information and careers day.

Sure Start Local Programmes are operating in areas of greatest challenge and need within the
Borough. The Council’s Children Centre strategy mirrors the Sure Start agenda, and the core offer of
the children centres includes much of the type of work being undertaken by Sure Start Programmes.
Recently recommendations have been made regarding close collaboration between the Sure Start
programmes and the Children Centres, to ensure effective learning of what has worked in Sure Start
is incorporated, and where appropriate — to encourage and facilitate joint working.

Groundwork has been encouraged to develop opportunities for young children and families in Haringey —
engaging young people and families in improving their neighbourhood environments — working in
partnership with the Sure Start teams and hopefully supported by the Children’s Fund.

Homes for Haringey — Haringey’s ALMO: In 2005, Haringey’s tenants and leaseholders voted for an
Arms Length Management Organization to run and manage the Council’s housing stock. Homes for
Haringey have started operating from April 2006, and although the Council still own the stock and take
responsibility for housing policy and strategy, Homes for Haringey are responsible for management and
service improvement programmes — including responsibility for the Better Haringey Estates Improvement
Programme. They are also in the process of applying for funds to bring the housing stock upto the
Government’s 2010 Decent Homes Standard.

3.3.2 Other neighbourhood level initiatives/sites of regeneration include:

Broadwater Farm

Hornsey Town Hall Community Partnership

Bruce Grove

Green Lanes

Noel Park

Northumberland Park

New Deal for Communities West Green White Hart Lane
Tottenham High Road Regeneration
Neighbourhood Wardens

Neighbourhood Renewal Fund Poseidon Project
Haringey Better Estates Improvement Programme

O 0O 0O 0O OO OO OO0 Oo

13



Page 325

3.3.3 Other Key Policies/Initiatives to note

LEGI: The Council is in the process of bidding for a Local Enterprise Growth Initiative (LEGI) to
establish a programme to increase enterprise, employment and incomes in the most deprived areas (the
Neighbourhood Renewal areas). Even if the bid is not successful, the Council hopes to seek funding from
other sources to deliver this initiative. The LEGI was announced in 2005 as a joint initiative between the
ODPM, Small Business Service, and the HM Treasury. The aim is to provide flexible investment in a
number of deprived areas - determined by the neighbourhood renewal fund areas - to support local
proposals to stimulate economic activity. A first round of bidding in 2005 resulted in LEGI’s being awarded
to 10 areas of the country.

North London Development and Investment Framework: November 2006 sees the launch of the North
London Development and Investment Framework responding to the the opportunities and challenges of
the North London sub-region. As with the other sub-regions in London, Groundwork would be keen to
explore all opportunities to contribute to the delivery of these strategies.

3.4 Conclusions from Phase One Study and Stakeholder Research

As outlined in the introduction, the Phase One study included detailed policy and data analysis (desk
research) and a wide ranging stakeholder consultation (primary qualitative research). A summary of the
research findings* is presented below. The research was undertaken with key stakeholders in the
Borough during the Spring/Summer 2005.

The conclusions of the research are as follows:

o The London Borough of Haringey would benefit from a dedicated Groundwork presence, taking
into account the role of other agencies and the views and plans of existing key stakeholders.

o Thereis a residual need for Groundwork in the London Borough of Haringey based on the views
of local stakeholders.

o Groundwork’s niche and role is in the provision of environmental expertise — working in
partnership with other organisations.

o The feasibility study was welcomed by key stakeholders but Groundwork must continue the
dialogue with partners to ensure they do not duplicate the work of existing organisations

o The stakeholders support the establishment and development of Groundwork in Haringey.

Overall, stakeholders agreed, “There is definitely a need for an organisation with an environmental
theme”.

The key recommendation of the Phase One report was that the Steering Group support the continuation
of the feasibility study into Phase Two - to produce a formal proposal (for Groundwork UK and the DCLG)
— this report - and business plan for Groundwork in Haringey; and that appropriate pilot projects are
delivered in the Borough in the meantime.

As outlined in the introduction to this report, the next stage involved building support in the Borough in
terms of Local Authority support, and building partnerships with other organisations — both in the private
and voluntary sector, and thereby formulate a proposal for Groundwork services in the Borough. The next
chapter outlines the strategic case for Groundwork and the role and niche that Groundwork ‘s
programmes can fulfil.

N.B. Since this stage of the research, certain organisations have been identified as key stakeholders who
need to be consulted — one such recommendation is the Haringey Disabled Consortium.

* Full details can be obtained from the Phase One study which is available on request 14



Page 326

Haringey and Neighbouring Boroughs

Enfield

Waltham
Forest

5 ‘.\L . { {4 *‘)\I'.'_‘:_é ~ T\I /
N2 /| {Southwark 1\
1\ /A, R\,
\ \ = 3 | £
\“ \—r/./ / b 1 ¢

Groundwork North London currently operates in the Boroughs of Westminster (labelled 3 on map)
Camden and Islington.



Page 327

SECTION 4: THE ROLE OF GROUNDWORK

This section identifies the gaps in local activity, funding, delivery or other resources, which it is considered
Groundwork will fill. This demonstrates how Groundwork will work with existing organisations and
initiatives and how it will add value — the prime example being how Groundwork will strengthen local
capacity to deliver environmental regeneration in the borough. This is based on the Phase 1 identification
of the needs in Haringey and existing provision, and then identifying the gaps and potential role for
Groundwork.

41 The background to Groundwork

This year Groundwork celebrates 25 years of engaging and involving communities in practical action to
deliver environmental regeneration and promote sustainable development.

Groundwork ’s vision is of a society of sustainable communities, communities that are vibrant, healthy and
safe, which respect the local and global environment and where individuals and enterprise prosper.

Last year, Groundwork Trusts nationally delivered projects to the value of £117 million in neighbourhoods
characterised by high unemployment and crime levels, poor public health, run down housing and public
spaces, waste ground and struggling local economies. The first Groundwork Trust was established on
Merseyside in 1981 and there are now over 50 Trusts in the UK; and Groundwork also works with
international partners in Europe, USA and Japan.

Each Groundwork Trust is a partnership between public, private and voluntary sectors with its own board
of trustees. National and regional offices of Groundwork UK support the work of the Trusts, by distributing
Government funding, securing support for national/regional programmes and promoting good practice.
Groundwork works closely with the Government and national and regional assemblies, local authorities,
public bodies and the private sector.

Groundwork seeks “to build sustainable communities in areas of need through joint environmental action”
by getting local people, local businesses and other organisations involved in practical projects that
improve the quality of life, bring about regeneration and lay the foundations for sustainable development.

Groundwork London is currently reviewing coverage across London, hence similar development work is
underway in the Boroughs of Brent, Wandsworth, Waltham Forest and Redbridge; in addition to recent
completion of feasibility studies for the City of Westminster and Lambeth.

Groundwork achieves its purpose through practical projects which are organised into six themes:

Communities
Land
Employment
Education
Business
Youth

YVVVYVYVY

4.2 Proposed Groundwork activities

The proposed Groundwork activities in Haringey will be delivered by the neighbouring Groundwork Trust
- Groundwork North London - which operates in Camden and Islington and Westminster. (As described in
Section 2).

Table 1 overleaf shows the proposed activities that Groundwork intend to deliver in the borough — based
on the key issues identified in the Phase 1 research. These programme areas have filtered down through
further stakeholder consultation and partnership discussions with key local authority departments as well
as local private and community sector organisations — ensuring that Groundwork’s activities are aligned
with local priorities. The table also demonstrates the wide range of partners and stakeholders that are
keen to engage with Groundwork in order to ‘join-up’ local initiatives, pool resources and deliver in
partnership.

16



TABLE 1: Identifying the role for Groundwork

Outline of residual need as
identified by the research
study

Suggested Groundwork activity to
meet local needs

Key strategies
addressed

Result of Consultation -
Groundwork’s role and
purpose of activity

Key Groundwork
partners and
stakeholders

EMPLOYMENT:

Reduce levels of worklessness
and increase environmental
training opportunities

Green employment/training initiatives
(horticultural, landscape and grounds
maintenance) in partnership with LBH
recreational services and other
relevant delivery partners

Inclusion of Haringey in Westminster’s
Vertex LEAP (Local Employment
Assistance Programme)

Haringey Employment and
Training Strategy

Haringey Community
Strategy — increasing
employment opportunities

Haringey Neighbourhood
Renewal Strategy —
promoting social
enterprises and
opportunities

Raise the profile and value
of environmental training in
local regeneration

Develop and deliver local
environmental training —
linked to local employment
opportunities

Haringey Employment
Partnership

JobCentre Plus
Haringey Council

Haringey Training
Network

Learning & Skills Council
London North (LSC)

Haringey City Growth Urban Futures
Strategy
LVRPA
LDA
BUSINESS: Groundwork Environmental Business Haringey City Growth Build capacity to engage CESMB
Increasing small business Services - environmental management | Strategy the private sector more fully

engagement in environmental
management good practice,
local environmental
regeneration and Corporate
Social Responsibility

advice in collaboration with CESMB

Recycling/waste minimisation
initiatives

Environmental improvements to
business/industrial areas — physical
environmental work e.g. signage,
landscaping, access/safety (LDA
Green Business Park Specialist
Assistance Package)

Haringey Neighbourhood
Renewal Strategy —
improving the local
economy

Haringey Community
Strategy — environment and
sustainable development

in environmental
regeneration /
Stewardship

To assist businesses to
improve their individual
economic and
environmental performance
and reduce the
environmental impact of the
industrial estate/business
area

North London Chamber
of Commerce

North London Ltd

Business Link London
North

Haringey Council

Local businesses

gce obed



Corporate Social Responsibility -
community/business engagement
across all programmes including
corporate volunteering

FinFuture Ltd

YOUTH:

Increase youth inclusion and
engagement in environmental /
neighbourhood regeneration
initiatives

Engage young people in physical
improvement projects

Environmental initiatives with young
people that raise their awareness of
environmental regeneration and enable
them to play a role in it.

Environmental training initiatives

Youth diversionary activities seeking to
reduce anti-social behaviour initiatives
on estates as part of neighbourhood
regeneration

Haringey City Growth —
skills training

Haringey Community
Strategy — raising
achievements

Haringey Employment and
Training Strategy

Safer Communities
Strategy

Add capacity to existing
youth agencies — using
environmental expertise as
niche.

Work in partnership with
lead role in engaging young
people using environment
as a tool

Haringey Council —
including the Children &
Young People’s Service
Schools/youth clubs
LSC

Connexions

Local training
organisations

Haringey Play
Association

Young people

Community Groups

EDUCATION:

Raise educational achievement
and opportunities through
environmental initiatives and
training

Environmental education including
global/local citizenship (including
teacher training/resources)

Improving school grounds/play areas

Pre-16 work experience/environmental
placements

Haringey Community
Strategy and Better
Haringey

Haringey’s The Children
and Young People’s Plan

Haringey Healthy Schools
team

Provide additional capacity
in environmental schools
projects — including
landscape/outdoor design
expertise

Provide work experience for
young people/pupils

Haringey Council
Local schools

Haringey Education
Business Partnership

Haringey Play
Association

BTCV

18

62¢ obed



COMMUNITIES:

Improve the environment on
housing estates to increase
quality of life for local residents

Adding capacity to local
community development

Need to reduce health
inequalities particularly
between east and west of the
borough

Work with residents and key

stakeholders to identify, design and

implement improvements to external

spaces on housing estates to

complement wider regeneration

schemes, e.g.

- Community engagement

- Community safety

- Landscape design and master
planning

- Community gardening

- Fundraising

- Community waste and recycling

Haringey Neighbourhood
Renewal Strategy

Haringey Housing
Strategy/Homes for
Haringey

Better Haringey

Haringey Open Spaces
Strategy

Safer Communities

Haringey Community
Strategy

Homes for Haringey
Housing Associations
Haringey Council
Local TRAs

Metropolitan Police

- Community Volunteering

- Project fundraising assistance

- Community consultation expertise

- Feasibility and research studies

- Outreach and community
awareness

- Environmental work
experience/voluntary placements

- Community development

HAVCO
HARCEN

Haringey Council
BTCV

Selby Trust
TRA’s & Community
Groups

Delivery of health and environment
projects in priority neighbourhoods

Contribute to Healthy Schools
Programme

Community gardeners schemes and
horticultural therapy initiatives

Haringey Health
Improvement Plan

Haringey Community
Strategy — tackling health
inequalities

Better Haringey

Provide environmental and
community expertise to
local health initiatives

Haringey TPCT and
Strategic Health Authority

Haringey Council

BTCV

19

0gg obed



LAND: Physical land
improvements, community
facilities and landscape
schemes

Deliver physical environmental
improvements to public spaces —
contract management, design and
implementation of community-led land
improvement schemes:

- Landscape design services

- Access and routeways

- Open spaces, parks, play areas
- Streetscene improvements

- New youth facilities

- Sustainable transport/ AQMAs

- Fundraising

- Surveys/Audits

Haringey Neighbourhood
Renewal Strategy

Haringey Open Spaces
Strategy

Haringey Play Strategy

Haringey Council
LVRPA

BW
HAVCO/HARCEN
Sustrans

Friends of Parks

Haringey Play Assoc.

BTCV

20

1£¢ abed



4.3 Complementary Providers

Page 332

Organisations who already deliver projects similar or related to Groundwork activities and programmes:

Organisation

Activities that relate to
Groundwork services

Way in which Groundwork can
complement or add value

British Trust for Conservation
Volunteers

Environmental conservation
volunteering activities — improving
health, active citizenship,
employment and life skill
development, alongside local
biodiversity and environment.

Groundwork’s strength is in
regeneration project
management and not specifically
in volunteering programmes —
hence bringing added skills and
capacity to the borough, such as
landscape design and youth
work. Both organisations fulfil a
different role in joint efforts to
improve the local environment.

Lee Valley Regional Park
Authority

The Authority was established to
regenerate the Lea Valley from a
neglected back yard into a "green
wedge" extending right into the
inner parts of east London —
building on its achievements to
improve the environment, deliver
first class sports and leisure
facilities and as a 2012 Olympics
delivery partner.

Groundwork has been working
alongside the LVRPA for a
number of years — particularly in
Hertfordshire — delivering
landscape design and project
management. However,
Groundwork and LVRPA are
also working closely as part of
the green infrastructure
improvements as part of the
Growth Areas Fund from DCLG.

Lee Rivers Trust

LRT is a water related charity,
based in the Lee Valley and East
London - working through
partnerships to promote, protect
and enhance the waterway
environment. The charity deliver
several business, education and
heritage education programmes.

Groundwork has a wealth of
expertise in waterway
programmes — particularly via
the London Waterways
Partnership SRB6 programme.
However, Groundwork would
deliver waterways projects in
Haringey where extra capacity or
physical works are required in
order to not duplicate the efforts
of LRT and seek to work in
partnership where possible. LRT
have also worked alongside Gwk
East London and other Trusts as
part of the SRB6 programme.

British Waterways

British Waterways is a UK-wide
public corporation —in Haringey
they manage and care for the
River Lee Navigation and
adjacent properties including the
community building at Tottenham
Marshes — they aim to blend best
commercial practice with public
sector values to earn and
increase income to conserve and
enhance the waterways.

Groundwork has collaborated
with BW on a number of
initiatives in London.
Groundwork fulfils a delivery role
and therefore would complement
or add value to any
developments or programmes
that BW deliver in the future
related to Lee Navigation and its
hinterlands. Gwk has worked in
partnership with BW in Camden
& Islington for over 10 years.

Haringey Young Paddlers

This active Young Paddlers group
in the Lee Valley catchment area
in Enfield and Haringey delivers
water safety and environmental
education initiatives — often as
part of British Waterways and

Groundwork would gain from the
complementary nature of the
Young Paddlers activities
alongside wider environmental
projects along the waterways
and would ensure that any




Page 333

LVRPA Education Programmes.

environmental education
programmes did not duplicate
their efforts.

Area-based regeneration
programmes: e.g. NDC The
Bridge, Joining-up
Northumberland Park, Finsbury
Park SRB

Several regeneration
programmes have generated a
number of environmental
initiatives — including those
delivered by BTCV in the key
neighbourhoods. The Bridge
NDC continues until 2011 — whilst
most of the other programmes
finished in March 2006.

The regeneration programmes
have been well-regarded and
successful in their aims to
improvement neighbourhood
management and regeneration
the most needy communities in
the borough — Groundwork has
the opportunity to continue this
work and to build on the success
of the past by adding new skills
and expertise to the regeneration
effort in Haringey. E.g. working
with FinFuture to help them
fundraise now they have no SRB
funding.

CESMB (Middlesex University)

CESMB has a specialist team
who deliver environmental
management advice and training,
e.g. policy and legislation, ISO
14001 implementation and
auditing. The Centre carries out
its consultancy, development
projects, training and research
independently and is recognised
as providing high quality and
innovative approaches to meet
business needs.

Groundwork EBS also provides
environmental management
advice to businesses —and so
both organisations are keen to
collaborate rather than compete.
Groundwork’s USP is in
landscaping and physical
improvements to private and
public spaces — as part of a
package of environmental
services to the business
community — particularly in the
Lee Valley industrial estates.

Housing Associations
E.g. Family HA, Circle Anglia and
Metropolitan Housing Trust.

Circle Anglia, Family and
Metropolitan Housing Groups are
keen to improve the public
spaces and amenities around
their housing areas. The Decent
Homes initiatives provide a
catalyst to this work — prioritising
the environmental conditions
around housing — tackling
community safety, play facilities
and environmental quality etc.

Groundwork has a good track
record of delivering
environmental improvements to
housing estates — bringing
landscape expertise and added
community development
capacity to the HA teams. A
number of potential sites and
issues have been highlighted for
future Groundwork efforts in the
borough. Groundwork has
worked with a number of HA’s
across Camden & Islington to
regenerate external spaces on
housing estates.

22




Page 334

Haringey Play Association

HarPA actively promote children's
play - raising awareness and
understanding of the fundamental
importance of play in a child's life.
They develop and support a
diverse range of children's play
provision and are committed to
improving the quality of play
experience in Haringey.

HarPA success in developing
Somerford Grove Play Area is a
good example of their success in
the borough — but also
demonstrates that Groundwork
must ensure that any new play
provision or facilities take into
account the role and capacity of
HarPA and work in partnership to
achieve greatest impact.
Groundwork’s community
development and youth workers
would add capacity to existing
resources but must ensure
project sustainability after
completion.

Haringey Education Business
Partnership

HEBP working in partnership with
Haringey Council to give school
students an opportunity to have a
work placement at the Council
and with local companies in the
borough. Work experience helps
these students gain employment
by learning about work in a "real
life" situation. Specific HEBP
programmes are also delivered at
Tottenham Green Enterprise
Centre — assisting young people
to gain an understanding of
business enterprise, creativity
and innovation.

Groundwork could provide
complementary environmental
training alongside HEBP —in the
secondary schools in the
borough. The horticultural and
landscape industries would
expand the opportunities
available.

KIS Training

Keeping It Simple Training is a
DTl-approved and LSC Work-
Based Learning training and
enterprise agency, based in
Tottenham. They deliver
elements of the Princes Trust
programmes for young people.
Elements of their projects have
included regenerating
neighbourhoods — including art
and music.

The agency offers a range of
training, advisory and support
services to help people achieve
their personal, employment and
business goals — designed to
tackle social exclusion and to
contribute to local regeneration,
employment development and
business support initiatives.

Groundwork’s ability to combine
employment training needs with
environmental regeneration skills
is welcomed within the borough.
KIS Training are interested in
potential collaboration in the
future — to benefit from
Groundwork’s environmental
expertise. Groundwork’s
environmental training
programmes would be an unique
addition to employment training
available in the borough.

23




Page 335

FinFuture

FinFuture is the organisation that
has taken over the duties of
Finsbury Park Partnership as of
March 2006 A variety of
initiatives are led by FinFuture —
including community policing,
streetscene management,
community safety, environment,
community involvement and
services, as well as Business
Forums.

Groundwork is already working
in partnership with FinFuture —
looking for funding opportunities
to implement environmental and
streetscene improvements within
the area. Our fundraising and
project management expertise
and range of services are suited
to such local improvement
projects.

Haringey Federation of Residents
Association

Play an active role in Haringey
LSP —including Better Places
Partnership.

There are over 140 RA’s
throughout Haringey, and local
projects in their communities
need to arise from or develop in
conjunction with their concerns
and membership — and aim to
add capacity.

Interested in working with
Groundwork to ensure residents
are driving regeneration and
involved rather than simply
‘consulted’. As they provide a
voice for the numerous RA’s in
the Borough —they are a good
organization to partner with.

Friends of Parks Forum

Provide a forum for the many
Friends of Parks groups in the
Borough

Play an active role in Haringey
LSP —including Better Places
Partnership

Provide a useful point to
collaborate with the many
Friends of Parks groups and
ensure local priorities are driving
open space improvements and
projects.

Haringey Local Agenda 21
Community Group

Active role in Haringey LSP —
including Better Places
Partnership

Areas of overlap with regards to
an over-arching environmental
focus — and a useful partner to
ascertain local environmental
issues.

Tottenham Hotspur Foundation

Youth inclusion and engagement
work in Haringey. Examples of
projects delivered include the
Kickz project — an estates based
football inclusion initiative. They
engage with over 100 children
per week on this project. A focus
on health, improving quality of life
for residents, volunteering and
capacity building through people
qualifying as FA Level | coaches.
Future employment is also
available through the Club.

Areas of overlap with regards to
youth inclusion /community
services including education and
employment. Potential partner in
programmes focusing on health
and sporting activities. Potential
for working together on Barclays
Spaces for Sports type
programmes.

24




Page 336

Capel Manor College HE Institution specializing in
Horticulture, Floristry, Garden
Design, Equine, Animal Care and

Countryside Studies

Possibility in working in
partnership to deliver green
employment training
programmes. Capel Manor
would be able to provide access
to accredited courses e.g. a
horticulture/grounds
maintenance certificate.

National Industries Symbiosis
Programme

NISP provides free business
opportunities by linking up
companies across sectors to
share material resources, assets,
logistics and expertise — and is
part-funded by DEFRA’s
Business Resource Efficiency &
Waste ( BREW) programme. And
part-funded by the LDA. NISP is
a national programme delivered
regionally and was launched in
London in Sept. 2005.

Currently NISP only work with
businesses. There is a possibility
of partnering with NISP to deliver
the benefits of their work to a
wider audience.

Possibility of working in
partnership with NISP
businesses to deliver
environmental benefits to local
areas.

Other organisations that relate to Groundwork’s activities and regeneration efforts, include:

HAVCO

North London Business Link

North London Chamber of Commerce
Urban Futures

RESTORE Haringey

Recycling Works Haringey

Selby Trust

First Step Trust

Finsbury Park Horticultural Centre
Harrington Scheme

Envirowise

London Community Recycling Network

O 0O 00O OO OO OO0 OO0

Within Haringey Council the main departments that are keen to engage with Groundwork are as follows:

Chief Executive’s Team

Homes for Haringey

Environment Services / Recreational Services
Neighbourhood Management

Economic regeneration

Children’s Services

O O 0O O O O

25




4.4 Demonstrating Groundwork’s activities

Groundwork and Haringey Council were keen to kick start a small programme of projects in the Borough to demonstrate Groundwork’s project delivery and partner

engagement. Therefore, in Spring 2005, a number of projects were developed in partnership between the Council, Groundwork and other local organisations. The full

pilot programme is documented in Appendix5 — however below are some brief project outlines:
1. Sustainable Suburbs

Groundwork was asked to test the Mayor’s Sustainable Suburbs Toolkit in the Myddleton Rd area.

The project has used the Toolkit to act as a framework for reviewing and revising the Myddleton Road
Neighbourhood Action Plan.

The project value is £10,600 (funded by Groundwork London £5,500 and GLA £5,000) and the additional
partners are LDA and Haringey Council.

2. Partridge Way Community Garden

Groundwork produced landscape designs for a community garden on the Partridge Way Estate.

The designs are being implemented by LB Haringey, once completed then Groundwork’s Community
Gardener will help to support local residents to manage the garden.

The project value is £2,347 (funded by Haringey Council) and the Community Gardener is funded by Bridge
House Estates Trust and Help a London Child.

26

/€€ abed



3. Wood Green Trade Waste Minimisation 7

Groundwork has carried out a survey of businesses in Wood Green to help establish requirements i :
for trade waste recycling services. The Trust is also working directly with a number of businesses in ) _—
Wood Green to try and help them to get started recycling and to identify barriers to them doing so. The project
value is £10,000 (funded by Haringey Council). A report was submitted to the Council at end of July but work
will continue to monitor how businesses get on recycling and a subsequent report on this will be produced

by end of December.

4. Topsfield Close Community Garden

Family Housing Association (FHA) commissioned Groundwork to help improve two neglected open
spaces on the estate. The feasibility study was carried in consultation with residents and stakeholders
and plans were agreed. Groundwork and FHA fundraised £65,000 for the improvements, which included
a community garden and a mini sports court. The improvement works were completed in November 2005.
The project value is £64,000 (funded by Onyx Landfill Tax £25,000, HBOS via Groundwork UK £10,000,
Family Housing Association £25,000 and Presentation Housing £5,000).

5. Belmont Recreation Ground

Groundwork carried out a feasibility study which made recommendations on how the park could be
developed in the future. This was done through consultation with the local community and stakeholders.
The study is complete and fundraising is underway to pay for improvements (¢.£200,000).

The project value is £10,000 (funded by Haringey Council).

6. Campsbourne Estate

Three sketch designs were created with Campsbourne Residents Association (CRA) for the creation of a
community garden on the estate. Groundwork is working with CRA and LB Haringey to consult residents
on their preferred design, including a consultation fun day in July.

The project value is £2,476 (funded by Haringey Council).

g8ce abed



7. Paignton Park Master Plan & Quick Wins

LB Haringey Parks Department and Friends of Paignton Park have commissioned Groundwork to produce and consult on designs for the improvement of Paignton
Park and to identify and implement some quick win improvements. Initial meetings have taken place with LBH Recreation Services and Friends of Group to agree a
brief and obtain background information. The budget is yet to be confirmed but is estimated for approximately £24,000. The Bridge NDC is also a partner in this
project.

8. Local Employment Action Programme (LEAP)

As part of the Groundwork feasibility planning there has been identified need to provide training and employment opportunities in the horticulture and grounds
maintenance sector. Successful LDA and Job CentrePlus funding applications have been submitted which will fund Groundwork to develop employment opportunities
across several London borough’s, including Haringey. The budget for this project has been identified at £100,000 over 2 years The contract has just been signed with
the LDA so delivery work has not been able to get underway yet. A proposal has been sent to LBH Employment & Skills Team to explore green jobs and other
employment projects in Haringey.

9. Happening Horticulture (Community Gardening)

An ongoing project funded by Bridge House Estates Trust and Help a London Child — (along with contributions from groups involved) : Groundwork’s Community
Gardner is providing a programme of support to local groups wanting to create and maintain new or existing community gardens across Camden, Islington,
Westminster & Haringey. The budget is approximately £3,000 for Haringey, and the Community Gardner worked with elderly residents of Stokeley Court sheltered
housing to help improve communal areas, this included a planting day with residents in June ’06.

28

6E¢ obed



Page 340



Page 341

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

SECTION 5: OPERATIONS PLAN
5.1 Groundwork’s strategic approach

Groundwork in Haringey will prioritise programmes that contribute to (1) sub-regional strategies
particularly within the context of sustainable regeneration of the Lee Valley and (2) narrow the gaps
between the east and the west of the borough by focusing on areas of greatest need. Groundwork will
add greatest value in Haringey by:

o Brokering partnerships with the private, public and voluntary sector to deliver local environmental
regeneration

e Strengthening the capacity of local communities to successfully regenerate their neighbourhoods

e Engaging the private sector more fully in environmental regeneration / stewardship.

e Attracting and investing resources to maximise the impact and targeting of Groundwork activity to
areas of need

5.2 Groundwork partnerships

Groundwork will always work in partnership, Appendix 1 lists some of the main partners with whom
Groundwork will work alongside in delivering services in Haringey. Some of the partners listed in this
section have been suggested to Groundwork as potential partners due to overlapping areas of interest
and further development work would be necessary.

5.3 Groundwork programmes

Groundwork will deliver the following programmes in Haringey over the next six years which will be
focused on meeting the identified needs of the area ( refer to Table 1). However in the first three years —
some programmes may still be under development whilst further feasibility work is undertaken.

Communities - building stronger neighbourhoods

Land — reconnecting people with their surroundings
Employment —training for work and stimulating enterprise
Education — learning, citizenship and sustainability
Business — integrating the economy and the environment
Youth —realizing young people’s potential

Throughout the feasibility process, Groundwork has been delivering a number of demonstration projects
in order to engage and test local partnership-working and service delivery - these pilot programmes have
clearly proven that Groundwork services in the borough are viable and are needed in the borough.

5.3.1 LAND

There is a clear need to improve parks and open spaces in Haringey and facilities for the local community
(as set out in the objectives in the Open Spaces Strategy). There is a role for Groundwork in working in
partnership to reconnect people to their surroundings. The Open Spaces Strategy also indicates that
allotments are generally in poor condition and there is a potential for projects which seek to improve
these.

Groundwork can bring substantial expertise in this area, as an experienced project manager of land
regeneration projects, including public spaces, parks, waterway corridors, play areas and town centres.

BTCV is a key player in the borough in terms of volunteer-based work and projects such as tree-planting,
and Groundwork is keen to identify ways of working together and complementing one another’s role within
the borough.

There is also a potential role for Groundwork to work on projects relating to sustainable transport —
through working in partnership with organisations such as Sustrans, Living Streets and Transport for
London. This is particularly in the context of the Cleaner, Safer, Greener agenda.

The most substantial land projects are likely to take place on housing estate improvements (e.g. Homes
for Haringey — the new ALMO and via Housing Associations) — including new play/leisure facilities, open
space and landscaping. Groundwork has a strong track record of project management and contract

30



Page 342

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

management of land improvement schemes — providing fundraising, landscape design and community

engagement as a package of project services.

Opportunities for Groundwork:

Potential partners:

Sustainable transport routes— possible work with the Haringey Cycling Campaign
Housing estate regeneration projects — open spaces, play areas etc, lighting and environmental

improvements

Streetscene improvements — particularly Tottenham High Road
Community centre gardens
Renovation/creation of pocket parks and small urban spaces
New project work with Environment Agency
AQMAs — tree-planting scheme — links to sustainable transport
Allotment regeneration and horticultural projects
Waterways — canal and waterway improvements

¢ LBH Recreational Services and Neighbourhood Management
e Homes for Haringey / Housing Associations
e BTCV
e LVRPA
e British Waterways
e Lea Rivers Trust
o FinFuture
e Federation of City Farms and Community Gardens
¢ National Society of Allotments and Leisure Gardens
e  Community Composting Network
Project Estimated Description Partners Progress
project value
Belmont New community LBH Project underway
Recreation £15,000 garden / open
Ground space and related | Friends of Belmont
improvement Park
works
Priority £430,000 Creation of new LBH recreation Under development as
Neighbourhoods play area Homes for Haringey | part of pilot work
NRF
Residents’
Associations
Campsbourne New community LBH Under development as
Estate Costed within | garden / open Homes for Haringey | part of pilot work
(Phase 3) HfH housing space and related
estate improvement Campsbourne
improvements | works Community
Residents
Association
Newton Road Open space LBH Concept stage only -
Estate Costed within | improvements HfH needs further
HfH housing development via HfH
estate RA and TRA.
improvements
River and Canal | £58,000 No specific BW
corridor projects identified LVRPA
projects LBH
Recreation/Planning
Friends of New
River
Finfuture — £30,000 Implementation of | FinFuture Fundraising underway

31




A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Page 343

Finsbury Park potential Trim Trail | LBH Recreation via Groundwork and
schemes and nature trails Friends of Finsbury | FinFuture
Park

Lordship Lane £10,000 Enquiry received LBH NM Concept stage only -
Streetspace from LBH NM for Collage Arts needs further

clear up of small development.

fly-tipped’ Involve nearby RA

streetspace into group if any

functional/attractive

area
Carbuncle £15,000 Potential green LBH NM Concept stage only -
Passage - chain/alley-way Econ Regen needs further
greening access project to create HfH development.

safer environment
for pedestrians

Ferry Lane Action

Group
High Cross Costed within | Environmental HfH Concept stage only -
Estate HfH housing Improvements - needs further
estate redevelopment development via HfH.
improvements | scheduled
LVRPA/LBH The | £10,000 Environmental LVRPA Concept stage only -
Paddocks improvements LBH recreation needs further
subject to development.
LBH/LVRPA
discussions
Muswell Hill £30,000 Cross-borough LBH recreation Concept stage only -
Playing Fields project needs further
management for Muswell Hill & Fortis | development.
site improvements | Green Association
Creation of new | £260,000

play/sport
facilities

Haringey Play

Community Sports
Network

Contribution to | Costed within | No specific LVRPA
green ULV & Growth | projects identified LBH Recreation
infrastructure Areas fund
programmes projects Haringey Friends of
Parks Forum
Community £35,000 Garden/outdoor Community Centres | Concept stage only -
Centre Gardens area LBH needs further
—e.g. Haven & enhancements development.
Selby
Allotment Specific project via Concept stage only -
strategy - Eamon? But wider | LBH recreation needs further
delivering £35,000 interest from Allotment Site development — may link
projects Parks... Committees to BLF well-being
Haringey Allotments | programme
Allotment Involve groups Forum
/Gardening such as the elderly,
Programme women otherwise
targeting confined to the Potential link to Further development
vulnerable home, teenage Extended Schools work to be done.
groups and parents, homeless | Agenda and
focusing on groups, substance | Children Centres.
nutrition misusers etc. and Also potential link

aims are to look at
growing food and
nutrition and ‘cook
and eat’ type
projects.

into qualifications
and employment

32




A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Page 344

Homes for Groundwork LBH Development and
Haringey — £420,000 delivery of Homes for Haringey | planning underway —
Better Haringey landscaping and (HfH) with Housing Area
Estates play improvements Managers for current
Improvement on priority housing | RA spend — but programme
Programme estates in ongoing.

partnership with

other agencies.
Homes for £60,000 Working with RA In development —
Haringey decent homes dependent on HfH
Decent Homes contractors to Decent Homes
Standard produce programme.
Programme investment plans

for all estates in

the Borough
Circle Anglia - £300,000 Various estates Circle Anglia Nine project proposals
estate LBH Recreation received — but no
environmental Services funding secure. Two
improvement projects currently under
programme development/fundraising.
Key site £120,000 Environmental LBH Econ Regen Concept stage only -
redevelopment improvements e.g. needs further
or renewal Brunel Walk etc development — may link

to CGS and S106.
ULV & Growth £129,000
Areas Fund
projects
Napier Road £10,000 Environmental LBH NM, recreation | Concept stage only -
Community improvements needs further
Garden & Bruce Grove development.
Parkland, Bruce Residents Network
Grove
Northumberland | £10,000 Open space LBH recreation LBH | Concept stage only -
Park improvements NM needs further
greenspace development.
Residents’ Groups

TOTAL VALUE £1,977,000.00

33




Page 345

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

5.3.2 BUSINESS

An opportunity exists for Groundwork to deliver projects that contribute to the Council’s environmental
policy objectives and wider objectives of the Economic Regeneration department. The Haringey City
Growth Strategy highlights the importance of encouraging enterprise and inward investment within the
Borough. One of the aspects of Groundwork’s future programme of work is providing practical support,
advice, information and training to companies on environmental business issues, and the aim is to
encourage companies to realise cost savings through improved environmental performance
(Environmental Business Services — known as Groundwork EBS). The second aspect is in addition
delivering physical environmental improvements within industrial/business areas and in town centres -
including streetscene enhancements such as landscaping, as well as improving community safety through
better signage and lighting. Many business areas in the borough continue to suffer from “crime and
grime” and this remains a major issue for business growth and economic prosperity.

Additionally, there is a significant potential area of work for Groundwork in helping the Council to meet its
objectives to reduce waste, improve the management of waste and increase recycling — for businesses in
particular. Groundwork has already delivered a pilot initiative on this basis in Wood Green. In Haringey,
environmental business services have been largely provided by CESMB — (Centre for Environment and
Safety Management for Business - based at Middlesex University) — who are a key player in this area,
and Groundwork will be keen to collaborate with CESMB in order to avoid duplication of effort. Another
potential partner who are significant in this field particularly in relation to businesses is the National
Industrial Symbiosis Programme who bring together companies across many sectors with the aim of
improving cross-industry resource efficiency through pooling resources, logistics and expertise.

Opportunities for Groundwork:

o Business site regeneration — environmental/landscape elements of business/industrial areas
(consultation, design, delivery), possible business improvement district (BID) initiatives in town
centres, environmental regeneration as part of Haringey Heartlands development, green business
parks, town-centre/streetscene including shop frontage improvements are all relevant opportunities.

e Groundwork Environmental Business Services (EBS) — general awareness-raising activities as well as
more in depth environmental management advice.

e Corporate Social Responsibility — encouraging corporate volunteering and sponsorship opportunities
for local environmental projects.

Potential Partners:

North London Ltd

Haringey Council

City Growth Strategy Partnership

North London Strategic Alliance

North London Chamber of Commerce
Business Link London North

FinFuture Ltd

CESMB

North London Waste Authority

National Industrial Symbiosis Programme

Recycling
Campaign — new
areas

Greening Industrial
Estates, Business
Areas & Town
Centres project
below

awareness for SME’s

Regeneration
NLWA
CESMB

Project Estimated project | Description Partners Progress
value
Trade Waste Costed within the Waste minimisation LBH Econ Currently

finalising pilot
project before
further

development.

Haringey PCT
EBS

£5,000

34




A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Page 346

Haringey CGS £120,000
delivery plan
projects
LDA Green £90,000 Provision of a package | NLCC The suggested
Economy of industrial estates LBH Econ project for
Programme 2006 improvements — Regen inclusion is
- 2009 including EBS and Millmead Millmead
landscape design. Business Industrial Area
Group — under
CESMB development
07/08.
Greening £143,000 Improving LBH Econ Development in
Industrial business/industrial sites | Regen progress — may
Estates, through business North London follow on from
Business Areas & engagement in Ltd LDA pilot
Town Centres planning, design and NLCC above.
implementation of CESMB
environmental
improvements; in
addition to provision of
EBS. Strong links to
Haringey City Growth
Strategy
implementation plan
and Neighbourhood
Renewal.
Groundwork is
Other EBS £70,000 Strategy being written now part of the
activity for end of 2006 - require Vision
practical delivery of NLSA development.
environmental LVRPA
improvements in LBH Future projects
addition to LVRPA CESMB require
development
Ongoing discussion re: once Vision
possibility of partnering agreed.
to write a Zero-Waste
Strategy for the
Borough. The concept
of zero waste is about
moving to ‘minimising’
waste rather than
‘managing’ waste and
requires involvement
across the supply chain.
TOTAL VALUE £428,000.00

35




Page 347

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

5.3.3 EDUCATION

There is a need in the borough for Groundwork projects that relate to environmental education and
sustainable development. However, other organisations including the Council are already delivering a
number of schemes. However, there may be a role for Groundwork within this existing provision, such as
Education for Sustainable Development, school-business projects, local heritage and travel to school.

There is also much potential to work in school grounds development and refurbishment as there is clearly
a need to improve open spaces in the borough. The risk of exclusion of certain groups of children from
education and achievement means there is scope for ‘pupil inclusion’ programmes and/or other informal
education programmes and alternative learning approaches for special educational needs.

As there are substantial health inequalities between the east and west of the Borough — health
improvement is a key area of work (as highlighted in the HIMP 2003-2005 as well as being a theme within
the LA21 Action Plans) and therefore there is a potential role for Groundwork to work on health education
projects/sporting activity projects with young people.

There is also a role for Groundwork to work on heritage projects — industrial or cultural heritage projects
that encourage children to become more familiar with their surroundings using practical projects such as
creating videos, making music and producing artwork.

Groundwork’s ‘education for sustainable development’ focus not only delivers projects, but also leaves a
more lasting legacy through teaching resources and teacher training. As projects are often linked to local
environmental issues — Groundwork seeks to engage the involvement of the wider school community,
particularly parental/family involvement and from local businesses and community leaders.

Opportunities for Groundwork:

Breakfast clubs, after-school clubs and extended school functions

School travel plans/Safer Routes to School

Healthy Schools Programme — NHS/TPCT potential partnership link

Heritage and Cultural projects (could also be community or land programmes)
Environmental education in primary & secondary schools including environmental teacher
training/teaching resources

e School grounds improvements including ‘Building Schools for the Future’ programme

Potential Partners:

LBH Children’s and Youth Services and other departments as appropriate

Sure Start

Children’s Fund

BTCV

Learning Through Landscapes

GLA London Schools Environment Award Team

Waste Watch

Parent’'s Groups, Parent Teacher Associations, School Pupil Councils, Trade Union branches and
stewards

36



A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Page 348

Project Estimated Description Partners Progress
project value
After-school and £60,000 General environmental LBH Concept stage
extended school education & potential Children’s only - needs
activities role in Safer Routes to Services further
School; linking schools development
into local environmental
regeneration initiatives
Educational £15,000 Developing LBH Awaiting
resources and educational/learning Recreation feedback from
environmental resources for key sites LVRPA LVRPA
teaching services in the borough or local Friends Group
Site specific environmental resources | BTCV
education e.g. for schools
Tottenham Marshes
Landscape/facility LBH Concept stage
School grounds £120,000 improvements to school | Children’s only - needs
improvements premises — creating Services further
outdoor Haringey Play | development
classrooms/safe, Association
shaded play
Work experience £30,000 Environmental work LBH Concept stage
programmes, Sure experience for school Children’s only - needs
Start/Children’s pupils — linking to Services further
Fund and Groundwork activities HEBP development
Children’s Centre and local businesses Connexions
programmes
Environmental activities | Sure Start
linked to Children’s
Centres.
TOTAL VALUE £225,000.00

37




Page 349

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

5.3.4 YOUTH

Engaging young people in projects that improve their surroundings can regenerate a renewed sense of
community spirit, providing learning and employment opportunities and contributing to the creation of
more cohesive and safe neighbourhoods. This is something that is a priority in Haringey and central to
Groundwork youth programmes.

Groundwork is a key deliverer of environmental work with young people. Our experience tells us that
young people want to see and participate in positive change in their neighbourhoods. They have the most
to lose from neighbourhood decline and the most to gain from new facilities and services. Community-
based projects enable young people to plan and undertake changes to their surroundings, which can act
as a catalyst that kick-starts a change in attitudes and behaviour.

Groundwork’s priorities have been highlighted as: working with young people not in education or training
(NEET) and raising achievement amongst young people in schools and youth centres — using the
environment and local regeneration projects as a tool to engagement.

The Network Learning Communities in Haringey will be fundamental in identifying potential projects and
resources to support Groundwork youth projects in the borough.

Groundwork would welcome input from the newly formed Haringey Youth Council.
Opportunities for Groundwork:

e Partnership work with LBH Youth Service and Neighbourhood Management — youth clubs and estate-
based work in key neighbourhoods

e School or college projects — inclusion programmes and work experience

Anti-Social Behaviour and youth crime diversionary projects — by involving young people in

environmental projects in their neighbourhood

Intergenerational projects — particularly teenagers and older people

Art or media-based youth projects linking to an environmental/regeneration theme

Work alongside youth training agencies delivering environmental/horticultural training

Using environment-theme to engage ethnic youth groups

Potential partners:

KIS Training Ltd (youth training / Prince’s Trust projects)

North London Connexions

Learning & Skills Council North London

Haringey Children’s & Youth Service

Haringey Play Association

Local youth groups including YMCA

Haringey Neighbourhood Management & regeneration partnerships
Haringey Education & Business Partnership

BTCV

38



Page 350

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Project Estimated project | Description Partners Progress
value

BLF - Health £150,000 Using environmental Haringey Development in
projects with young projects to highlight TPCT progress via
people the benefits of LBH Big Lottery

healthier lifestyles Children’s Fund Well-

and activities for being

young people programme
Environmental youth | £180,000 No specific projects LBH NM Concept stage
projects — on estates identified — but LBH Youth only - needs
and in schools Groundwork’s role Service further

should be engaging LBH development

young people within Recreation

their neighbourhood Services

with environmental Homes for

projects Haringey

Projects should target

young people from

BME communities
Cultural projects £15,000 Innovative projects to | Collage Arts Concept stage
with young people — engage young people | LBH only - needs
art, media, heritage in heritage and Chocolate further
etc cultural projects Factory? development

Selby Trust

LBH Children’s £15,000 Environmental LBH Current project
Services projects with children | Children’s search
Commissioning and young people underway
projects
TOTAL VALUE £360,000.00

39




Page 351

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

5.3.5 EMPLOYMENT

There is a need for encouraging employment in the borough, especially in the east of the borough. The
substantial and widespread efforts already in Haringey could be enhanced through the provision of
practical environmental training and ‘green’ employment initiatives e.g. Groundwork’s Green Employment
- Environmental Intermediate Labour Market (ILM) Programmes and related training initiatives.
Groundwork will need to ensure avoiding duplication of the existing efforts and services, and opportunities
lie in joining-up or adding to existing schemes.

Groundwork’s model aims to support long-term unemployed into employment in the horticulture and
landscaping industry through a tailored training programme, including employment search and
placements on completion. The ideal option is to combine an ILM with a Transitional Work Programme
(TWP). The model above provides vocational training and paid real work experience. The model also
provides a resource of a ‘green team’ that could deliver maintenance and landscape projects in the
borough. The initial cost of establishing a ‘green team’ can be expensive but can be justified with the
higher job outcome rates. The ILM/TWP gives those clients who have multiple barriers to employment the
skills and qualifications to access the labour market. The model could be a springboard for establishing a
local social enterprise that can aim to increase project income and therefore secure long-term
sustainability. The costs and project length can be flexible on all options and Groundwork will work to
develop an employment initiative that meets funders’, employers’ and clients’ needs. In order to be viable
it is likely that this scheme would need to be a partnership across neighbouring boroughs.

The EMPLOY Upper Lee Valley Framework provides potential partnership or tendering opportunity for
Groundwork to deliver employment programmes via Urban Futures managed programmes.

The Local Employment Action Programme is a pan-London Groundwork initiative funded by the London
Development Agency and Job Centre Plus (£100,000 over 2 years). The Groundwork feasibility planning
has identified the need to provide training and employment opportunities in the horticulture and grounds
maintenance sector. This successful LDA and Job Centre Plus programme will fund Groundwork to
develop employment opportunities across several London borough’s, including Haringey. Groundwork
has discussed these with the Council’'s Employment & Skills Team to explore green jobs and other
employment projects in Haringey.

Opportunities for Groundwork:

e Develop the concept of a ‘Green Team’ for Haringey

e Support and strengthen existing skills development and training activities centred around
horticultural/environmental centres

e Working in partnership with the Probation Service to deliver specialised training for ex-offenders

e Working in partnership with JobCentre Plus to deliver targeted environmental programmes for BME
groups and migrant communities

e Environmental work experience/voluntary placements for young people

Potential Partners:

KIS Training Ltd

Urban Futures

Job Centre Plus North London

Haringey Employment Partnership
Haringey Council Economic Regeneration
Learning & Skills Council North London
Selby Trust

Haringey Training Network

40



A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Page 352

Project Estimated Description Partners Progress
project value
Green Team Pilot | £200,000 Strategy being written for LBH Econ LBH
Programme 07/08 end of 2006 - require Regen considering
practical delivery of JCP Groundwork
environmental LSC proposal
improvements in addition to
LVRPA? Link to assist
existing horticultural
centres?
Lone parents £80,000 Existing initiative that could | LBH Econ Concept stage
teaching be rolled out in Haringey? Regen only - needs
assistants further
programme development
Specific £90,000 Targeted programme using | LBH Econ Concept stage
environmental environmental/landscape Regen only - requires
training targeting training to increase general | JCP further
BME/migrant employment skills — development
community potential inclusion of
resettlement of prisoners.
TOTAL VALUE £370,000.00

41




Page 353

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

5.3.6 COMMUNITIES

Fear of crime is a major concern to people in Haringey, especially to the east of the Borough and
highlighted in the Crime Reduction Strategy (2005-2008). Community Safety schemes and neighbourhood
projects which help to reduce fear of crime are among the recommended measures. Studies indicate
enviro-crime is often responsible for increasing the perception of crime. This is an area where there is a
potential need for Groundwork projects which address these issues through projects that combat graffiti
and improve street lighting, signage and open spaces. Groundwork has the expertise in working with
residents and leaseholders in addressing their concerns about their environment through good design.
Groundwork would work in partnership with the Better Haringey and Community Safety teams.

There is potential for Groundwork to work on community development projects that focus on
environmental regeneration. Such projects would also include consideration of sports and health and
social cohesion. ldeally these projects would relate to physical improvement projects and be located in
those areas of greatest need.

All those involved in delivering regeneration now agree that a sustainable community is, by definition, a
healthy community and that tackling disadvantage is at the root of improving well-being. There are a
number of opportunities for Groundwork to create healthier environments and lifestyles in the borough.

Any future work with Neighbourhood Management teams and also the Seven Sisters NDC could also
build on the need to keep local residents involved in the regeneration effort. Groundwork’s experience in
community consultation would come in useful here.

Opportunities for Groundwork:

Community safety projects

Community gardener schemes and horticultural therapy (health and environment)

Community development workers with environmental expertise

ALMO / Housing services — estate regeneration schemes and resident engagement

Environmental projects to involve refugees, asylum seekers and BME communities

Sport projects — complementing sports activities on a neighbourhood level

Community waste and recycling — raising awareness to increase recycling rates — potential links to
local recycling initiatives, including Restore community recycling project and Recycling in Education
Initiative.

e Community Centres — assistance in designing and building outdoor areas and gardens.

Potential Partners:

LBH Neighbourhood Management
Homes for Haringey

Haringey TPCT

Community Safety/Police

Housing Associations

Haringey Training Network
Haringey HAVCO and HARCEN
Women’s Environmental Network
Residents’ Associations
Community Sports Network

42



Page 354

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Project

Estimated project
value

Description

Partners

Progress

Mayor’s Sustainable
Suburbs Toolkit

£4,000

Potential new funding or
'toolkit' training for
Neighbourhood
Managers. Also NM are
keen to see practical
work coming out of the
learning that has taken
place in the Myddleton
Rd. area.

LBH NM

Community Gardener

Allotment/Food Growing
Project - Possibly
around the Tower
Garden Estate

£60,000

Help to set up and
support community
gardening clubs and
projects in deprived
communities. Mainly on
housing estates,
schools, community
centres.

Also link into allotment
and gardening work
which focuses on
nutrition and ‘cook & eat’
type projects with a
target on hard-to-reach
communities such as
women who are
otherwise confined to
the home, elderly
groups, substance
misusers, refugees etc.
Can also be linked into
qualifications and
employment and
Children’s’ Centres

HfH, LBH
NM, HA’s,
BTCV
Residents’
Associations

Horticultural Therapy
projects - PCT mental
health

£60,000

Links to employment
programme and existing
activities at John
Grooms Centre and
MHT centre

Haringey
TPCT
MHT

Community training and
volunteering
opportunities

£15,000

Activities linked to local
regeneration projects

Haringey
Training
Network
Selby
Centre
HAVCO

Balfour Beatty Decent
Homes Contract and
other Neighbourhood
Initiatives

£120,000

If Balfour Beatty are
successful in winning
Decent Homes contract
then Groundwork will
help them to deliver
community
communication and
engagement aspects of
their work

Balfour
Beatty, HfH

TOTAL VALUE

£259,000.00




Page 355

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

SECTION 6 - Organisational Plan

6.1 Organisational structure and staff resources

The proposed Groundwork services in Haringey will be delivered by the Groundwork North London staff
team with the relevant expertise and experience appropriate for the operations outlined in Section 5. The
staff resource for the new area will include:

Community Development staff — working with local people, consulting, supporting and
building capacity so that residents are able to develop their own ideas and play an active
role in improving their own neighbourhoods.

Landscape Architects — translating local ideas into practical schemes that meet
community needs, engaging specialist contractors and managing contractors through to
completion.

Education — education officers — supporting teachers with practical workshops, training,
schools grounds developments and school business links.

Employment — employment practitioners — providing vocational training and work
placement opportunities for people finding it difficult to get work.

Business — environmental managers — providing advice to companies and organisations
on sustainable procurement, health & safety, waste minimisation, energy-saving and
pollution.

Youth — youth workers — involving young people in practical regeneration activities as a
way of developing their confidence and skills and helping them realise their potential as
positive agents of change.

Fundraising — fundraisers working with other Groundwork staff and community groups to
identify sources of funding and submit successful funding applications.

Management — developing and providing supervision, systems and procedures for
operational staff to ensure that work is delivered on time, to a high standard and within
budget.

Administration — providing administrative and financial support to operational teams to
enable them to operate effectively.

These posts will in most instances be drawn from existing expertise in the Trust, depending on the skills
and capacity required to deliver the various programmes. However, if additional staff resources are
required to fill the skills gaps or add capacity, this will be assessed by Groundwork North London as part
of their strategic business planning process.

There is a clear benefit to using experienced Groundwork staff that have been delivering successful
programmes in adjacent boroughs. Groundwork London’s regional programme staff will also be involved
in managing or delivering regional or sub-regional programmes in Haringey. Groundwork will recruit or
engage specialist staff, e.g. Environmental Business Advisers, this would be sourced from the network of
skills within Groundwork in the London region.

Voluntary posts are not anticipated at this stage, other than local community volunteers on individual
projects at a neighbourhood level. All of these staff resources are costed as shown in Section 7.

6.2 Premises

Groundwork North London is currently engaging with property consultants to explore the positive
opportunity to purchase premises to best serve their geographical area.



Page 356

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

6.3 Governance and legal implications

Groundwork is currently in the process of reviewing the future delivery of services across London in the
future, therefore no formal governance arrangements are likely to be possible until March 2007. It is
expected that the Council will be invited to participate in the new governance arrangements whether at a
sub-regional or regional level.

Subject to Council agreement, Haringey Council will enter into a partnership with Groundwork for the
delivery of the agreed Operations Plan. Groundwork’s services in Haringey will be delivered by
Groundwork North London as of 1* April 2007.

A Haringey Steering Group or Committee will be established to monitor the local delivery of services in the
borough and assure that these are attuned to local needs. This mechanism would facilitate engagement
with local stakeholders and partners and ensure that local accountability remains with Haringey
stakeholders and Groundwork.

6.4 Internal management and evaluation systems

Groundwork ensures that all project delivery is well managed, monitored and their outcomes evaluated
with all stakeholders. The Groundwork Project Management System provides an IT-based framework to
closely manage projects on time, to budget and to agreed outcomes.

As part of individual projects, Groundwork ensures that its customers have the opportunity to evaluate
their performance and the project as a whole. This is achieved through customer satisfaction surveys at
the end of all projects with evaluation meetings held for all major projects. In addition the Trust carries out
post project (1 year plus) evaluation of a sample projects each year to evaluate their success and learn
appropriate lessons. The style in which Groundwork delivers relies on local community stakeholders
being fully engaged in planning, design and implementation of the project from the outset and to gain
ownership of the projects on completion. Groundwork will also ensure robust maintenance and after-care
procedures on all projects — through negotiation with the local community and relevant authorities and
landowners.

Groundwork UK has recently commissioned the Centre for Local Economic Strategies to undertake
research to find out what difference our projects make to people’s quality of life. Initial findings conclude
that Groundwork Trusts are having a beneficial impact on neighbourhood satisfaction, liveability, fear of
crime, skills development and community empowerment.

6.5 Accreditation and policy framework

Groundwork North London has a robust policy framework including Diversity, HR, Health & Safety,
Environment, Business Planning and Finance.

The Board of Trustees has formally constituted Sub Groups for Finance, Business Planning and Human
Resources. There is also a sub group for Premises. A Board Trustee is invited to attend the Health &
Safety Committee.

The Trust operates a vigorous Business Planning process, involving key partners, external funders,
Groundwork UK and other relevant parties. This process approved by the Board of Trustees and in
compliance with Groundwork UK and DCLG, drives the organisation forward through the following
financial years, determining priority objectives and cascading these down to all the management and staff
teams.

All Groundwork operations are also subject to a Comprehensive Business Assessment (CBA).
Groundwork North London complies with all recommended external auditing and review processes and in
2005 was audited under a formal Twelve Year Review (as part of the Government’s 12 Yr Rule,
established in 1996). This was carried out by an external body (URSUS Consulting) in cooperation with
Groundwork UK. In 2006 Groundwork North London was reviewed by a Federation appointed
Performance and Review (PAR) Team. The Trust will next be assessed under CBA in 2009. These review
processes ensure the Trust is operated and managed efficiently and effectively.



Page 357

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

The Groundwork Federation has implemented BETA+ (Business Excellence Through Action) as a total
quality management system for all Trusts and regional offices. Groundwork UK has joined the UK
Investors in Excellence Recognition Programme which is built around the fundamental concepts of
Excellence and the European Foundation for Quality Management (EFQM) Excellence model.

Groundwork North London has achieved accreditation in Investors in Excellence and has ‘Investors in
People’ accreditation.

The Trust operates key working groups to determine policy and procedure. These include:

Aftercare Working Group

B.E.T.A Working Group

Creative consultation Working Group
Diversity Working Group

Diversity Working Group

First Aid Working Group

Green Group (BS8555)

Health and Safety Committee
Quality Working Group

Staff HR Working Group

The Trust has CHAS (Contractor Health and Safety assessment scheme) accreditation. CHAS
compliance means Groundwork North London has demonstrated compliance with current legislation and
sound management of Health & Safety. CHAS is recognised by the Local Government Association,
Trades Union Congress and the Institution of Occupational Health (IOSH) who have formally endorsed
the scheme. Groundwork North London has a Health & Safety Committee, chaired by the Executive
Director (with Board Trustee attendance) which meets regularly and reports to the Board of Trustees.

The Trust is currently undergoing the implementation process for BS8555 (Environment) and will
complete this accreditation process by March 31 2007.

6.6 Partner liaison

As well as building a sustainable programme of work that delivers the borough’s needs — Groundwork will
continue to build relationships with key partners and community stakeholders across all sectors. The
development process to date has been extremely positive and partner organisations welcome
Groundwork services in the borough. Groundwork must ensure that partner relations are maintained and
projects are delivered to a high quality in order to demonstrate and build our profile and reputation within
Haringey.



Page 358

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

SECTION 7 - Income and expenditure

The Income and Expenditure forecast has been created to anticipate the expected development income,
project income and costs, as well as demonstrating the management of the business over the six year
period of the projected programme. The income and cost figures have been derived from knowledge
available and supported by identified income streams and project initiatives. (See Section 5 Operations
Plan).

The financial plans are supported by key London Borough of Haringey partners.
The financial projections are summarised in Table 1.

The financial planning includes cash flow projections, cost projections based on budgets for people and
overheads, as well as programme summaries.

The annual contribution requested from the London Borough of Haringey is £70,000. It is noted that there
is a match of funding from other areas (DCLG, private sector). This funding is focussed on development,
programme and project development and is linked to the ability to deliver the projects and programmes
identified in the Operations Plan.

Assumptions:

e The phased build up of the project and programme income and costs reflects the increase in local
development knowledge and experience; and will build on the capacity already developed in
delivering pilot projects in 2006/07.

e The current Groundwork North London programmes will run in parallel and opportunities to
broaden existing programmes will be maximised. The Groundwork year runs from 1 April to 31
March.

o The programme values take account of the information on programmes provided to date by the
London Borough of Haringey and other key partners.

e Retained surpluses of fewer than 5% build over the six years to establish a cumulative total in the
order of £188k. This annual surplus level is good financial management and contributes to the
Trust, supporting its intent to carry unrestricted reserves for the purposes of ongoing working
capital.

e Costs have been estimated using the Full Cost Recovery method.

The trends in finance:

e Steady rise in project income as new programmes are developed and implemented

e LB Haringey contribution and DCLG investment are a reducing proportion of the programme over
time

e Project costs increase to accommodate increased volume of work

o Staff and support costs increase to accommodate increased volumes and the need to invest in
staff skills, development and retention.

Risk Analysis:

With the current status of the data available, it was not considered practical to prepare a detailed
sensitivity analysis of the financial projections. Attention is drawn to the following risk factors:

o The assumptions used to prepare the financial projections are based on the experience of
Groundwork London generally and Groundwork North London in particular, together with
consultations with the London Borough of Haringey and key stakeholders. Hence, the outcomes
are dependent upon both the scope and content of the programmes being available for delivery
with LB Haringey within the timescales proposed.

¢ Similarly, the National Performance Measures (NPM’s) have been extrapolated from the
information available in creating the project programmes. The assumptions used to prepare the
NPM’s are a mixture of this information and experience of Groundwork London generally and
Groundwork North London in particular, together with the consultations with partners. Hence, the
outcomes are dependent upon both the scope and content of the programmes being available for
delivery with partners within the timescales proposed.



Page 359

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

The operations programme sets out the priorities of local partners and indicative levels and
sources of funding. Until the actual Haringey programme is underway there is a risk that changes
in funding regimes may have an adverse effect on income.

Continuity of programmes and maintenance of payment terms, in respect of cash receipts from
programmes.

The forecast net profit margin is vulnerable to erosion through inflation and non-forecast
expenditure.

Groundwork North London has a firm financial position with a large number of regeneration programmes
already underway. Their key financial objectives will be to:

Develop and secure a broad base of operational and development funding to ensure sustainable
cash flow across its operations

Achieve annual surpluses to finance continued development and growth and to ensure long term
viability of the Trust

Maximise the leverage of other sources of funds and secure new sources of funds

Secure partnerships to spread and manage financial risk and maximise value for money

Keep overheads to a minimum and optimise the economies of scale available to a larger Trust to
benefit the operations

Maintain financial management systems and ensure there are proper controls in place including
project management systems



A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

TABLE 1: INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Development Income

Predicted Groundwork investment (incl.private, DCLG & other)

Predicted Haringey Council investment

Project Income
Income growth
TOTAL INCOME
Indirect Expenditure
Staff Costs

Support costs

Direct project costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
SURPLUS

Surplus % [Target 5%)]

Cumulative Surplus

Full cost recovery

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 201011 2011/2012 2012/2013 6 Years
70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 420,000
70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 420,000

140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 840,000

445,000 510,000 590,000 655,000 699,000 720,000 3,619,000

14.61% 15.69% 11.02% 6.72% 3.00%

585,000 650,000 730,000 795,000 839,000 860,000 4,459,000
70,000 74,000 77,000 80,000 84,000 87,000 472,000
45,000 46,350 47,740 49,172 50,647 52,166 291,075

115,000 120,350 124,740 129,172 134,647 139,166 763,075

445,000 503,500 575,000 630,000 669,000 685,000 3,507,500

560,000 623,850 699,740 759,172 803,647 824,166 4,270,575
25,000 26,150 30,260 35,828 35,353 35,834

4.27% 4.02% 4.15% 4.51% 4.21% 4.17%
25,000 51,150 81,410 117,238 152,591 188,425

09¢ obed



Page 361

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

SECTION 8 Outcomes

Table of Outcomes

Totals| Estimated Overall| Estimated

Performance Measure Unit Years Years Total Year 6
1to3 4t06 6 Years

Physical Environmental Improvement
Trees planted No. of trees (000s) 1.5 4 5.5 3.6
Area of land improved Square metres (000s) 25 85 110 70
Area of land maintained Square metres (000s) 25 100 125 85
Education and Community Involvement
Young people actively
involved in projects Person days (000s) 5 8 13 6
Adults actively involved in
projects Person days (000s) 5 8 13 4.5
Schools involved with
Groundwork No. of schools 15 60 75 50
Integrating the Economy and Environment
Businesses involved with
Groundwork No. of businesses 50 120 170 100
Improvements to
environmental performance No. env. reviews 10 30 40 20
Jobs created No. of jobs 5 45 50 30
Training weeks provided No. of weeks (000s) 1 2 3 1.3
Number and Type of Projects
Total Projects Progressed  No. of projects 90 150 240 90
Physical Environmental
Improvements No. of projects 50 80 130 50
Education and Community
Involvement No. of projects 30 50 80 30
Integrating the Economy and
Environment No. of projects 10 20 30 10

Local performance measures are being developed and explicit outputs are to be agreed with LBH and
defined through the Partnership Agreement. This would provide a robust plan which would allow for
specific outcomes and for future funding to be tied into performance. One example of relevant local
measures that have been suggested are health inequalities targets.



Page 362

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

APPENDIX 1

Partners and Steering Group should be listed in the appendices along with formal observations of the
major partners. These may be in the form of letters of support.

List of Parthers

1 Haringey Council

2 Supporters
a) Voluntary and Community Sector

HAVCO
ReStore
FinFuture

Selby Trust

Lea Rivers Trust

b) Public Sector

Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust
Lee Valley Regional Park Authority
British Waterways

¢) Business Sector
CESMB Middlesex University
London Waste Ltd
Circle Anglia
North London Chamber of Commerce
Tottenham Hotspurs
North London Ltd
Homes for Haringey

d) Other Partners/Supporters

List of Organizations Represented on Steering Group Members

LBH

Haringey TPCT

North London Waste Authority
LVRPA

CESMB

HAVCO

FinFuture

Circle Anglia

O O O O O O O O



Page 363

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

APPENDIX 2

Key local regeneration/investment initiatives including a list of organisations involved in the
residual needs study

Face to face consultees

Markfield Organisation

NDC Seven Sisters

Middlesex University -CESMB

Haringey Employment Business Partnership
LBH — Neighbourhood Management Team
Lee Valley Regional Park

FinFuture

Selby Trust

ReStore Haringey

Family Housing Association

British Waterways

Lea Rivers Trust

KIS training

JobCentre Plus

Business Link for London North

Circle 33 Housing Association (Circle Anglia )
Lynne Featherstone MP

BTCV

Haringey Play Association

North London Strategic Alliance

North London Ltd

Urban Futures

London & Quadrant Housing Association
Family Housing Association

LBH — Various departments:

Environment Directorate

Housing/ Housing Strategy

Parks

Economic Regeneration
Neighbourhood Management

O 0 0O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0ODO0OO0OO0OO0OO0oOO0oOO0oOOoOOo

O O O O O

o ClIr Brian Haley - Executive Member for Environment & Conservation
ClIr Lorna Reith — Executive Member for Community Involvement
o ClIr Kawshika Amin - Executive Member for Enterprise and Regeneration

(@)

Consultees by Questionnaire/Telephone Interviews

Haringey Strategic Partnership

Metropolitan Housing Trust

Learning and Skills Council — London North
Haringey Federation of Residents Association
College of North East London

Haringey Accord Ltd.

LA21 Community Steering Group
WasteWatch

O 0 O O O O O O

Organisations included in Broadcast Consultation

o Friends of Parks Forum
o Haringey Community Empowerment Network
o Haringey Racial Equality Council



Page 364

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

Haringey Consortium of Disabled People and Carers Consortium
Haringey Cycling Campaign

Collage Arts

Age Concern

Hornsey YMCA

Bruce Grove Youth and Community Centre

The Harringay Club

O O O O O O O

Community organisations based at the Selby Trust:

Angolan Community Association
Black & Ethnic Minority Service
Cabinda Community Association
Critical Praxis

Eritrean Community Centre
Ethiopian Community Centre
Haringey Accountancy Project
Haringey Refugee Consortium
Kurdish Housing Association
Mencap

Social & Community Enterprise
Uganda Relief Association
Zairean Community Centre
Garden Residents’ Association

O 0 00O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0oOO0oOOoOOo

Presentations to

o Healthier Communities Executive
o Better Places Partnership
o Better Haringey Steering Group



Page 365

A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

APPENDIX 3: PRESS CUTTINGS OF PUBLICITY OF GROUNDWORK PILOT PROJECTS



A proposal for Groundwork Haringey

APPENDIX 4

Groundwork Operations Plan Financial Summary - October 2006

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 TOTAL Total prog value

Programme Project £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Employment Green Team Initiative 10 20 20 50 50 50 200

Environmental Training/work placements 0 0 30 30 30 0 90

Other training - teaching assistants 0 0 0 20 30 30 80

Totalemployment 370
Business Haringey PCT EBS 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

Haringey CGS delivery e.g. Green Cluster, Waste Min etc. 20 20 20 20 20 20 120

NLCC/NL Ltd - industrial estates - Millmead Estate plus.... 15 15 15 15 15 15 90

Other industrial estates & town centre schemes 0 23 30 30 30 30 143

Other EBS activity 0 5 10 15 20 20 70

Total business 428
Land Belmont Recreation Ground Phase 2/3 15 0 0 0 0 0 15

Priority Neighbourhoods NRF (e.g. Noel Park, Sandlings etc) 50 50 65 65 100 100 430

Canal Project 33 5 5 5 5 5 58

FinFuture Projects 15 0 15 0 0 0 30

Lordship Lane Streetspace 10 0 0 0 0 0 10

Carbuncle Passage - greening access 0 15 0 0 0 0 15

LVRPA/LBH The Paddocks 0 10 0 0 0 0 10

Muswell Hill Playing Fields 0 0 30 0 0 0 30

Creation of new/refurbishment of youth/play/sports facilities 30 0 40 50 70 70 260

Community Centre Gardens (e.g. Selby, Haven Centres...) 0 10 0 10 0 15 35

Allotment strategy - delivering projects 0 10 0 10 0 15 35

HfH housing estate improvements 70 70 70 70 70 70 420

Decent Homes Standard 10 10 10 10 10 10 60

Housing Association estate improvement projects 50 50 50 50 50 50 300

LBH key development sites 0 0 20 20 40 40 120

ULV & Growth Areas Fund & Green Infrastructure 0 20 20 20 29 40 129

Small Open Space/Community Gdns e.g. Napier Rd 0 0 10 0 0 0 10

Northumberland Park Greenspace 0 0 10 0 0 0 10

Total Land 1,977
Education School-based activities - after-school/extended 0 10 10 10 15 15 60

LVRPA Tottenham Marshes - education resource 0 15 0 0 0 0 15

School grounds improvements 0 40 0 40 0 40 120

Children's & Early Years Programmes 0 10 0 10 0 10 30

Total Education 225
Youth Big Lottery Well-being programme 30 30 30 30 30 0 150

Neighbourhood-based youth engagement activities 30 30 30 30 30 30 180

Other youth projects 10 0 10 0 10 0 30

Total Youth 360
Communities Sustainable Suburbs - future project 2 2 0 0 0 0 4

Community Gardener 10 10 10 10 10 10 60

Horticultural Therapy projects - PCT mental health 10 10 10 10 10 10 60

Community training and volunteering opportunities 0 0 0 5 5 5 15

NDC or other Neighbourhood initiatives - potential delivery 20 20 20 20 20 20 120

Total Communities 259

Year Totals 445 510 590 655 699 720
Total value of programme over 6 years £3,679 |

99¢ obed



Page 367 Agenda ltem 17

Agenda ltem

The Executive On 23 January 2007

Report title: URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS

Report of: The Chief Executive

1. Purpose

To inform the Executive of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Executive
Members.

The report details urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Executive
Members since last reported. Item numbers 18 and 19 (2006-7) have not previously been
reported.

2. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Report authorised by: lta O’'Donovan, Chief Executive

Contact officer: Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923




Page 368

4. Access to information:
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1  Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Executive Member Consultation Forms
Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.




1. DIRECTOR’S ACTION - 2006-07

Exempt forms are denoted by ¢

18. | Finance 07.12.06 | A.Travers A Mallett Acquisition of Pursuant to the decision as set out in Minute TEX 214 of the
former rail land for | Executive meeting held on 21 March 2006, to approve terms of the
a new secondary purchase of the site known as the former rail sand sidings at
school on Haringey | Haringey Heartlands.
Heartlands

19. | Finance 04.01.07 | G.Almeroth A.Mallett To propose the Approval, in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of

Council’s tax base
for 2007/08 in
accordance with
the provisions of
the Local
Government
Finance Act 1992

Tax Base) Regulations 1992, the amount calculated as the Council’s
tax base for the year as 84,468. Also endorsement of the current
approach to locally defined discounts originally introduced from 1
April 2004 continuing for 2007/08.

69¢ obed



Page 370



Page 371 Agenda ltem 18

Agenda ltem

The Executive On 23 January 2007

Report title: DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS

Report of: The Chief Executive

1. Purpose
To inform the Executive of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by Directors.
The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under delegated

powers in December 2006. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of more
than £50,000) taken during the same period are also detailed.

2. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Report authorised by: Ita O’'Donovan, Chief Executive

Contact officer: Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923




Page 372

4. Access to information:
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1  Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions Forms

Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.




DIRECTOR OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Significant decisions - Delegated Action 2006/07
¢ denotes background papers are Exempt.

Changes to Officer Scheme of In accordance with the decision at full Council on 13 November 2006, the Chief Executive was
Delegation to Implement authorised to ensure the Council’'s Scheme of Delegation to Officers in Part F7 of the Constitution
Council Reshaping was amended at the appropriate time dependent upon appointments to various posts. The majority
of appointments to first and second tier posts have now been made and this delegated authority
brings into operation the amendments required to reflect the new structure. Existing delegated
powers to the new Directors and their second tier officers have therefore been re-allocated within
each section of the scheme of delegation.

Delegated Action

¢/¢ abed



Page 374

This page is intentionally left blank



ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Access)

Significant decisions - Delegated Action December 2006
¢ denotes background papers are Exempt.

Items in bold denote agreed decisions over £50k

1. 21/12/06 | Survey for St. Ann’s Library Hall Extension — Lifelong Learning Facilities Agreed
Contract for 2,250 + VAT for period of 2 weeks

2. 21/12/06 | Mechanical & Electrical Consultants for Redevelopment of St. Ann’s Library Hall Agreed
Contract for £23,140 + VAT

3. 21/12/06 | Structural Engineering Design Consultants for Redevelopment of St. Ann’s Library Agreed
Contract for 21,640 + VAT

4. 21/12/06 | Redevelopment of St. Ann’s Library Hall Extension — Lifelong Learning Facilities Agreed
Contract for £49,800 + VAT

5. 21/12/06 | Software to convert and maintain website metadata to IPSV Agreed

Contract for £11,500 for period of 3 years

Delegated Action

None

G/¢€ obed



Page 376

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 377 Agenda ltem 19
MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 7 DECEMBER 2006

Councillors *Mallett (Chair), *Diakides, Haley and *Meehan

*Present
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PROC26 | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor Haley.

PROC27 | NEW SIXTH FORM CENTRE AT WHITE HART LANE - REQUEST
FOR WAIVER OF CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS AND TO VARY
THE CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT (Report of the Director of the
Children’s Service — Agenda ltem 4):

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because of the need to
finalise contract and other related issues related to the main works and
the earlier contract for demolition works. With the consent of our Chair a
revised version of the report containing the comments of the Head of
Procurement was tabled.

RESOLVED:

1. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 7, approval | DCS
be granted to a waiver of Contract Standing Order 12.07(a)
(Requirement for security in the form of a bond) in respect of
the main contract relating to the Design and Build of the
Haringey 6" Form Centre dated 3 July 2006 between the
Council and Willmott Dixon Construction Ltd.

2. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 7, approval | DCS
be granted to a waiver of Contract Standing Order 12.07(a)
(Requirement for security in the form of a bond) in respect of
the Demolition and Asbestos Removal Contract dated 28 July
2006 between the Council and Willmott Dixon Construction
Ltd.

3. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 13.02, DCS
approval be granted to a variation of both the Main Contract
(referred to in 1 above) and the Demolition and Asbestos
Removal Contract (referred to in 2 above) so as to remove the
requirement for a Performance Bond.

4. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 13.02, DCS
approval be granted to a variation of the terms of the Collateral
Warranty contained in both the Main Contract (referred to in 1
above) and the Demolition and Asbestos Removal Contract
(referred to in 2 above) and to the delegation to the Director of




Page 378

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 7 DECEMBER 2006

the Children and Young People’s Service of authority to
finalise those terms.

PROC28

REVIEW OF CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS (Report of the Acting
Director of Finance — Agenda ltem 5):

We were informed that it was no longer proposed to proceed with the
amendments to Contract Standing Orders 6.09 (Framework and
Consortia Arrangements) and 13.03 (Variations and Extensions).

Clarification was sought of the implications of the change proposed to
Contract Standing Orders 12.05 and 12.06 (Conditions Applying to
Contracts) by which the value of a contract which had to be executed on
behalf of the Council under seal was increased from £150,000 was
increased to £250,000. We noted that the proposal was a commercial
consideration which reflected the increased cost of contracts generally
since the Standing Orders were last changed. Having further noted that
contracts under seal permitted the Council to start litigation if necessary
up to 12 years from the date of the breach whereas litigation in respect
of contracts not executed under seal had to be commenced within 6
years of the date of the breach we asked that Members of the
Committee be supplied with details of all cases in which legal action of
this sort had been taken by the Council in the last 5 years. We asked
that a risk analysis be carried out on the proposal which should form the
basis of the officer's recommendation. We also asked that with respect
to Contract Standing Order 12.03 instead of deleting the words ‘within 2
weeks’ they be replaced with the words ‘within 4 weeks'.

With regard to the proposed changes in relation to Contract Standing
Order 6.07 (Scope of Contract Standing Orders), clarification was also
sought of whether there was a difference in law the difference between
‘supervising’ and ‘managing’ contracts. Having been advised that the
word ‘manage’ did imply a measure of control, we asked officers to
ensure that there would be no additional liability on the Council as a
result of the proposed changes. In response to a question about the
adequacy of the management of Council contracts, we were informed
that arrangements were to be introduced in February 2007 which were
aimed at formalising such arrangements.

Concern having been expressed about the some of the limits suggested
in proposed Contract Standing Orders 15.01 — 15.06 (Disposal of
Assets) we were informed that Contract Standing Orders currently made
no reference to Disposal of Assets and those now proposed excluded
land.

RESOLVED:

That, subject to the foregoing, approval be granted to the proposed
amendments to Contract Standing Orders as set out in Appendix 2 to the
interleaved report and the General Purposes Committee be requested to
recommend the Council accordingly.

HPr

HPr

HPr

HPr




Page 379

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 7 DECEMBER 2006

PROC29 | PROCUREMENT OF DESIGNER FRAMEWORK FOR BUILDING
SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE (Report of the Acting Director of Finance
— Agenda ltem 6):

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the award of the framework HPr
agreement contract to the consultants outlined below as the
Design Team Partners (DTP) for the Building Schools for the
Future (BSF) programme —

Penoyre and Prasad LLP

ABK Architects

Watkins Gray International LLP

TP Bennett LLP

Nicholas Hare Architects LLP

Building Design Partnership (BDP) Ltd.

2. That approval be granted to the delegation of authority to ng
award the call-off contracts for the individual project
appointments of DTP consultants to the Director of the
Children and Young People’s Service, in consultation with the
Executive Member for Children and Young People.

ANTONIA MALLETT

Chair




Page 380

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Programme Highlight Report - November 2006
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda item 07_Programme Highlight Report - November 2006 - Appendix

	8 The Council's Performance - November 2006
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda Iterm 08_Council's Performance - Appendix

	11 Council's Community Buildings  Portfolio
	Community Buildings  EB report Appendix 1- list of properties
	Executive 2007.01.23_Agenda Item 11 _ Community Buildings Report _ Appendix 2

	12 Haringey Housing Diversity and Equalities Strategic Framework
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda item 12_Housing Diversity & Equalities - Appendix

	13 Haringey Local Area Agreement 2007/2010
	14 Discretionary Licensing in the Private Rented Sector
	15 Recycling Strategy
	16 Groundwork Trust Partnership
	Executive _2007.01.23 _ Agenda Item 16_ GroundWork_Appendix 1
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda Item 16_ Groundwork - Appendix 2
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda Item 16_Groundwork _Appendix3

	17 Urgent Actions in Consultation with the Leader or Executive Members
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda Item 17_Urgency Report - Appendix

	18 Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda Item 18_Delegated Decisions - Appendix A
	Executive_2007.01.23_Agenda Item 18_Delegated Decisions - Appendix B

	19 Minutes of Sub-Bodies

